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NORTH MARIN WATER DISTRICT
AGENDA - REGULAR MEETING

November 5,2019 - 6:00 p.m.
District Headquarters

999 Rush Creek Place
Novato, California

about and copies of supporting materials on agenda items are available for public review at 999 Rush
Creek Place, Novato, at the Reception Desk, or by calling the District Secretary at (a15) 897-4133. A fee may be
charged for copies. District facilities and meetings comply with the Americans with Disabilities Act. lf special
accommodations are needed, please contact the District Secretary as soon as possible, but at least two days prior to
the

Est.
Time Item Subject

6:00 p.m. CALL TO ORDER

APPROVE MINUTES FROM REGULAR MEETING, October 15,2019

GENERAL MANAGER'S REPORT

OPEN TIME: (Please observe athree-minutetime limit)

This section of the agenda is provided so that the public may express comments on any issues not
listed on the agenda that are of interest to the public and within the jurisdiction of the North Marin Water
District. When comments are made about matters not on the agenda, Board members can ask
questions for clarification, respond to statements or questions from members of the public, refer a
matter to staff, or direct staff to place a matter of business on a future agenda. The public may also
express comments on agenda items at the time of Board consideration.

ST AF FlDI RECTORS REPORTS

QU ART ERLY FI N AN CIAL STATEMENT

ACTION CALENDAR

Approve: Operator-in-Charge Side Letter with Employee Associat¡on

Approve: Floating Holiday Side Letter with Employee Association

Approve: Kennedy/Jenks Consultants - Consulting Engineering Services Agreement
(Crest Pump Station)

Approve: Plum Street Tank Property Exchange - Grant Deed Resolution

Approve: Old Ranch Road Tank No. 2 - Request for Authorization to Conduct CEQA
Public Review

INFORMATION

PG&E October 26-30, 2019 Public Safety Shutdown Response (PSPS) Update

MISCELLANEOUS
Disbursements - Dated October 17 ,2019
Disbursements - Dated October 24,2019
Disbursements - Dated October 31, 2019
Comment Letter - Development of Water Loss Performance Standards
FY2O 1"t Quarter Labor Cost Report

All times are approximate and for reference only.
The Board of Directors may consider an item at a different time than set forth herein.
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Est.
Time Item Subject

News Aficles:
California finds widespread water contamination of 'forever chemicals'
Point Reyes wastewater feasibility study handed off
Annexing muddle prompts apology - Novato
Marin's big rainfall year fails to reduce fire risk
Housing for staff foiled by blooper - Housing - COLLEGE OF MARIN
Winter weather outlook: 'the probabilities tilt slightly toward warmer and drier than normal'
Discounts considered for water fee - MARIN MUNICIPAL
lnterim director hired to oversee finance division - Novato
FCC finds broad failure of cellular sites in Marin County
PG&E restores power to approximately 99% of customers
Editorial - Celltowers need to work during outages

7:30 p.m. 13. ADJOURNMENT
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Item #1

DRAFT
NORTH MARIN WATER DISTRICT
MINUTES OF REGULAR MEETING
OF THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS

October 15,2019

CALL TO ORDER

President Jack Baker called the regular meeting of the Board of Directors of North Marin

Water District to order at 6:00 p.m. at the District Headquarters and the agenda was accepted

as presented. Present were Directors Jack Baker, Rick Fraites, James Grossi, Michael Joly and

Stephen Petterle. Also present were General Manager Drew Mclntyre, District Secretary Terrie

Kehoe, Auditor-Controller Julie Blue and Chief Engineer Rocky Vogler.

District employees Tony Arendell (Construction/Maintenance Supervisor) and Robed

Clark (Operations/Maintenance Supervisor) were also in attendance.

MINUTES

On motion of Director Joly, seconded by Director Petterle the Board approved the

minutes from the October 1,2019 meeting by the following vote:

AYES: Director Baker, Fraites, Grossi, Joly and Petterle

NOES: None

ABSTAIN: None

ABSENT: None

G ENERAL MAN AG ER'S REPORT

Huffman Ad Hoc Committee - October 2, 2019

Mr. Mclntyre informed the Board that he recently attended his second Ad Hoc

Committee meeting related to the Potter Valley Relicensing Project. He added the meeting

focused on summarizing the results of the two working groups: Water Supply and Fish Passage.

Mr. Mclntyre noted the Planning Agreement Partners will have a consultant under contract soon

to help with preparation of the feasibility study, and the working group studies will be important

background data for the study.

Point Reves Communitv Water Workshoo #3 - October 3. 2019

Mr. Mclntyre announced that he attended the third and final Point Reyes Community

Water Workshop held by Marin County Environmental Health Department. He noted that these

workshops have been similar to those he previously attended for the Dillon Beach Village
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community. He reported that, contrary to the Dillon Beach Village outcome, there was no

consensus at the Point Reyes Station workshop to move fon¡rard with a grant application to

explore the feasibility of developing a community wastewater system. Mr. Mclntyre noted he will

have a summary available for the Board at a future meeting. Director Baker responded that he

was surprised there were not a lot of community members who wanted to move this issue

forward. Mr. Mclntyre replied that the consensus was to focus on more bathrooms for visitors in

downtown Point Reyes Station and that Supervisor Rodoni has already established a separate

community group on this issue. Director Grossi commented that Supervisor Rodoni asked him

to attend some of those meetings.

Special WAC Meeting - October 7, 2019

Mr. Mclntyre stated at last week's Special WAC Meeting, the WAC approved a

resolution in support of continued collaboration with Sonoma County Water Agency regarding

the Potter Valley Project relicensing activities to stay both informed and engaged through the

process.

Gallaoher Well Testi nq

Mr. Mclntyre reported that a test well was installed in the North Pasture at Gallagher

Ranch and water production testing will occur over a seven day period starting October 22nd.

Water Supplv Coordination Council (WSCC) Meetinq

Mr. Mclntyre announced that on October 21't he will be attending a WSCC meeting in

Santa Rosa to develop the agenda for the November ¿th WAC/TAC Meeting.

NBWRA Meetinq

Mr. Mclntyre reminded Director Baker that the next NBWRA meeting will be on October

28th at 9:30 a.m. at the Novato City Hall. Director Baker stated that he appreciated the

reminder.

OPEN TIME

President Baker asked if anyone in the audience wished to bring up an item not on the

agenda and there was no response.

STAF F/ D I RECT O RS RE P O RTS

President Baker asked if staff or Directors wished to bring up an item not on the agenda

and the following items were discussed:

Mr. Clark apprised the Board on the October 3'd salinity intrusion notice in the Pt. Reyes

Light. He stated it was due to Coast Guard well use and increasing salinity levels in the supply

water. He noted that Well No. 4 has somewhat lower salinity levels than Coast Guard Well No.

2. He added that when the rains start we typically see a drop in the salinity levels at the Coast
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Guard wells. Director Baker noted that they are predicting a small amount of rain tomorrow and

asked if this would be enough to make a difference. Mr. Clark replied that it would not be

enough.

Mr. Clark also informed the Board that we got lucky and we were outside of the Marin

areas shut down during the recent October 8-10, Public Safety Power Shutdown (PSPS) event.

He added areas in Southern Marin and further north in Sonoma County were without PG&E

power. Mr. Clark also stated that staff did a great job to communicate and prepare equipment in

the event we were shut down. Director Baker asked if Petaluma was affected. Mr. Arendell

replied that the North East area of Petaluma was.

Mr. Vogler announced that Engineering hired a recent Mechanical Engineer graduate

from UC Davis as an intern. He added that he assigned him the task to devise a strategy to

determine which of the five to six hundred remaining Polybutylene (PB) plastic services should

be replaced first. Director Baker asked if this will only prioritize and not speed up the

replacement process. Mr. Vogler replied that this will help us verify where the most likely failure

will occur first, and those will be on the top of the list. Director Baker asked if Mr. Vogler thought

all the PB services will be replaced in five years. Mr. Vogler said it will be most likely from five

to ten years.

Ms. Kehoe announced that the District Holiday Parly is scheduled for December 14th at

6:00 p.m.

Director Joly asked about the items on the consent calendar. Director Joly asked why a

budget action item with funding would be placed on the consent calendar. Director Baker

replied historically Directors expressed that too much time was being spent with too many action

items on the agenda and decided unless a member wanted to specifically discuss an item they

could leave it to the discretion of the General Manager to put it on the consent calendar.

Director Petterle commented that a Board Member also has the right to pull any item. Mr.

Mclntyre added that placing an item on the consent item is subjective on his part. He noted that

if it was a brand new budget item it would generally not be placed under consent, however in

this case, it was discussed at the last meeting and the cost was identified at that time. Mr.

Mclntyre offered that anytime a Board Member would like additional discussion that the item can

be pulled from consent. Director Petterle commented that he trusts Mr. Mclntyre to make the

judgement; the item can always be pulled. He added he prefers the discussion to be focused on

what Mr. Mclntyre thinks is most important. Director Joly stated he knows what his action plan

is now and he is good to go.

Ms. Blue updated the Board on the email fraud that was repofted a few months ago.
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She stated the bank has been very proactive about providing cyber training and she and the

accounting staff attended a training session with Bank of Marin and they also participated in a

similar webinar with Chase Bank, Director Petterle stated the County has also pushed

increased awareness on this topic. Ms. Blue stated that ransomware is also a big threat now.

Director Baker asked Ms. Blue to keep the Board updated.

MONTHLY PROGRESS REPORT

Mr. Mclntyre provided the Board with the Monthly Progress Report for September. He

stated that water production in Novato is up 10% from one year ago. ln West Marin, water

production is down 18% from September one year ago. Recycled Water production is down

12o/ofrom one year ago. Stafford Treatment Plant production is up g0% from one year ago. He

noted that Stafford Lake elevation is at 186 ft., 10 feet below the spillway and is at 56% of

capacity. He added there is 30% more supply in the lake this year than average and Operations

is doing a great job trying to maximize production. Mr. Mclntyre reported that in Oceana Marin,

the treatment plant pond freeboard levels look good.

Mr. Mclntyre also commented that there has been an uptick of unplanned water breaks

and they recently had one on Scown Lane. Director Baker asked for the location, and Mr.

Mclntyre replied this lane intersects Redwood Blvd by the old Perry's Deli. Mr. Vogler added

that we have a CIP project to replace that line very soon. Mr. Mclntyre stated that the crew was

using the vacuum excavator to get some as-built information and touched it slightly and it broke.

Mr. Arendell added that sometimes if they barely touch a pipe it will split.

Mr. Mclntyre continued the repoft noting that there was a revision on the number of days

without a lost time accident, which is currently 185 days. On the Summary of Complaints and

Service Orders, the Board was apprised that the total numbers are down 16% from September

one year ago and the Bill Adjustments in September were $4,500 compared to $12,000 one

year ago. Mr. Mclntyre added that our overall satisfaction rate is at 94o/o with a questionnaire

return rate of 57o/o. He added that when we upgrade our website we need to get this message

out so that our customers better informed regarding our high ranking in customer service and

satisfaction.

Director Grossi announced that in regards to Stafford Lake water quality, the dairy cows

are all gone at the Dominic Grossi Dairy, and currently only heifers are there. Director Baker

asked if they were going to transition from dairy to beef. Director Grossi confirmed. Mr. Clark

added that with range animals they disperse on their own and there is less chance of getting

nutrients in the lake, and the lake quality will only get better.

coÍvsENr tTEMs
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On the motion of Director Joly, and seconded by Director Petterle the Board approved

the consent calendar by the following vote:

AYES: Director Baker, Fraites, Grossi, Joly, and Petterle

NOES: None

ABSTAIN: None

ABSENT: None

Director Fraites commented on the bylines on the Water Line and asked if they were

new. Mr. Mclntyre stated they were included last year, adding that the updated, new look is

attributed to input from Kiosk. Director Joly commented that he thought the Water Line looked

great, and it validates the decision to approve the Kiosk agreement.

TEXT FOR FALL 9 NOVATO ''WATER LINE''. VOLUME 20- 
'SSUE 

23

The Board authorized the General Manager to approve final text and design of the Fall

Novato Water Line newsletter. This edition has a new design created by Kiosk and is the first

step in implementing action items from the recently adopted Communications Strategy and

Plan.

F'RST AMENDED URSEMENT AGREEMENT WITH S COUNTY WATER
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AGENCY FOR THE NORTH MARIN WATER DISTRICT WA co^/sERvÁTloN

PROGRAM

The Board authorized the General Manager to execute the First Amended

Reimbursement Agreement with Sonoma County Water Agency for the North Marin Water

District Water Conservation Program to extend the existing agreement for two additional years.

This agreement allows Sonoma County Water Agency to assist with the administration of the

Water Smarl Home Survey program, and as needed suppotl with the large Landscape and

Commercial Audit Program. No additional funding approval is needed as this amendment only

increases the duration of the agreement.

AGREEMENT WITH K FOR PUBLIC COMMUNICATIONS IMPLEMENTATION

The Board authorized the General Manager to execute an agreement with Kiosk, a local

marketing firm to help develop a more comprehensive and strategic communications plan with

the objective to increase recognition, reach, educate, engage and build trust with our customers.

The approved budget ceiling limit for this agreement is $60,000

ACTION ITEMS

JOB DESCRIPTION HUMAN RESOURCES/SAFETY MA GER POSITION AND

AUTHORIZE RECRUITMENT

Ms. Blue discussed the job description, recruitment and hiring of a Human

NMWD Draft Minutes 5 of 9 October 15,2019
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Resources/Safety Manager. She explained the HR/Safety Manager will take on many of the

legal-compliance responsibilities within the District, thereby protecting both the District and its

employees. She noted the HR/Safety Manager will report to the Auditor-Controller. Ms. Blue

stated that this position will be included as an unrepresented employee and there will be no

increase to the FTE count since it will replace one of the existing accounting positons. She

added this job will be recruited externally and she hopes to fill the position by the end of the

year. Director Baker stated that it may be a tough positon to fill since it is very unique and

specialized. Ms. Blue replied our HR Consultant and legal counsel will help circulate the

recruitment notice.

On the motion of Director Fraites, and seconded by Director Joly the Board approved the

job description for Human Resources/Safety Manager position and authorized recruitment by

the following vote:

AYES: Director Baker, Fraites, Grossi, Joly, and Petterle

NOES: None

ABSTAIN: None

ABSENT: None

JOB FOR ACCOUNTING OR POSITION AUTHORIZE

RECRUITMENT

Ms. Blue discussed the job description, recruitment and hiring of an Accounting

Supervisor. She explained this position will be responsible for supervising and overseeing the

District's accounting positions and will be replacing the currently vacant Accounting/HR

Supervisor position that has þeen vacant since July 2018. Ms. Blue added that, as a result, the

accounting team has had an extra workload the last year. She advised that this positon will

report to the Auditor Controller and supervise the accounting staff. Ms. Blue stated this

employee would be in the Employee Association and would be subject to overtime. She added

that there will be no FTE increase since this will be a conversion of a current position and we

hope to fillthis position by internal recruitment.

On the motion of Director Joly, and seconded by Director Fraites the Board approved the

job description for Accounting Supervisor position and authorized recruitment by the following

vote:

AYES: Director Baker, Fraites, Grossi, Joly, and Petterle

NOES: None

ABSTAIN: None

ABSENT: None

NMWD Draft Minutes 6of9 October 15,2019



203

204

205

206

207

208

209

210

211

212

213

214

215

216

217

218

219

22Q

221

222

223

224

225

226

227

228

229

230

231

232

233

234

235

236

Director Joly thanked Ms. Blue for all the extra work she did in the HR positon

SALARY. TERMS AND CONDITIONS OF EMPLOYMENT - GENERAL MANAGER

President Baker stated this item was previously presented at the last Board Meeting. He

then recited: in accordance with Government Code section 5a953(cX3), I am providing an oral

summary of the recommended action. The item before the Board tonight is to set the salary and

terms and conditions of employment for the District's General Manager position, effective

October 16, 2019. The recommended action is to grant the following changes to the General

Manager's base salary: a 9.7% COLA wage increase effective Oct. 16, 2019; a true-up of

$10,000 to match pre-May 2017 GlVl salary schedule, effective October 16,2019, and going

forward on a prospective basis; and an equity adjustment of $4,986 effective October 16,2Q19,

and going forward on a prospective basis. The total annual salary increase is estimated to be

$35,002. ln addition, payroll taxes will increase by $510 and retirement contributions will

increase by $9,448 annually. After factoring in the above adjustments, the annual base

compensation for the General Manager position will be $235,000, effective October 16, 2019,

Additional changes to the General Manager's duties and terms and conditions of employment

are set forth in the resolution associated with this agenda item. Director Baker then asked the

Board or members of the public if they had any questions regarding this item. Director Grossi

asked what the assigned resolution number will be. Ms. Kehoe replied once the resolution is

approved it will be assigned 19-19.

On the motion of Director Joly, and seconded by Director Fraites the Board approved the

salary, terms and conditions of employment for the General Manager by the following vote:

AYES: Director Baker, Fraites, Grossi, Joly, and Petterle

NOES: None

ABSTAIN: None

ABSENT: None

Director Baker congratulated Mr. Mclntyre, and Director Joly added that it was well

earned.

ESA COA/SULTING VICES AGREEMENT - PERMITTING S FOR LAGUNITAS

CREEK SLOPE STA BILIZATION PROJECT (UPSTREAM OF GALLAGHER RANCH

BRIDGEI

Mr. Mclntyre reported that in order to complete the Natural Resources Conservation

Service (NRCS) Emergency Watershed Protection grant funded project in a timely manner, ESA

is needed to work on permitting services for the Lagunitas Creek Slope Stabilization Project

upstream of the Gallagher Ranch Bridge. He added that NMWD has used ESA for many
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projects requiring local, state and federal permits. Director Grossi asked if it was realistic to

think the job will be done by April of 2020. Mr. Mclntyre replied that this is a requirement of the

grant and yes it is optimistic. He added that it is his understanding that NRCS will make

allowances for project delays that are beyond our control. Director Baker asked if this area is

included in the Local Coastal Plan and will require a Coastal Permit from Marin County. Mr.

Mclntyre confirmed. Director Joly praised Mr. Mclntyre for a job well done; noting the estimated

local match of $200,000 will not be completely absorbed by NMWD.

On the motion of Director Joly, and seconded by Director Grossi the Board authorized

the General Manager to execute an Agreement with ESA Consulting Services for permitting

services for the Lagunitas Creek Slope Stabilization Project by the following vote:

AYES: Director Baker, Fraites, Grossi, Joly, and Petterle

NOES: None

ABSTAIN: None

ABSENT: None

CONTRACT THIRD PARTY COATING INSPECTION FOR CHERRY HILL TANK NO. 2

RECOAT AND REHABILITATION PROJECT - DB GAYA CONSULTING LLC

Mr. Vogler presented the contract with DB Gaya Consulting LLC, for third party coating

inspection for the Cherry Hill Tank No. 2 Recoat and Rehabilitation Project. He noted they will

inspect the surface preparation, application, and coating to be sure we have a long lasting

protective coating. Mr. Vogler added we received proposals from two qualified firms and DB

Gaya was the lowest cost.

On the motion of Director Petterle, and seconded by Director Joly the Board authorized

the General Manager to execute an Agreement with DB Gaya for third party coating inspection

for Cherry Hill Tank No. 2 Recoat and Rehabilitation Project by the following vote:

AYES: Director Baker, Fraites, Grossi, Joly, and Petterle

NOES: None

ABSTAIN: None

ABSENT: None

INFORMATION ITEMS

NBWA MEETING - OCTOBER 4, 2019

Director Fraites summarized the NBWA meeting that took place on October 4th. There

was an overview of the Re-Oaking Project conducted by the Napa and Sonoma Resource

Conservation Districts. He stated that they met in Kenwood right in the middle of the area of the

fires. Director Fraites explained that they are getting acorns native to the area to use for re-
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planting. He added that these oaks are less susceptible to fire and this was an awesome

project to bring this area back.

MISCELLANEOUS

The Board received the following miscellaneous items: Disbursements - Dated October

3,2019, Disbursements - Dated October 10,2019 and Salinity Notice - Point Reyes.

The Board received the following news articles: Letters- Turning point in Pt. Reyes;

Novato schools building irks city and MARIN AREAS FACE PLANNED OUTAGES- PG&E FIRE

PRECAUTION.

ADJOURNMENT

President Baker adjourned the meeting at 6:55 p.m.

Submitted by

Theresa Kehoe
District Secretary
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MEMORANDUM

To: Drew Mclntyre, General Manager

From: Reviewed by: Julie Blue, Auditor-Controller

Prepared by: Nancy Holton and Nancy williamson, senior Accountants

Subj: lnformation - FY19/20 September Financial Statement
t \accountants\f¡nancials\stmtfy20\md&a091 Ldoc

FISCAL YEAR PERFORMANCE COMPARED TO THE ANNUAL BUDGET

CONSOLIDA D SUMMARY Sep-19
Actual
$1,826,437

1,706,652
(53,189)
$66,596

FY19t20
Actual YTD

$7,051,338
5,586,327

(55,476)

November 1,2019

FY19/20
Budqet

$22,998,000
20,868,000

FYTD /
Budqet %

31%
27%
11Yo

77%
11%

Actual vs. Budget
Operating Revenue
Operating Expense
Non-Operating Revenue / (Expense)

Net lncome / (Loss)
Other Sources / (Uses)*

Cash lncrease / (Decrease)

See Page 8.

NOVATO WATER
Year over Year Comparison
Operating Revenue
Operating Expense
Other lncome / (Expense)

Net lncome / (Loss)

Active Accounts
Consumption (MG)
Average Commodity Rate / 1,000 gal (net)
lncome / (Loss ) / Active Account
lncome / (Loss) / '1,000 Gal
Connection Fee Revenue
FRC Transfer (to)/from Recycled Water
Caltrans Capital Contribution
MMWD AEEP Capital Contribution
Developer'ln-Kind' Contributions

$303,554 $934,855 _@É21,00E

(300 ,000)

236 958 ø74 ,679)
$'1,409,535 $1,830,000

(4,151,000)

For the first quarter of the fiscal year, the District generated a net income of $1,409,535 and saw a net
cash increase of $934,855. On a seasonally adjusted basis, Operating Revenue came in B% under
budget and Operating Expense came in 5o/o under budget. $405,337 (7%) of the Capital lmprovement
Projects Budget was expended this fiscal year-to-date. At month end the ratio of total cash to budgeted
annual operating expense (sans depreciation) stood at 114o/o.

SUMMARY INCOME STATEMENTS BY SERVICE AREA
PRESENTED IN ACCORDANGE WITH GENERALLY ACCEPTED ACCOUNTING PRINCIPALS

Sep-19
Actual
$1,696,656

1,536,625
(33,458)

$126,573
20,541

288
$4.41
$6.16
$0.44

$228,800
($116,730)

$0
$0

$109,639

FY19/20
ActualYTD

$6,072,240
5,062,669

(44,546)
$965 024

FY18/19
ActualYTD

$6,788,848
5,027,559

(9,753)

____qLz91Égq_
20,542

913
$6.09

$85.27
$1.92

$95,800
$2,031,795

$3,250
$24s,000

$32,431

FY20 vs 19
Up/(Down)

(11%)
1%

357o/o

(45o/o)

0%
(8%)
(6%)

(45o/o)

(4oo/o)

836%

541
838

$5.71
$46.98

$1 .15

$896,600
($218,155)

$e0
$205,320
$414,390

(e7%)
(160/0)

1178%

Consumption for the fiscal year-to-date was 8% less than the prior year same period. Total operating
revenue, which includes wheeling and other miscellaneous service charges, decreased 1 1%
($716,608) from the prior year. Total operating expense was 1% ($9S,1 10) more than last year same
period.

1
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The Stafford Treatment Plant produced 283 MG this fiscal year- to-date at a cost of $2,138/MGr versus
$2,885/MG3 from SCWA. The budget for Stafford is 650 MG at a cost of $2,358/MG.

Stafftime (hours) charged to Novato operations was 10% less than last year. Salary and benefit cost
was $1 ,419,237 , which was 22o/o of the $6,514,000 budget for Novato operations.

The fiscal year net income (which includes non-operating items such as interest revenue and expense)
of $965,024 compares to a budgeted net income for the year of $902,000 and to a net income of
$1,751,536 for the prior year. $303,689 (7%) of the Novato Water Capital lmprovement Project Budget
was spent versus $1,084,871 (19%o) for the prior year. $896,600 in connection fees have been
collected ($340,000 is budgeted). Connection Fee reserves totaling $218,155 were transferred this
fiscal year from the Novato Water Fund to Recycled Water Fund to cover debt service and capital
project costs. The Novato Connection Fee Reserve has a net deficit of $7,146,992 arising from
transfers to the RW Fund in advance of Connection Fee receipts. This is down from a net deficit of
$9,379,993 last year. That deficit will be reimbursed by future Connection Fee revenue. The Novato
cash balance increased $135,787 in September, and stood at$12,779,607 at month end, compared to
a budgeted projection of $5,892,000 at fiscal year-end.

NOVATO RECYCLED
Year over Year Comparison
Operating Revenue
Operating Expense
Other lncome / (Expense)

Net lncome / (Loss)

Active Accounts
Consumption (MG)
Average Commodity Rate / 1,000 gal (net)
Deer lsland Production (MG)

Novato Sanitary Production (MG)

Las Gallinas Production (MG)

Sep-19
Actual

($11,87e)
92,414

o 223

91

35.4
($o.s+¡

0.8
21.3

7.3

FY19/20
ActualYTD

$596,071
293,680
(28,8e2)

FY18/19
ActualYTD

$512,207
379,660
(38,580)

FY20 vs 19
Up/(Down)

16%
(23%)
(25%)
191o/o

Bo/o

12o/o

3o/o

55o/o

(17o/o)

260To

$273,499
91

96.7
$5.97

6.2
69.2
24.1

__jæ,999_
B4

86.5
$5.77

4.0
83.4
6.7

Potable Water lnput (MG) 0.0 0.0 19.7

96.7 MG was delivered to RW customers this fiscal year-to-date, 12o/o morc than the prior year same
period. Operating revenue was 16% more than last year due to the June 1,2019 3.5% rate increase
and the consumption increase. Total operating expense was $85,979 (23o/o) less than the prior year
same period. The recycled water was produced at a cost of $1,8721MG'(including potable water
consumed) versus $2,876/MG3 from SCWA. The budgeted production cost of recycled water is
$2,410iMG.

The fiscal year net income of $273,499 compares to a budgeted net income for the year of $54,000 and
a net income of $93,968 for the prior year same period. $1 ,794 (1o/o) of the Capital lmprovement Project
Budget has been expended this fiscal year-to-date.

The Novato Recycled cash balance stood at $5,084,483 at month end, $3.6M of which amount resides
in restricted reserves for debt service, the Deer lsland Facility Replacement Fund and the Recycled
Water Capital Replacement and Expansion Fund.

1 
Stafford production cost = TP op expense ($407,761 ) + SRF loan interest ($55,672) + plant depreciation (g141 ,586) /283 MG produced

2 
Recycled Water production cost = purchased water cost ($130,625) + treatment expense ($3,098) + Deer lsland RW Facility SRF loan

interest ($11,926) + Deer lsland plant depreciation ($28,980) /93.30 MG produced
T 

SCWA production cost per MG = O&M charge ($2,369) + debt service charge ($177) + Russian R¡ver conservation charge (g313) + pusr¡rt
River projects charge ($26)

2
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WEST MARIN WATER
Year over Year Compar¡son
Operating Revenue
Operating Expense
Other lncome / (Expense)

Net lncome / (Loss)

Active Accounts
Consumption (MG)
Average Commodity Rate / 1,000 gal (net)
lncome/ (Loss) / Active Account
lncome / (Loss) / 1,000 Gal
Connection Fee Revenue

Sep-19
Actual

$1 19,898
60,694
4,304

FY19/20
ActualYTD

9317,741
176,978

13,917

FY18/19
ActualYTD

$284,035
184,861

r60
$1 00 334

782
22.9

$10.30
$128 30

$4 37

$o

FY20 vs 19
Up/(Down)

12o/o

(4"/")
1100%

54o/o

0o/o

1%
13Yo

54o/o

53o/o

$63 509

783
8.9

$11.74
$81 .1 I
$7 16

$0

$154,680
783

23.1

$1 1.68

$1 97 55

$6 70

$0

Consumption for the fiscal year was 23.1 MG, 1% more than the same period prior year. Operating
revenue of $317,741 was 12% ($33,705) more than the prior year same period.

Operating expenditures were $7,883, or 4o/o less than the previous year same period. The fiscal year
net income of $154,680 compares to a budgeted annual net income of $209,000 and to a net income of
$100,334 for the prior year same period. $88,797 (7%) of the Capital lmprovement project Budget was
expended this fiscal year{o-date, and no connection fees were collected (g0 is budgeted). The West
Marin Water cash balance increased $3,89G in September and stood atç1,746,7gg at month end,
compared to a budgeted projection of $754,000 at June 90,2020.

OCEANA N SEWER
Year over Year Gomparison
Operating Revenue
Operating Expense
Other lncome / (Expense)

Net lncome / (Loss)
Active Accounts
Monthly Sewer Service Charge
lncome / (Loss) / Active Account
Connection Fee Revenue

Sep-19
Actual

s21,762
16,919

1,824

___s6,699_
234
$e3

$28.49
$o

FYt9/20
Actual YTD

$65,286
53,000

4 045
$16,331

234
$e3

$69.79
$o

FYlS/19
ActualYTD

$63,180
32,998

3,269
$33,451

234
$86

$142.95
$o

FY20 vs 19
Up/(Down)

3Yo

61o/o

24o/o

(51o/o)

0%
8o/o

Operating revenue of $65,286 was 3% more than the previous year same period due to the 3.5% rate
increase effective July 1,2019. Operating expenditures were 61% ($20,002) more than the previous
year same period. The fiscal year{o-date net income of $16,331 compares to a budgeted annual net
income of $92,000 and to a net income of $33,451 forthe prioryearsame period. rcWo¡ the Capital
lmprovement Project Budget has been expended this fiscal year{o-date.

No connection fees have been collected ($0 is budgeted). The Oceana Marin cash balance decreased
fi12,431 in September and stood at $262,641 at month end, compared to a budgeted project¡on of
$384,000 at June 30,2020.
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NORTH MARIN WATER DISTRICT
STATEMENT OF NET POSITION

FOR THE PERIOD ENDING SEPTEMBER 30, 2019

ASSETS
Cash & lnvestments
U n restricted/U ndesignated Cash
Restricted Cash (¡.lote t)
Connection Fee Fund
Bank of Marin Project Fund
AMI Project Loan Fund
Deer lsland RWF Replacement Fund
Capital Replacement & Expansion Fund
Tax Receipts Held in Marin Co Treasury
STP SRF Reserve-Marin Co Treasury
RWS North/South SRF Reserve Fund
RW CentralArea SRF Reserve Fund
Desiqnated Cash (ruote z)

Liability Contingency Fund
Self-lnsured Workers' Compensation Fund
Retiree Medical Benefits Fund
Maintenance Accrual Fund
Operating Reserve Fund

Total Cash
Gain/(Loss) on MV of lnvestments

Market Value of Gash & lnvestments

Current Assets
Net Receivables - Consumers
Accrued Water Sales
Accou nts Receivable-Other
Prepaid Expense
Reimbursable Small Jobs
lnterest Receivable
lnventories
Deposits Receivable

NOVATO
WATER

NOVATO
RECYCLED

WEST MARIN
WATER

OCEANA
MARIN
SEWERTOTAL

$2,388,538

57,637
461,194

0
1,575,748
1,198,480

617
1,079,593

614,299
275,773

1,280,370
537,522

4,123,565
2,500,000
3,764,099

$2,065,273
2,447,690
1,621,280

798,1 1 I
100,256
88,921

627,186
25,006

$0 $1,243,622 $955,378 $189,537

1,079,593
0
0

1,181,485
505,997

4,123,565
2,500,000
3,346,099

0
0
0

1,575,748
1 ,198,480

0
0

614,299
275,773

0
8,561

0
0

168.000
5,084,483

0

5,084,483

$147,292
264,775

1,068,307
0
0

4,028
0
0

57,637
434,421

0
0
0

562
0
0
0

98,885
16,915

0
0

183.000
1,746,799

0

0

6,049
0
0

67.000

26,
0

773
0
0
0
0

0
0
0
0
0

54
0
0
0

s

19,857,435 12,763,513
l6 095 16 095

19,873,530 12,779,607 1,746,799 262,641

262,641
0

$65,069
0

261,177
528

3,235
0
0
0

$1 ,855,130
1,971,185

291,796
797,590

97,021
84,893

627,186
25,006

($2,217)
211,730

0
0
0
0
0
0

9209,512 $330,010Total Gurrent Assets $7,773,731 5,749,808 $1,484,401

t:\accountants\financials\stmtfyu$nfyu.xlsl th12019 1:45 PM



NORTH MARIN WATER DISTRICT
STATEMENT OF NET POSITION

FOR THE PERIOD ENDING SEPTEMBER 30, 2019

Loans Receivable
Employee Loans (Note 3)

Other Long Term Receivables lttote +;

Loans Receivable

PropertY and Plant

Land & Land Rights
Dam, Lake, & Source Facilities
Treatment Facilities
Storage Facilities
Transmission Facilities (1 6"+¡
Distribution and Pumping Facilities
Sewer Mains, Pumps, & Laterals

Sub-Total
Less Accumulated Depreciation (Note 5)

Net PropertY and Plant

Buildings and EquiPment glote o¡

Buildings
Office Equipment
Laboratory Equipment
Trucks & Automobiles
Construction Equipment
Tools, Shop Equipment
Sub'Total
Less Accumulated Depreciation (ruote s¡

Net Buildings and EquiPment

Construction ln Proqress

Developer
District

Total Construction in Progress
Net Utility Plant

Deferred Outflow of Resources-GAsB68
Deferred Outflow of Resources-GAsB7s

TOTAL ASSETS

TOTAL

$675,000
1 173 730

$1 ,849,134

$1,473,091
5,675,845

22,056,723
23,082,819
29,405,627
86,339,778

1.258.111

$169,291,995
(57,534,149)

s111,757 ,846

NOVATO
WATER

$675,000
0

675,000

$1,368,872
5,183,433

18,192,211
20,458,283
29,283,304
63,219,679

0

$137,705,782
(48.628,346)

$8,212,281
98,566,259

2,616,317
172 404

NOVATO
RECYCLED

WEST MARIN
WATER

OCEANA
MARIN
SEWER

$0
730

$1,173,730

$0
0

2,666, r 98
519,014

0
17,301,217

0

$20,486,428
ß.874.662\

$0
15,745

$15,745,059
32,356,825

0
0

$0
0

$103,411
492,412
339,952

2,105,523
122,324

5,818,882
0

$8,982,504
ß.973,740)

$2,117,282
(1,057,401)

$0

$0
040

$98,040
1,157,921

0
0

750,571

1

$0
0
0$0

0
362

$0
0

$0
0

$808

11

858,

258.

0

0
0
1

$0
0

0
0
0
0

89,077,436

$r,902,893
832,236
252,324

1,485,059
861,266
222.390

5,556,168
Ø.279.626)

s1,276,542 1,276,542

$1,028,161 $1,028,161
b 027 7 184 120
700,187

137,734,576
2,616,317

172,404

$16,61 1,766 $5,008,764 $l,059,881(¡

$l,902,893
832,236
252,324

1,485,059
861,266
222,390

$5,556,168
(4,279,626)

$0
0
0
0
0
0

$0

$0
0
0
0
0
0

0

$00

$0
807

$644,807
5,653,571

0
0

$40,099,438 $7,609,882 $19170,019,287 $120,559,395.10

t:\acæuntants\fìnancials\stmtfys\finfyu.xls1 1/1/2019 1:45 PM



NORTH MARIN WATER DISTRICT
STATEMENT OF NET POS¡TION

FOR THE PERIOD ENDING SEPTEMBER 30, 2019

NOVATO
WATER

NOVATO
RECYCLED

WEST MARIN
WATER

OCEANA
MARIN
SEWER

LIABILITIES AND NET ASSETS
Gurrent Liabilities
Trade Accounts Payable
Reimbursement Prog. Unclaimed Funds
Loan Debt Principal Payable-Current
Bank of Marin Principal Payable-Current
JP Morgan/Chase AMI Loan-Current
Accrued lnterest Payable-SRF Loan
JP Morgan/Chase AMI Loan lnterest Payable
DepositsiPerformance Bonds
Unemployment lnsurance Reserve (Note B)

Workers' Comp Future Claims Payable
Payroll Benefits (Note 9)

Deferred Revenue
Total Current Liabilities

Restricted Liabil ities
Construction Advances

Total Restricted Liabilities
Lonq Term Liablilities (Note 7)

JP Morgan/Chase AMI Loan Payable
STP Rehab SRF Loan
RWF SRF Loan
RWS North/South Expansion SRF Loan
RWS Central Expansion SRF Loan
Bank of Marin Loan
Net Pension Liability @6130118
Total OPEB Liability (Note 2)

Total Long Term Liabilities
Deferred lnflow of Resources-GASB 68
Deferred lnflow of Resources-GASB 75

TOTAL LIAB¡LITIES

TOTAL

91,205,216
87,1 86

1,708,316
371,015
260,000
r 91,888

9,845
404,779
23,575
48,256

853,377
19s.858

$661,593
$661,593

$4,100,000
8,413,056
1,742,339
6,597,174
6,705,8r6
5,094,132

12,560,160
4,520,164

$49,732,840
540,356

0

$5,359,311 3,899,742

91,117,614
76,086

828,522
323,525
260,000

55,672
9,845

376,279
23,575
44,637

783,986
0

$651 593
651,593

$4,100,000
8,413,056

0
0
0

4,442,083
12,560,160
4,520,164

34,035,463
540,356

0

$87,602
0

879,794
0
0

136,216
0
0

0
1,351

25,906
0

$1 ,130,869

$10,000
$10,000

$0
0

1,742,339
6,597,174
6,705,816

0
0
0

$15,045,329
0
0

$1 6,1 86,1 97

$0
I 1 ,100

0
47,490

0

0
0

25,500
0

1,641
31,457

0

3,000
0

627
12,028

195.858

$0
0
0

0
0

0
0

o)

$ 1 1 7, 1 88 9211 ,513

$652,049
0
0

0

9769,237 $211,513

$0
$o

$0
0
0
0
0

049
0
0

652

$0
$0

$0
0
0
0
0
0
0
0

0

$0

$56,294,100 39,127,153

t;\accountants\financials\stmtfysvintyu.xlsll l'll2O19 1:45 PM



NORTH MARIN WATER DISTRICT
STATEMENT OF NET POSITION

FOR THE PERIOD ENDING SEPTEMBER 30, 2019

Net Assets
Invested in Capital Assets
Contributions in Aid of Construction
Grants in Aid of Construction
Connection Fees

Restricted Reserves
Connection Fee Fund
AMI Froject Reserve Fund
Bank of Marin Project Fund
Deer lsland RWF Replacement Fund
Capital Replacement & Expansion Fund
SRF Reserve Fund
RWS North/South SRF Reserve Fund
RW CentralArea SRF Reserve Fund
Designated Reserves
Liability Contingency Fund
Maintenance Accrual Fund
Self-lnsured Workers' Compensation Fund
Retiree Medical Benefits Fund
Operating Reserve Fund
Earned Surplus - Prior Yrs
Net lncome/(Loss)
Transfer (To)/From Reserves (see betow)

Total Restricted & Designated
TOTAL NET POSITION

Transfer Reserves
on ee

AMI Project Fund
Liability Reserve
Maintenance Reserve
RWF Replacement Fund
Retiree Medical lnsurance Fund
(Gain)/Loss Self-lnsured WC Fund
Bank of Marin Project Fund
Operating Reserve Fund

27 043,886
Total lnvestment $138,399,244 104,067,187

TOTAL

$85,215,084
13,215,539
39,968,621

($7,28e,103)
(580)

461,194
1,575,748
1 ,198,480

0
614,299
275,773

1,280,370
2,500,000

489,266
2,759,513
5,795,000

(35,754,365)
1,409,535

10,814
(ç24,674,057)
$113,725,187

$8,865
580

(3e,200)
0

(49,482)
0

(5,334)
3,384

92.000

NOVATO
WATER

$76,596,853
426,448

($7,146,992)
(580)

26,773
0
0
0
0
0

NOVATO
RECYCLED

$5,800,128
9,96r,904

10,840,952
$26,602,984

1,575,748
1 ,198,480

0
614,299
275,773

0
0

7,210
0

'168,000

(6,746,206)
273,499
(56,545)

($2,68e,743)
923,913,241

$0
rì

0
0

(4e,482)
0

(63)
0

(7.000)

WEST MARIN
WATER

OCEANA
MARIN
SEWER

$679,755
0

672.684

0
0

5,422
0

67,000
289,896

r6,331
7,719

$186,620
$1,539,058

$2,138,348
2,827,187
1,411,099

$6,376,634

$57,637

98,885
0

15,274
0

183,000
(47e,324)
154,680

(566)

$464,012
$6,840,646

(3.000)

$9,776
0
0
0
0
0

(57)
0

(2,000)
($566) _q?,r1e_

$1,352,439

799,($$0
0
0

0
421

0
0
0
0
0.

434

0)
0
0
0
0
0

48)
0
0
0
0
0
0
0

!
1,181,485
2,500,000

461,360
2,759,513
5,32l,000

(28,818,735)
965,024
60,207

(22,634,e46)
81,432,242

$0
580

(39,200)
0
0
0

(5,0s1)
(123)

104,000

($er

63)
3,507

Total Transfer $10 814 $60,207

t:\acæuntants\flnancials\stmtfyu$infya xls11l1/2019 1:45 PM



NORTH MARIN WATER DISTRICT

SOURCES AND USES OF FUNDS STATEMENT. ALL SERVICE AREAS COMBINED

FOR THE PERIOD ENDING SEPTEMBER 30, 2019

YTD/YTD
Actual

Annual
Budget Bu of

lo

Prior YTD
Actual

OPERATING REVENUE
Water Sales
Bimonthly Service Charge
Sewer Service Charge
Wheeling & Misc Service Charges

TOTAL OPERATING REVENUE

OPERATING EXPENDITURES
Source of Supply
Pumping
Operations
Water Treatment
Sewer Service
Transmission & Distribution
Consumer Accounting
Water Conservation
General & Administrative
Depreciation

TOTAL OPERATING EXPENDITURES

NET OPERATTNG ¡NCOME (LOSS)

NON.OPERATING REVENUE(EXPENSE)
Tax Proceeds
lnterest Revenue
Miscellaneous Revenue
Bond & Loan lnterest ExPense
Miscellaneous Expense

TOTAL NON-OP REVENUE(EXPENSE)

oTHER SOURCES(USES) OF FUNDS
Add Depreciation Expense
Connection Fees
Loan Proceeds
Grant Proceeds
Marin County Club Loan Principal Pmts
Caltrans AEEP Capital Contribution
StoneTree RWF Loan PrinciPal
MMWD AEEP Capital Contribution
Capital Equipment Expenditures
Capital lmprovement Projects
Bond & Loan Principal Payments
Change in Working Capital

TOTAL OTHER SOURCES(USES)

$7,051,338 $22,998,000

$5,633,381
1,242,958

65,286
109,713

$17,387,000
4,958,000

261,000

$6,298,323
1,196,329

63,1 80
90,439392 000

32%
250
25%
28o/o

31o/o

$1 ,902,1 61

138,996
187,239
631,687

31,035
798,011
124,783
76,992

834,531
860,892

$6,186,000
438,000
808,000

2,697,000
171,000

3,656,000
644,000
399,000

2,383,000
3,486,000

$7,648,271

$2,034,251
145,088
271,704
534,916

17,480
818,983
123,731
77,340

745,390
856,1 94

$5,586,327

$1,465,011

31o/o

32%
23o/o

23o/o

18%
22o/o

19o/o

19%
35%
25o/o

27%

9o/o

160/o
100%
640/o

7%
1Oo/o

$5,625,078

$2,023,193690Â

1%
460/0

15o/o

25o/o

3%
18o/o

25%
264o/o

o%

$20,868,000

$2,130,000

$1,531
127,589

19,975
(203,e20)

(651)

$116,000
277,000
133,000

(806,000)
(20,000)

$685
83,383
74,367

(1e8,23e)
(4,101)

($55,476) ($3oo,ooo)

N Er I NcoM E(Loss) __-----T;iÆt53r --Tmmooo-

($43,e05)

77% __$1,e?ezqg_

$860,892
896,600

0
0

12,259
90

37,438
205,320

(277,09O)
(405,337)
(244,350)

$3,486,000
340,000

69,000
0
0

1,000
227,O00
205,000

(433,000)
(5,713,000)
(2,333,000)

0

$856, I 94
95,800

2,033,836
1,688

24,809
3,250

36,552
245,000

0
(1,148,556)

(248,685)
(2,492,678)(1,560,502)

(5474'67e) ($4,151,000) 11%

CASH|NCREASE(DECREASE)--------Tgs4-Fr--623-4õõ0I

($5e2,78e)

_T't,386-reE¡

l:\accountanls\financials\slmtfy'10\finfy10.xlsIbudget vs. actual]



NORTH MARIN WATER DISTRICT
INCOME STATEMENT AND CASH FLOW BY SERVICE AREA

FOR THE PERIOD ENDING SEPTEMBER 30, 2019

SUMMARY INCOME STATEMENT

Operating Revenue

Operating Expense
oPERATTNG TNCOME(LOSS)
Non-Operating Revenue/(Expense)

NET TNCOME(LOSS)

CAPITAL CONTRIBUTIONS
Developer ln-Kind Contributions
Caltrans AEEP Capital Contributions
MMWD Capital Contribution
Connection Fees
FRC Transfer

CAPITAL CONTRIBUTIONS
CHANGE IN NET POSITION

Net Position June 30,2019
Net Position Sept 30, 2019

CASH FLOW STATEMENT
Net lncome/(Loss)
Add back Depreciation
Cash Generated From Operations

Other Sources of Funds
Connection Fee
Loan Proceeds
Capital Assets Acquisition
Caltrans AEEP Capital Contribution
MMWD AEEP Capital Contribution
Mar¡n Country Club & Stone Tree Loan Principal pmts

Principal Paid on Debt
Consumer Receivables Decr (lncr)
Construction Advances (Decr) lncr
Other Assets Decr (lncr)
Other Liabilities (Decr) lncr
Trade Accounts Payable (Decr) lncr
Connection Fee Transfer
Total Other Sources (Uses)

Net Cash Provided (Used)

MV Cash & lnvestments June 30, 2019
MV Cash & lnvestments Sept 30, 2019

TOTAL
NOVATO
WAÏER

NOVATO
RECYCLED

WEST MARIN
WATER

OCEANA
MARIN

SEWER
$7,051,338

5,586,327

$6,072,240

5,062,669

$596,071

293,680

$317,741

176,978

$65,286

53,000
$1,465,011 $1,009,570

(44.546)
$302,391

(28,8e2\
$140,763

13,917
$12,286

4,045(55 ,476)
$1,409,535

$414,390
90

205,320
896,600

0

$414,390
90

205,320
896,600

(21 8,1 55)

$965,024 $273,499 $154,680 $16,331

I,2

$o
0
0
0
0

$o
0
0
0
0

$o
0
0
0

55

$1,516,400
$2,925,934

$1,298,245

$2,263,269
79,230,648

$2'18,155

$491,654
23,421,988

$0

$'154,680

6,688,798

$0

$ I 6,331

1,523,402'1 10. 864,836

$113, 771 $81,493,917 $23,913,642 $6,843,479 $1,539,733

$1,409,535
860 892

$965,024
683,534

$1,648,558

$273,499
118,457

$154,680 $16,331

$896,600
0

(682,427)
90

205,320
49,697

(244,350)
(815,067)
(118,214)
(380,714)
(342,66e)

96,1 62
0

($1,335,571)

$896,600
0

(580,778)
90

205,320
0

(7e,316)
(684,1 1 8)
(118,214)

(58,366)
(539,653)

48,220
(218,155)

($1,128,371)

$o
0

(1,794)
0
0

49,697
(153,391)
(155,434)

0
(1,078)
5,255

47,942
218,156

$9,351

$0
0

(88,7e8)
0
0
0

(11,643)
88,291

0
(125,e3e)

(4,447)
0
0

($142,536)

47 018 11 884
fi2,270,427 $391,95ô $201,698 $28,2i 5

$o
0

(11,056)
0
0
0
0

(63,806)
0

(195,330)
196,177

0
0

($74,015)

$934,856 $520,187 $401,307 $59,162 ($45,800)

18 938,674
$

912,259,420 $4,683,176

____$]?, r?e,gqz_ ____$5, 081, 4gg_
687 637

$1,746,799
$308,441

$262,641

o
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NOVATO WATER
DETAIL INCOME STATEMENT

FOR THE PERIOD ENDING SEPTEMBER 30, 2019

SEPTEMBER

2019
YEAR TO DATE

ACTUAL
YTD/

BUDGET%
PRIOR YTD

ACTUAL

OPERATING REVENUE
Water Sales
BillAdjustments
Bimonthly Service Charges
Account Turn-on Charges
New Account Charges
Returned Check Charges
Hydrant Meter Up/Down Charges
Backflow Service Charges
Lab Service-Outside Clients
Wheeling Charges - MMWD

TOTAL OPERATING REVENUE

TOTAL EXPENDITURES
SOURCE OF SUPPLY
Supervision & Engineering
Operating Expense - Source
Maint/Monitoring of Dam
Maint of Lake & lntakes
Maint of Structures
Maint of Watershed
Water Quality Surveillance
Purchased Water

PUMP!NG
Maint of Structures & Grounds
Maint of Pumping Equipment
Electric Power

$4,799,359
(13,018)

1,177 ,306
23,474
2,090

234
2,000

37,197
11,644
31 954

$1,696,656 fi6,072,240

$673
1,110

396
0

0
354

0
444,082 725 978

souRcE oF SUPPLY $446,615 $1,762,158

$1,273,087
(3,585)

392,435
7,534

875
18

800
12,570
2,491

10,431

$5,587,824
(25,25e)

1,137,265
17,397

1,960
36

1,700
36,125
9,690

22,111

31%
16Yo

25%
30%
30%
23o/o

40%
260/o

35%
43o/o

3oo/o $6,788,848

$1 ,1 51

20

17%
19%
43%
13%
0o/o

1o/o

1o/o

30%

30%

11o/o

5o/o

40%

33o/o

$1,842
2,649

28,641
2,610

0
354

85

91,223
2,933

16,714
9,554

205
873
301

1,865,865

$1,897,669

$ 14,961
9,327

$3,531
2,561

37 838 115 981

PUMPTNG $39,009 $122,073

104 603

$128,890
OPERATIONS
Supervision & Engineering
Operating Expense - Operations
Maintenance Expense
Telemetry Equipment/Controls Maint
Leased Lines

$20,912
24,517

4,1 06
4,168

$54,826
80,285

9,429
10,503

35o/o

34o/o

17o/o

12o/o

24o/o

29Yo

$47,1 05
75,714

9,121
15,915

388 4 164

OPERATIONS $55,091 $159,207

4 189

$152,044
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NOVATO WATER
DETAIL INCOME STATEMENT

FOR THE PERIOD ENDING SEPTEMBER 30, 2019

SEPTEMBER

2019
YEAR TO DATE

ACTUAL
YTD/

BUDGET%
PRIOR YTD

ACTUAL
WATER TREATMENT
Supervision & Engineering
Operating Expense - Water Treatment
Purification Chemicals
Sludge Disposal
Maint of Structures & Grounds
Maint of Purification Equipment
Electric Power
Water Quality Programs
Laboratory Direct Labor
Lab Service-Outside Clients
Water Quality Supervision
Laboratory Supplies & Expense
Customer Water Quality
Lab Cost Distributed

WATER TREATMENT
TRANSMISSION & DISTRIBUTION
Supervision & Engineering
Maps & Records
Operation of T&D System
Facilities Location
Safety: Construction & Engineering
Customer Service Expense
Flushing
Storage Facilities Expense
Cathodic Protection
Maint of Valves/Regu lators
Maint of Mains
Leak Detection - Mains
Backflow Prevention Program
Maint of Copper Services
Maint of PB Service Lines
Single Service lnstallations
Maint of Meters
Detector Check Assembly Maint
Maint of Hydrants

TR,ANSMISSION & DISTRIBUTION
CONSUMER ACCOUNTING
Meter Reading
Collection Expense - Labor
Collection Expense - Agency
Billing & Consumer Accounting
Contract Billing
Stationery, Supplies & Postage
Online Payment Processing Fees
Lock Box Service
U ncollectable Accounts
Office Equipment Expense
Distributed to West Marin (4.1o/o)

CONSUMER ACCOUNTING

$223,991 $588,845

$12,090
41,191
83,588
6,826
1,055
4,975

13,705
10,011
30,1 41

5,885
6,642
6,641
4,204

(2,962\

$31,066
122,622
131,043
25,863

7,068
43,082
47,018
26,760
93,451
17,650
17,418
20,120
12,141
(6,456)

22o/o

380/,

28o/o

21o/o

6%
23o/o

30%
26%
260/o

38o/o

23\ó
25o/o

18o/o

260/o

260/o

22Yo

19o/o

49o/o

28o/o

160/o

28o/o

1o/o

13o/o

12o/o

22%
24o/o

18o/o

260/o

11%
40Yo

$29,958
80,214
89,441
23,693

3,718
48,1 55
42,993
28,928
87,823
14,767
15,992
18,502
9,898

(6,335)

$487,747

$44,435
9,382

10,920
13,829
3,144

23,271
0

7,920
1,733

10,237
7,915

400
14,207
5,567

61,566
375

4,696
17,627

$2,961
2,971

0
19,815

1,293
4,276

10,032
912
969
580

(1,540)

$r 30,020
30,765
33,557
42,008

9,463
77,310

447
15,924
2,239

41,522
41,099

2,174
58,1 54
14,856

190,700
84

38,490
32,695

$137,944
38,589
26,452
41,793
13,628
59,531

14
28,6'16

1,608
22,346
58,736
4,314

60,860
42,834

190,698
(3,548)
30,698
14,515

155 12 055
$238,379 $773,560

27Yo

39%
17o/o

260/0

1 946

$8,349
8,212

118
63,000

3,892
13,073
19,776
2,736
1,818
2,090

(4,400)

$771,576

$26,528
6,331

513
52,928
3,674

12,006
13,612
2,736
2,421
1,845

(3,671)

8o/o

26Yo

4o/o

30o/o

22o/o

24o/o

33o/o

25o/o

36%
60/o

27Yo

23o/o$42,269 $118,665 $118,e24
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NOVATO WATER
DETAIL INCOME STATEMENT

FOR THE PERIOD ENDING SEPTEMBER 30, 2019

SEPTEMBER YEARTO DATE YTD/
2019 ACTUAL BUDGET%

PRIOR YTD
ACTUAL

WATER CONSERVATION
Residential
Commercial
Public Outreach/l nformation
Large Landscape

TOTAL WATER GONSERVATION

GENERAL AND ADMINISTRATIVE
Directors Fees
Legal Fees
Human Resources
Auditing Fees
Consulting Services/Studies
General Office Salaries
Safety: General District Wide
Office Supplies
Employee Events
Other Administrative Expense
Dues & Subscriptions
Vehicle Expense
Meetings, Conferences & Training
Recruitment Expense
Gas & Electricity
Telephone
Water
Buildings & Grounds Maint
Office Equipment Expense
lnsurance Premiums & Claims
Retiree Medical Benefits
(Gain)/Loss on Overhead Charges
G&A Applied to Other Operations (5,9%)
G&A Applied to Construction
GAS868 Adjustment (Pension)

GENERAL & ADMINISTRATIVE

Depreciation (Note 5)

TOTAL OPERATING EXPENSE

$32,480 $76,310

$15,208
838

14,742
1,692

$47,483
2,092

2l,924

19o/o

10o/o

50o/o

17o/o

22o/o

$57,096
1,915
8,791
8,4904 811

$3,068
588
831

0
6,1 16

78,809
2,366
1,696

547
716

24,670
676

21,066
42

3,430
1,O97

0
4,O20
3,390

10,696
14,774
(2,e63)
(e,e4e)

(35,574)
105,298

$7,1 58
2,709
7,193

10,820
35,077

258,716
8,692
7,481

800
1 ,818

48,723
2,028

44,927
192

11,204
2,274

380
10,298
64j62
32,087
45,237
(3,858)

(35,689)
(ee,010)

17%
13o/o

14o/o

52o/o

18%
22%
15o/o

160/o

7o/o

12o/o

51o/o

25o/o

24o/o

6%
29o/o

28o/o

19o/o

18%
50o/o

22o/o

260/o

3o/o

24o/o

30%
86%

35%

$76,293

$6,841
3,927

26,603
16,600
13,920

274,894
8,239
4,514
1,244
1,811

31,924
2,028

36,695
775

9,971
114
486

11,082
37,208
27,208
47,431

266,532
(31,302)
(86,035)

0314 897

$235,409

223,381
$1,536,625

s778,317

683,534
$5,062,669

$712,711

681,706
$5,027,559

25%
28%

oPERATING INCOME(LOSS) $160,031 $1,00e,570 3e% $1,761,289
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NOVATO WATER
DETAIL INCOME STATEMENT

FOR THE PERIOD ENDING SEPTEMBER 30, 2019

SEPTEMBER

2019
YEAR TO DATE

ACTUAL
YTD/

BUDGET%
PRIOR YTD

ACTUAL
NON.OPERATING REVENUE
lnterest:
General Funds
Wohler Pipeline Financing Fund
Collector #6 Financing Fund
Retiree Medical lnsurance Fund
Self-lnsured Workers' Comp Fund
Aqueduct Energy Efficiency Proj Fund

Total lnterest Revenue
Rents & Leases
Other Non-Operating Revenue
Gain/(Loss) on MV of lnvestments

NON.OPERATING REVENUE

NON-OPERATING EXPENSE
Bank of Marin AEEP Loan lnterest Exp
STP SRF Loan lnterest Expense
JP Morgan/Chase AMI Loan lnterest Expense
Other Non-Operating Expense

NON-OPERATING EXPENSE

NET TNCOME(LOSS)

BEGINNING FUND EQUITY
NET TNCOME(LOSS)
SCWA 84 Water Conservation Grant
Developer'ln-Kind' Contributions
Caltrans AEEP Capital Contribution
MMWD AEEP Capital Contribution
Connection Fees
FRC Transfer to/from Recycled Water

ENDING FUND EQUITY

10 32

$8,268 $82,293 29o/o $123,579

$43,857
60,546
28,529

401

41o/o

$133,333

$1,751,536

9%
100%
264%
-24Yo

$78,372,562

$o
0
0

17,814
2,176

114

$o
0
0

55,418
6,795

354

0o/o

0o/o

0o/o

111o/o

43o/o

35o/o

3o/o

260/o

260/o

25o/o

3o/o

25o/o

$0
3,098

12,181
29,721

3,894
250

1

$20,1 04
2,106

341
283

$13,656
18,154
9,774

142

$62,568
28,731

1 ,319

$41,194
55,672
29,321

651

$49,145
34,301
33,078

7 056

$41,726

$126,573

$126,839

$965,024

$79,168,973
126,573 965,024

00
109,639 414,390

090
0 205,320

228,800 896,600
(116,730) (218,155)

_$81,432,242

$74,211,063
1,751,536

'1,688

32,431
3,250

245,000
95,800

2,031,795
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NOVATO RECYCLED WATER
DETAIL INCOME STATEMENT

FOR THE PERIOD END¡NG SEPTEMBER 30, 2019
SEPTEMBER YEAR TO DATE YTD/

2019 ACTUAL BUDGET%
PRIOR YTD

ACTUAL
OPERATING REVENUE
Recycled Water Sales
Bimonthly Service Charges
Water Loads

TOTAL OPERATING REVENUE

OPERATING EXPENSE

SOURCE OF SUPPLY
Purchased Water - NSD
Purchased Water - LGVSD

SOURCE OF SUPPLY
PUMPING
Maint of Pumping Equipment
Electric Power

PUMPING
OPERATIONS
Supervision & Engineering
Operating Expense - Operations
Potable Water Consumed
Maintenance Expense
Telemetry EquipmenVControls Maint

OPERATIONS
WATER TREATMENT
Purification Chemicals
Maint of Purification Equipment
Laboratory Direct Labor
Customer Water Quality
Lab Expense Distributed from Novato

WATER TREATMENT
TRANSMISSION & DISTRIBUTION
Supervision & Engineering
Facilities Location
Customer Service Expense
Storage Facilities Expense
Maint of Mains

TRANSMISSION & DISTRIBUTION

($1 1,879) $596,071 48o/o

$29,819
10,234

$96,851
33,775

48o/o

43%

460/o

54o/o

48o/o

($1e,271)
7,392

0

$577,550
18,421

100

$499,205
12,767

235
$512,207

$116,904
9,378

ç126,282

s225
1,477

$1,702

$4,521
6,784

97,960
189

1,510
$110,964

$40,052 $130,625

$0$0

$492 $1,385

$6,088
6,024
3,056

0
0

$2,053
915

0
0
0

492 385
0o/o

460/o

23o/o

47o/o

460/o

2ïo/o
0%
0%

20Yo$2,968 $1 5,1 68

$o
297
418

0
240

$2,748
350

1,118
0

590

690/o

2o/o

19o/o

20o/o

17o/o

$1,993
2,453
1,201

33
724

$6,404$e56

3 179
$3,657

$1 13
0

343
22

$1 ,1 45
0

2,599
52

0

$4,806

$306
144

2,409
471

3,179
$6,510

1o/o

14o/o

34%
4o/o

318o/o

14% $3,796
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NOVATO RECYCLED WATER
DETAIL INCOME STATEMENT

FOR THE PERIOD ENDING SEPTEMBER 30, 2019
SEPTEMBER YEARTODATE YTD/

2019 ACTUAL BUDGET%
PRIOR YTD

ACTUAL
CONSUMER ACCOUNTING
Distributed from Novato (0.2o/o)

GONSUMER ACCOUNTING
GENERAL AND ADMINISTRATIVE
Distributed from Novato (2.4%)
GAS868 Adjustment

GENERAL & ADMINISTRATIVE

Depreciation (Note s)

TOTAL OPERATING EXPENSE

oPERAT| NG I NCOM E(LOSS)

NON.OPERATING REVENUE
lnterest:
General Funds
RWF Replacement Fund
Self-lnsured Workers' Comp Fund
StoneTree RWF Loan

Total Interest Revenue
Other Non-Operating Revenue

NON-OPERATING REVENUE

NON.OPERATING EXPENSE
RWF SRF Loan lnterest Expense
Expansion SRF Loan lnterest Expense
Other Non-Operating Expense

NON.OPERATING EXPENSE

($104,2e3) $302,391

116
$1 16

$329 33Vo

33o/o$329

$14,350 260/o

$272
$272

$'11,785
$0

$1 1,785

118,454
$379,660

$132,548

$4,000
686 2 050

$4,678
6,736

37
3,091

s14,542
0

$4,686

39,486
$92,414

$16,400

118,457
$293,680

31o/o

25o/o

31o/o

109o/o

28%

260/o

53%

25%
25%

25%

380%

-24%

$12,518
20,732

116
9,428

$o
9,1 10

68

$42,793
0

l3 703
$22,881

0
$14,542 $42,793 53% $22,881

$13,046
45,061

3,354

$3,889
19,876

0

$11,926
59,760

0

$23,765

NET INCOME(LOSS) ($113,516)

BEGINNING FUND EQUITY
NET TNCOME/(LOSS) (113,516)
FRC Transfer to/from Novato 116,730

ENDING FUND EQUITY

$71,686

$273,499

ç23,421,587
273,499
218,155

TãþiEui-

$24,764,003
93,968

(2,031,795)

Æ,816!lg_

$61,461

$93,968
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WEST MARIN WATER
DETAIL INCOME STATEMENT

FOR THE PERIOD ENDING SEPTEMBER 30, 2019

SEPTEMBER
2019

YEAR TO DATE

ACTUAL
YTD/

BUDGET%
PRIOR YTD

ACTUAL

OPERATING REVENUE
Water Sales
BillAdjustments
Bimonthly Service Charges
Account Turn-on Charges
New Account Charges
Backflow Service Charges

TOTAL OPERATING REVENUE

OPERATING EXPENSE

SOURCE OF SUPPLY
Supervision & Engineering
Operating Expense
Maint of Structures
Purchased Water - MMWD

SOURCE OF SUPPLY
PUMPING
Maint of Structures and Grounds
Maint of Pumping Equip
Electric Power

PUMPING

OPERATIONS
Supervision & Engineering
Operating Expense
Maintenance Expense
Maint of Telemetry Equipment
Leased Lines

OPERATIONS

WATER TREATMENT
Supervision & Engineering
Operating Expense
Purification Chemicals
Maint of Purification Equipment
Electric Power
Laboratory Direct Labor
Laboratory Services
Water Quality Supervision
Customer Water Quality
Lab Expense Distributed from Novato

WATER TREATMENT

$274,053
(4,664)

47,232
78
30

012

$1 19,898 $317,741

$105,068
(e14)

15,744
0

0
0

260/o

8o/o

3o/o

20o/o

35%

33o/o

5o/o

43%
32o/o

38%

360/o

24o/o

22o/o

21%
260/o

115

$239,833
(3,515)
46,296

286
20

1

$204
49

0

0

$51 0
182

8,685
0

3o/o

1O9o/o

$284,035

$385
I,005
8,736

175
$253 $9,377 67% $10,301

$3,059
0

11 436
$14,495

$2,897
3,566

0

1j22

$1,809
125

$2,961
505

12,0723 915
$5,850 $15,538

$765
550
229
466
346

$4,260
4,075

229
3,272

028 1101

$2,356 $12,864 $8,696

$1,664
2,402

0

839
1,929
4,826

605
309

70

$3,1 52
4,870
1,536
5,101
5,874

10j26
1,605

309
119

5,345

$1,988
6,699

895
3,072
8,016
8,947
4,524

297
936

5,3912 695

15o/o

17%
31o/o

27%
28o/o

27o/o

23o/o

8o/o

1o/o

28o/o

22o/o$15,339 $38,037 $40,765
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WEST MARIN WATER
DETAIL INCOME STATEMENT

FOR THE PERIOD ENDING SEPTEMBER 30, 2019

SEPTEMBER
2019

YEAR TO DATE
ACTUAL

YTD/
BUDGET%

PRIOR YTD
ACTUAL

TRANSMISSION & DISTRIBUTION
Supervision & Engineering
Facilities Location - USA
Customer Service Expense
Storage Facilities Expense
Cathodic Protection
Maint of Valves
Maint of Mains
Water Quality Maintenance
Backflow Dev lnspection/Survey
Maint of Copper Services
Maint of PB Service Lines
Maint of Meters
Detector Check Assembly Maint
Maint of Hydrants
Single Service lnstallation

TRANSMISSION & DISTRIBUTION
CONSUMER ACCOUNTING
Meter Reading
Dístributed from Novato (3.6%)

CONSUMER ACCOUNTING

WATER CONSERVATION
Water Conservation Program

TOTAL WATER CONSERVATION
GENERAL AND ADMINISTRATIVE
Consulting Services/Studies
Distributed from Novato (3.6%)
GAS868 Adjustment (Pension)

GENERAL & ADMINISTRATIVE

Depreciation (Nore s)

TOTAL OPERATING EXPENSE

$10,073 $17,941

$1,463
768
136
848

0
0
0
0

0
0

6,016
0

842
0
0

$1,738
3,505

993

0
0

5o/o

29o/o

20o/o

10o/o

0o/o

0o/o

0o/o

0o/o

0o/o

0o/o

27o/o

0o/o

42%
0%

$1,173
1,139
1,755
1,588

743
361

5,137
101

239
2,979

1 9,1 03
296

0
1,430
7,566

3,122
0

0

0

0
0

0
7,741

0

842

$777 $1 ,719
3,672

12o/o

14o/o

28o/o

22o/o

8o/o

8o/o

Oo/o

31o/o

47%

25o/o

25%

68o/o

$1,048

$898
14,137

0

$43,611

$1 ,1 37
3 032

,168

$1,048

2981

$2,074 $5,s90

$681

$681

$1 36

$1 36

$0
15,634
14,498

$30,1 32

47,018

$176,978

oPERAT|NG TNCOME(LOSS)___$5e,r05_ $140,763 $99,1 74

$0
4,358
4,850

$9,209

15,404

$60,694

$15,035

46,742

$184,861

17
l\accountants\linâncials\stmtfyxx\finfyu.xls1 1/1/2019 1:46 p¡/l



WEST MARIN WATER
DETAIL INCOME STATEMENT

FOR THE PERIOD ENDING SEPTEMBER 30, 2OI9

SEPTEMBER
2019

YEAR TO DATE
ACTUAL

YTD/
BUDGET%

PRIOR YTD
ACTUAL

NON-OPERATING REVENUE
lnterest - General Funds
lnterest - FRC
lnterest - Self-lnsured WC Fund
lnterest - Bank of Marin Project Fund
Tax Proceeds - PR-2 Tax Allocation
Other Non-Operating Revenue

NON.OPERATING REVENUE

NON.OPERATING EXPENSE
Bank of Marin Loan lnterest Expense
PRE-1 Revenue Bond lnterest Exp
PR-6 Revenue Bond lnterest Exp

NON-OPERATING EXPENSE

NET TNCOME(LOSS)

BEGINNING FUND EQUITY
NET TNCOME/(LOSS)
CONTRIBUTED CAPITAL
Developer'ln-Kind' Contributions

ENDING FUND EQUITY

912,201
910
227

5,884
741

0

$4,151
737
132

3,326
332

(317)

$4,067
275

73
1,894

0
0

122o/o

10o/o

39o/o

1%o

25o/o

57o/o

$8,360

$6,438
325
437

$6,309 $19,964 22o/o

25o/o$o$2,00

$6,047

5

0
0

,047
0

0

$2,005

$63,509 $154,680

$7,200

$100,334

63,509

0

$6,685,965
154,680

0

$6,840,646

$6,431,493
100,334

0

$6,531,827

'18
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OCEANA MARIN SEWER
DETAIL INCOME STATEMENT

FOR THE PERIOD ENDING SEPTEMBER 30, 2019

SEPTEMBER

201 I
YEAR TO DATE

ACTUAL

YTD/

BUDGET%

PR¡OR YTD

ACTUAL
OPERATING REVENUE
Sewer Service Charges

TOTAL OPERATING REVENUE

OPERATING EXPENSE

SEWAGE COLLECTION
Supervision & Engineering
Operating Expense
Facilities Location
Maint of Telemetry Equipment
Maint of Lift Stations
Electric Power

SEWAGE COLLECTION
SEWAGE TREATMENT
Operating Expense
Maint of Equipment
Laboratory Direct Labor
Lab Expense Distributed from Novato
Electric Power

SEWAGE TREATMENT
SEWAGE DISPOSAL
Operating Expense
Maint of Pump Stations
Maint of Storage Ponds
Maint of lrrigation Field

SEWAGE DISPOSAL
CONSUMER ACCOUNT¡NG
Distributed from Novato (0.6%)

CONSUMER ACCOUNTING

$6,292 $14,969

921,762
fi21,762

$65,286
$65,286

2s%
25o/o

$63,1 80

$63, I 80

166

$736
843

0
299

3,249

$2,436
4,522

236
389

3,652
3,734

7o/o

45o/o

5o/o

13o/o

52%
31%
21o/o

4o/o

30o/o

12Vo

260/0

70o/o

20o/o

5o/o

5%
28o/o

18o/o

15o/o

$2,037
2,433

213
293
992

3,324

$21 I
1,545

0
27

$853
2,380

987
521

4,216155

$9,293

$630
2,311

365
220

1,216
$2,e45 $8,957 $4,741

$277
0

550
0

$801
327

4,532
1,450

$7,1 09

$399

$1,099
0

2,347
0

2oo/o

20o/o

$3,446

$367
$367

9827

$1 26
$1 26 $399
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OCEANA MARIN SEWER
DETAIL INCOME STATEMENT

FOR THE PERIOD ENDING SEPTEMBER 30, 2019

SEPTEMBER

2019

YEAR TO DATE

ACTUAL

YTD/

BUDGET%

PRIOR YTD

ACTUAL
GENERAL AND ADMINISTRATIVE
Distributed from Novato 1

Liability lnsurance
GAS868 Adjustment

GENERAL AND ADMINISTRATIVE

Depreciation (Note s)

TOTAL OPERATING EXPENSE

oPERAT|Nc TNCOME(LOSS)

NON.OPERATING REVENUE
Rents & Leases
lnterest - General Funds
lnterest - Self lnsured WC Fund
Tax Proceeds - OM-1/OM-3 Tax Alloc

NON-OPERATING REVENUE

NON-OPERATING EXPENSE
Other Non-Operating Expense

NON-OPERATING EXPENSE

NET TNCOME(LOSS)

BEGINNING FUND EQUITY
NET TNCOME(LOSS)
CONTRIBUTED CAPITAL

ENDING FUND EQUITY

$4,843 $12,286

$1,591
176

1,154

$5,706
528

3,449

25%
260/o

39o/o

32%
23o/o

35o/o

37o/o

1o/o

60/o

$5,379
479

0
$2,921

3,808

$16,919

$9,683

11,884

$53,000

$5,859

9,292
$32,998

$30,1 82

$250
2,965

46
354

$o
1,798

26
0

$250
2,924

81

790
$1,824 $4,045 $3,615

$o$o $346

160/o

$346

$33,451

$1,416,0r 1

33,451

_$1A49,462

$0

$6,666

$0

$16,331

81,522,727
16,331

__$1,s3qggg_

6,666

20
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NORTH MARIN WATER DISTRICT
EQUIPMENT EXPENDITURES

PERIOD ENDING SEPTEMBER 30, 2019
t:\accountants\f¡nancials\stmtfy20\[cpm091 Lxls] equip

SEPTEMBER
2019

FYTD

TOTAL
FY 19/20
BUDGET

(ovER)
UNDER Notes

1 ADMINISTRATION
a. Website Upgrade
u. Exchange Server Upgrade
c. Timekeeping Software Upgrade

2 OPERATIONS/MAINTENANCE
a. Metals Analyzer
b. 100 KW Towable Generator
c. 45 KW Towable Generator (2)
o. Portable Light Generator

3 VEHICLE & ROLLING EQUIPMENT EXPENDITURES
a. 112 ton 2WD Pick-Up MToot Box & Radio
b. Vacuum Excavator
c. Hybrid SUV MRadio
o. Truck Bed Body for S-Yard Diesel Dump Truck

Notes:
(1) Replacement item

$138,920 $220,000 $81,080

$o
0

0

$o
0

0

$10,000
7,000

10,000

$10,000
7,000

10 000
$0

0

$0 $27,000 $27,000

$o $0
61,431
77,4gg

0

$68,000
90,000
50,000
12,000

$68,000 r

28,569
(27,48e)
12 000

$o

$0

$1 38,1 70 186,000 $47,830

TOTAL EQUIPMENT EXPENDITURES $O $277,090 $433,000 $155,910

$0
116,965

0
21 205

$28,000
130,000
28,000

0

$28,000
13,035
28,000

2

21
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NORTH MARIN WATER DISTRICT
EXPENDITURES BY CATEGORY

FOR PERIOD ENDING SEPTEMBER 30,2019

West Oceana YTD
Marin Marin Total

Annual YTD Prior
Budget Budget % YTD ActualOPERATING EXPENSE Novato Recycled

;237
Water Purchases 1,725,978
Depreciation 683,534
Materials, Services & Supplies 524,091
Consulting Services/Studies 35,077

Chemicals 131 ,043
Electrìc Power 162,999

Vehicles and Equipment (Distrib) 53,220
Tools & Supplies (Distrib) 55,390
Retiree Medìcal Expenses 45,237
Water Conservation Rebates 8,738
lnsurance & Claims 32,087
Office Supplies & Postage 20,554
GASB 68 Adjustments 314,897
Overhead Charges (Gain)/Loss (3,858)

DistributedCosts(Lab,G&A,ConsAcctg) (145,554)

Total Operating Expense

lnterest Expense & Other

Total Expense

o//o

Change
1

2

3

4
Ã

6

7

I
9

10

11

12

14

15

tb

17
$5,062,669

126,839

$52,785
138,004
29,854

(220,643)

$0

$58,1 83
277,090

79,316
245,507

$1 1 9,1 89
308,935

$428,123

ç6,277,727

$293,680
71,686

$1,291
0

I Ã? 201

503

$0

$176,978
6,047

Q2t eoa

0
11,643
56.405

ÞU

$53,000
0

$1 ,1 28

0

0

$5,586,327
204,572

$52,785
138,004
29,854

(220,643)

$92,993
277,094
244,350
312,344

allo lao

308,935

$6,226,000
5,985,000
3,528,000
1 ,9't0,000

335,000
484,000
513,000
317,000
177,000
172,000
104,000
173,000
102,000

0

(3e,000)
(366,000)

$19,621,000
870,000

$628,000
355,000

2,279,000
5,086,000

$208,000
13'1 ,000

$1,498,884
1,992,147

856,194

562,674
14,818
92,330

173,065
76,304
66,962
47,431

6,171
27,688
30 133

0

266,532
(86,254)

$5,625,078
173,811

$42,560
$78,790
$30,657

(152,007)

s140,228
0

248,685
1,008,328

$42,958
15,238

$58, 1 96

þ | ,¿c4,ó¿Ð

-0%
-6 Ta

00k
I A/- I /O

136 %
46%
90k

-24 %
4a o/- t1 /o

-4%
41%
17%

-31%

-101%
1E O/
tJ /o

-0 Yo

17%

-0 To

24%
7E A/-

-z '/o

45%

-33 %

-l -/o

-69 %

-33%

177 %
1927 0/

635 %

s17,946
130,625
118,457

3,405
0

2,748
1,385

885
909

$45,832
0

47,018
20,775

0

1,536
17,946
2,730
1,993

$14,378
0

11,884
7 Ã?O

0

0
7 A¿,4

öö¿

286

0

0

528
0

3,449
0

6,105

$1,497,394
1,856,603

860,892
555,8 1 0

2E 
^aagJ,V/ /

t JJ,a¿ l

190,280
57,716
58,578
45,237
o,/.)o

32,616
20,554

334,894
(3,858)

(ee,531)14 t^A 2¿. 
^qO

24%

31%
240/o

29%
10%
28%
37%
18%
.1J 70

26%
Õo/a /o

19%
20o/o

10%
¿l7a

28%
24%

a 
^o/LV lO

41%
0%

360k

15%
78%
1 \o/a

ôYa

57%
236%

126%

24%

N19
N)

$0
0

0

0

0

0
0

0
1Á. ¿.49

0

$o
0

0

0

0
0

0

0

2,050
0

$0
0

0

0

$5,189,508 $365,366 $183,025 $53,000 $5,790,899 $20,491 ,000 28% $5,798,889:

20

21

22

23

Warehouse. Shop & Yard

Salaries & BenefÌts
Materìals, Services & Supplies
Deprecìation
Distributed Costs

TotalW/H, Shop & Yard

District Capital Outlav
Salaries & Benefits
Equipment Expenditures
Debt Principal Payments
Materials, Services & Supplies

Total District Capital Outlay

Developer Funded Proiects
Salarles & Benefits
Materials, Services & Supplies

ïotal Developer Projects

Total

s0 $0 $0

$267,000
339,000

0
(606,000)

$0 $0 $o

25

t5
27

¿o

29 $660,095 $155,185 $100,440 $1 1 056 $926,777 $8,348,000 11% ç1 ,397 ,241

30

JI

1a

0 0
$0

0

$520,551 $283,465 $64,056

$0 $0 $0 $428,123 5339,000

$7,145,799 $29,'1 78,000 4 0/- I /O

12.21 .02PM 10t22t2419 S:\SageSoftware\SAGE100\v2016\ltlAS90\Repoñs\1PAS ExpCategory FY20.rpi



NORTH MARIN WATER DISTR¡CT
VEHICLE FLEET ANALYSIS

FOR PERIOD ENDING SEPTEMBER 30, 2OI9
Fiscal Year to Date

Year Descri Veh# Ass 2
Mi

Vehicle Cost Mile

Life to Date FYTD2O FYTD19 FYTD18

z 2003 Dodge Dakota 4x4
e 2QQ4 Chev C1500
¿ 2004 Chev C1500 Xtra Cab
s 2005 Honda Civic Hybrid
o 2005 Honda Civic Hybrid
t 2005 Ford Ranger
e 2006 Chev Colorado
g 2007 Chev Colorado
ro 2008 FordF2504x4
r 2008 FordF2504x4
tz 2008 Chev Colorado 4x4
re 2009 Toyota Prius Hybrid
t+ 2010 Ford F150 4x4
ts 2Q1O Ford F150
rc 2010 Ford F150
¡ 2412 Ford F250
ß 2012 Ford F250
ts 2014 Ford F150
zo 2015 Ford F250 4x4
zt 2015 Ford Escape 4X4
zz 2015 Ford F150 4X4
zs 2016 Nissan Frontier
z¿ 2017 Ford Escape 4X4
zs 2016 Nissan Frontier
za 2018 Ford Cargo Van
zt 2018 Dodge Ram 2500
ze 2019 Chev Colorado 4x4
ze 2019 NISSAN ROGUE
so 2019 NISSAN ROGUE
zt 2019 NISSAN FRONTIER
sz 2019 FORD F-150 2WD
zs 2019 FORD F-'150 4x4

47
49
53
54
56
57
58

501
504
505
506
509
510
511
512
5'13

515
516
517
518
520
521
522
523
524
526
527
528
531
532
533
534
535

2,123
468
785

21
0

661
0

3,388
r,903
1,066
1,577
1,271
1 ,188
1,916
1,572
2,507
2,265

318
3,468
4,115
1,265
3,493
1,653
2,834
2,905
3,557
1,707
2,736

469
1,91 1

60
248

141
1,026
1,563
1,112

497
1,327
1,479
3,047

0

$442
$363
$143
$290
s232
$248
$145
$925
$700
$383
$483
$863
$330
$553
$642

$1,029
$2,185

$329
$1,320
$1,114

$589
$1,004

9522
$2,090

$628
$r,607
w7
$835
$580
$596
$128

$33

$104
$r,371

$716
$847

$3,369
$1,425
$4,819
$2,06e

$1,078
$42

$301
$0

$23
$466

$0
$0

$707
6777

$2,016
$217
$602

$2,534
$847

$3,647
$2,909

$595
$5,366
$2,070

$462
$2,875
$1,033
$2,468

$336
$3,399

$946
$1,020

$179
$644
$161

$560
$4,844
$4,410
$6,146
$9,968
s4,270
95,222
$4,032

$636
($3zt ¡

$159
($2eo)
($2oe)
$21 I

($1+s¡
($e25)

$7
$394

$1,533
($646)
$272

$1,981
$205

$2,618
$724
$266

$4,046
$956

($1zt¡
$1,871

$51 1

$377
$377

($2sz¡
$1,792

$499
$1 85

($4ot ¡
$48
$33

$456
$3,473
$5,299
$5,299
$6,599
$2,845

$403
$1,964

$0.42
$0.46
$0.46
$0.30
$0.24
$0.46
$0.37
$0.41
$0.76
$0.78
$0.35
$0.1 9
$0.50
$0.49
$0.47
$0.60
$0.55
$0.43
$0.41
$0.25
$0.30
$0.37
$0.30
$0.44

$0.21
$0.78
$0.18

$13.81

$0.37

$0.42
$0.40
$0.52
$0.8e
$0.40
$0.59

$0.45
$0.65
$1.10
$0.57
$0.15
$1.17
$0.49
$0.45
$0.68

$0.4e
$0.43
$0.30
$0.35
$0.43
$0.31
$0.41
$0.28
$0.77
$0.99

$3.78

$0.00
$1.64
$0.00
$2.29
s2.94
$1.15
$1.30
$0.62

$0.54
$0.48
$0.53
$0.56
$0.28
$0.63
$0.31
$0.37
$1.81
$0.41
$0.31
$0.12
$0.39
$0.54
$0.s6
$0.40
$0.60
$0.4s
$0.47
$0.23
$0.30
$0.32
$3.27
$0.46

STP
Construction
Pool
Auction
Auction
FSRfPool
Auction
Rodriguez
Maintenance
STP
Engineering
Auction
STP
Kurfìrst
STP
Reed
Castellucci

Kehoe, Chris
Arendell
Watkins/Shop
Roberto
Lab
Bynum
On-Call
Rupp
Stompe
Clark
EngÂtVtr Consv
Castellucci
Grisso
LeBrun

113,359
132,748
107,558
80,242
80,398

'1 33,190
145,060
84,371

102,992
77,521

108,317
134,302
88,1 88

111,578
84,530
63,660
70,065
13,875
85,476
69,680
41,455
44,871
21,266
25,876
12,088
11,581
4,629
2,736

469
2,074

60
248

137,760
106,465
97,890
47,219
37,011
41,845
36,857
26,532

$0.27
$0.37
$0.36
$0.31
$0.68
$0.28
$0.29
$0.41
$0.41
$0.96
$1.03
$0.38
$0.27
$0.47
$0.29
$0.32
$0.74
$0.22
$0.45
$0.26
$0.31
$1.24
$0.31
$2.14

$1.64
$0.58
$2.14

13

$0.00
$1.75
$0.00
$1.65
$2.27
$1.41
$1.18
$0.55

$0.53

N)(t

$0.68
$0.68
$0.72
$0.38

13
n

1

2

4

6

7

8

9

1999 Ford F350 WSvc Body 19 Pool
2002 lnt'l 5 Yd Dump 44 Construction
1999 Ford F550 3-Yd Dump' 52 Construction
2006 Int'l 4300 Crew 503 Bergstrom
2009 Peterbilt 325 Crew 508 BreilCrew
2012 lnt'lS Yd Dump 514 Rupp
2015 lnt'l5 Yd Dump 519 Sjobtom
2017 Ford F350 4x4 525 lelmorini/Davenport
2019 FORD F550 3 YD DUMP 530 Construction

$0.74
$1.34
$0.46
$0.76
$6.78
$1.07
$3.26
$0.68

$1.93
$1.97
$1.47
$1.30
$1.51
$1.78
81.21
$0.43

10,
' Expense amount shown excludes depreciation (approx¡mately g84,00O for Fy2O)

$7/hr and the recovery rate for veh¡cles 1 -ton and over ¡s S1 4/hr. An addit¡onal 50% is charged to developer projects to reflect the fa¡r market value of the vehicle being used.
3 Purc¡ased used in 20s dh 32 500 miles M¡leêge shown is total ¡ncurd since DisÍid pufchâse 
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NORTH MARIN WATER DISTRICT
WATER CONSERVATION PROGRAM DETAIL
FOR PERIOD ENDING SEPTEMBER 30, 2019

@nseilation

t770GO1

1-770c.02

1-770G03

1-770G06

1-770GO7

1-770G.11

1-770ù12

't-7700-13

1-7700-15

r-770G16

1-770G.17

1-7700-19

1-7700-OA

1-770G.20

1-770G'21

1-770ù23

1-770ù24

ln0ù25

1-770ù28

't-770È26

1-7700-27

9424,575
24,065
53,020

349,202
55,1 05

1,001,289
18,261

447,287
242,177

92,441
3,464

35,660
1,534,674

101,232
2,816
3,300
2,416

66,421

$61 I
192

0
136

0
1,653

0
1,275

0
0

33
180

9,716
1,404

0
0
0
0

$35,000
5,000
5,000
5,000
1,000

18,000
2,000

65,000
0

7,000
1,000
5,000

130,000
15,000
2,000
1,000
2,000

0

$30,789
4,637
4,500

0
6,902

967
3,756

103,735
11,490
2,000
1,000
2,000

0

10,000
6,908

4,098
9,000

0
9,903
4,075

0

2,591
375

3,500
1,940
9,783

$428,786
24,428
53,519

349,475
55,1 05

1,007,429
18,379

452,016
242,177

92,539
3,497

36,904
1,560,939

104,742
2,816
3,300
2,416

66,421

Ðescription
NOVATO
a. Resideniial

r Cash for Grass
z Landscape Efficiency Rebates
e Fixtures Purchases
+ Washing Machine Rebates
s Demonstration Garden lmprovements
o Toilei Rebate SF
z Toilet Rebate MF
e Residential Audits
s High Efflciency Toilet Distribution
1o Water Waste Ordinance Monitoring
tt Swimming Pool Cover Rebate
tz ET Controller Rebate
ra Administration
14 New Development Wtr Cons Program
ls Demand Offset Rebate Program
ro Grant Administration
rz Hot Water Recirculation Rebate
le Residential Fill Station

b. Commercial
t Toilet Rebate Program
z Commercial Audits

c. Public Outreach/l nformation
r Fall Newsletter
z Spring Newsletter
3 Summer l.,lewsletter
¿ Public Outreach I HrO Fair
s Marketing
o Public Outreach/Leadership Novato

d. Large Landscape
t Large Landscape Audits
z Large Landscape Budgets
s l-arge Landscape lrrig Efficiency Rebates
¿ CIMIS Station Maintenance
s Administration-Large Landscape

TOTAL NOVATO WATER CONSERVATION

WEST MARIN WATER
a. Water Conservation Program

TOTAL WATER CONSERVATION EXPENDITURES

$5,315,864 $32,480 $76,310 $390,000

$104,061 $1 36

$313,690 55,392.174

$681 $9,000 $8,319 $104,742

COST THRU
JUNE 2019 20't9

3,902
0
0

2,316
8,525

0

FYTD
TOÏAL

FY 19t20
BUDGET

(ovER)
UNDER

AL
cosT

67,361
31,383

81,872
94,888
20,290

149,241
172,908

11,327

91,232
39,192
14,960
19,557
93,076

$4,211
363
500
272

0

3,511
0
0
0
0

4,728
1,000
1,861
1,882

1-770È29

1-770ùg

1-7700-31

1-7700-32

1-770G33

1-77ÙGU

1-7701-02 1-7701-05

't-7701-03 1-7701-04

6,1 39
118

4,729
0

98
33

1,244
26,265

0
2,092

1

60,271

N)À

67,361
29,291

77,971
94,888
20,290

142,144
161 ,983

11,327

90,824
38,567
14,460
19,496
89,859

409
150

0
15

1,118

10,000
9,000

8,000
9,000

0
17,000
15,000

0

3,000
1,000
4,000
2,000

13,000

0
838

1-8672-16

1-8672-17

1-8672-1A

1-770GO4

1-770GO5

1-7700-22

1-E65902

1-7702-01

1-770242 1-1702-04

1-865301

1-77A2-03

3,902
0
0

7,O97
0,925

0

409
625
500

60
3,217

2-516ô00

$104,061 $136 $681 $9,000 $8,319 $104.742



NORTH MARIN WATER DISTRICT
CAPITAL IMPROVEMENT PROJECTS

PERIOD ENDING SEPTEMBER 30, 2019
tlâccounbnb\tnancra¡sEhttv20\JcÞm091 9.Ísl eou¡o

COST THRU

JUNE 2019
SEPTEMBER

2019
FYTD

TOTAL
FY 19t20
BUDGET

(OVERYUNDER

BUDGET
TOTAL

COST

1-71 83-00

1-7r 50-00

Descri

a. Main/Pipeline Replacements
1 Replace Plastic thin Walled Pipe < 4-inch
2 Other Main Replacements (60+ years old)

o. Main/Pipeline Additions
1 San Mateo lnleVOutlet Pipe (2,200')

c. PB Service Line Replacements
1 Replace PB in Sync w/City Paving (30 Svcs)
2 Other PB Replacements (80 Svcs)
3 Repl PB-Lanham Village (32)
a PB Repl-MCC Estates (23)

d. Relocations to Sync w/City & County CIP
1 Other Relocations

TOTAL PIPELINE REPLACEMENTS/ADDITIONS

e. Aqueduct Replacements & Enhancements
l MSN B2-Utility Agreement Costs'
2 AEEP Post Construction Costs

0
U

31 ,844
845

$97,736 $o $90
11,533 0 472

0 0 0 70,000 70,000 0

56,760

$2,691
0

5.297

$2,691
U

6,061

$o
3,932

$1 50,000
200,000

50,000

70,000
80,000
80,000
80,000

$70,000
900,000

30,000

$0
0

$0
200,000

43,939

70,000
80,000
48,1 56
79,155

$2,6e1
0

$97,826
12,005

$0
83,217

0

195,455
12,906

0

0

90,923
21.090

1-7139-s

1-7123-Ã

1-7123-24

0
rì

73,577
0

0
0

0

845

62,821

0

0
05,421

845

1-7118-O2

1-7118-11

1-8737-v

'1-6502-n

$0
0

$0
(472)

N(¡

2 SYSTEM IMPROVEMENTS
1-7007-i3 a. Detector Check Assembly Repair/Repl 1-taryr;
1-7oeo-04 b. Anode lnstallations (1so/yr)

1-7178-oo c. Assei Management Software ProcuremenVlmplementation
1 -71 36-00 d. Facilities Security Enhancements
1-7181-00 e. Novato Fair Shopping Center-Backflow
1-71s8-00 i Advanced Meter lnformation Retrofit

ÏOTAL SYSTEM IMPROVEMENTS
3 BUILDINGS, YARD, & S.T.P. IMPROVEMENTS

'1-6501-43

1-6501-44

a. Administration Building
I Electron¡c Document Management System
2 Offic,eNard Building Renovation'?

n. Corp YardM/arehouse/Construction Office
Other Yard lmprovements

o. Stafford Treatment Plant
r Dam Concrete Repair (Apron)
2 Leveroni Creek Embankment Repair
3 Other Treatment Plant lmprovements
+ Efficiency lmprovements
5 STP Generator
6 STP-Chemical System Upgrades

TOTAL BUILDING, YARD, & STP IMPROVEMENTS

$109,269 $0 $562 $0 $472\ $109,831

$0 $3,937 $10,642 $100,000 $89,358 $10,642
0 264 264 10,000 9,736 264

74,499 7,753 16,774 163,000 146,226 91 ,272
67,986 149 149 25,000 24,851 68,135

7 ,725 306 981 0 (981) 8,707
5,696,348 19,717 23,906 0 (23,906) 5,720,254

$5,846,558 æ2,r 2

$0
79,285

$0
168

000$70

0 0 0

896.068

30,000

50,000
181,002
114,000
100,000
309,077
(2.143\

1-6600€9
'1-6600-96

1-æ00-Ã

r-660G97

t-6600-98

'1-6600-92

195,455
2,907

0
0
0

8,946

0
0

0

0

90,923
7,904

50,000
191,000
114,000
100,000
400,000

0

0

9,998
0
0

90,923
12,143

$286,593 $98,996 $1 16,996 $1,855,000 $1,738,004 $403,590



NORTH MARIN WATER DISTRICT
CAPITAL IMPROVEMENT PROJECTS

PERIOD ENDING SEPTEMBER 30,2OI9

COST THRU
JUNE 2019

$50,687

15,145
16,754

127,093
124,870

946
901
710

0

SEPTEMBER
2019 BUDGET

$1,780 $17,034 $150,000 $1 32,966

tlaccouft nb\fi nancraF\ffi tlv20IcÞm091 9_f st eouD

(ovERyuNDER TOTAL
cosr

$67,721

FYÏD
TOTAL

FY 19120

BUDGETDescr¡ption

4 STORAGE TANKS & PUMP STATIOI.¡S

Tank Construction
I Old Ranch Rd Tank Replacement

Tank Rehabilitation
1 Hydropnuematic Tank Repairs
2 Cherry Hill #2 Recoat

Lynwood Pump Station Motor Control Center
Crest P.S.(Design/Const)/Reloc School Rd P.S.
lndian Hills PS-Bypass
Rockrose PS-Bypass
Diablo PS-Bypass
Quick Connects-Generators (1 6)

TOTAL STORAGE TANKS & PUMP STATIONS

a.

b.

u7127-OO

5-605&10

1605&15

5-6058-50

1-7170-OO

1-6205-22

1-6112-24 C.

1-6i41-oo d.

1-6111-21 f.

1$11È21 g.

r-6105-20 h.

1-71U-OO i.

3,781
1 ,109

726
0
0
n

163

0
9,330
2,455

22,921
6,192
6,609

0
27.433

$12,522
4,311

0

20,571
879

0

0
42,992

252
7,270

30,000
400,000
320,000
635,000

0
0
0

0

30,000
390,670
317,545
612,079

(6,1 e2)
(6,60e)

0

Q7.433\

$20,000
100,000

0
(1 08)

fi.685)

$39,427
5,511

14,006

5 RECYCLED WATER
a. NBWRA Grant Program Administration
b. Other Recycled Water Expenditures
c. Expansion to Central Area3
o. RW Central Right of Way Costs3
e. RW Central-Norman Tank Rehab/Const

$337,1 06 $7,559

$1,314,750
0

'1 ,095,783
89,486

1,122,107

$601

$287,677 $52,079

$39,195 $573
00

47,789 841

$91,974 $1.535.000 s1,443,026 $429,080

$0
0

0
0

601

$0
0

0
108

1.685

$20,000
100,000

0
0

0

$1.794 s120.000

$550,000
75,000
50,000

300,000
200,000

35,000
20,000

0
0
0

$88,797 $1,230,000

$118,206 $3,623.920

$247,976
'13,031

1,455
41 ,054
19,621

I ,010
0

44,806
252

7,270

s1,141,203 $376,475

15,145
26,084

129,549
147,790

7,138
7 ,511

710
27.433

$1,314,751
0

1,095,783
89,594

1.123.793

$39,768
9,489

48,783

TOTAL RECYCLED WATER $3,622,126
6 WEST MARIN WATER

N)
O')

2-626}20 a. PRE Tank #4A (25K Gal w/1
2-66oe2o b, New Gallagher Well #2
2-se2soo c. PB Replace in Syncw/County Paving
2-7182-oo o. WM Brominated-TTHM Reduction
2-as12-oo e. Lagunitas Bridge Pipeline Replacement
2-s737-07 f. Olema Creek Bridge Replacement
2<.13oz3 g. Olema PS Wireless to Tank
2-712s-25 k. PB Replacement-Drakes View Dr
2-718too l. Lagunitas Creek Slope Stabilization
2-6130-24 m. Olema Pump Station Pump Replacement

TOTAL WEST MARIN WATER SYSTEM

7 OCEANA MARIN SEWER SYSTEM
ï8672-2a a. lnfiltration Repair
B-708r04 o. Tahiti Way Lift Pump 1 Assembly
ù7flroo c. OM Treatment Pond Rehab404 Grant-FEMA

TOTAL OCEANA MARIN SEWER SYSTEM

TOTAL PROJECT EXPENDITURES

14 11 056 000

J10,706,650 $201,608 $405,337 $5,888,000

8235,454 $7,956
8,720 3,457
1,455 0

20,482 7,068
18,742 229
1,010 0

00
1,814 25,847

0 252
0 7,270

$537,478
70,689
50,000

279,429
199,121
35,000
20,000

(42,ee2)
(252)

(7,270)

$573
9,489

994

$40,000
15,000
15,000

$98 040

$s,335,444 $11,109.296



Description

8 LESS FUNDED BY G & REIMBURSEMENTS

a. MSN Aqueduct Caltrans Reimb_Segment 82,
b. Officeflard Build¡ng Renovation,

FUNDING BY OTHERS (ACCRUEDYDEFERRED
Received

a. MSN Aqueduct Caltrans Reimb-Segment B2o
o. Office/Yard Building Renovation'

FUNDING BY OTHERS RECEIVED
NET PROJECT EXPENDITURES

NORTH MARIN WATER DISTRICT
CAPITAL IMPROVEMENT PROJECTS

PERIOD ENDING SEPTEMBER 30,2019

COSTTHRU SEPTEMBER
JUNE 2019 2019

($26,372)

($r 05,873)

($5s,974)
ñ

9.fsJ equp
FYTD

TOTAL
FY 19t20
BUDGET

(ovERyuNDER
BUDGET

TOTAL
cosT

$e0 ($26,462)

($10e,895)

($59,e74)
0

$0$o

022)

$0
0

$0

68)

$0
U

($so¡ $o

e74) 974)
$401 5

N)
__l

Notes to Capital lmprovement proiects Schedule:
(1) Funding provided 100%by Caltrans.
(2) Officeflard Refurbish to be funded by Bank Loan.

Novato Recycled Water Capital projects
West Marin Water Capital projects
Oceana Marin Sewer Capital projects

4$147

14

9t20
FYTD Total

CIP SUM EXPENDITURES:
Novato Capital Projects

Month

11
lmGross

1%
ao/-

16%

601
52,079

120,000
1,230,000

,000
1,794

88,797

31501

Novato Recycled Water Capital projects
West Marin Water Capital projects
Oceana Marin Sewer Capital projects

8%
1o/o

7o/o

160/o14

FYTD Total
CIP SUMMARY-NET

ovato Water
000

Current Month

11
Net

120,000
1,230,000

47,345
60r

52,079
1,794

88,797

SERVICES/STUDIESCONSULTING

Local Water Supply Enhancement Study
Novato Water Master Plan Update
2019 Cost of Service Study
Stafford Lake Water R¡ght; Update
Surplus Property
CVRA-Trans From At-Large Elections
Potter Valley Project FERC Relicensing
Stafford Dam EAP & Inundation Mapping Updates
Urban Water Management PIan
STP Efficiency Improvements

U

765
2,570

0
948

21
777

0
660

n

0
3,256
6,140

0
3,648
6,243
5,229

2s,000

50,000
50,000

U

15,000
10,000
10,000
20,000

0

25,000
(3,256)

43,860
50,000
(3,648)
8,757
4,771

10,000
19,120

0
1 80,1 53

16,1 1 0
U

3,848
63,141
5,229

$6,1 16

0
0
0
1

0

$339,

a.

80

880
0

880
446
023159,923$35,077 195,000

rveySa

¡

176,896
9,970

0
200

56,898

761
0

i-4057-oo b.

1-7039-02 c.

14osù2o d.

1-4059-00 e.

1-407È00 g.

14077-oo n.

1-7140-01 i.

14050-01 j.

1-4060-00 k.



North Marin Water District
Financial Statement Notes

North Marin Water District Financial Statement Notes
Notel -RestrictedCash

Connection Fee Fund: Cash available from collection of Connection Fees. The fee is charged to
developers based upon the estimate of cost necessary to construct capacity to serve the new
development. These funds are restricted by law for expansion of the water or sewer facilities within the
service area where the development occurs. Funds are disbursed from the Connection Fee Reserve as
expenditures are incurred to increase system capacity to serve new development. The fund balance
accrues interest monthly.

Wohler Pipeline Financing Fund: ln December 2OO2 the Sonoma County Water Agency sold $6.g
million (par) of 3O-year revenue bonds to finance the Wohler to Forestville Pipeline. lrtMWO's áhare of the
debt is $844,050 ($6,800,000 X 11.2 / 90.4). ln January 2003 the District established this designated cash
and corresponding reserve account and transferred $844,050 of FRC money into the fund. The Wohler
Pipeline Financing Fund is credited with interest monthly. The restricted casñ Wohler pipeline Financing
Fund account and the related reserve account have been closed as of 10/31/18.

Collector #6 Financing Fund: The Sonoma County Water Agency received a $1S.8 million State
Revolving Fund loan commitment at an interest rate of 2.Bo/o rcpalable over 20 years for construction of
Collector #6. NMWD's share of Collector #6 is $1 ,950,000 ($15,800,000 X I 1 .Z i OO.+¡. tn January 2003
the District established this designated cash and corresponding reserve account and transferred
$1,950,000 of FRC money into the fund. The Collector #6 Finañcing Fund is credited with interest
monthly. The restricted cash Collector #6 Financing Fund account and the related reserve account have
been closed as of 10/31/18.

Bank of Marin Project Fund: The District received an $8 million loan from the Bank of Marin in October
2011 to fund the Aqueduct Energy Efficiency Project. The 20-year,3.54% annual percentage rate loan
requires monthly payments of $46,067 and will be fully amortized on 1012712031. ln June ZO|Ztne Board
authorized reallocating $1 million of this loan to West Marin Water to repay Novato Water $223,000 owed
for previous loans to fund Long Range lmprovement Projects and the remainder to fund the Solids
Handling Facility at the Point Reyes Water Treatment Plant. The unexpended fund balance accrues
interest monthly.

Deer lsland RWF Replacement Fund: The State Revolving Fund (SRF) loan agreement required the
District to agree to establish and maintain a Water Recycling Capital Reserve Fund (WRCRF) for the
expansion, major repair, or replacement of the Deer lsland Recycled Water Treatment plant. The
WRCRF is maintained in compliance with the "Policy for lmplementing the State Revolving fund for
Construction of Wastewater Treatment Facilities" in effect at the time the agreement was sigñed by the
District. The September 2003 Recycled Water Master Plan prepared by Nute Engineering reðommended
limiting the reserve to fund replacement of the RWF electrical and mechanicãl equipment (including
transmission pumps) as they wear out. The cost of said equipment was $1,483,000 which, at Nute,é
recommended 6% interest rate factorand 2S-year life, renders an annualfunding requirement$115,000.
The fund balance accrues interest monthly.

Recycled Water Capital Replacement and Expansion Fund: The 2011 lnteragency Agreements for
Recycled Water between NSD, LGVSD & NMWD require that any payments to thè oiitr¡outor (NMWD)
by the End User (Consumers) in excess of actual costs (marginal payments) shall be depositeà in thié
fund. Operation and Maintenance Costs are defined as the actual cost of: labor (including general and
administrative overhead plus tools and supplies normally applied), equipment anO veñ¡c'ie charges,
consumables (such as chemicals and electrical power), and spare parts and/or replaced componãnts
necessary to reliably treat and deliver recycled water to the End Users. Operation and Maintenance
costs do not include costs for major capital replacement or process changes.

Tax Receipts held in Marin County Treasury: Balance of tax proieeds collected and disbursed by the
County of Marin for repayment of the Olema (OL-2) general obligation bond debt. The County creC¡tt
interest to these funds quarterly.
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North Marin Water District
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STP SRF Reserve Fund - Marin County Treasury: The 2004 Stafford Treatment plant State Revolving
Fund (SRF) loan agreement requires the District to build a Reserve Fund equal to one year of paymenté
($1,044,474) in the Marin Gounty Treasury during the first ten years of the 2}-year repayment period.
Every January I and July 1, commencing January 1,2010, the District deposits with the iounty 1Oo/o of
the semi-annual SRF payment. This Reserve Fund was fully funded at 6l30l1g.The County credits the
fund with interest quarterly, and will use the Reserve to pay the last 2 semi-annual SRF loan þayments.
RWS North/South SRF Reserve Fund: The State Water Resource Control Board Agreements for the
seven Clean Water State Revolving Fund Loans made for expansion of the Recycled Water System
distribution system require that the District establish a reserve fund equal to one year's debt service
($614,299) prior to the construction completion date.

RWS Gentral SRF Reserve Fund: The State Water Resource Control Board Agreement for the Clean
Water State Revolving Fund Loan made for expansion of the Recycled Water System distribution system
requires that the District establish a reserve fund equalto one year's debt service ($275,773) priorto the
construction completion date.

Note2-DesiqnatedGash

Liability Gontingency Fund: Established in 1986 when the District first elected to self-insure its general
liability risk. This reserve was funded with $1 million initially and $200,000 annually thereafter until it
reached a balance of $2 million. ln FYSB the West Marin Water System was included in the fund and
built-up a proportional reserve of $74,000 over several years. Commencing FYg3, $1 million of the
reserve was made available to fund loans to eligible employees under the District's Employer Assisted
Housing Program. ln August 2008, $500,000 was transferred into this reserve from the Self-lnsured
Workers' Compensation Fund and made available to fund Employer Assisted Housing program loans.
Currently there is $675,000 in Employer Assisted Housing Loans outstanding (see Ñote 3¡. ln Marcn
2005, $652,400 was expended from the fund to purchase a home at 25 Giacomini Road in point Reyes
Station. The home is currently rented. ln 2006, $S,885 was added from the sale of surplus property in
West Marin. The fund balance does not accrue interest.

Self-lnsured Workers'Compensation Fund: Commencing July 2011, the District began self-insuring its
workers' compensation liability. The savings accrued through self-insuring the liability is reserved ¡n tnis
fund for possible future clajms expense. The District carries a workers' Compensatión excess policy for
claims that exceed $1,000,000.

Retiree Medical Benefits Fund: NMWD pays the cost of health insurance for retirees between the ages
of 55 and 65 and spouse under any group plan offered by CaIPERS. The retiree must be at least 55 ãnd
have a minimum of 12 years (for employees hired on or before September 30, 201S) and a minimum of
20 years (for employees hired after September 30, 2018) of NMWD service at the date of retirement.
NMWD's contribution toward the chosen plan is capped in the same manner as all other NMWD
employees in the same class. Coverage terminates for the spouse when the spouse becomes eligible for
Medicare, or for both the retiree and spouse when the retiree becomes eligible for Medicare. When the
retiree or spouse becomes eligible for Medicare, NMWD pays up to the couple annuitant rate, which is
capped at $3,830 per year ($319/month). ln August 2003, NMWD transferred $2.5S miilion ($2.3 miilion
for current retirees plus $250,000 for future retirees) from unrestricted cash into a reserve to fund this
obligation. ln 2010 the Board directed staff to add $1,500 per employee annually as a payroll overhead to
accrue and accelerate amortization of this liability. The accrual is maintained as a Loñg-Term Liability
entitled Retiree Health Benefits Payable. The total OPEB Liability has a batance of $4.1M. ln 2017 an
Actuarial Analysis calculated NMWD's total actuarial liability at $S.6 million. The Retiree Medical Benefits
cash fund earns interest monthly. Accounting Standards require that the $s.6M reserve by fully funded in
20 years.

Drought Gontingency (Rate Stabilization) Fund: ln August 2008, the Board directed staff to establish
this reserve with $135,000 from the Self-lnsured Workers' Compensation Fund for the Novato district to
draw upon during dry years. A threshold of 3.2 billion gallons of potable consumption was established as
a benchmark for 'normal' years. During any fiscal year that water sales volume exceeds 3.28G, the
incremental revenue generated is deposited into the Drought Contingency Reserve, ln those years when
sales volume falls below the benchmark, funds are withdrawn from the reserve to maintain the budgeted
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revenue forecast. The goal is to build a reserve equal to 20% (currenfly $2,500,000) of budgeted annual
water commodity sales, ln FY09 $50,335 was added to the reserve. The fund was fully depleted in Fy10.
The fund balance accrues interest monthly.

Maintenance Accrual Fund: Established in FYgl to provide a source of maintenance money for
replacement of treatment, storage, transmission and distribution facilities as they wear out. The annual
contribution from operating reserves was initially $2O0,OOO. Net polybutylene claìm setflement proceeds
of $671 ,060 were closed into the fund in FYg3. ln FY94 the annual contri-bution was reduced to $100,000.
The District's goal is to build a reserve equal to 10% of the net book value of Novato's existing plant,
currently $7.0M. Funds are borrowed from the Maintenance Accrual Fund to offset the sho-rtiall in
unrestricted cash & lnvestments. The fund balance does not accrue interest.

Operating Reserve Fund: This reserve, comprised of four months of budgeted operating expenditures
(less depreciation) as recommended by the District's financial advisors, serves to enðure'adequate
working. capital for operating, capital, and unanticipated cash flow needs that arise during the year. The
fund balance does not accrue interest.

Note3-EmploveeLoans

Housing Loans: The District's Employer Assisted Housing Program allows up to $300,000 to be loaned
to an employee for a period of up to 15 years for the purchase of a home within the District service
territory that will enable the employee to respond rapidly to emergencies affecting the operation of the
District. Repayment is due upon sale, termination of employmen[, or other even-i as described in the
Program. lnterest on the loan is contingent upon and directly proportional to the appreciation in value
occurring on the purghgsed property. There are three employee-housing loans cuirenfly outstanding
totaling $675,000: a $150,000 loan dated November 2007, a $250,000 loãn dated March 2015, and ã
$275,000 loan dated June 2018.

Note 4 - Other Lonq Term Receivables

The District entered into a temporary water service agreement with Black Point Golf Links in 1gg9 to
provide potable water for StoneTree Golf Course until recycled water was available. ln 2006 the District
received a $4,3 million 2}-year 2.4% SRF loan to finance the Deer lsland Recycled Water project, and
Black Point Partners agreed to pay the District $3,612,640 in bimonthty payments of $41 ,iøz'at z.qolo
coinciding with StoneTree's water service payments. The final payment from StoneTree is due in
February 2024.

ln 2015 the District entered into an agreement with Marin Country Club for their share of the pipeline
extension to provide recycled water for the Marin Country Club Golf Course. ln 2016 the District received
? $6 6 million 3O-year 1.0% SRF loan to finance the Reðycled Water Central project, and Marin Country
Club agreed to pay the District $1,265,295 in bimonthly payments of $g,142 at-1.0o/o over 30 yearc fó
their share of the pipeline extension. Marin country club also agreed to pay $430,46a of the District's
local share of the project in bimonthly payments of $8,242 over i0 years at 2.8%, which is the Novato
Potable Fund's weighted average cost of debt. The payments will coincide with Marin Country Club's
water service payments. Marin Country Club paid the 10 year loan in full in December zO1a. the f¡nal
payment from Marin country club for the 30 year loan is due in November 2047.

30



North Marin Water District
Financial Statement Notes

Note 5 - Depreciation

Assets are assigned a useful life based on consultations with the District Chief Engineer and a survey of
other water agencies. Depreciation in computed on a straight-line basis over the éstimated useful life of
the various classes of property as follows:

Facilitv
Aqueduct.......
Dam......
Buildings & Structures...
Mains...
Pumping Equipment...
Water Treatment Equipment..
Storage & Transmission (16"+) Facilities... . ..

Distribution Facilities (includes Pump Stations).. . ............
Office, Laboratory, Construction & Shop Tools & Equipment.
Vehicles 1 ton or greater..........
All other vehicles.........
Sewer Mains...
Sewer Pumps.

LifejYearsl
150
100

40
50
25
20

50
50
10

10

5

40
10

Note 6 - Gan lization Policv
The Government Finance Officers Association Guide for State and Locat Governmenfs recommends that
a capitalization policy incorporate a minimum threshold of $S,000 and an estimated useful life of at least
two years. lt also ca1t1o¡9 that federal grant and loan requirements prevent the use of capitalization
thresholds in excess of $5,000. Thus NMWD's capitalization threshold is gs,000.

Note 7 - Bond & Loan servicinq schedule for Fiscal year 201g-2020

FY2O

Service Area Descrlptlon
lssue
Date Rato

Orlglnal
Amount

Payment
Due

lnterest
Expense

Prlnclpal
PaId

6/30/20
Outstandlng

Balance
Flnal
Pmt

1 Novato

2 Novato

3 Novato

3 RWTP

4 RW North

5 RWSouth

6 RW Central

7 WM Water

SRF Loan
STP

Bank
Loan

Marin

Chase Bank
Loan

$16,528,850

$7,000,000

$4,600,000

7t1 & 1t1

2Tthtmo

3/1 & 9/1 3t1t33

Novato Total

6120 6t19t27

Varies Varies

Varies Varies

12t19 12t3'U47

Recycled Water Total

2004

2011

2018

2.39o/o

3.54o/o

2.690/o

7t1t29

10t27t31

$21 5,953

$160,674

8117.284

$828,522

$321,368

$8,413,056

$4,523,948

$4,100.000

$493,91 1 $l ,409,890 $17,032,004

SRF Loan

SRF Loans (4)

SRF Loans (3)

SRF Loan

Bank
Loan

Marin
2012 3.54Yo

$4,302,560

$4,375,605

$5,361 ,952

$7,1 30,503

2006

2013

201 3

2016

2.4o/o

2.60/o

2.2%

1.Oo/o

$47,243

$82,086

$88,890

s69.125

$226,124

$199,807

$243,51 7

$206,648

$1,742,339

fis,157,142

$4,040,446

$1,000,000 2Tthtmo 1Ot27lg1

West Marin Water Total

705,816

$287,344 $876,096 $15,214,031

$23,585 $47 ,173 $663,761

$23,585 $47,173 $663,761

FY20 Total $804,840 159 $32,914,796

in April 2004 the California State Department of Water Resources approved a 2.gg% 2o-year loan for
reconstruction of the Stafford Water Treatment Plant. The project was completed in FYg'g with repair
of the Outlet Tower Sluice Gate. lnterest paid during construction totaled $1,636,32g. The loan
covenants require an annual reserve fund contribution of $104,447 (10o/o of the annual debt service
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obligation) be deposited into the Marin County Treasury during each of the first ten years of the
repayment period. Debt service is funded 25o/o by Facility Reserve Charges. The first pãyment was
made in December 2009.

2' ln October 2011 Bank of Marin made a 2}-year 3.54o/o (APR) loan of $8 million to fund the District's
share of the Aqueduct Energy Etficiency Project. See Note 15 below, and note to loan g above.

3. ln March 2018 Chase Bank made a 15-year 2.69% (APR) loan of $4.6 million to fund the District's
Automated Meter lnformation system project.

4. ln August 2006 the California State Department of Water Resources approved a2.4%Z}-year loan of
$4,264,545 for construction of the Deer lsland Recycled Water Facility. With the addition of $3g,01s
in Construction Period lnterest, the loan principal totaled $4,302,560. The project was completed in
June 2007, and the first payment was made June I g, 200g.

5. ln July 2011 the California State Department of Water Resources approved a series of four 2.60/0 ZO-
year loans which totaled $4,375,605 for the Recycled Water North Service Area Expansion project.
The projects were completed on October 31, 2012, and the first payment was made'in Novembér of
2012.

6' ln March 2012 the California State Department of Water Resources approved a series of three 2.Zo/o
20-year loans totaling $5,361,952 for the Recycled Water South Service Area Expansion project. The
þrojects were completed on September 4, 2.013, and the first payment was mäde in December of
2013.

7. ln May 2016 the California State Department of Water Resources approved a 1.0o/o 3g-year loan of
$7,130,503 for the Recycled Water Central Service Area Expansion. 

'ihe 
pro¡ect will be iompleted in

December 2017, and the first payment will be made December 31, 2018.

8. The Paradise Ranch Estates private water system was created by David Adams and Sons in 19S2 to
provide water to 85 homes in the PRE subdivision located nortñ of lnverness Park. problems with
water quality and quantity developed and in 1969 the Marin County Health Department issued a boil-
water order to all customers of the company.ln 1972 the County declared a moratorium on issuance
of building permits...A suit by property owners resulted in an agreement reached in Marin Superior
Court in late 1978 directing Adams to finance a District feasibilityltudy for the takeover of the sy'ste..
This culminated in 

-formation 
of lmprovement District PRE-1 and an election authorizing isäue of

$240,000 of 5o/o 4O-year revenue bonds, which, in conjunction with a $720,000 Farmérs Home
Administration grant, financed system rehabilitation. Service was provided from the point Reyes
System by installation of an additional well, expansion of the treatment plant, and a 6-inch pipeúne
connection at the lnverness Park pump station extending 1.6 miles along öir Francis Drake Bouievard
to the newly reconstructed Paradise Ranch Estates distribution sys-tem. on 4l22tBO the usDA
purchased the revenue bond issue in its entirety.

9. ln 1981 work commenced on rehabilitating the Point Reyes lnverness Parkwater system. 18,865 feet
of pipeline was either replaced or installed, a 300,000-gallon tank was added ¡n pô¡nt Reyes Station
9!q a 100,000-gallon tank was added in lnverness Þark. Total cost of these improvements was
$820,01 5. A72o/o grant combined with a $217,800 5% A}-year revenue bond acquirè¿ atze'¡¡ by the
Farmers Home Administration financed the project.

10. ln June 2012 the Board authorized reallocating $1 million of the Bank of Marin loan to West Marin
Water to repay Novato Water $223,000 owed for loans to fund Long Range lmprovement projects
and the remainder to fund the Solids Handling Facility at the Point Reyei Water Treatment plant.
See note to loan 2 above.

Note I - Unemplovment Insurance Reserve

NMWD uses the "Reimbursable Method" of paying for Unemployment Costs. Under this method, the
District reimburses the State Employment Development Depariment for all unemployment benefits paid
on our behalf. The reserve is maintained at an amount equal to the higher of the'average claim amòunt
paid over the last 5 years or 52 times the maximum weekly benefit amount (curreniy $4S0 x b2 =
$23,400).

J¿
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Note ll - Budo Auqmentations

Note 9 - Pavroll Benefits

Payroll Benefits payable includes payroll taxes; vacation, sick, and holiday leave; Section 125 payments;
cancer, long term care and disability insurance premiums; union dues; and employee benefit fund.-

Note l0 - lnterest Policv on Inter-District Loans

ln the event an improvement district expends all of its Undesignated Funds, it shall borrow funds from that
improvement district's Board Designated Fund reserves to meet ongoing requirements. ln the event an
improvement district expends all of its Board Designated Fund reserves, it may receive a loan from the
Novato lmprovement District in an amount sufficient to meet its ongoing requirements. Restricted Funds
shall not be used to finance ongoing normal operating expenses.

No iìlterest shall be paid by an improvement district on funds borrowed from that improvement district,s
Board Designated Fund reserves. lnterest on loans from the Novato lmprovement District shall be paid by
the recipient district to the Novato district based upon the outstanding loan balance at the close of the
previous accounting period. lnterest shall be calculated at the higher ofl t. The weighted average interest
rate of Novato improvement district debt (2.78o/o at 6/30/18); or ã.The average inteËst rate earñed on the
District treasury since the close of the previous accounting period; plus $50 per month.

Note 12 - Prior Period Adiustment

Note 13 - Explanation of Financial Statement Gomponents

The District's financial statement is comprised of four components: 1) Statement of Net position, 2)
Sources and Uses of Funds Statement * All Service Areas Combined, 3) lncome Statement and Cash
Flow by Service Area, and 4) Notes to the Financial Statements. This report also contains other
supplementary information in addition to the basic financial statements themselves.

The Statement of Net Position (page 4) reports the District's assets and liabilities and provides
information about the nature and amount of investments in resources (assets) and the obligations to the
District's creditors (liabilities). The difference between assets and liabilities is reported a5|nef position.
Over time, increases or decreases in the fund balance may serve as a useful indicator of whether the
financial position of the District is improving or deteriorating.

The Sources and Uses of Funds Statement - All Service Areas Combined (page B) compares fiscal
year-to-date performance against the Board approved annual budget - presented iñ tne aOopted budget
forniat' This Sources and Uses of Funds Statement varies from the income statement in that it includes
capital expenditures, debt principal repayment, connection fee revenue, and cash infusions from debt
issuance.

The lncome Statement and Cash Flow by Service Area (page g) presents the net income (loss) for the
fiscal year-to-date (FYTD) period for each of the District's foui service areas. The income and expenses
on this report are presented in conformity with Generally Accepted Accounting principles 1GM'p¡ anO
comply with Governm.ental Accounting Siandards Board pronouncements. Accordingly, all income and
expenses are reported as soon as the underlying event giving rise to the change occurs, regardless of the
timing of related cash flows. This statement measures the success of each service area's õperations and
can be used to determine whether the service area has successfully recovered all costs through user fees
and other charges.

Also included at the bottom of page g is a statement of Cash Flow by Service Area. The primary purpose
of this statement is to reconcile in an informative manner the ditference between the net incomellioså¡ tor
period of each service area with the resultant change in cash balance that occurred over the samè peúoO.

Notes to the Financial Statements (page 31) provide a summary of significant accounting policies and
assumptions and other information of value to the financial statement reader.

Other Supplementary lnformation includes Detail lncome Statements presented in accordance with
GAAP for each of the four service areas (pages 10, 14, 16, 19). These statements present income and
expenditures in close detail for further analysis. Other supplementary schedules 

'of 
note include the
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Vehicle Fleet Analysis (page 25), Equipment Expenditures (page 22) and Capital lmprovement Project
Expenditures (page 27), which show outlays to date, compared with budget authority.

Note 14 -Gonnection Fee Transfers from Novato water To Recvcled water
The following Connection Fee (FRC) reserve amounts have been transferred to the Recycled Water fund

Expans¡on Local Share SRFRWF E¡(pans¡on Transfer
North South Central NBWRA

t\
Loan SRFLoan CIP Total Exocuted

FYOT

FYOS

FYO9

FYl O

FY1 1

FY12

FY1 3

FY14

FY1 5

FY16

FY17

FY1 8

FYl 9

FY2O

$133,659'

$2g3,478'

$236,291

$o

$zos,soot

$7Zs,5ZSt

$'12,S63'

$o

829.725

$50,478

$150,455

$75,1 98

$ 133,31 It
$r r s,e8e'
$315,023

$63,03s

$se,283'
8102,842

$ 194,6a6t

$38,908

$6,966

$0

922,795

$22,795

fi22,755

$22,795

$22,795

$22,795

$22,795

$22,795

822,795

s22,795

$22,795

$22,795

$0

s29,72s

' î7g,zls
$173,2s0

$231,652

$l56,114
$637,656

$464,s72t $802,390

$soo,szgt $1,sso,2oo
$01¿,299" $6g0,916

$614,2g9' $806,664

$614,299t $30,6g7t $1,230,940

$Gl4,zggt $s,747,s13

$8e0,072 (s1,248,e22)

$216,362 $1,084 $218,1s5

$133,65e

$1,970,400

$1,550,200

$688,916

$806,664

$1,230,940

$5,747,513

($1,248,e22)

$21 155

$133,659

$1,175,0gat

{sz,oaef
$ao2,ggo'

$1,s50,200

$688,916

$806,664

$1,230,940

$5,747,513
(91,248,922)

$21 8,1 55

7

$4,OZ4t

tS+,oz+f
$66,72g'

$g62,52¿t

$5,071 ,5'1Zt

{$2, r oa,zssf

$709

$603,428 $l,006,589 $3,332,7r9 $1,314,75r $273,539 $4,s28,730 $37,771 1,097,527 $r'l,097,527 $lI,097,527

Note l5 -Debt Service Goveraqe Ratio

Debt Service Coverage Ratio is the ratio of net income/(loss) plus interest expense, depreciation, and
connection fee revenue for the fiscal year to the sum of the fiscal year's principal and interest payments
on the District's total debt.

FYî6 FY17 FYIS FYI9 FY2O

Net lncome/(Loss)

Depreciation

lnterest Expense

Connection Fees

Total Available For Debt Service

8.690 S 1.034.585

$91,719

$3,286,353

$807,035

$597,600

$3,416,507

$757,935

$1,860,520

$3,434,069

$833,1 e7

$1.455.400

$1,15e,000

$3,528,000

$850,000

$1,830,000

$3,486,000

$806,000

$340,000$27 $733. 000

$4,463,797 $5,806,627 $7,583,186 $6,270,000 $6,462,000

Annual Debt Service $2,528,938 ç2,527,021 $2,201,451 $3,129,000 $3,139,000

Debt Service Coverage Ratio 1.77 2.30 3.45 2.01 2.06

34





Item #6

To:

From

Subj

MEMORANDUM

Board of Directors

Drew Mclntyre, General Manager

Julie Blue, Auditor/Controller J&
Operator-in-Charge Side Letter with Employee Association
t:\ac\board reports\board memos\2o'l g\oic sido letter board memo 1 1 01 1 I docx

November 1,2019

RECOMMENDED AGTION: APPROVE OPERATOR-IN-CHARGE EXTRA DUTY INCENTIVE

PAY SIDE LETTER WITH EMPLOYEE ASSOCIATION

FINANCIAL IMPACT: $500/Month + PayrollTaxes $38/Month = Total $538/Month

($6,000/Year + Payroll taxes $459/Year = Total $6,459/Year)

Oceana Marin Wastewater System Operator-in-Charge Extra Duty lncentive Pay

ln order to comply with the state of California, the District's Oceana Marin Sewer System

must have an Operator-in-Charge (OlC) on record with the State Water Resource Control

Board. This position is responsible for operating the equipment that is used to clean and

improve the quality of wastewater. District Staff and the Employee Association (EA) have

reached a tentative agreement with respect to the manner of selection, and the amount of extra

duty incentive pay, for the individual selected to perform the additional OIC duties, subject to the

Board's approval.

The General Manager would be vested with the authority to select one individual to

per-form the additional duties as the OIC for Oceana Marin, and in exchange, the selected

individual would receive an additional extra duty incentive pay of $500 per month. Such

additional incentive pay is not subject to pension (in other words, "not PERSable").

The selected individual must possess the requisiie licensure requirements, and only one

individual would be appointed to perform such additional duties at any given time. The need for

OIC duties and the individual to be selected would be within the General Manager's purview,

and the General Manager's decision would not be subject to the grievance procedure.

Attached is a side letter agreement which further outlines the requirements and process

for the OIC selection for the Board's review. This side letter has been signed by the Employee

Association's (EA) elected chairperson. The cost of this expense is minimal and will be

absorbed by the current fiscal year favorable variance in the Oceana Marin budget and will be

incorporated into the annual budget going fon¡rard.



JB Memo OIC Employee Association Side Letter
November 1,2019
Page 2 of 2

RECOMMENDATION:

Board to authorize the General Manager to sign the Side Letter with the Employee

Association related to the Operator-in-Charge Extra Duty lncentive Pay.



2018 - 2023 MOU

NMWt)
Employee

Association NORÏI{ ffiAR¡h¡

WAT'ER ÞI$TRICT

Side
Letter

Agreement

STDE LETTER AGREEMENT TO THE
201.8 - 2023 NMWD/EMPLOYEE ASSOCIATION

MEMORANDUM OF UNDERSTANDING
CONCERNING OCEANA MARIN WASTEWATER SYSTEM
OPERATOR-IN-CHARGE EXTRA DUTY INCENTIVE PAY

The North Marin Water District ("I)istrict") and the North Marin Water District
Employee Association ("Employee Association") enter into this Side Letter Agreement
and hereby agree to the following:

TITLE: OCEANA MARIN WASTEWATER SYSTEM OPERATOR-IN.CHARGE
EXTRA DUTY INCENTIVE PAY

At the sole discretion of the General Manager, extra duty incentive pay may be offered
to one designated Stafford Treatment Plant operator, in addition to their regular duties,
as compensation for performing extra duties as the Operator-in-Charge ("OIC") of the
Oceana Marin Wastewater system ("Oceana Marin"). No more than one OIC
designation and/or extra duty incentive pay will be in effect from time to time for
Oceana Marin, and the need for OIC designation will be determined by the General
Manager.

To be eligible, the designated OIC must have, at minimum, a valid California
Wastewater Treatment Plant Operator Grade I certification (consistent with the
requirements under chapter 26 of. division 3 of title 23 of the California Code of
Regulations or any current applicable regulations) that is not required for their current
classification. The designated OIC will be eligible for an extra duty incentive pay of
$500 per month while performing such OIC extra duties in this capacity, and the extra
duty incentive pay shall not be PERSable (i,e. counted towards base salary or final
compensation for CaIPERS retirement calculation). The General Manager has the
autlrority to remove the extra duty incentive pay designation and/or eligibility at any



2018 - 2023 MOU

time. The District's determination of the application of this provision (including its

decision whether or not to designate an OIC or the designation of individuals to

perform the OIC duties) shall not be subject to the grievance procedure of this MOU.

Unless otherwise stated, the provisions of this Side Letter Agreement supersede any

inconsistent or conflicting provisions of the parties' Memorandum of Understanding,

effective October L, 2078 - September 30, 2023 ("MOU"). All other provisions of the

parties' MOU shall otherwise remain in full force and effect. This Side Letter

Agreement shall only become binding and effective upon the District's Board of

Directors' adoption of this Side Letter Agreement.

The side letter will sunset upon the expiration of the 2018 -2023 MOU

The parties' signatures below signify that they have met and conferred in good faith in

accordance with California Government Code Section 3500, et seq, Agreed to and

signed below, by the parties' authorized representatives'

For the District For the Employee Association

q-z,- tE

NMWT)
Employee

Association

Side
Letter

Agreement
NORTþ{ MARIhü

WATËR DISTR¡CT

Corda
Chairperson

Drew Mclntyre
General Manager

Date Date

a





Item #7

MEMORANDUM

To:

From

November 1,2019

Julie Blue, Auditor/Controller

Subj: Floating Holiday Employee Association Side Letter
t:\ac\board reports\board memos\2o1g\fh side letter board memo 1 1.01.1 Ldocx

RECOMMENDED ACTION: APPROVE FLOATING HOLIDAY
EMPLOYEE ASSOCIATION

FINANCIAL IMPACT: None

SIDE LETTER WITH

Ghanges to Floating Holiday

Under the current MOU, floating holidays are accrued as follows: January 1 of each year

- one day; July 1 of each year - 3 days, with a maximum accrual of four days (or 32 hours) for

fulltime employees. However, based on staff's assessment of the operational impacts this has

caused to the Maintenance and Operations groups, the District would be better served to divide

the distribution of the four floating holidays to one day per quarter, and to allow for one additional

day of accrual, so that employees are not incentivized to combine floating holidays with other

major holidays towards the latter part of the calendar year, which may cause departments to be

short-staffed during those times.

Accordingly, the District and the EA have agreed to modify the existing process to, instead,

allow employees to earn one day of floating holiday per quarter, so that it is evenly distributed

throughout the year, and to allow full-time employees to accrue up to 40 hours of floating holiday

leave. lmportantly, the District retains the discretion to determine whether employees may take

floating holidays, based on operational needs. This is a fair compromise that takes into account

the employee's ability to accrue fortime off not yet taken, and provides management with flexibility

in delaying floating holiday time otf requests during critical operational times. Part-time employees

would continue to accrue such time off on a pro-rata basis.

Further, for employees who start after the first day of each quarter, the attached side letter

also specifies that they would not earn floating holiday until the first day of the following quarter.

Attached is a side letter which further outlines the Floating Holiday policy for the Board's

review. This side letter has been signed by the Employee Association's (EA) elected Chairperson.

Also, attached is the related Employee Handbook revisions as referenced in the side letter.

Board of Directors

Drew Mclntyre, General Ma



JB Memo Floating Holiday Employee Association Side Letter

November 1,2019
Page 2 oÍ 2

REGOMMENDATION:

Board to authorize the General Manager to sign the Side Letter with the Employee

Association related to the Floating Holiday Benefit and to approve the update to the Employee

Handbook.



2018 - 2023 MOU

NORTH ffiARÍN
UIATER ÐI$TRIET

Side
Letter

SIDE LETTER AGREEMENT TO TFIE

201"8 _ 2023 NMWD/EMPLOYEE ASSOCIATION
MEMORANDUM OF UNDERSTANDING
CONCERNING FLOATING HOTIDAYS

The North Marin Watel District ("District") and the North Marin Water District

Employee Association ("Employee Association") enter into this Side Letter Agreement

and hereby agree to the following:

TITLE: MODIFICATION TO MOU AND EMPLO HANDBOOK

NM\ryD
Employee

Association

CONCERNING FLOATING HOLIDAYS

With regards to floating holiday accruals, Section 20 of the current (2018 * 2023) MOU

shall be amended as follows

Floating Holidays (4)

The District does not observe the below-listed holidays. lnstead, employees accrue up to

four floating holidays per year that may be taken on dates selected by the employee and

approved by the District, subject to the accrual maximum and limitations set fotth below.

Lincoln's Birthday
Admission Day
Columbus Day
Veteran's Day

February 12
September 9
2nd Monday in October
November 11

Effective January 1,2020, for full-time employees, one floating holiday shall accrue on

the first day of each quarter as follows: January 1, April 1, July 1, and October 1. Part-
time employees accrue floating holiday time on a pro-rata basis, based on the
percentage of their full-time equivalent rate. ln no case can an employee take a floating
holiday that has not yet been earned. Should an employee begin employment after the
first day of a quarter, the employee shall not earn a floating holiday until the start of the
following quarter, as there is no pro-ration of floating holiday for new employees (i.e. if
employee begins work on April 5, employee will not earn a floating holiday until July 1).

Employees must have prior approval from the District before taking a floating holiday.

Employees shall cease to accrue floating holiday leave if their accrued unused balance
has reached five days (40 hours - prorated for part{ime employees).



2018 * 2023 MOU

I\MWI)
Employee

Association

Side
Letterh¡ORTFI MARIN

WATER DIST'RICT

Unless otherwise stated, the provisions of this Side Letter Agreernent supersede any

inconsistent or conflicting provisions of the parties' Memorandum of Understanding,

effective October 1., 2018 - September 30, 2023 ("MOU"). All other provisions of the

parties' MOU shall otherwise remain in fuil force and effect. This Side Letter

Agreement shall only become binding and effective upon the District's Board of

Directors' adoption of this Side Letter Agreement,

The parties further agree that this Side Letter Agreement shall be incorporated into the

su.ccessor MOU as a new provision without further meet-and-confer efforts, and it is the

parties' intention that the terms of this Side Letter Agreement shall remain in force

beyond the expiration of the 2018 -2023 MOU.

In addition, the parties agree to the amend the current Employee Handbook with
respect to the issue of floating holiday, as reflected in Exhibit A, which is herein

incorporated to this Side Letter Agreement by reference,

The parties' signatures below signify that they have met and conferred in good faith in

accordance with California Government Code Section 3500, et seq. Agreed to and

signed below, by the parties' authorized representatives.

For the District For the Employee Association

lo-zÇ- t1
Drew Mclntyre
General Manager

Date J Date

Chairperson

2



NMWD EMPLOYEE BOOK REVISIONS

Floating Holidays (4)

The District does not observe the below-listed holidays. Instead, regular

employees accrue up to four floating holidays per year that may be taken on dates

selected by the employee and approved by the Districf subject to the accrual maximum
and limitations set forth below.

Lincoln's Birthday F eb. 72 Admission Day Sept. 9

Columbus Day 2nd Monday in Oct. Veteran's Day Nov. 11

Effective January 7, 2020, for regular full-time employees, one floating holiday

shall accrue on the first day of each quarter as follows: January 1, April 1, July 1, and

October L. Regular part-time employees accrue floating holiday time on a pro-rata basis,

based on the percentage of their full-time equivalent rate. Temporary employees are not

eligible to accrue floating holiday leave. In no case can an employee take a floating
holiday that has not yet been earned/accrued.

Should an employee begin employment after the first day of a quarter, the

employee shall not earn a floating holiday until the start of the following quarter, as there

is no pro-ration of floating holiday for new employees (i.e. if employee begins work on

April S, employee will not earn a floating holiday until july 1). Newly hired regular part-

time employees shall accrue floating holiday leave on a pro-rata basis, based on the

percentage of their full-time equivalent rate, based upon this same schedule.

Employees must have prior approval from the District before taking a fioating

holiday. Employees shall cease to accrue floating holiday leave if their accrued unused

balance has reached five days (40 hours) for regular full-time employees and a prorated

amount for regular part-time employees). Once an employee uses accrued floating

holiday leave to bring the accrued amount below the cap, the employee will resume

accruing floating holiday leave up to the cap.

Floating holiday time will be used to cover sick time off when an employee has an

illness/injury and has no remaining sick or vacation leave. Refer to the Family and

Medical Leave section if absence has been designated as leave under the Family and

Medical Leave Act (FMLA) and/or Caiifornia Family Rights Act (CFRA). Refer to the

Pregnancy Disability section if the absence is related to a pregnancy or pregnancy related

disability.

T \AC\Board Reports\Board Memos\2019\FH EmPloyee Handbook 1'l 2019.docx





To:

From.

Subject:

Item #8

MEMORANDUM

Board of Directors Date: November 1, 2019

Rocky Vogler, Chief fngineer ld
Approve Kennedy/Jenks Consultants - Consulting Engineering Services Agreement
(Crest Pump Station)
R:\Folders by Job N0\6000 jobs\ô1 4 1 Crest PS\Board l\4emos\BOD N¡emo 1 1 -5-1 9 Approve KJ Agreement doc

RECOMMENDED AGTION: That the Board authorize the General Manager to execute an
agreement with Kennedy/Jenks Consultants for the Crest
Pump Station design

FINANCIAL IMPACT $38,500 plus $3,500 contingency included in the FY19/20
budget

Ba round

The School Road pump station supplies water to the Crest Tanks and the associated

distribution system providing water to the Green Point neighborhood. This pump station has

been scheduled for replacement due to its lack of redundancy, limited capacity, hydraulic

inefficiency and issues involving staff safety. On December 18, 2018, the Board approved an

agreement of purchase and sale between the District and the City of Novato to acquire a small

portion (approximately 2,000 SF) of the City's property located roughly 600 feet east of Cerro

Crest Drive on the south side of Bahia Drive (see Figure 1)for the purpose of building a new

pump station to replace the facility located on School Road. The conveyance document

officially transferring the property from City to District ownership was recorded at the County on

May 17,2019.

A partial design for the new pump station on Bahia Drive has been prepared,

including grading and drainage, site layout, 95o/o architectural, mechanical and electrical

drawings, as well as draft specifications. The District requires assistance from a consulting

engineer with the requisite qualifications to review the District's work and complete the design to

deliver a set of plans and specification suitable for public bidding.

Consultinq Aoreement

Kennedy/Jenks (llJ) is recommended to provide consulting engineering services to

utilize the District's preliminary plans and specifications to complete the design and prepare the

associated documents. l(/J is an experienced design and consulting firm. They have a proven

track record performing hydraulic calculations and designing pump stations. Their scope

includes:

. TaskA-Specifications

. Task B - Design Review

. Task X - Project Management



Kennedy/Jenks BOD Memo - Crest Pump Station
November 1,2019
Page 2 of 2

The llJ proposal including scope of work, fee estimate and schedule is provided in

Attachment 1. The total consulting services cost estimate is $38,445. The completed design is

estimated by mid-January 2020.

Financial lmpact

llJ's cost estimate for $38,445 was included in the approved FY19120 budget. An

updated total project cost estimate will be performed as part of this work.

RECOMMENDATION

That the Board authorize the General Manager to execute an agreement with

Kennedy/Jenks Consultants for preparation of finalized plans and specifications for the Crest

Pump station project for a not to exceed fee of $38,500 plus a contingency of $3,500.
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Job No. 1 6141.00

AGREEMENT FOR CONSULTING SERVICES

The following is an agreement between North Marin Water District, hereinafter "NMWD",
and Kennedy/Jenks Consultants, hereinafter, "Gonsultant".

WHEREAS, Consultant is a duly qualified consulting firm, experienced in the design of
water storage, pumping and transmission facilities.

WHEREAS, in the judgment of the Board of Directors of the NMWD, it is necessary and
desirable to employ the services of the Consultant for the Crest Pump Station project..

NOW, THEREFORE, in consideration of the mutual covenants contained herein, the
parties hereto agree as follows:

PART A.. SPECIFIC PROVISIONS:

1. DESCRIPTION OF SERVIGES AND PAYMENT: Except as modified in this
agreement, the services to be provided and the payment schedule are:

a. The scope of work and fee amount covered by this agreement shall be that
specified in the Consultant's proposal dated October 24, 2019 and included in
Attachment A of this agreement.

b. The fee for the work shall be on a time and expense (T & E) basis utilizing the fee
schedule included in Attachment A of this agreement and shall not exceed $38,500
without prior written authorization by NMWD.

PART B .. GENERAL PROVISIONS

1. ASSIGNMENT/DELEGATION: Except as above, neither party hereto shall assign,
sublet or transfer any interest in or duty under this agreement without written consent of the other,
and no assignment shall be of any force or effect whatsoever unless and until the other party shall
have so consented.

2. STATUS OF CONSULTANT: The parties intend that the Consultant, in performing the
services hereinafter specified, shall act as an independent contractor and shall have the control of the
work and the manner in which it is performed. The Consultant is not to be considered an agent or
employee of NMWD, and is not entitled to participate in any pension plan, insurance, bonus or similar
benefits NMWD provides its employees.

3. INDEMNIFIGATION: NMWD is relying on the professional ability and training of the
Consultant as a material inducement to enter into this agreement. The Consultant hereby warrants
that all its work will be performed in accordance with generally accepted professional practices and
standards, as well as the requirements of applicable federal, state and local laws, it being
understood that neither acceptance of the Consultant's work by NMWD nor Consultant's failure to
perform shall operate as a waiver or release.
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a. With respect to design professional services provided under this agreement, Consultant
shall assume the defense of and defend NMWD, its directors, officers, agents, and
employees in any action at law or in equity to the extent that liability is claimed or alleged
to arise out of, pertain to, or relate to, either directly or indirectly, the intentional or willful
misconduct, recklessness, or negligent act, error, or omission of Consultant (or any
person or organization for whom Consultant is legally liable) in the performance of the
activities necessary to perform the services for District and complete the task provided
for herein. ln addition, Consultant shall indemnify, hold harmless, and release NMWD,
its directors, officers, agents, and employees from and against any and all actions,
claims, damages, disabilities or expenses, including attorney's fees and witness costs,
that may be assefted by any person or entity including the Consultant, to the extent
arising out of, pertaining to, or relating to, the negligent acts, errors or omissions,
recklessness, or intentional or willful misconduct of the Consultant (or any consultant or
subcontractor of Consultant) in connection with the activities necessary to perform the
services and complete the task provided for herein, but excluding liabilities due to the
sole negligence or willful misconduct of NMWD.

With respect to all services other than design professional services provided under
this agreement, Consultant shall indemnify, hold harmless, release and defend
NMWD, its agents and employees from and against any and all actions, claims,
damages, disabilities or expenses, including attorney's fees and witness costs that
may be asseded by any person or entity, including the Consultant, arising out of or in
connection with the activities necessary to perform those services and complete the
tasks provided for herein, but excluding liabilities due to the sole negligence or willful
misconduct of NMWD.

This indemnification is not limited in any way by any limitation on the amount or type of
damages or compensation payable by or for the NMWD or its agents under workers' compensation
acts, disability benefit acts or other employee benefit acts.

4. PROSECUTION OF WORK: The execution of this agreement shall constitute the
Consultant's authority to proceed immediately with the pedormance of this contract. Performance of
the services hereunder shall be completed by December 31,2019, provided, however, that if the
performance is delayed by earthquake, flood, high water or other Act of God or by strike, lockout or
similar labor disturbance, the time for the Consultant's performance of this contract shall be

extended by a number of days equal to the number of days the Consultant has been delayed.

5. METHOD AND PLACE OF GIVING NOTICE, SUBMITTING BILLS AND MAKING
PAYMENTS: All notices, bills and payment shall be made in writing and may be given by personal

delivery or by mail. Notices, bills and payments sent by mail should be addressed as follows:

North Marin Water District
P.O. Box 146
Novato, CA 94948
Attention: Rocky Vogler

Consultant:
Kennedy Jenks Consultants
200 Fourth Street, Suite 210
Santa Rosa, CA 95401
Attention: Rod Houser
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and when so addressed, shall be deemed given upon deposit in the United States Mail, postage
prepaid. ln all other instances, notices, bills and payments shall be deemed given at the time of actual
delivery. Changes may be made in the names and addresses of the person to whom notices, bills and
payments are to be given by giving notice pursuant to this paragraph.

6. MERGER: This writing is intended both as the final expression of the agreement
between the parties hereto with respect to the included terms of the agreement, pursuant to
California Code of Civil Procedure Section 1856 and as a complete and exclusive statement of the
terms of the agreement. No modification of this agreement shall be effective unless and until such
modification is evidenced by a writing signed by both parties.

7. SEVERABILITY: Each provision of this agreement is intended to be severable. lf
any term of any provision shall be determined by a court of competent jurisdiction to be illegal or
invalid for any reason whatsoever, such provision shall be severed from this agreement and shall
not affect the validity of the remainder of the agreement.

8. TERMINATION: At any time and without cause the NMWD shall have the right in its
sole discretion, to terminate this agreement by giving written notice to the Consultant. ln the event of
such termination, NMWD shall pay the Consultant for services rendered to such date.

9. TRANSFER OF RIGHTS/OWNERSHIP OF DATA: The Consultant assigns to
NMWD all rights throughout the work in perpetuity in the nature of copyright, trademark, patent,

and right to ideas, in and to all versions of any plans and specifications, reports and document now
or later prepared by the Consultant in connection with this contract.

The Consultant agrees to take such actions as are necessary to protect the rights
assigned to NMWD in this agreement, and to refrain from taking any action which would impair
those rights. The Consultant's responsibilities under this contract will include, but not be limited to,
placing proper notice of copyright on all versions of any plans and specifications, reports and
documents as NMWD may direct, and refraining from disclosing any versions of the reports and
documents to any third party without first obtaining written permission of NMWD. Ïhe Consultant
will not use, or permit another to use, any plans and specifications, repofts and document in
connection with this or any other project without first obtaining written permission of NMWD.

All materials resulting from the efforts of NMWD and/or the Consultant in connection
with this project, including documents, repods, calculations, maps, photographs, computer programs,

computer printouts, digital data, notes and any other perlinent data are the exclusive property of
NMWD. Re-use of these materials by the Consultant in any manner other than in conjunction with

activities authorized by NMWD is prohibited without written permission of NMWD.

Consultant shall deliver requested materials to NMWD in electronic format including
but not limited to engineering calculations, plans (AutoCad, current edition) and specifications (MS

Word, current edition).

10. COST DISCLOSURE: ln accordance with Government Code Section 7550, the
Consultant agrees to state in a separate portion of any reporl provided NMWD, the numbers and

amounts of all contracts and subcontractors relating to the preparation of the report.

11. NONDISCRIMINATION: The Consultant shall comply with all applicable federal, state

and local laws, rules and regulations in regard to nondiscrimination in employment because of race,

color, ancestry, national origin, religion, sex, marital status, age, medical condition or physical
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handicap

12. EXTRA (CHANGED) WORK: Extra work may be required. The Consultant shall not
proceed nor be entitled to reimbursement for extra work unless it has been authorized, in writing, in
advance, by NMWD. The Consultant shall inform the District as soon as it determines work beyond
the scope of this agreement may be necessary and/or that the work under this agreement cannot be
completed for the amount specified in this agreement. Said review shall occur before consultant
incurs 75% of the total fee approved for any phase of the work. Failure to notify the District shall
constitute waiver of the Consultant's right to reimbursement.

13. CONFLICT OF INTEREST: The Gonsultant covenants that it presently has no
interest and shall not acquire any interest, direct or indirect, which would conflict in any manner or
degree with the performance of its services hereunder. The Consultant further covenants that in
the performance of this contract no person having any such interest shall be employed.

14, INSURANCE REQUIREMENTS FOR CONSULTANTS
Consultant shall procure and maintain for the duration of the contract insurance against

claims for injuries to persons or damages to property which may arise from or in connection with
the performance of the work hereunder by the consultant, his agents, representatives, employees
or subcontractors.

Minimum Scope of lnsurance

Coverage shall be at least as broad as:

1. Commercial General Liability coverage

2. Automobile Liability

3. Workers' Compensation insurance as required by the State of California.

4. Professional Liability insurance appropriate to the consultant's profession. Architects'
and engineers' coverage is to be endorsed to include contractual liability.

Minimum Limits of lnsurance

Consultant shall maintain limits no less than:

1. General Liability (including operations, products and completed operations.): $1,000,000
per occurrence for bodily injury, personal injury and property damage. lf Commercial
General Liability lnsurance or other form with a general aggregate limit is used, either the
general aggregate limit shall apply separately to this projecllocation or the general
aggregate limit shall be twice the required occurrence limit.

2. Automobile Liability: $1,000,000 per accident for bodily injury and property damage.

3. Workers' Compensation lnsurance: as required by the State of California.

4. Professional Liability, $1,000,000 per occurrence.

Verification of Coverage
Consultant shall furnish the District with original certificates and amendatory endorsements

effecting coverage required by this clause. All certificates and endorsements are to be received
and approved bv the District before work commences. The District reserves the right to require at
any time complete and certified copies of all required insurance policies, including endorsements
affecting the coverage required by these specifications.
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Subcontractors
Consultant shall include all subcontractors as insureds under its policies or shall furnish

separate certificates and endorsements for each subcontractor to the District for review and
approval. All coverage for subcontractors shall be subject to all of the requirements stated herein.

Self-l nsured Retentions

Any self-insured retentions must be declared to and approved by the District. At the
option of the District, either: the insurer shall reduce or eliminate such self-insured retentions as
respects the District, its officers, officials, employees and volunteers; or the Consultant shall
provide a financial guarantee satisfactory to the District (such as a surety bond) guaranteeing
payment of losses and related investigations, claim administration, and defense expenses.

Other lnsurance Provisions

The commercial general liability and automobile liability policies are to contain, or be
endorsed to contain, the following provisions:

1. The District, its officers, officials, employees, and volunteers are to be covered as
insureds with respect to liability arising out of automobiles owned, leased, hired or
borrowed by or on behalf of the Consultant.

2. For any claims related to this project, the Consultant's insurance coverage shall be
primary insurance as respects the District, its officers, officials, employees, and
volunteers. Any insurance or self-insurance maintained by the District, its officers,
officials, employees, or volunteers shall be excess of the Consultant's insurance and
shall not contribute with it.

3. Each insurance policy required by this clause shall be endorsed to state that coverage
shall not be canceled by either pafty, except after thirty (30) days' prior written notice by
certified mail, return receipt requested, has been given to the District.

Acceptability of lnsurers

lnsurance is to be placed with insurers with a current A.M. Best's rating of no less than A:Vll.

15. DISPUTE RESOLUTION: Any dispute or claim in law or equity between District and
Consultant arising out of this agreement, if not resolved by informal negotiation between the padies,
shall be mediated by referring it to the nearest office of Judicial Arbitration and Mediation Services,
lnc. (JAMS) for mediation. Mediation shall consist of an informal, non-binding conference or
conferences between the parties and the judge-mediator jointly, then in separate caucuses wherein
the judge will seek to guide the parties to a resolution of the case. lf the parties cannot agree to
mutually acceptable member from the JAMS panel of retired judges, a list and resumes of available
mediators numbering one more than there are parties will be sent to the parties, each of whom will
strike one name leaving the remaining as the mediator. lf more than one name remains, JAMS
arbitrations administrator will choose a mediator from the remaining names. The mediation process

shall continue until the case is resolved or until such time as the mediator makes a finding that there
is no possibility of resolution.

At the sole election of the District, any dispute or claim in law or equity between
District and Consultant arising out of this agreement which is not settled through mediation shall be

decided by neutral binding arbitration and not by court action, except as provided by California law
for judicial review of arbitration proceedings. The arbitration shall be conducted in accordance with
the rules of Judicial Arbitration Mediation Services, lnc. (JAMS). The parlies to an arbitration may

R:\Folders by Job N0\6000 jobs\6141 Crest PS\KJ Scope and Agmt Docs\KJ consultant servicês master w-prof liability Nov 2018-revised_per_SB 496 ..*.docx

5 n€v'd Nov 2, 2018



agree in writing to use different rules and/or arbitrators.

16. BILLING AND DOCUMENTATION: The Consultant shall invoice NMWD for work
performed on a monthly basis and shall include a summary of work for which payment is requested.
The invoice shall state the authorized contract limit, the amount of invoice and total amount billed to
date. The summary shall include time and hourly rate of each individual, a narrative description of
work accomplished, and an estimate of work completed to date.

17. REASONABLE ASSURANCES: Each party to this agreement undertakes the
obligation that the other's expectation of receiving due pefformance will not be impaired. When
reasonable grounds for insecurity arise, with respect to performance of either party, the other may,
in writing, demand adequate assurance of due performance and until the requesting party receives
such assurance may, if commercially reasonable, suspend any performance for which the agreed
return has not been received. "Commercially reasonable" includes not only the conduct of the party

with respect to performance under this agreement but also conduct with respect to other
agreements with parties to this agreement or others. After receipt of a justified demand, failure to
provide within a reasonable time, not to exceed 30 days, such assurance of due performance as is
adequate under the circumstances of the particular case is a repudiation of this agreement.
Acceptance of any improper delivery, service, or payment does not prejudice the aggrieved party's
right to demand adequate assurance of future performance.

18. PREVAILING WAGE REQUIREMENTS: Prevailing Wage Rates apply to all

Consultant personnel performing work under the Agreement for which wage determinations have
been made by the Director of lndustrial Relations pursuant to California Labor Code Sections
1770- 1782,. Consultant shall comply with all applicable prevailing wage labor code requirements.

NORTH MARIN WATER DISTRICT
..NMWD''

Dated Drew Mclntyre, General Manager

KENNEDY JEN KS CONSULTANTS
,,CONSULTANT"

Dated
Rod Houser, Vice President
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ffi Ken nedy Jen ks

October 24,2019

Rocky Vogler, P.E.
Chief Engineer
North Marin Water District
999 Rush Creek Place
Novato, CA 94945

Subject: Letter Proposal- School Road Pump Station
Design Assistance (rev 1)

Dear Rocky:

This letter serves as our proposal to provide design assistance related to the subject project. We
understand from our conversations that the District has prepared all the necessary planning documents
required for CEQA compliance. The District has also prepared a set of plans that are considered 95%
complete. At this point the District intends to finalize the design so that the construction project can be

adverlised in January, 2020.ln order to complete the design, the District requested Kennedy/Jenks'
assistance to prepare technical specifications and to perform a third-party design review of the District's
plans. Thus, we propose the following scope of services:

Task A - Specifications

Prepare technical specifications for civil, architectural, structural and process mechanical disciplines.
Edit District-furnished guide specifications as appropriate for this project. Prepare new sections as
needed for a coordinated set of technical specifications (see Exhibit A).

Specifications will be organized and formatted using CSI's Section Format and Master Format
standards. Draft and final deliverables will consist of editable MSWord documents that the District will
incorporate into the bid package. Accordingly, the District will be responsible for the following
documents:

. Bid forms (invitation, instructions and forms)

. Construction agreement (general and supplemental conditions and agreement)

. Division 1 specifications (general requirements)

. Division 16 and 17 specifications (electrical and instrumentation)

TaskB-DesignReview

Perform independent design review of the civil, architectural, structural and process mechanical
disciplines. We understand that the new pump station may be located near an urban-wildland interface,
so we will coordinate with the local fire department to establish requirements for fire-resistive
construction.

200 Fourth Street, Suite 210 i Santa Rosa, CA 95401

7 07 -293-1 1 76 | rodhouser@kennedyjenks.com
clusrs\odh\desktop\ìodh fiìailn watsr dislrìclþump slation proposalvov 1\school toad ps ' lett€r proposal rev 1.docx
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Kl i Kennedv Jenks'*'t
Rocky Vogler, P.E.
Nofth Marin Water District
September 10,2019

Prepare structural calculations to verify conformance with the California Building Code. We will rely on
information provided by the District's geotechnical consultant for a portion of this taskl. We further
assume that a formal submittal to the local building department will not be required.

Perform independent review of the District's cost estimate.

Deliverables will consist of red-line markups to the District's construction drawings accompanied by a
list of written review comments. For purposes of estimating level of effort we assume that the District
will perform all drafting required to pick up review comments.

Task X - Project Management

The following management activities are covered under this task:

. Routine communications (emails, conference calls and status reports)

. Setup project filing and accounting systems

. lnternal QA/QC review of KJ work product

For purposes of budgeting the effort of this task we assume the scope of work will require no more than
two months to complete.

Budget

KJ recommends a budget of $38,445 to complete the scope of services described above. This budget
includes a contingency allowance of $3,500 that would only be used with the District's written
authorization if additional out of scope services were requested. A detailed breakdown of budgets by
task is included as Exhibit B of this proposal. We would invoice the District monthly, on a time and
expense reimbursement basis, in accordance with our current rate schedule (Exhibit C).

Schedule

KJ will submit draft specifications and review comments within five(5)weeks of receiving the District's
written notice to proceed and a complete set of the District' 95% design documents (plans, specs and
cost estimate). We have increased the duration of Task A by a week to account for the upcoming
holiday season. Final versions of the specifications will be submitted within two weeks of receiving the
District's written review comments of our draft submittal.

Feelfree to call me with any questions regarding this proposal

Kennedy/Jenks Consultants, lnc.

Rod Houser, P.E.
Vice President I Project Manager
Attachments

1 Email from Miller-Pacific Engineering Group, Scott Stevens, 9/10/19

clusers\odh\desktop\rìorih rnailì water dist ictÞump statioì proposa¡\rev 1\school toad ps - lôttor üoposal rev l,doax



ffi Kennedy Jenks

Rocky Vogler, P.E.
North Marin Water District
September 10,2019

Exhibit A - List of Specifications

Civil specifications
. Earthwork
. Trenching

Architectural specifications:
. Water repellent sealant
. Roof insulation
. Fiber cement siding
. Flashing and sheet metal
. Roof accessories
o Joint sealants
. Hollow metal doors and frames
. Finish hardware
. painting
o Building specialties
¡ Building signage
. GYPsum board
. Fiber cement shingles

Structu ral specificatio ns :

. Cement masonry units

. Wood framing
o Structuralmetalfasteners
. Concrete formwork
. Concretereinforcement
. Cast-in-placeconcrete
. Grout

Process Mechan ical specifications:
. Vertical multi-stage pumps
. General piping systems
. Disinfection of piping
. Hydrostatic testing
. PVC pressure pipe
. Steel pipe
. Process valves (butterfly, gate, air-release)
. Fire hydrants
. Piping accessories
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Rocky Vogler, P.E.
North Marin Water District
September 10,2019

Exhibit A - List of Specifications

Civil specifications:
. Earthwork
. Trenching

Arch itectural specifications:
. Water repellent sealant
. Roof insulation
. Fiber cement siding
. Flashing and sheet metal
. Roof accessories
o Joint sealants
. Hollow metal doors and frames
. Finish hardware
. painting
. Building specialties
. Building signage
. GYPsum board
. Fiber cement shingles

Structural specifications
. Cement masonry units
. Wood framing
. Structural metal fasteners
. Concrete formwork
. Concretereinforcement
. Cast-in-placeconcrete
. Grout

Process Mechan ical specifications:
. Vertical multi-stage pumps
. General piping systems
¡ Disinfection of piping
. Hydrostatic testing
. PVC pressure pipe
. Steel pipe
. Process valves (butterfly, gate, air-release)
. Fire hydrants
. Piping accessories
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Proposal Fee Estimate (Exhibit B) Kennedy Jenks

CLIENT Name:

PROJECT Descr¡ption:

Proposal/Job Number:

North Marin Water Distr¡ct

Pump Station Oes¡gn Assistance

Date: 91912019
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January 1, 2019 Rates

Classification:

Hourlv Rate:

Phase **** (Default)

(Associated Proiect Costs)

Phase **** - Subtotal

Task X - Proiect Manaqement

conference calls

Pro¡ect Set-up

QAJAC

Continqency allowance

Phase 1 - Subtotal

Task A - Specif¡cations

architectural specs

structural specs

mechanical specs

c¡úl specs

Phase 2 - Subtotal

TaskB-DesígnReview

review architectural drawinqs

review structural drawinqs

review mechanical drawìnqs

review civil drawings

review cost estimate

Phase 3 - Subtotal

All Phases Total
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Exhibít C - Rate Schedule

ffi Kennedy Jenks
ClienUAddress: North Marin Water District

999 Rush Street

Novato, CA 94945

ContracUProposal Date: September 10, 2019

Schedule of Charges January 1,2019

PERSON NEL GOMPENSATION

Classification Hourly Rate
.,.... $130
...... $160
...... $180
...... $195
'. .. '. $21 5
...... $240
...... $265
...... $280
...... $295
...... $115
......$130
...... $1s0
......$170
....,. $125
...... $105
...."..$80

ln addition to the above Hourly Rates, an Associated Project Cost charge of $9.74 per hour will be added to
Personnel Compensation for costs supporting projects including telecommunications, software, information
technology, internal photocopying, shipping, and other support activity costs related to the support of projects.

Direct Expenses

Reimbursement for direct expenses, as listed below, incurred in connection with the work, will be at cost plus
ten percent for items such as:

a. Maps, photographs, 3rd parly reproductions, 3rd party printing, equipment rental, and special supplies
related to the work.

b. Consultants, soils engineers, surveyors, contractors, and other outside services.

c. Rented vehicles, local public transportation and taxis, travel and subsistence.

d. Project specific telecommunications and delivery charges.

e. Special fees, insurance, permits, and licenses applicable to the work.

f. Outside computer processing, computation, and proprietary programs purchased for the work.

Reimbursement for vehicles used in connection with the work will be at the federally approved mileage rates or at a
negotiated monthly rate.

lf prevailing wage rates apply, the above billing rates will be adjusted as appropriate.

Overtime for non-exempt employees will be billed at one and a half times the Hourly Rates specified above.

Rates for professional staff for legal proceedings or as expert witnesses will be at rates one and one-half times the
Hourly Rates specified above.

Excise and gross receipts taxes, if any, will be added as a direct expense.

The foregoing Schedule of Charges is incorporated into the agreement for the services provided, effective January 1,

2019 through December 31, 2019. After December 31, 2019, invoices will reflect the Schedule of Charges currently
in effect.

Engineer-Scientist-Specialist 1

Engineer-Scientist-Specialist 2

Engineer-ScientistSpecialist 3

Engineer-Scientist-Specialist 4
Engineer-Scientist-Specialist 5
Engineer-ScientistSpecialist 6
Engineer-Scientist-Specialist 7

Engineer-Scientist-Specialist I
Engineer-Scientist-Specialist 9
CAD-Technician ......................
Senior CAD-Technician ...........
CAD-Desi9ner.........................
Senior CAD-Desi9ner..............
Project Administrator........,......
Administrative Assistant
4ide...,.........





Item #9

Date: November 1,2019To:

From:

Subject

MEMORANDUM

Board of Directors

Rocky Vogler, Chief Engineer

Plum Street Tank Property Exchange - Grant Deed
RlFolders by Job N0\6000 jobs\6058 RW Central\Plum Streat Tank\Plum St Tank Land Swap BOO Mâmo I 1-5-19.docx

iU

RECOMMENDATION: Board Approve Resolution to convey portion of District property
(APN 143-101-19) to 15 Zandra Place (143-650-08)

FINANCIAL IMPACT: None

On October 1,2002, the Board authorized the General Manager to accept

easements granted to the District (Resolution 02-35). On August 3,2010, the Board authorized

the General Manager to accept conveyances of real property interests (Resolution 10-14).

However, Resolution 10-14 only pertains to conveyances accepted at no cost to the District, and

any future conveyances requiring expenditure of District funds requires Board approval. ln

addition, no other resolutions exist that allow the General Manager the blanket ability to convey

real property interests fo other parties,

On October 18,2016, the Board approved the mutually beneficial exchange of property

between the District and property owners Prosser/Rhim (15 Zandra Place - APN 143-101-19;

Resolution 16-27). As shown in Attachment 1, the property owners were to gain an additional

180 SF strip of land (-40'x4.5') for landscaping purposes to help screen the District's Plum

Street Recycled Water Tank. ln return, the District gained a 163 SF crescent shape wedge

(-34' in length) which provides improved access to and within the NMWD tank parcel. The

property exchange is deemed to be an even trade (180 SF vs, 163 SF) with a net property

increase or decrease value of zero, Transfer of private property to the District was completed

and recorded with the County. However, there was a delay in transferring the portion of the

District property to the private property owner. Subsequently, when District staff tried to

complete the transfer (via lot line adjustment), they were informed that the previous owners

(Prosser/Rhim) had sold 15 Zandra Place to new owner Aaron Parker, and associated transfer

of ownership documentation required updating to reflect the change.

ln order to complete the transfer of District property to 15 Zandra Place, the Board must

approve a Resolution authorizing the execution of a grant deed conveying 180 SF of District

property to new owner Aaron Parker.

RECOMMENDATION

That the Board approve Resolution 1g-XX
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RESOLUTION NO. 19-

AUTHORIZATION OF EXECUTION OF PLUM STREET TANK SITE CORPORATION GRANT
DEED (PORTTON OF)

TO

AARON H. PARKER OF 15 ZANDRA PLACE

BE lT RESOLVED by the Board of Directors of NORTH MARIN WATER DISTRICT thatthe

President and Secretary of this District be and they hereby are authorized and directed for and on

behalf of this District to execute that certain Corporation Grant Deed to Aaron H. Parker (APN 143-

650-08, lSZandra Place), as Grantee, by NORTH MARIN WATER DISTRICT, a public district, as

Grantor, as part of a mutual agreement to exchange property of same value property between said

pafties.

I hereby certify that the foregoing is a true and complete copy of a resolution duly and

regularly adopted by the Board of Directors of NORTH MARIN WATER DISTRICT at a regular

meeting of said Board held on the this

following vote:

day of , 2019, by the

AYES

NOES

ABSENT

ABSTAINED

Theresa Kehoe, District Secretary
North Marin Water District

(sEAL)

\\nmwdserverl\eng¡neering\Folders by Job N0\6000 jobs\6058 RW Cêntral\Plum Strêet Tank\Plum Tank Swap 2019 Resolution.doc





Item #10

To:

From:

Subject:

MEMORANDUM

Board of Directors Date: November 1,2019

Rocky Vogler, Chief Engineer 14
Old Ranch Road Tank No.2 - Request for Authorization to Conduct CEQA Public
Review
R:\Folders by Job N0\6000.¡obs\6207.20 Old Ranch Rd Tank R6pl\BOD Mêmos\6207.20 Req to Conduct CEQA Pub Rèv BOD MEMO 1'1-5-19.docx

RECOMMENDED ACTION: Staff requests authorization from the Board to initiate the
CEQA 30-Day Public Review Period for the project and to
schedule a public hearing for the January 7, 2020 Board
meeting at which time the Board will consider adoption of the
Mitigated Negative Declaration (MND).

FINANCIAL IMPACT: None at this time ($57,300 for the CEQA Review authorized on
July 16, 2019)

Backqround

The FY20 and FY21 Capital lmprovement Project budgets for Novato include design

and construction of the Old Ranch Road Tank No. 2 project (see Figure 2 in Attachment 1). This

project consists of the design and construction of a 100,000 gallon welded steel tank to replace

the existing aging 50,000 gallon redwood tank. The project includes additional fire flow storage

to satisfy Novato Fire protection goals and is consistentwith the Board approved 2018 Novato

Water Master Plan. The Board approved an agreement with Amy Skewes-Cox (ASC) to

prepare the Old Ranch Road Tank No. 2 Project CEQA documentation at the July 16,2019

meeting.

CEQA Review

Staff and its consultant, ASC, have prepared the enclosed Draft Mitigated Negative

Declaration and lnitial Study (lS) for the Old Ranch Road Tank No. 2 Project (Attachment 1).

Upon receipt of any comments from the Board, staff is prepared to move forward with the 30-

day public review period required by CEQA. The 30-day period is slated to begin no later than

November 15,2019 and end on or before December 16,2019. The review period initiates with

circulation of a Notice of lntent (Attachment 2) via advertisement in the local paper (Marin

lndependent Journal) and posting at the County Clerk's office. Staff has scheduled the public

hearing for the January 7, 2020 Board meeting in Novato upon which the Board will consider

adoption of the MND. The CEQA documentation schedule is shown in Attachment 3.

Outreach

On July 16,2019, a notice was mailed to all property owners on Old Ranch Road

and side streets intersecting Old Ranch Road to inform them of an upcoming public scoping

meeting related to the Old Ranch Road Tank No.2 project. On July 30,2019, the public

scoping meeting was held to provide interested parties with information related to the project, as



Old Ranch Road Tank No. 2 Project - Authorization to Conduct CEQA Public Review
November 1,2019
Page2 of 2

well as an opportunity to get questions answered. A total of six residents living on or near Old

Ranch Road attended the meeting.

RECOMMENDATION

Staff requests authorization from the Board to initiate the CEQA 30-Day Public

Review Period for the project and to schedule a public hearing for the January 7, 2020 Board

meeting at which time the Board will consider adoption of the Mitigated Negative Declaration.
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CHAPTER I

PROJECT DESCRIPTION

L Project Title: Norlh Marin Water District Old Ranch Road Tank No. 2

2. Lead Agency Name and Address:

North Marin Water District

999 Rush Creek Place

Novato, CA 94945

Contact Person and Phone Number: Mr. Rocky Vogler, Chief Engineer, (4'15)761-8945

Project Location: Terminus of Old Ranch Road, Novato. Grant deed and easement within APN

146-310-05 (Maiero)1 and easement within APN 146-310-44 (Wright). A very small portion of the

existing North Marin Water District (NMWD) property (APN 146-310-23)would be used for the

road turnaround.

Project Sponsor's Name and Address:

Nofth Marin Water District

999 Rush Creek Place

Novato, CA 94945

General Plan Designation: Agriculture (AG2) and Conservation (CON) for APN '146-310-05,

Planned Residential (PR) and Very Low Density Residential (RVL)for APN 146-310-44, Open

Space/RVL for APN 146-310-23.

Zoning: Agriculture and Conservation (A10) for APN 146-310-05 and Residential, Multiple

Planned (RMP-0 5) for APN 146-310-44.

L Description of Project:

lntroduction

The NMWD will serve as the lead agency for the California Environmental Quality Act (CEQA)

document for the proposed project, a replacement water tank and new access road (referred to as
"Tank No. 2")proposed nearan existing watertank off Old Ranch Road in unincorporated Marin

County near Novato, CA. After the adoption of the appropriate CEQA document, the new tank and

access road can be approved.

lAnewAssessorParcel Number(APN) forlheTankNo.2parcel will beassignedbyMarinCountyafterthegrantdeedis
recorded,

5.

6.

7

1NiVIWD .CEQAChecklisl..FlNAL (1 0/2311 9)
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NoRrH Mnnrru Wnre R DrsrRrcr OLD RANCH Rono T¡ut< No. 2 PROJECT

Detailed drawings can be reviewed at the NMWD offices located at 999 Rush Creek Place, Novato,

CA, and by contacting Mr. Rocky Vogler, Chief Engineer, at (415) 761-8945,

Project Location and Site Characteristics

A project location map is provided in Figure 1. Access to the project site is from lndian Valley Road

and Old Ranch Road (see Figure 1). The project site has access off Old Ranch Road via a locked gate

that also provides access to a single-family home as well as other undeveloped parcels. The project

site is heavily wooded with a mixture of oak and bay trees, with grass undergrowth. The project site

adjoins primarily undeveloped lands that are wooded sloping hills.

The project site is within the jurisdiction of Marin County and outside the city limits of the City of

Novato. As a waier district, NMWD is exempt from local land use controls of Marin County per

Government Code Section 53091,

Project Characteristics

The project includes constructing a new water tank (referred to as "Tank No. 2") within an

approximately 20,000-square-foot parcel that would be created by grant within the southern corner of

Assessor Parcel Number (APN) 146-310-05 (about 44 acres currently), The planned improvements

also include constructing a new road to provide access to Tank No. 2. The proposed tank location and

access road are shown in Figure 2, and assessor's parcels are mapped in Figure 3. Figure 4 shows a

photo view of the new water tank site.

Proposed Water Tank Size and Capacity

The new tank would be 28 feet in diameter and 26 feet tall (Z2feetto overflow) and made of welded

steel. lt would have a storage capacity of approximately '100,000 gallons.

Proposed Disturbed Area and Site Grading

The proposed site forthe replacementwatertank and the access road would require grading. The

disturbed area would encompass 0.62 acre, including 0.'17 acre of the Maiero Grant Deed, 0.28 acre of

the Maiero Easement, 0.16 acre of the Wright Easement, and 0.01 acre of the NMWD parcel.

Site grading forthe building pad would consist primarily of excavation. The tank pad would be

constructed at elevation 516 feet, and cuts of up to 12 feet are anticipated to achieve finished grades at

the tank site. Cut slopes no steeper than 1,5:'1 would be used to complete the planned excavations.

The access road alignment was selected to minimize cut and fill including grades not to exceed
'18 percent slope. As such, the alignment would encroach on APN 146-310-05 to the nofth and APN

146-310-44 to the south, The parties owning these parcels have agreed to provide access and utility

easements in these areas.

2NN¡WD_-CEQACheckirst .FINAL (1 0/2311 9)
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SOURCE: Miller Pacific Engineering Group, 2018

Figure 1

SITE LOCAT¡ON MAP
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View of site for new replacement water tank showing oak woodland and grass.

SOURCE: A. Skewes-Cox, 201 9

Figure 4

VIEW OF SITE

TIT AMY SKEWES-COX
ßNVTRONMENTAL PTANNING



lNtTtAL SruDy/MtT|GATED NEGATtvE DECLARATToN F0R THE

NonrH Mnnrru WelEn Drsrntcl OLo RANCH RoAD TANr No. 2 Pno¡Ecr

As shown in Figure 2, the total estimated cut volume would be 1,911 cubic yards (CY), and the total

estimated fillvolume would be 1,28'1 CY, resulting in off-haulof about 630 CY of soil. Accounting for

the "swell factor" of 1.25,2 the off-haul would be about 788 CY, The cut slopes would be no steeper

than 1.5:1 and fill slopes would be 2:1.

Proposed Access Road and Utilities

New pavement, surface drainage improvements, underground utilities, and other ancillary

improvements are included as part of the project.

Typically, the paved area of the road would be 10 feet wide with 1-foot-wide shoulders on each side of

the road, for a totalwidth of 12 feet. The road would be paved with 0.25 foot asphalt concrete (AC)over

a 7-inch layerof compacted Class 2 aggregate base (AB). During construction, NMWD would have a

geotechnical engineer determine if the Class 2 AB layer thickness can be reduced.

ln addition, there would be a 24-foot-wide-by-95-foot-long compacted earth staging area between the

new access road and the southern boundary of APN 146-310-05 to reduce off-site hauling and for use

as a staging area during tank construction. Properly sized runoff ditches, drainage pipes, and

associated structures would be installed.

Proposed Vegetation Clearance

To construct the new tank and access road, existing vegetation including trees would have to be

cleared. lt is estimated thatthe project would require removalof 71 trees (62 oaks,4 madrones, and 5

California bay trees).

Proposed Locked Gate

A locked gate would be placed at the access road where it would connect to Old Ranch Road. The

gate would be about 15 to 20 feet from the intersection of Old Ranch Road and the tank access road.

Plans for Existing Water Tank Site

An existing 50,000-gallon redwood water tank on APN 146-310-23 that is located south of the

proposed tank site would remain during construction and would likely be decommissioned and

removed after construction and commissioning of the new tank. Currently, there are 20 customers

served by the existing redwood tank, which was constructed in 1963 and is reaching the end of its life.

The new tank would approximately match the existing tank base elevation, but the overflow level would

be 6 feet higher to provide better system hydraulics and minimize tank footprint. The increase in the

tank size was driven by fire flow goals as discussed and agreed upon with Novato Fire District

personnel. New future development may warrant additional storage requirements beyond the planned

2 In a natural state, soil is dense, Soil ìoaded into a truck takes more space than soil in a natural state. Swell factor accounts for this

volume expansion,

7NNIWD 0ËQAChecklist FINAt (10/23i 19)
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100,000 gallons, and a second tank could be constructed at a future date at the existing tank site. Any

such construction would be subject to a separate future environmental review.

Timing of Construction

Construction of the Tank No, 2 project is expected to begin in Spring 2020 and to be completed by

2021,The project would begin with clearing, grubbing, and site/road preparation, followed by

foundation construction and tank construction.

Surrounding Land Uses and Setting:The project is located in a wooded area of western

Novato within the jurisdiction of Marin County. Single-family homes on large parcels are located

nearthe access road and watertank site, but much of the area is undeveloped wooded hillsides.

10, Other public agencies whose approval is required (e.9., permits, financing approval, or
participation agreement.) NMWD is the lead agency that will approve the CEQA document, No

other permits are expected to be required for the project. The project site is within Marin County

boundaries. As a water district, NMWD projects are exempt from local land use controls.

11. Have California Native American tribes traditionally and culturally affiliated with the
project area requested consultation pursuant to Public Resources Code Section

21080.3.1? lf so, is there a plan for consultation that includes, for example, the
determination of significance of impacts to tribal cultural resources, procedures regarding

confidentiality, etc.? No consultation has been requested.

REFERENCES

Marin County,2019. Community Development Agency. Available at: https://www.marincounty,org/

depts/cd/divisions/planning/projects/novato/claves-trust-dr-up*p2309-no, accessed on

August 19, 20'19.

UNN/WD-CEQAChecklisl f-lNAt- (10/23/'19)
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Environmentâl Factors Potentially Affected :

The environmenial factors checked below would be potentially affected by this project, jnvolvìng at

least one impact that is a "Poientially Significant Impact" as indicated by the checklist on the following

pages,

tl Aesthetics

@ Blological Resources

e Geology and Soils

E Hydrology and Water Quality
F Noise

I I KeCreAIon

8l Utilities and Eervice Systems .

mitigatio
t'-?

/(,
Signature

fl Agricultural and Forestry Resources

M CultL¡ral Resources

fl Greenhouse Gas Entissions

ff Land Use and Planning

tr Population and Housing

ÍJ Transportation

H Wildfire

N Air Quality
fll Energy
g Hazarãs and Hazardous Materials

D Mineral Resources

l'il Public Services

tr Tribal Cultural Resources

W Mandatory Findings of Significance

Determination"

0n the basis of this initial evalu'ation:

n I find that the proposecl project COULD NOT have a significant effect on the environment, and a

N EGATIVE DËCLARA:IlON will be prepared.

W I fincl that although the proposed project could have a sighìficant effect on the environment, there

will not be a significant effect in this case because revisìons in the project have been made by or

agreed to by the project proponênt A MITIGATED NEGATIVE DECLARATION will be prepared.

n I find that the proposed project MAY have a significant effect on the environment, and an

ENVIRONMENTAL IMPACT REPORT is required,

ü I fincl that the proposec.l project MAY have a "potentially significant impact" or "potentially

significant unless mitigated" impact on the environment, but at least one effect 1)has been

adequately analyzed in an earlier document pursuant to applicable legal standards, and 2) has

been adciressed by mitigation measures based on the earlier analysis as described on attached

sheets. An ENVIRONMENTAL IMPACT REPORT is required, but it must analyze only the effects

that rernain to be addressed.

n I find that althoLrgh the proposed project could have a significant effect on the environment,

because all potentially significant effects (a) have been analyzed adequately in an earlier EIR or

NËGATIVE DÉCLARATION pursuant to applicable standarcls, and (b) have been avoided or

mitigated pursuant to that earlier EIR or NËGATIVE DECLARATION, including revisions or

r'ì rrìeasures that are imposed upon the proposed project, nothing further is required

tofr-øfrÇ
Daie

{¿oc k 
V

Itn
North Marin Water

Printed Nanre
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CHAPTER II

ENVIRONMENTAL CHECKLIST

INTRODUCTION

The Checklist below addresses 20 environmental topics. Whenever a potentially significant impact is

identified, a mitigation measure is identified. A summary of the identified mitigation measures

(Mitigation Monitoring and Reporting Program) is included as Appendix A, At the end of each

mitigation measure, the level of significance of the impact after mitigation is shown as "Less than

Significant" (LTS) or "Potentially Significant" (PS).1

Potentially
Significant
lmpact

Less Than
Significant
with
Mitigation
lncorporated

Less Than
Significant
lmpact

No

lmpact

AESTHETICS. Excepl as provided in Public Resources Code Section

21099, would the project:

a) Have a substantial adverse effect on a scenic vista?

b) Substantially damage scenic resources, including, but not limited to,

trees, rock outcroppings, and historic buildings within a Stale scenic

highway?

c) ln non-urbanized areas, substantlally degrade the existing visual

character or quality of public views of the site and its sunoundings?
(Public views are those that are experienced Írom publicly

accessible vantage points,) lf the project is in an urbanized area,

would the project conflict with applicable zoning and other

regulations governing scenic quality?

d) Create a new source of substantial light or glare which would

adversely affect day or nìghttime views in the area?
fl Í n

IMPACT EVALUATION

a) Would the project have a substantial adverse effect on a scen¡c v¡sta?

Less Than Significant lmpact

The project site is located within a heavily wooded area in the eastern portion of Novato but outside the

city limits, Due to the thick vegetative cover, the site is not visible from many locations. Site grading for

3 This lMitigated Negative Declaration (lV1ND) includes a discussion of impacts of the environment on the project, which, pursuant to

recent Callfornia Supreme Court authority, are not Californra Envìronmental Quality Act (CEQA) impacts. NMWD has included this

discussion based on traditional checklist questions in order to be more thorough in the overall analyses.
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the new tank and the new access road would require removal of about 71 trees, many of which are

small oaks (see more detailed discussion in Section lV, Biological Resources, below). However, this

activity would not have a substantial effect on a scenic vista. The project site is not visible from public

viewing locations that would be negatively affected. Therefore, the project would have a less-than-

significant impact related to scenic vistas.

b) Woutd the project substantially damage scenic resources, including, but not limited to, trees, rock

outcroppings, and historic buildings within a Sfafe scenlc highway?

No lmpact

The project site is not located within a State scenic highway.

c) ln non-urbanized areas, would the project substantially degrade the existing visual character or quality of
public views of the site and its surroundings? (Public views are those that are experienced from publicly

accessib/e vantage points,) If the project is in an urbanized area, would the project conflict with applicable

zoning and other regulations governing scenic quality?

Less Than Significant lmpact

The project site is located in a non-urbanized area, and the only publicly accessible vantage points for

the site are from Old Ranch Road. During construction, ihe removalof existing trees and the required

grading for the access road would affect the existing visual character of the area, but this impact would

be temporary, Following construction, new vegetation would grow at the edges of the access road and

would lessen this visual impact. The impact would therefore be less than significant.

d) WoulcJthe project create a new source of substantial light or glare which would adversely affect day or

nighttime views in the area?

No lmpact

No lighting would be associated with the project; thus, no light or glare impacts would result.

REFERENCES

Site work by CEQA team.

Potentially
Sign ificant
lmpact

Less Than

Significant
with
Mitigation
lncorporated

Less Than

Significant
lmpact lmpact

No

il AGRICULTURAL AND FORESTRY RÊSOURCES. ln determining

whether impacts to agricultural resources are signrficant environmental

effects, lead agencìes may refer to the California Agricultural Land

Evaluation and Site Assessment ftilodel (1997) prepared by the California

Dept, of Conservation as an optional model to use in assessing impacts

NNlWD..CEQAChecklist. FINAL (10/23119) 12
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Potentially
Significant
lmpact

Less Than

Significant
with
Mitigation
lncorporated

Less Than
Significant
lmpact lmpact

No

on agriculture and farmland, ln determining whether impacts to forest

resources, including timberland, are signif¡cant environmental effects, lead

agencies may refer lo information comp¡led by the California Department

of Forestry and Fire Protection regarding the state's inventory of forest

land, including the Forest and Range Assessment Project and the Forest

Legacy Assessment project; and forest carbon measurement

methodology provided ìn Forest Protocols adopted by the California Air

Resources Board, Would the project:

a) Convert Prime Farmland, Unique Farmland, or Farmland of

Statewide lmportance (Farmland), as shown on the maps prepared

pursuant to the Farmland l\4apping and Monitoring Program of the

California Resources Agency, to a non-agricultural use?

b) Conflict with existing zoning for agricultural use, or a Wìlliamson Act

contract?

c) Conflìct with existing zoning for, or cause rezonìng of, forest land (as

defined in Public Resources Code Section 12220(9)), timberland (as

defined by Public Resources Code Section 4526), or timberland

zoned Timberland Production (as defined by Government Code

Section 51 104(g))?

d) Result in the loss of forest land or conversion of forest land to non-

forest use?

e) Involve other changes ìn the existing environment which, due to their

location or nature, could result in conversion of Farmland to non-

agricultural use or conversion of forest land to nonJorest use?

ÍJ Í

ÍD n

Í

Í

tr

tr
-t

tr

Í

il

Í

4

IMPACT EVALUATION

Would the project conveft Prine Farmland, Unique Farmland, or Farmland of Statewide lmporlance

(Farmtand), as shown on the maps prepared pursuant to the Farmland Mapping and Monitoring Program of
the California Resources Agency, to a non-agricultural use?

No lmpact

The project site is not designated as Prime Farmland or other important farmland category in the State

of Callfornia's Farmland Mapping and Monitoring Program. The Marin County lmportant Farmland Map

2016 (California Department of Conservation, 2018) shows the site area as "Urban and Built-Up Land"

and "Other Land," Thus, no conversion of Farmland to non-agricultural use would occur with the

project.

N[.4WD_CEQAChecklist. Fl NAl.. (1 0/2311 9) 13
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b) Woutd the project confl¡ct with existing zon¡ng for agr¡cultural use, or a Williamson Act contract?

No lmpact

While a portion of the project site is zoned Agrlculture and Conservation (410), no agricultural uses

occur at the site and the steepness of the terrain, which is generally about 32 percent slopes, makes

the area unsuitable for agricultural use, No Williamson Act contracts apply to the site. The project

therefore would not conflict with existing zoning for agricultural use or a Williamson Act contract. ln

addition, NMWD is exempt from local land use controls.

c) Would the project conflict with existing zoning for, or cause rezoning of, forest land (as defined in Public

Resources Code Secfion 12220(9)), timberland (as defined by Public Resources Code Section 4526), or

timbertand zonecl Timberland Production (as defined by Government Code Section il 104@))?

No lmpact

The site is not zoned for timberland production.

d) Woutd the project result in fhe ioss of forest land or conversion of forest land to non-forest use?

No lmpact

The site is not designated or used as forest land and thus no significant impacts related to forest land

would result from the project,

e) Would the project involve other changes rn the existing environment which, due to their location or nature,

could result in conversion of Farmland, to non-agricultural use or conversion of forest land to non'forest

use?

No lmpact

Refer to the discussion above for ltems (a) through (d).

REFERENCES

California Deparlment of Conservation, 20'18. Marin County lmporlant Farmland Map 2016

Potentially
Sign ificant
lmpact

Less Than

Significant
with
Mitigation
ln corporated

Less Than
Significant
lmpact

No
lmpact

AIR QUALITY. Where available, the significance criteria established by

the applicable air quality management d¡strict or air pollution control

district may be relied upon to make the following determinations. Would

the prolect:

NÀ¡WD_ ÇEQAChecklisl FINAt {10/23/19) 14
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Potentially
Significant
lmpact

n

Less Than

Significant
with
Mitigation
lncorporated

ft

Less Than
Significant
lmpact

I

No
lmpact

Da) Conflict with or obstruct implementation of the applicable air qualìty

plan?

b) Result in a cumulatively considerable net ¡ncrease of any criteria
poìlutant for which the project region ìs non-attainment under an

applicable federal or State ambient air quality standard?

c) Expose sensitive receptors to substant¡al pollulant concentrations?

d) Result in other emissions (such as those leading to odors) adversely

affecting a substantial number of people?

The project site is located in the San Francisco Bay Area Air Basin (SFBAAB), which is under the

jurisdiction of the Bay Area Air Quality Management District (BAAQMD). ln the SFBAAB, the primary

criteria air pollutants of concern are ground-level ozone formed through reactions of nitrogen oxides

(NO*) and reactive organic gases (ROG), and suspended particulate matter (i,e., respirable particulate

matter [PMro] and fine particulate matter ¡PMz sl). The BAAQMD's CEQA Air Quality Guidelines

(BAAQMD, 2017a) include thresholds of significance to assist lead agencies in evaluating and

mitigating air quality impacts under CEQA, The BAAQMD's thresholds established levels at which

emissions of ozone precursors (ROG and NOr), PMro, PMz s, carbon monoxide (C0), toxic air

contaminants (TACs), and odors could cause significant air quality impacts. The scientific soundness of

the thresholds is supported by substantial evidence presented in the BAAQMD's Revised Draft Options

and Justification Report (BAAQMD, 2009), The BAAQMD's thresholds that relate to the analysis of the

project's impacts on the environment are used in this CEQA analysis in conjunction with the

BAAQMD's current CEQA Air Quality Guidelines (BAAQMD, 2017a). The thresholds of significance

used in this CEQA analysis are summarized in Table 1.

IMPACT EVALUATION

a) Would the project conflict with or obstruct implementation of the applicable air quality plan?

Less Than Significant lmpact

ln accordance with the federal Clean AirAct and California Clean AirAct, the BAAQMD is required to

prepare and update an air quality plan that outlines measures by which both stationary and mobile

sources of pollutants can be controlled in order to achieve federal and state ambient air quality

standards. ln April 2017 ,lhe BAAQMD adopted Ihe 2017 Clean Air Plan: Spare the Air, Cool the

Climate (2017 Clean Air Plan), which includes 85 controlmeasures io reduce ROG, NO', PMro, PMzs,

TACs, and greenhouse gases (GHGs). The 2017 Clean Air Plan was developed based on a multi-

pollutant evaluation method that incorporates well-established studies and methods for quantifying the

health benefits of air quality regulations, computer modeling and analysis of existing air quality

monitoring data and emission inventories, and growth projections prepared by the Metropolitan

Transportation Commission and the Association of Bay Area Governments (BAAQMD, 2017b).
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TneLe 1 Bny Anr¡ AIR Qunlrry M¡ruaoEmerur Drsrnrcr Pno.recr-LevEL THRESHoLDS oF SlcNlFlcANcE

lmpact Analvsis Pollutant Threshold of Significance

ROG 54 pounds/day (average daily emission)

NO' 54 pounds/day (average daily emission)

Regional Air Quality
(Construction)

82 pounds/day (average daily emission)

Exhaust Pl\/z s 54 pounds/day (average daily emission)

Fugitive Dust (PMro and PMzs) Best Management Practices

Exhaust PMro

54 pounds/day (average daily emission)
ROG

10 tons/vear (maximum annual

54 pounds/day (average daily emissìon)
N0"

Regional Air Quality
(Operation)

10 tons/vear (maximum an nual emission)

82 pounds/day (average daily emission)
Exhaust PMro

15 r lmaximum annual emission)

Exhaust PMz.¡
54 pounds/day (average daily emìssion)

10 tons/vear (maximum annual emission

CO
9.0 ppm (B-hour average)

20.0 oom (1 -hour averaqe)

Local Community Risks

and Hazards
(0peration and/or

Construction)

Exhaust PMzs (project) 0.3 ¡rg/m3 (annual average)

Exhaust PlVlz s (cumulative) 0.8 ¡.rg/m3 (annual average)

TACs (project)
Cancer risk increase > 10 in 1 million

Chronic hazard index > 1.0

TACs (cumulative)
Cancer risk > 100 in 1 million

Chronic hazard index > 10.0

Notes: ROG = reactive organic gases; NO* = nitrogen oxides; Pl\4ro = respirable particulate mâtter; PMzs = fìne part¡culate matter; C0 = carbon monoxide;

TACs = toxic air contaminants; ppm = part per millìon; pg/m3 = micrograms per cubic meter

Source: BAAQMD, 2017a.

Based on the BAAQMD's current CEQA Air Quality Guidelines (BAAQMD, 2017a), the following criteria

should be considered to determine if a project would conflict with or obstruct implementation of the

2017 Clean Air Plan:

t Does the project include applicable control measures from the air quality plan?

I Does the project disrupt or hinder implementation of any air quality plan control measures?

I Does the project support the primary goals of the air quality plan?

Ihe 2017 Clean Air Plan includes control measures that aim to reduce air pollution and greenhouse

gases (GHGs)from stationary, area, and mobile sources. The control measures are organized into

nine categories: stationary sources, transportation, energy, buildings, agriculture, natural and working

lands, waste management, water, and Super-GHG pollutants (e,9., methane, blackcarbon, and

fluorinated gases).

As described in Table 2, the project would be consistent with applicable control measures from the

2017 Clean Air Plan. Because the project would not result in any significant and unavoidable air quality

impacts related to emissions, ambient concentrations, or public exposures (see ltems (b) through (d)

below and Section Vlll, Greenhouse Gas Emissions, of this lnitial Study), the project would support the

Nlr4wD CEQACheckl¡st f:INAL (10/23/19) 16
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Pl¡H

2017 Clean Air Plan

Control Measures Proposed Proiect Consistency

Stationary Sources

The stationary source measures are enforced by the Bay Area Air Quality Management Distrìct (BAAQMD)

pursuanl to its authority to control emissions from permitted facilities, The project would not include any new

stationary sources, such as an emergency dresel generator. Therefore, the stationary sources control

measures of the 2017 Clean Air Plan are not applicable to the proiect.

Transportation

The transportation control measures are designed to reduce vehicle trips, use, miles traveled, idling, or

traffìc congestion for the purpose of reducing vehicle emissions. The project operation would not generate

any additional vehicle trips compared to existing conditions, Therefore, the project would be consislent with

the transportation conlrol measures of the 2017 Cìean Air Plan.

Energy

The energy control measures are designed to reduce emissions of criteria air pollutants, toxic air

contamìnants (TACs), and greenhouse gases (GHGs) by decreasing the amount of electricity consumed ¡n

the Bay Area, as well as decreasing the carbon intensity of the electricity used, by switching to less GHG-

intensive fuel sources for electricity generation. Since these measures apply to electrical utility providers

and local government agencies (and not individual projects), the energy control measures of the 2017 Clean

Air Plan are not applicable to the project. Furthermore, project operation would require minimal consumplion

of electricity during tank inspection (once aweek) and tank cleaning (once everyfive years) (Baseline

Environmental Consulting, 2019), Therefore, the energy control measures ofthe 2017 Clean Air Plan are

not aoolicable to the proiect.

Buildings

The BAAQIVD has aulhority to regulate emissions from certain sources in buildings such as boilers and

water healers, but has limited authority to regulate buìldings themselves. Therefore, the building control

measures focus on working with local governments that have authority over local building codes to facilitate

adoption of best GHG control practìces and policies. The proposed project does not include construction of

new buildings, Therefore, the building control measures of the 20'17 Clean Air Plan are not applìcable to the
proiecl.

Agriculture

The agriculture control measures are designed primarily to reduce emissions of methane, Since the project

does not include any agricultural actìvìties, the agriculture control measures of the 2017 Clean Air Plan are

not applicable to the proiect.

Natural and

Working Lands

The conlrol measures for the natural and working lands sector focus on increasing carbon sequestration on

rangelands and wetlands, as well as encouraging local governments to adopt ordinances that promote

urban tree plantings. Since the project does not include the disturbance of any rangelands or wetlands, the

natural and workinq lands control measures of the 2017 Clea¡ Air Plan are not aoolicable to the proiecl.

Waste Management

The waste management measures focus on reducing or capturing methane emissions from landfills and

composling facilities, diverting organic materials away from landfills, and increasing waste diversion rates

through efforts to reduce, reuse, and recycle. The project would generate a minimal amount of wasle from

tank cleaning every five years. Therefore, the waste management measures are not applicable to the

project,

Water

The water control measures to reduce emissions Írom the water sector will reduce emissions of criteria

pollutants, TACs, and GHGs by encouraging waterconservation, limiting GHG emissions from publicly

owned treatment works (POTWs), and promoting the use of biogas recovery systems. The proposed project

would replace an existing water tank and upgrade the infrastructure, increase the water slorage capacity,

and improve the system hydraulics in the project vicinity. Because the project would improve operations of

the POTW water distribution system, the project would be consistent with the water controì measures of the

2017 Clean Air Plan

Super GHGs

The super-GHG control measures are designed to facilitate the adoption of best GHG control practices and

policies through the BAAQIVID and local government agencies. Since these measures do not apply to

individual projects, the super-GHG control measures of the 2017 Clean Air Plan are not applicable to the
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primary goals of lhe 2017 Clean Air Plan. Therefore, based on the BAAQMD's CEQA Air Quality

Guidelines (BAAQMD, 2017a), the project would not conflict with or obstruct implementation of the

applicable air quality plan, and the impact would be less than significant.

b) Would the project result in a cumulatively considerable net increase of any criteria pollutant for which the

project region is non-attainment under an applicable federalor Sfafe ambient air quality standard?

Less Than Significant with Mitigation lncorporated

Construction Emissions

Construction of the project would generate criteria pollutant emissions that could potentially affect

regional air quality. The primary pollutant emissions of concern would be ROG, N0', PMro, and PMz.s

from the exhaust of off-road construction equipment and on-road construction vehicles (worker

vehicles, vendor trucks, and haul trucks). ln addition, fugitive dust emissions of PMro and PMz s would

be generated by soil disturbance activities, and fugitive ROG emissions would result from paving

activities.

The BAAQMD recommends using the most recent version of the California Emissions Estimator Model

(CalEEMod Version 2016.3.2) to estimate construction and operational emissions of pollutants for a

proposed project, CalEEMod uses widely accepted models for emission estimates combined with

appropriate default data for a variety of land use projects that can be used if site-specific information is

not available, The default data (e.9., power of construction equipment) are supporled by substantial

evidence provided by regulatory agencies and a combination of statewide and regionalsurveys. The

primary input data used to estimate emissions associated with construction of the proposed project are

provided by NMWD and contain information on construction phase duration, off-road construction

equipment associated with each phase and the number of workers on-site during each phase. A

summary of construction input parameters for estimating construction emissions is provided in Table 3,

Construction information provided by NMWD and a copy of the CalEEMod report for the proposed

project, which summarizes the input parameters, assumptions, and findings, are provided in

Appendix B. To determine if project construction emissions could substantially contribute to existing

violations of federal and/or state ambient air quality standards in the SFBAAB, the project's emissions

are compared to the BAAQMD's thresholds of significance, below.

TnaLr 3 CoHsrRucloru l¡lpur PnRnmrreRs roR Cnuronun Ervlsslorus Esrlrvlnton Mooel (CntEEMoo)

CalEEMod lnput Cateqorv Construction Assumptions and Chanqes to Default Data

Construction phases include clearing, grubbing, site/road preparation, foundation conslruction, and

lank construction. Duration of each phase is provided by the Norlh l\4arin Water District (NIMWD)

and ls included in Appendix B.

Construction Phase

On-Sile Construction Equipment
The on-site construction equipment list was modified according to site-specific construction

information orovided bv NIVWD (see Appendix B).

Approximately 800 cubic yards of soil export and 330 cubic yards of soil import are anticipated
lVaterial lVovement

NN¡WD..CF0AChecklisl FINAL {10/23119) 1B

by NMWD (see Appendix
Worker and Vendor Trips

du site/road

The default worker trips were modified according to information

B).

Note: Default CalEEMod data used for all other parameters not described.

Source: CalEEl\4od (see Appendix B).
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Construction Fugitive Dusf Emlsslons

lmpact AIR-1: Fugitive dust emissions during project construction could result in a

cumulatively considerable net increase in particulate matter concentrations for which the

region is non.attainment under federal and State of California ambient air quality

standards. (PS)

Project grading and material hauling activities during construction could generate fugitive dust PMro

and PMz s emissions that could result in a potentially significant impact in relation to ambient air quality

standards. The BAAQMD does not have a quantitative threshold of significance for fugitive dust PMro

and PMz s emissions; however, the BAAQMD considers implementation of dust control measures

during construction sufficient to reduce air quality impacts from fugitive dust to a less-than-significant

level. More specifically, the BAAQMD recommends that all construction projects implement the Basic

Construction Mitigation Measures from the BAAQMD's CEQA Air Quality Guidelines (BAAQMD,

2017a) to reduce emissions of fugitive dust (regardless of the estimated emissions). The BAAQMD's

Basic Construction Mitigation Measures for controlling dust are included in Mitigation Measure AIR-1,

below.

Mitigation Measure AtR-1: During project construction, the contractor shall implement a dust

control program that includes the following /neasures recommended by the Bay Area Air Quality

M an ageme nt D istrict (B AAaMD) :

. Allexposed sudaces (e.g., parking areas, staging areas, so/p/es, graded areas, and

unpaved access roads) shall be watered two times per day,

. All haultrucks transpoñing soil, sand, or other loose material off-site shall be covered,

. Track-out control mats shallbe used to contain and minimize mud and dirt track-out onto

adjacent public roads. Any remaining visible mud or di¡f track-out onto adiacent public roads

shalt be removed using wet power vacuum sfreef sweepers, if necess ary. The use of dry

power sweeping is prohibited,

, All vehicle speeds on unpaved roads shall be limited to 15 miles per hour.

, All roadways, driveways, and sidewalks io be paved shall be completed as soon as posslb/e.

Building pads shall be laid as soon as possib/e after grading unless seeding or soil binders

are used,

. A publicty visible sign shall be posfed with the telephone number and person to contact at

the tead agency regarding dust complainfs. Ihis person shall respond and take corrective

action within 4B hours, The BAAQMD phone number shall also be visible to ensure

compliance with applicable regulations,

ln addition, Notlh Marin Water District (NMWD) staff or an independent construction monitor

shall conduct periodic site inspections, but in no event fewer than four total inspections, during

the course of construction to ensure these mitigation measures are implemented and sha// issue

a letter repoft documenting the inspection resu/fs. Reporfs indicating non-compliance with
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construction mitigation /neasures shall be cause to lssue a stop-work order until such t¡me as

compliance is achieved. (LTS)

Construction ROG, NO,, and Exhaust PMrc and PMz s Emissions

Estimates of construction emissions were averaged over the total worklng days and compared to the

BAAQMD's thresholds of significance in Table 4. The project's estimated emissions of ROG, NO*, and

exhaust PMro and PMz s were below the applicable thresholds, Therefore, project construction would

not result in a considerable net increase in ozone or particulate matter concentrations for which the

region is non-attainment under federal and state ambient air quality standards, and the associated

impact would be less than significant.

T¡eLE 4 EsrtN¡t¡o Aln Eulsslorus (Pour'ros een Dnv) Dunt¡¡c Pno¡rcr Corusrnuctlot¡

ROG NO,

Exhaust
PMro

Exhaust
PMz,s

Unmitigated Construction Emissions 29 25.5 LJ 1.2

BAAQMD's Thresholds of Signif icance 54 54 B2 54

Exceed Threshold? No No No No

Notes: BAAQI/D = Bay Area Air Quality Management District; ROG = reactive organic gases, NO" = nikogen oxides; Pl\,4r¡ =

respirable particulate matter; PlVz s = fine particulate matter

Source: CalEEMod (see Appendix B).

Operational Emissions

Operation of the proposed watertank, the newaccess road, and otherancillary improvements would

not generate criteria pollutant emissions except for vehicular emissions from tank inspection and

cleaning, Because tank inspection would only occur once a week and tank cleaning would only occur

once every five years (Baseline Environmental Consulting, 2019), criteria pollutant emissions from

project operations would be negligible. Therefore, project operation would not result in a considerable

net increase in ozone or part¡culate matter concentrations for which the region is non-attainment under

federal and state ambient air quality standards, and the associated impact would be less than

significant.

c) Would the project expose senslfiye receptors to substantial pollutant concentrations?

Less Than Significant lmpact

The term "sensitive receptof' refers to a location where individuals are more susceptible to poor air

quality. Sensitive receptors include schools, convalescent homes, and hospitals because the very

young, the old, and the infirm are more susceptible than the rest of the public to air quality-related

health problems. Residential areas are also considered sensitive to poor air qualiiy because people are

often at home for extended periods, thereby increasing the duration of exposure to potential air

contaminants. The BAAQMD recommends evaluating the potential impacts on sensitive receptors
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located within 1,000 feet of a project. The project's potential impacts on sensitive receptors from

em¡ssions of CO and TACs are discussed below,

Localized Carbon Monoxide Concentrations

The occurrence of localized CO concentrations, also known as "hotspots," can affect sensitive

receptors in local communities. Local CO emissions are often associated with heavy traffic congestion,

which most frequently occurs at signalized intersections of high-volume roadways, The BAAQMD's

threshold of significance for local CO concentrations is equivalent to the 1- and 8-hour California

Ambient Air Quality Standards (CAAOS) of 20.0 and 9.0 parts per million, respectively, because these

represent levels that are protective of public health.

Operation of the proposed project would include infrequent vehicle trips associated with a weekly tank

inspection and five-year tank cleaning (Baseline Environmental Consulting ,2019). According to the

BAAQMD CEQA Guidelines (BAAQMD, 2017a), since operation of the proposed project would not

generate more than 44,000 vehicles per hour at the affected intersections, the project would not be

expected to increase local C0 levels above the CAAQS. Therefore, the project would have a less-than-

significant impact on nearby sensitive receptors exposed to local C0 concentrations.

Toxic Air Contaminants from Construction

Project construciion would generate diesel particulate matter (DPM)and PMzs emissions from off-road

diesel construction equipment and on-road vehicles traveling to and from the project site, and these

emissions could affect nearby sensitive receptors. The annual average concentrations of DPM and

PMz s concerìtrations were estimated within 1,000 feei of the proposed project using the U.S,

Environmental Protection Agency (EPA) lndustrial Source Complex Shorl Term (lSCST3) air dispersion

model (EPA, '1995). For this analysis, emissions of exhaust PMro were used as a surrogate for DPM.

Because less than 1 percent of the total construction emissions of DPM and PMz s would be generated

by on-road vehicles (worker, vendor, and haul trucks) traveling to and from the project site, only the off-

road diesel construction equipment was included in the analysis. The input parameters and

assumptions used for estimating emission rates of DPM and PMz s from off-road diesel construction

equipment are included in the Appendix B, which is available at NMWD's offices.

The exhaust from off-road equipment was represented in the ISCST3 model as a series of volume

sources with a release height of 5 meters to represent the mid-range of the expected plume rise from

frequently used construction equipment. Dispersion of air pollutants from off-road construction

equipment was modeled using the ¡/Q ("chi over q") method, such that each source has a unit

emission rate (e,g., '1 gram per second for volume sources). The annual average concentration profiles

from the air dispersion model were then scaled according to the ratio between the unit emission rate

and the actual emission rate from each source, Actual emission rates for off-road equipment were

based on the actualhours of work and averaged over the entire duration of construction, Daily

emissions from construction were assumed to occur from 8:00 AM to 5:00 PM Monday through Friday

(Baseline Environmental Consulting, 2019).
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A uniform grid of receptors spaced 10 meters apart with receptor heights of 1 ,B meters was

encompassed around the project site as a means of developing isopleths (i.e., concentration contours)

that illustrate the air dispersion pattern from the various emission sources. Terrain variation on and

near the project site was incorporated in the ISCST3 model to assign elevations to the emission

sources and receptors, based on the National Aeronautics and Space Administration Shuttle Radar

Topography Mission Version 3.0 elevation data at 1-second resolution. The ISCST3 modelinput
parameters included three years of BAAQMD meteorologicaldata at the Sonoma Baylands weather

station located about 7.6 miles norlheast of the project site.

Based on the results of the air dispersion model (see Appendix B), potential health risks were

evaluated for the maximally exposed individual resident (MEIR) located at a single-family home about

160 feet south of the project site. ln accordance with guidance from the BAAQMD (2016) and the Office

of Environmental Health Hazard Assessment (OEHHA) (OEHHA, 20'15), a health risk assessment was

conducted to calculate the incremental increase in cancer risk and chronic hazard index (Hl)to the

MEIR from DPM emissions during construction. Analysis of acute non-cancer health hazards from

construction activity is not recommended by the BAAQMD, nor has a reference exposure level been

approved by OEHHA and the California Air Resources Board (CARB). The annual average

concentration of DPM at the MEIR was used to conservatively assess potential health risks to nearby

sensitive receptors. At the MEIR location, the incremental increase in cancer risk from on-site DPM

emissions during construction was assessed fora young child exposed to DPM for 10 months starting

from in utero in the third trimester of pregnancy. This exposure scenario represents the most sensitive

individuals who could be exposed to adverse air quality conditions in the vicinity of the project site. The

input parameters and results of the health risk assessment are included in Appendix B.

Estimated health risks at the MEIR from DPM and PMz s concentrations during construction of the

proposed project are summarized and compared to the BAAQMD's thresholds of significance in

Table 5. The estimated excess cancer risk, the chronic Hl, and the annualaverage PMzs

concentrations at the MEIR were below the BAAQMD's thresholds of significance. Therefore,

construction of the proposed project would have a less-than-significant impact related to the exposure

of sensitive receptors to DPM and PMz s concentrations.

TneLr 5 HE¡lrH Rlsxs nruo Hnznnos rnoN Arn ENrssrorus nr Mnxrunllv Exposeo lruolvlou¡t- Rrstoerur

Dunr¡rc PRo¡ecr CorusrRucloru

Diesel Particulate Matter
DPM) Exhaust PMz s

{per n!!!

Cancer Risk
ion)

Chronic
Hazard lndex

Annual Average
Concentration

(pg/m3)

Exposure of lMaximally Exposed Individual Resident (MEIR)

durìnq Proiect Construclion
6B 0,01 0.05

Thresholds of Significance '10 03
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Toxic Air Contaminants from Operation

Project operations would not introduce a new stationary source of TAC emissions, Therefore, project

operations would have no impact on nearby sens¡tive receptors related to substantial pollutant

concentrations,

Cumulative TAC Emissions

The project site is located in a ruralarea. There is no existing stationary source orforeseeable future

source of TACs within '1,000 feet of the MEIR according to the BAAQMD and the County of Marin,

respectively (BAAQMD, 2019; County of Marin, 2019). Therefore, the cumulative impact on nearby

sensitive receptors from exposure to TAC and PMzs emissions during construction of the proposed

project would be less than significant.

d) Would the project result in ofher emissions (such as fhose leading to odors) adversely affecting a

substantial number of people?

Less Than Significant lmpact

Project construction and operation would not be expected to generate significant odors because the

project would not include handling or generation of noxious materials. Therefore, project impacts

related to odors would be less than significant,
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lV. BIOLOGICAL RES0URCES. Would the project:

a) Have a substantial adverse effect, either directly or through habitat

modifications, on any species identified as a candidate, sensitive, or

special status species in local or regional plans, policies, or

regulations, or by the California Department of Fish and Game or

U.S, Fish and Wildlife Service?

u

b) Have a substantial adverse effect on any riparian habitat or other
sensitive natural community identified in local or regional plans,

policies, regulations, or by the California Department of Fish and

Game or U,S, Fish and Wildìife Service?

c) Have a substantial adverse effect on state or federally protected

wetlands (including, but not lìmited to, marsh, vernal pool, coastal,

etc.) through direcl removal, filling, hydrological interruption, or other

means?

d) lnterfere substantially with the movement of any native resident or

migratory fish or wildlife species or with established native resident

or migratory wildlife corridors, or impede the use of native wildlife

nursery sites?

e) Conflict with any local policies or ordinances prolecling biologìcal

resources, such as a tree preservation policy or ordinance?

f) Conflict wìth the provisions of an adopted Habitat Conservation Plan

Natural Community Conservation Plan or other approved local,

regional, or state habitat conservation plan?

ú

lnformation regarding biological and wetland resources for the project site is based on the review of

available information, including project designs and the occurrence records of the California Natural

Diversity Data Base (CNDDB) of the California Department of Fish and Wildlife (CDFW). A systematic

survey for rare plants was conducted on June 24,2019, and a follow-up field reconnaissance survey

was conducted by the lnitial Study biologist on August 28,2019, to confirm existing conditions and

assess the potential impacts of the proposed project.

The project site is located in an area 0f relatively dense woodlands and savanna, which is dominated

by several species of oak and other native tree species. Tree species present on the site include black
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oak (Quercus kelloggil, valley oak (Q. /obafa), coast live oak (Q. agrifolia), blue oak (Q, douglasil,
California bay (Umbellularia californica), and madrone (Arbutus menziesit. Where the woodland

canopy is closed, understory vegetation is generally sparse, composed of poison oak(Toxicodendron
diversilobum), coyote brush (Eaccharis pilularis), toyon (Heteromels arbutifolia) green leaved

manzanita (Arctostaphylos manzanita ssp. manzanrïa), and other shrub and groundcover species.

Where the canopy is open or sparse, the understory is dominated by a relatively dense cover of non-

native grassland species and scattered shrubs. Common species are generally not native and include

slender oats (Avena barbata), bromes (Bromus spp.), filaree (Erodium ssp.), and common vetch (Vicia

safiva ssp, sativa). The grasslands contain native grasses and forbs, such as blue wild rye (Elymus

glaucus), California oat grass (Danthonia californica), Torrey melic (Melica californica), smooth mule

ears (Wyethia glabra), and bedstraw (Galium spp.) but these native species do not occur in densities

that would qualify as a native grassland. lnvasive Spanish broom (Spartium junceum) and French

broom (Genr,sfa monspessu/ana) are beginning to spread through the woodland, contributing to fire fuel

loads and replacing native cover, which is a common problem in undeveloped areas of Marin County.

The woodlands and open grasslands provide denning, nesting, and foraging opportunities for
numerous species of small mammals, reptiles, and birds. Mammals and reptiles found in the project

site vicinity likely include deer mouse, woodrat, stripped skunk, grey squirrel, western skink, newts,

ensatina, ring-necked snake, and rubber boa. Larger mammals such as black-tailed deer and predatory

species such as grey fox, mountain lion, and coyote most likely forage throughout the woodlands and

open savanna. The trees provide nesting cavities, perching and foraging opportunities, and nesting

substrate for numerous species of birds, including jays, woodpeckers, kinglets, and bushtits. Several

species of raptors use the mature trees for roosting and possibly nesting with foraging in the understory
and areas of open grassland. These raptor species include red-tailed hawk, Cooper's hawk, white-

tailed kite, turkey vulture, great-horned owl, and barn owl.

IMPACT EVALUATION

a) Would the project have a substantial adverse effect, either directly or through habitat modifications, on any
specles identified as a candidate, sensiflve, or specialsfafus specles in localor regionalplans, policies, or
regulations, or by the California Department of Fish and Game or U.S. Fish and Wildlife Seruice?

Less Than Significant with Mitigation lncorporated

A record search conducted by the CNDDB and the other relevant information sources indicate that

numerous plant and animal species with special status have either been recorded from or are

suspected to occur in the Novato vicinity and northeastern Marin County area, Special-status speciesa

a Special-status species include:

Officially designated (rare, threatened, or endangered) and candidate species for listing identified by the CDFW;

Officially designated (threatened or endangered) and candidate specres for lìsting identìfied by the U.S, Fish and Wìldlife Service

(usFWS);

Species considered to be rare or endangered under the conditions of Section 15380 of the California Environmental Quality Act
(CEQA) Guidelines, such as those wilh a rank of 1 or 2 in the lnventory of Rare and Endangered Plants of California maintained by

the California Native Plant Society (CNPS); and

NltIWD-CEQAChecklisl .Fl NAL { 1 0/2311 9)
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are plants and animals that are legally protected under the State of California and/or federal

Endangered Species Actss or other regulations, as well as other species that are considered rare

enough by the scientific community and trustee agencies to warrant special consideration, particularly

with regard to protection of isolated populations, nesting or denning locations, communal roosts, and

other essential habitat. Species protected by the California Endangered Species Act (CESA) and

federal Endangered Species Act (FESA) often represent major constraints to development, particularly

when the species are wide-ranging or highly sensitive to habitat disturbance and where proposed

development would result in a "take"6 of these species.

Figures 5 and 6 show the distribution of special-status plant and animal species, respectively, as

reported by the CNDDB within approximately 5 miles of the project site, According to CNDDB records,

no special-status plant or animal species have been reporled from the project site, but a general

occurrence of Townsend's big-eared bal (Corynorhinus townsendir) extends over the southwest area of
Novato. Townsend's big-eared bat is one of several native bat species recognized as "Species of

Special Concern" (SSC) by the CDFW. lt is known to establish day roosts in rock outcrops, mines,

caves, building, bridges, and tree cavities, lnspection of the trees on the project site did not indicate

any cavities that would allow for roosting by Townsend's or other special-status bat species, which

typically avoid areas of human activity.

Most of the special-status species reported from the Novato vicinity occur in naturalhabitats such as

coastalsalt marsh, riparian woodlands, and forest habitats, allof which are absentfrom the project site

A number of special-status plant species are known from open woodlands and grasslands of eastern

Marin County, but none were detected during the systematic survey of the site or are believed to be

present. With the exception of possible presence of nesting birds that would be protected under state

and federal regulations when the nests are in active use, no special-status species are suspected to

occur on the project site.

Nests of most bird species are protected under the Migratory Bird Treaty Act (MBTA) when the nests

are in active use, and nests of raptors (birds-of-prey) are also protected under the California Fish and

Game Code when the nests are in active use, No nesting or roosting locations have been identified by

the CNDDB for the project site or immediate vicinity, or were observed during the field surveys.

However, trees on the project site contain suitable nesting substrate for some bird species recognized

as SSC by the CDFW, as well as more common species, and new nests could be established in the

future. The MBTA prohibits killing, possessing, or trading in migratory birds, except in accordance with

. Possibly other species that are considered sensitive or of special concern due to limited distribution or lack of adequate information to

permit listing or rejection for state or federal status, such as those with a rank of 3 and 4 in the CNPS lnventory or identified as animaì

"Species of Special Concern" (SSC) by the CDFW. Species of Special Concern have no legal protective status under the CESA but

are of concern to the CDFW because of severe decline in breeding populations in Caìifornia.
s The federal Endangered Species Act (FESA) of 1973 declares that all federal departments and agencies shall utilize their authority

to conserve endangered and threatened plant and animal species, The California Endangered Specìes Act (CESA) of 1984 parallels the

policies of the FESA and pertains to native California species,
6 "Take" as defined by the FESA means "to harass, harm, pursue, hunt, shoot, wound, kill, trap, capture or collect" a threatened or

endangered species. "Harm" is further defined by the USFWS to include the killing or harming of wildlife due to signifìcant obstruction of

essential behavior palterns (i.e., breeding, feeding, or sheltering) through significant habitat modification or degradation, The CDFW also

considers the loss of lisled species habìtat as take, although this policy lacks statutory authority and case law support under the CESA.
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SOURCES: California Natural Diversity Database accessed on August 15,20'19;
USGS base map by ESR| and NGS.

Map produced by www.digitalmappingsolutions.com on 8/1 5/2019.
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Species and Acronyms

Cal¡forn¡a black rail (Cbr)

California Ridgway's rail (CRr)

foothill yellow{egged frog (û-ff )
great blue heron (gbh)
great egret (9e)

Marin bl¡nd harvestman (Mbh)
mim¡c tryonia (mt)
Opler's longhorn moth (Olm)
pallid bat (pb)
salt-marsh harvest mouse (s-mhm)

san Pablo song sparrow (SPss)

snowy egret (se)

tidewater goby (tg)
Townsend's big-eared bat CfÞeb)
Ubick's gnaphosid spider (U9s)

westêrn bumblê bee (wbb)
western pond turtle (wpt)
white-taìled k¡te (w-tk)

SOURCES: California Natural Diversity Database accessed on August 15,2019;
USGS base map by ESRI and NGS. Map produced by www.digitalmappingsolutions.com on 8/16/20"19.
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regulations prescribed by the Secretary of the lnterior; this prohibition includes whole birds, parts of

birds, and bird nests and eggs, Tree removal and other construction activities during the breeding

season could result in the incidental loss of fertile eggs or nestlings or nest abandonment. This would

be considered a potentially significant impact.

A standard method to address the potential for nesting birds is either to initiate construction during the

non-nesting season, which in Marin County is typically from September 1 to January 31, or to conduct

a nesting survey within 14 days prior to initial tree removal and construction to determine whether any

active nests are present that must be protected until any young have fledged and are no longer

dependent on the nest, Protection of the nests, if present, would require that construction setbacks be

provided during the nesting and fledging period, with the setback depending on the type of bird

species, degree to which the individuals have already acclimated to other ongoing disturbance, and

other factors. Without these controls, tree removal and construction activities could have a potentially

significant impact on nesting birds. The following measure is recommended to fully mitigate the

potentially significant impacts of the project on special-status species.

lmpact BIOLOGY-1: Removal of trees and other activities during project construction may result

in the inadvertent loss of bird nests in active use unless appropriate precautions are followed,
(Ps)

Mitiqation Measure BIOLOGY-I: Adequate rneasures shallbe taken to avoid inadveftenttake of
raptor nests and other nesting birds protected under the Migratory Bird Treaty Act when in active

use. Ihis shall be accomplished by taking the following steps:

. lf construction is proposed during the nesting season (February through August), a focused

suryey for nesting raptors and other migratory birds shall be conducted by a qualified

biologist within 14 days prior to the onset of tree removal or construction, in order to identify

any active nesfs on the project site and in the vicinity of proposed construction,

. lf no acfiye nesfs are identified during the suntey period, or if development is initiated during

the non-breeding season (September through February), construction may proceed with no

restrictions.

. tf bird nesfs are found, an adequate setback shallbe esfab/r,shed around the nest location

and construction activities restricted within this no-disturbance zone untilthe qualified

biologist has confirmed that any young birds have fledged and are able to function outside

the nest location. Required setback distances for the no-disturbance zone shall be based on

input received from the California Deparfment of Fish and Wildlife (CDFW), and may vary

depending on species and sensitivity to disturbance. As necessary, the no-disturbance zone

shall be fenced with temporary orange construction fencing if construction is to be initiated

on the remainder of the construction area.

. A report of findings shall be prepared by the qualified biologist and submitted to the Nofth

Marin Water District (NMWD) for review and approval prior to initiation of construction within

the no-disturbance zone during the nesting season (February through August). The report

NMWD,,CEQAChecklisl FINAI- {10/23/19) 29
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either shatl confirm absence of any active nesfs or shall confirm that any young within a

designated no-disturbance zone have fledged and construction can proceed.

lmplementation of Mitigation Measure BIOLOGY-1 would reduce potentially significant impacts

on nesting birds to a /ess-fhan-significant level. (LTS)

b) Woutd the project have a substantíal aclverse effect on any riparian habitat or other sensitive natural

community Ìdentified in locat or regional plans, policies, regulations, or by the California Department of Fish

and Game or U.S. Fish and Wildlife Servtce?

No lmpact

Sensitive natural communities are community types recognized by the CDFW and other agencies

because of their rarity, ln the Novato vicinity, sensitive natural community types include coastal salt

marsh, brackish water, freshwater marshlands, and native grasslands, among other community types.

While the grassland cover in the open woodlands on the project site includes some clumps of native

grasses, such as Torrey melic and California oat grass, these do not occur in high enough densities or

special area to be considered a sensitive natural community type. Thus, sensitive natural community

types are absent from the site and vicinity of proposed construction, and no adverse impacts are

anticipated. No significant impacts are expected and no mitigation is required,

c) Woutd the project have a substantial adverse effect on sfafe or federally protected wetlands (including, but

not limited to, marsh, vernal pool, coastal, etc.) through direct removal, filling, hydrological interruption, or

other means?

No lmpact

Although definitions vary to some degree, wetlands are generally considered to be areas that are

periodically or permanently inundated by surface or ground water and support vegetation adapted to

life in saturated soil. Wetlands are recognized as important features on a regional and national level

due to their high inherent value to fish and wildlife, use as storage areas for storm and flood waters,

and water recharge, filtration, and purification functions.

The CDFW, U.S. Army Corps of Engineers (Corps), and California Regional Water Quality Control

Board (RWQCB) have jurisdiction over modifications to wetlands and other "waters of the United

States." Jurisdiction of the Corps is established through provisions of Section 404 of the Clean Water

Act, which prohibits the discharge of dredged or fill material without a permit. The RWQCB jurisdiction

is established through Section 401 of the Clean WaterAct, which requires certification orwaiverto

control discharges in water quality, and the State Porler-Cologne Act. Jurisdictional authority of the

CDFW over wetland areas is established under Sections 1600-1607 of the California Fish and Game

Code, which pertain to activities that would disrupt the natural flow or alter ihe channel, bed, or bank of

any lake, river, or stream.

A preliminary wetland assessment was conducted during the field reconnaissance survey. No

indications of any jurisdictional waters, including headwater drainages, were observed on the project
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site. As part of the project, Standard Best Management Practices (BMPs)would be used to prevent any

sedimentation or erosion, preventing any potential for water quality degradation to downgradient

waters, as discussed further under Section X, Hydrology and Water Quality, below. No direct or indirect

impacts on the jurisdictional waters are anticipated, and no mitigation is required.

d) Would the project interfere substantially with the movement of any native resident or migratory fish or
wildlife species or with esfab/ished native resident or migratory wildlife corridors, or impede the use of
native wildlife nursery sites?

Less Than Significant lmpact

The proposed pro¡ect would not have any significant adverse impacts on wildlife movement

opporlunities or adversely affect native wildlife nursery sites. The project site would remain open to

movement opportunities by terrestrial wildlife and dispersing birds following construction of the access

road and watertank. Grading and construction would temporarily disruptwildlife use of the immediate

vicinity, but this would be a relatively short-term effect on common wildlife species, which could

continue to use the sunounding undeveloped hillside for foraging and other activities. Pre-construction

surveys recommended in Mitigation Measure BIOLOGY-1 would ensure avoidance of any nesting birds

if new nests become established before construction is initiated. No substantial disruption of movement

corridors or access to native wildlife nursery sites is anticipated, Potential impacts on wildlife movement

opportunities would be less than significant and no mitigation is required,

e) Would the project conflict with any local policies or ordinances protecting biologicalresources, such as a

tree preservation policy or ordinance?

Less Than Significant lmpact

Policies in the National Resources Element of |the Marin Countywide P/an address the protection of

sensitive biological and wetland resources, including creeks, significant habitat for fish, wildlife and

flora, and natural features. With the exception of trees of protected size under the Marin County Tree

Protection Ordinance, there are no other sensitive biological resources on the project site. No impacts

on creeks, special-status species, orsensitive naturalcommunities are anticipated as a resultof the

project; appropriate measures would be taken to minimize damage or loss of trees, and BMPs would

be followed to prevent sediment and other construction-generated pollutants from reaching

downstream waters. Preconstruction surveys for possible nesting birds would be conducted as

recommended in Mitigation Measure Bl0LOGY-'1, which would ensure avoidance of any nesting birds

if new nests become established before construction is initiated, No substantialconflicts with the Marn
Countywide Plan are anticipated as a result of the project.

Chapter 22.27,Naïive Tree Protection and Preservation, of the Marin County Code provides forthe
protection of native trees that qualify as "protected" or "heritage" size. The minimum size for trees that

qualify as "protected" under the code varies from either 6 or 10 inches diameter at breast height (DBH),

with oaks and madrone having a minimum size of 6 inches and California bay having a minimum size

of 10 inches, Trees that qualify as "heritage" under the code also vary in size, with oaks and madrone

having a minimum size of 18 inches DBH and California bay having a minimum size of 30 inches. The

NMWD CEQAChecklist-.FlNAL {10/23119) 31



lrurlnr Sruoy/Mncnreo NEonttve DrcLRnnllo¡r roR rHe

Nonru MRnrru W¡ren Drsrnrcr Oro R¡t'rcH Rono Tnrur No, 2 Pno¡rcr

ordlnance prohibits the removal of any protected or heritage tree without a permit for individuals and

organizations subject to its provisions, defines the process for securing a tree removal permit, and

identifies exemptions and options for addressing tree loss where avoidance is infeasible.

The project would be located in an area of open woodland, and numerous young trees would be

removed or could be damaged as a result of project construction. Based on mapping prepared by

NMWD's engineer, a total of 66 trees with trunk diameters ranging from 6 to '15 inches DBH would be

removed to accommodate the proposed new road and water tank. These consist of 62 oaks and 4

rnadrones that would meet the minimum trunk size to qualify as a "protected" tree under the Marin

County Code, An additional five California bay trees with trunk diameters of 6 to B inches would also be

removed, but these are below the minimum to qualify as "protected" under the Marin County Code. The

health of these trees varies, but most are in good to poor condition, growing in a relatively dense

woodland where native regeneration is considerable. Numerous younger sapling trees also occur

within the limits of grading and on the surrounding hillside, and are adding to the density of trees

growing in the woodland, This density is most likely due to the absence of domestic grazing in the area,

fire prevention, and absence of any vegetation management on the site,

As a public water district, NMWD is not subject to the provisions of the Marin County Code, although it

typically strives to comply with the intent of these regulations. ln this case, potentialconflict with the

Marin County Code is considered less than significant, for the following reasons. First, while the

number of trees to be removed would be considerable, the proposed alignment for the new road and

location of the new tank have generally been sited to minimize tree removal. Providing replacement

plantings for trees to be removed would contribute to further densification of the existing conditions in

the woodlands on the site, and it is unlikely these trees would thrive. Providing replacement plantings

also may create overcrowded conditions that compromise the health of the existing established trees in

the area. Natural regeneration will continue in the area, as is currently taking place, and new trees will

eventually become established along the margins of the new maintenance road where their survival is

possible. Forthese reasons, no majorconflicts with the intentof the Marin County Code are

anticipated; the impact would be considered less than significant, and no mitigation is necessary,

fl Would the project conflict with the provisions of an adopted Habitat Conservation PIan, Natural Community

Conservation Plan or other approved local, regional, or state habitat conservation plan?

No lmpact

There are currently no adopted Habitat Conservation Plans or Natural Community Conservation Plans

for the project site or sunounding areas. No adopted Habitat Conservation Plan, Natural Community

Conservation Plan, or other conseruation plan applies to the project site, no impacts regarding possible

conflicts with an adopted plan are anticipated, and no mitigation is required.

NN/WD CEQACh0cklist-FINAL (10/23/19)
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REFERENCES

California Deparlment of Fish and Wildlife (CDFW), Biogeographic lnformation Services, 2019.

California Natural Diversity Data Base (CNDDB) GIS data accessed online on August 15,

2019.

U.S. Fish and Wildlife Service (USFWS), Sacramento Endangered Species Division, 20'19. Critical

Habitat database accessed online on August 15,2019.
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lmpact

CULTURAL RESOURCES. Would the project:

a) Cause a substantial adverse change in the significance of a

historical resource pursuant to Section 15064.5?

b) Cause a substantial adverse change in the significance of an

archaeological resource pursuant to Section 15064,5?

c) Disturb any human remains, including those intened outside of

dedicated cemeteries?

tr u
tr
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IMPACT EVALUATION

a) Would the project cause a substantial adverse change in the significance of a historical resource pursuant

fo Secfion 15064.5?

Less Than Significant with Mitigation lncorporated

For a cultural resource to be considered a historical resource (i,e., eligible for listing in the California

Register of Historical Resources ICRHR]), it generally must be at least 50 years old. Under CEQA,

historical resources can include pre-contact (i,e., Native American) archaeological deposits, historic-

period archaeologicaldeposits, historic buildings, and historic districts,

To identify historical resources at the project site, the following tasks were completed for this lnitial

Study: 1) a records search was conducted at the Northwest lnformation Center (NWIC) of the California

Historical Resources lnformation System;7 2) geologic and historical maps and information were

reviewed to assess the potential for buried historic-period and pre-contact Native American

archaeological deposits; and 3) a qualified archaeologist surveyed the project site to identify sufface

evidence of archaeological deposits. Based on the results of these tasks-which are described

below-the project would have a potentially significant impact on archaeological historical resources

unless mitigation is incorporated.

? The NWIC is an affiliate of the State of California Office of Historic Preservation (OHP) and is the otficial State repository of cultural

resources records and reports for lMarin County,

Potentially
Significant
lmpact

Less Than
Significant
with
Mitigation
lncorporated

Less Than

Significant
lmpact

D

ú

u
n
fl

NN/WD CEQA0hecklist.FlNAL ('10i23l19) JJ



lulrnr Sruov/lVncATED NEcATtvE DecLnRnlo¡l ron tue
NOnrH MnRr¡l Wnren DrSlRlCl OLO R¡r'lCH RO¡o T¡r,lK NO. 2 PROJECT

Records Search

The NWIC records search was conducted on Augusl12,2019, and included the projectsite and a

0.25-mile search radius,

The NWIC database indicates that there are no recorded cultural resources at, or previous cultural

resource studies of, the project site. There are no recorded cultural resources within 0.25 mile of the

project site.

Map Review

The surface geology of the project site is Franciscan Complex sandstone and shale (KJfs) (Rice et al,,

2002). The Franciscan Complex formed during the late Mesozoic era, long before human occupation of

North America. Buried pre-contact archaeological deposits are not anticipated at ihe project site due to

the age of the Franciscan Complex and absence of a depositional environment that could have buried

former living surfaces. Pre-contact archaeological materials-should these occur at the project site-
would be expected to occur at or near the present-day ground surface.

The historical maps reviewed do not indicate a potentialfor historic-period archaeological deposits or

features. Sanborn Fire lnsurance maps do not provide coverage of the project site or vicinity, indicating

that physical development was too sparse to warrant inspection by the insurance industry in the late

19th and early 20th centuries. Historicaltopographic maps published between 1914 and '1968 indicate

no buildings or structures at or near the project site (U.S. Army Corps of Engineers, 1942; U.S.

Geological Survey, 1914, 1954, 1968).

Field Survey

A Registered ProfessionalArchaeologist surveyed the project site on August 28,2019. The length of

the project site was walked twice in spaced, parallel, zig-zag transects, A hoe was used intermittently to

scrape surface vegetation to inspect the underlying rocky loam for archaeological materials.

No archaeological cultural resources were identified during the survey.

There is a redwood water tank near the project site that is over 50 years old. NMWD has determined

that the existing water tank is not a historical resource for purposes of CEQA.

Summary

The NWIC records search and field survey did not identify cultural resources at the project site, The

map review indicates a low potentialfor buried pre-contact and historic-period archaeological historical

resources. Although the potential for identifying archaeological historical resources during project

ground disturbance is low, the presence of such resources cannot be entirely discounted. The dense

surface vegetation encountered during the field survey, for example, could have obscured

archaeological deposits ihat could be uncovered during project implementation. Should such deposits

be encountered during project ground disturbance, a substantial adverse change in the significance of
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a historical resource would occur from the resource's demolition, destruction, relocation, or alteration

such that the significance of the resource would be materially impaired (CEQA Guidelines Section

15064.5(bX1))(see lmpact CULTURAL-1 and Mitigation Measure CULTURAL-1 below).

lmpact CULTURAL-1: The project could unearth archaeological deposits, thereby causing a

substantial adverse change in the significance of a historical resource as defined in California

Environmental Quality Act (CEQA) Guidelines Section 15064.5' (PS)

Mitioation Measure CUL TI]RAL-1,. Should an archaeological deposit be encountered during

project subsurface construction activities, all ground-disturbing activities within 25 feet shall be

redirected and a qualified archaeologist meeting the Secretary of the lnteriols Professional

Quatifications Sfandards for Archeology contacted fo assess the situation, determine if the

deposit qualifies as a historical resource, consult with agencies as appropriate, and make

recommendations for the treatment of the discovery. lf the deposit is found to be significant

(i.e., etigible for tisting in the California Register of HistoricalResources [CRHR]), the North Marin

Water District (NMWD) shall be responsib/e for funding and implementing appropriate mitigation

rneasures. Mitigation rneasures may include recording of the archaeologicaldeposi| data

recovery and analysis, and public outreach regarding the scientific and cultural importance of the

discovery, lJpon completion of the se/ecfed mitigations, a repor-t documenting methods, findings,

and recommendations shall be prepared and submitted to NMWD for review, and the final report

shatt be submitted to the Northwest lnformation Center (NWIC) at Sonoma State University.

Significant archaeological materials shall be submitted to an appropriate local curation facility

and used for future research and public interpretive displays, as appropriate,

NMWD shall inform its contractor(s) of the sensitivity of the project area for archaeological

deposifs and shall verify that the following directive has been included in the appropriate contract

documents:

"The subsurface of the construction site may be sensilive for Native American archaeological

deposifs and associated human remains, lf archaeological deposifs are encountered during

project subsurface construction, all ground-disturbing activities within 25 feet shall stop and a

quatified archaeologist contacted fo assess the situation and make recommendations for the

treatment of the discovery. Project personnel shall not collect or move any archaeological

materials. Archaeological deposifs can include shellfish remains;bones,' flakes of , and tools

made from, obsidian, chert, and basalt; and mortars and pesfies, Contractor acknowledges

and understands that excavation or removal of archaeological material is prohibited by law

and constitutes a misdemeanor under California Public Resources Code, Secfion 5097.5.'

With implementation of this mitigation measure, the potential impact on historical and

archaeological resources would be reduced to a lesslhan-significant level. (LTS)

NMWD*CEQAChecklisl,FlNAt (1 0/2311 9)
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b) Woutd the project cause a substantial adverse change in the significance of an archaeolog¡cal resource

pursuant fo Secflon 15064.5?

Less Than Significant with Mitigation lncorporated

According to the CEQA Guidelines, "When a project will impact an archaeological site, a lead agency

shall first determine whether the site is an historical resollrce" (CEQA Guidelines Section

1506a.5(c)(1)). Those archaeologicalsites thatdo notqualify as historicalresources shallbe assessed

to cletermine if these qualify as "unique archaeological resources" (California Public Resources Code

Section 21083.2). Archaeological deposits identified during project construction must be treated by

NMWD-in consultation with a qualified archaeologist meeting the Secrefary of the lnteriof s

Professional Qualifications Sfandards for Archeology-in accordance with Mitigation Measure

CULTURAL-1.

lmpact CULTURAL-2: The project could unearth archaeological deposits, thereby causing a

substantial adverse change in the significance of an archaeological resource as defined in

California Environmental Quality Act (CEQA) Guidelines Section 15064.5. (PS)

Mitiqation Measure CU LTURAL-2: Mitigation Measure CU LTU RAL-1 shall be implemented.

(Lrs)

c) Woutd the project dìsturb any human remains, including those interred outside of dedicated cemeteries?

No lmpact

There are no known historic-period human burials at the project site. Background research and a

cultural resources field survey conducted for this lnitial Study (see discussion under ltem (a) above) did

not identify recorded Native American skeletal or cremated remains at the project site.

ln the event that human remains are identified during project construction, these remains would be

treated in accordance with Section 7050.5 of the California Health and Safety Code and Section

5097.98 of the California Public Resources Code, as appropriate,

Section 7050.5 of the California Health and Safety Code states that, in the event of discovery or

recognition of any human remains in any location otherthan a dedicated cemetery, there shallbe no

further excavation or disturbance of the site or any nearby area reasonably suspected to overlie

adjacent remains until the coroner of the county in which the remains are discovered has determined

whether or not the remains are subject to the corone/s authority, lf the human remains are of Native

American origin, the coroner must notify the Native American Heritage Commission (NAHC) within 24

hours of this identification. The NAHC will identify a Native American Most Likely Descendant (MLD)to

inspect the site and provide recommendations for the proper treatment of the remains and associated

grave goods.
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Section 5097.98 of the Public Resources Code states that the NAHC, upon notification of the discovery

of Native American human remains pursuant to Health and Safety Code Section 7050.5, shall

immediately notify those persons (i.e., the MLD) ¡t believes to be descended from the deceased. With

permission of the landowner or a designated representative, the MLD may inspect the remains and any

associated cultural materials and make recommendations for treatment or disposition of the remains

and associated grave goods. The MLD shall provide recommendations or preferences for treatment of

the remains and associated cultural materials within 48 hours of being granted access to the site.

With these regulations in place, no impact on human remains is anticipated, and no mitigation is

necessary.

REFERENCES

Rice, Salem R., Theodore C, Smith, Rudolph G. Strand, David L, Wagner, Carolyn E, Randolph-Loar,

Robert C. Witter, and Kevin B, Clahan, 2002. Geologic Map of the Novato 7.5' Quadrangle,

Marin and Sonoma Counties, California: A DigitalDatabase. California Department of

Conservation, Sacramento.

U,S, Army Corps of Engineers (Corps), 1942. California Petaluma Quadrangle.1S-minute topographic

quadrangle.

U.S. Geological Survey (USGS), 1914. California Petaluma Quadrangle.15-minute topographic

quadrangle.

U.S, Geological Survey (USGS), 1954. Novato, California.7,5-minutes topographic quadrangle.

U,S. Geological Survey (USGS), 1954, Novato, California.7.5-minutes topographic quadrangle. Photo

revised 1968.
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VI ENERGY. Would the project:

a) Result ìn a potentially significant environmentaì impact due to

wasteful, inefficient, 0r unnecessary consumption of energy

resources, during project construction or operation?

b) Conflict with or obstruct a state or local plan for renewable energy

or energy efficiency?
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IMPACT EVALUATION

a) Would the project result ¡n a potent¡ally significant env¡ronmental impact due to wasteful, inefficient, or

unnecessary consumpt¡on of energy resources, during project construction or operation?

No lmpact

During project construction, energy would be needed for fuel for construction equipment in the site

preparation and construction activities. However, this would be a short{erm energy demand that would

not be wasteful or inefficient, During project operation, energy would be required for the pumping of

water to the tank. However, this energy demand similarly would not be wasteful or inefficient, especially

given that 1) the project is relatively small, and 2)the energy demand would be similar to that

associated with the existing water tank that would likely be decommissioned, Energy for pumping

would be provided by the Pacific Gas & Electric Company (PG&E), which provides electricity and

natural gas to customers in the City of Novato.

b) Would the project conflict with or obstruct a state or local plan for renewable energy or energy efficiency?

No lmpact

The project would not conflict with any state plan for renewable energy or energy efficiency, The project

is exempt from local plans related to energy efficiency. However, it is assumed that NMWD would use

energy-efficient pumps and other elements for the project as there would be cost savings by doing so.

REFERENCES

City of Novato, 2009. 2009 Climate Change Action Plan, City of Novato, December
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Vll. GEOLOGY AND SO|LS. Would the project:

a) Directly or indirectly cause potential substantial adverse effects,

including lhe risk of loss, injury, or death involving:

i) Rupture of a known earthquake fault, as delineated on the

most recent Alquist-Priolo Earthquake Fault Zoning Map

issued by the State Geologist for the area or based on other

substantial evidence of a known fault? Refer to Division of

Mines and Geology Special Publication 42.

ii) Strong seismic ground shaking?

iii) Seismic-related ground failure, including liquefactìon?

iv) Landslides?

b) Result in substantial soil erosion or the loss of topsoil?
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c) Be ìocated on a geologic unìt or soil that is unstable, or that would

become unstable as a result of the project, and potent¡alìy result

in on- or off-site landslide, lateral spreading, subs¡dence,

liquefaction, or collapse?

d) Be located on expansive soll, as defined in Table 1B-1-B of the

Uniform Building Code (1994), creating substantial direct or

indirect risks to life or propertY?

e) Have soils incapable of adequately supporting the use of septic

tanks or alternative waste water dìsposal systems where sewers

are not available for the disposal of wastewater?

f) Directly or indirectly destroy a unique paleontological resource or

site or unique geologic feature?

n

D

D

The project site is located within the central portion of the Coast Ranges geomorphic province, which

includes numerous active faults identified by the California Geological Survey (CGS) under the Alquist-

Priolo Earlhquake Fault Zoning Act. CGS defines an active fault as one that has ruptured during the

Holocene Epoch (i,e., the last 1'1,000 years).

The nearest known active faults are the Rodgers Creek Fault, located approximately 10 miles northeast

of the projectsite, and the San Andreas Fault, located approximately 10 miles southwestof the project

site. Mapping by CGS also shows the Burdell Mountain Fault approximately 4 miles norlheast of the

project srte. The Burdell Mountain Fault is categorized as a Quaternary fault; however, the age of

displacements along the fault is undifferentiated (CGS, 2010). This fault is not considered "active"

under the Alquist-Priolo Earlhquake Fault Zoning Act,

a) Would the project directly or indirectly cause potential substantial adverse effects, including the risk of /oss,

injury, or death involving: i) Rupture of a known earlhquake fault, as delineated on the most recent Alquist-

Prioto Earthquake Fault Zoning Map issued by the State Geo/oglsf for the area or based on other

substantial evidence of a known fault? Refer to Division of Mines and Geology Specla/ Publication 42;

ii) Strong seismlc ground shaking; iii) Seismic-related ground failure, including liquefaction; iv) Landslides?

Less Than Significant with Mitigation lncorporated

Fault Rupture

Surface rupture occurs when the ground surface is broken due to fault movement during an

earlhquake. Sur-face rupture generally occurs along an existing (usually active) fault trace. Areas

susceptible to surface fault rupture are delineated by the CGS Alquist-Priolo Earthquake Fault Zones

and require specific geological investigations prior to development to reduce the threat to public health

and safety and to minimize the loss of life and property posed by earlhquake-induced ground failure.

There are no Alquist-Priolo Earlhquake Fault Zones mapped in the vicinity of the project site (CGS,

2019); therefore, the project would result in a less{han-significant impact related to fault rupture.

lmpact
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Strong Seismic Ground Shaking

Seismic ground shaking generally refers to all aspects of motion of the Earth's surface result¡ng from

an earthquake and is normally the major cause of damage in seismic events. The extent and severity

of ground shaking is controlled by the magnitude and intensity of the earthquake, distance from the

epicenter, and local geologic conditions, The magnitude of a seismic event is a measure of the energy

released by an earthquake; it is assessed by seismographs that measure the amplitude of seismic

waves. The intensity of an earthquake is a subjective measure of the perceptible effects of a seismic

event at a given point. The Modified Mercalli lntensity scale is the most commonly used scale to

measure the subjective effects of earlhquake intensity. lt uses values ranging from I to Xll.

The Association of Bay Area Governments (ABAG) and the United States Geological Survey (USGS)

have mapped the likely shaking intensities in the Bay Area that would have a 10 percent chance of

occurring in any 5O-year period (ABAG, 2019). Based on the ABAG and USGS mapping, the project

site is in an area susceptible to strong ground shaking (Vll on the Modified Mercalli lntensity scale)

from a major earlhquake on the San Andreas Fault or Rodgers Creek Fault.

A Geotechnical lnvestigation (Miller Pacific Engineering Group,20'18)prepared forthe project indicates

that designing new structures in accordance with the provisions of the most recent version of the

California Building Code and appropriate American Water Works Association (AWWA) standards or

subsequent codes in effect when final design occurs would mitigate potential damage from strong

seismic shaking. NMWD typically strives to comply with the intent of local land use controls and current

industry design standards. However, because NMWD projects are exempt from local (Marin County)

land use controls per Government Code Section 53091, there would be no permitting mechanism to

ensure that the project is designed and constructed according to the California Building Code and

appropriate American Water Works Association standards or subsequent codes. This issue is

addressed through Mitigation Measure GEOLOGY-1 below.

lmpact GEOLOGY-1 : Stron g seismic shaking could result in potential damage to structures and

improvements, (PS)

Mitiqation GEOLOGY-I:The proposed improvemenfs sha// be designed and

constructed in accordance with the provisions of the most recent version of the California

Buitding Code and appropriate American Water Works Association (AWWA) standards or

subsequenf codes rn effect when final design occurs.

lmptenentation of Mitigation Measure GEOLOGY-1 would ensure that project impacts related to

strong sersmic ground shaking would be /ess fhan significant. (LTS)

Liquefaction

Soil liquefaction is a phenomenon primarily associated with saturated soil layers located close to the

ground surface. During ground shaking, these soils lose strength and acquire a "mobility" sufficient to

permit both horizontal and vertical movements. Soils that are most susceptible to liquefaction are clean,
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loose, uniformly graded, saturated, fine-grained sands that lie relatively close to the ground surface.

However, loose sands that contain a significant amount of fines (silt and clay) may also liquefy,

The project site is underlain by shallow sandstone bedrock that is not susceptible to liquefaction (Miller

Pacific Engineering Group,2018). Therefore, potentialimpacts associated with liquefaction would be

less than significant.

Lateral Spreading

Lateral spreading is a phenomenon in which surficial soil displaces along a gently sloping ground

surface as the result of liquefaction in a subsurface layer. Upon reaching mobilization, the surficial soils

are transported downslope or in the direction of a free face by earthquake and gravitational forces. As

discussed above, the project site is underlain by shallow sandstone bedrock that is not susceptible to

liquefaction. Therefore, potential impacts associated with lateral spreading would be less than

significant.

Seismically lnduced Settlement

Seismically induced settlement can occur when non-saturated, cohesionless soil is densified by

earlhquake vibrations. Varying degrees of settlement can occur, resulting in differential settlement of

structures founded on such deposits. The Geotechnical lnvestigation for the project indicates that the

planned excavation would likely expose bedrock at the finished surface throughout the building pad for

the proposed water tank, and therefore the likelihood of seismically induced settlement is low (Miller

Pacific Engineering Group,20lB). Therefore, potentialimpacts associated with seismically induced

settlement would be less than significant.

Landslides

Seismically induced landslides occur as the rapid movement of large masses of soil on unstable slopes

during an earthquake. The Geotechnical lnvestigation for the project indicates that ravines to the west

and southeast of the project site are mapped as large, debris flow-type landslides; however, scarps,

cracking, or other evidence that would suggest active or recent slope movement or large-scale

instability within or around the proposed tank location were not observed during the Geotechnical

lnvestigation. The Geotechnical lnvestigation also indicates that the planned excavation for the tank

pad would remove the weight of the existing rock and soilfrom the slope, which should help to improve

slope stability, and the risk of damage to the proposed water tank due to slope instability is generally

low provided that grading of the project site consists of primarily excavation to remove material as is

currently planned. The Geotechnical lnvestigation includes recommendations to mitigate potential

slope instability and landslides, including founding the proposed water tank on a level pad that exposes

firm bedrock, minimizing the thickness of new fills, keying and benching new fill slopes, constructing

new fill slopes no steeper lhan 2'.1(horizontal:verlical) and new excavation slopes in bedrock no

steeper than 1.5:1, installing subsur{ace drains to reduce the potential for hydrostatic forces behind the

fill, and planiing new permanent fill slopes with vegetation cover following construction to reduce

sloughing and erosion. The Geotechnical lnvestigation indicates that the actual depth and extent of
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keyways, benches, and subdrains should be determined by the Geotechnical Engineer during grading,

and that if grading plans are altered to include new fills or reduced excavation depths, the Geotechnical

Engineer should be consulted to evaluate potential impacts on slope stability (Miller Pacific Engineering

Group, 2018).

Project plans were modified following preparation of the Geotechnical lnvestigation. Changes to the

project plans include construction of the proposed water tank fafther to the northwest (which altered the

amount of excavation required), modifying the proposed alignment of the access road to follow the

riclgeline (which altered excavation/grading plans and would involve the placement of fill), and

construction of a staging area near the east end of the proposed access road (which would require the

placement of fill). The changes in project plans could result in different slope stability conditions than

were analyzed in the Geotechnical lnvestigation.

lmpact GEOLOGY-2: Excavation, grading, and placement of new structural loads and fill could

potentially increase slope instability and risk of landslides' (PS)

Mitiqation Measure GEOLOGY-2: The updated project plans sha// be submitted to the

Geotechnical Engineer for review to determine whether additional geotechnical investigation

and/or modification of geotechnical recommendations would be required to mitigate the potential

for slope instabitity ancl risk of landslides, The detailed project plans sha// be designed in

accordance with att geotechnical recommendafions. As project plans near completion, the plans

and specifications shall be provided to the Geotechnical Engineer for review to confirm that

geotechnica! recommendations have been incorporated. During construction, the Geotechnical

Engineer shall perform observation and testing of geotechnical-related work (e.9., excavation,

grading, subsufface drain installations, and fill placement) to confirm that conditions are as

anticipated, adjust geotechnical recommendations and design criteria if needed, and confirm that

construction is performed in accordance with the project plans and specifications.

lmplementation of Mitigation Measure GEOLOGY-2 would ensure that the proiect impacts

related fo s/ope stability and landslides would be /ess than significant (LTS)

h) Would the project result in substantialsoi/ erosion or fhe /oss of topsoil?

Less Than Significant with Mitigation lncorporated

Soil erosion, which is discussed in detail in Section X, Hydrology and Water Quality, could occur during

project construction and operation if appropriate erosion control and stormwater control measures are

not implemented,

lmpact GEOLOGY-3: Soil erosion and loss of top soil could occur during project construction

and operation.

Mitioation GEOLOGY-3; See Mitigation Measures HYDROL)GY-1. As described in

Secfion X, Hydrology and Water Quality, implementation of Mitigation Measure HYDROLOGY-1,

which requires preparation of and implementation of an Erosion and Stormwater Control Plan
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(ESCP) during construct¡on; and periodic inspection and maintenance of erosion and sediment

control BMPs during project operat¡on, would reduce the potential impacts related to erosion or

fhe /oss of topsoilto a less-than-significant level, (LTS)

c) Would the project be located on a geologic unit or soil that is unstable, or that would become unstable as a

result of the project, and potentially result in on- or off-site landslide, lateral spreading, subsidence,

Ii quef acti on, or coll apse?

Less Than Significant with Mitigation lncorporated

As discussed under ltem (a) above, potential impacts related to liquefaction, lateral spreading, and

seismically induced settlement would be less than significant, and implementation of Mitigation

Measure GEOLOGY-2 would ensure that the project impacts related to slope stability and landslides

would be less than significant,

Subsidence

Subsidence or collapse can result from the removal of subsurface water, resulting in either catastrophic

or gradual depression of the surface elevation of the project site. Groundwater was not encountered in

geotechnical borings that were drilled to depths of 20 to 30 feet below ground surface at the project site

(MillerPacific Engineering Group,2018);therefore, dewatering is notanticipated to be required and

potential impacts related to subsidence or collapse would be less than significant,

Consolidation

Consolidation (or static settlement) of soils is a process by which the soil volume decreases as water is

expelled from saturated soils under static loads. As the water moves out from the pore space of the

soil, the solid particles realign into a denser configuration that results in settlement. Consolidation

typically occurs as a result of new buildings or fill materials being placed over compressible soils.

The Geotechnical lnvestigation for the project indicates that the planned excavations would expose firm

sandstone bedrock, and therefore settlement is not considered a significant hazard and expected

settlements of less than 1 inch could occur across the tank diameter based on the anticipated load

(Miller Pacific Engineering Group,201B). Therefore, potentialimpacts related to consolidation would be

less than significant.

d) Woulcl the project be located on expansive soll as defined in Table 1B-1 -B of the Uniform Building Code

(1994), creating substantial direct or indirecf risks to life or propefty?

Less Than Significant lmpact

Expansive soils are characterized by the potential for shrinking and swelling as the moisture content of

the soil decreases and increases, respectively. Shrink-swell potential is influenced by the amount and

type of clay minerals present and can be measured by the percent change of the soil volume.
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Expansive soils are capable of exerting significant pressures on building foundations, slabs, and

exterior pavement, which can result in cracking and uneven surfaces.

The project site is underlain by a thin layer of sandy soils over sandstone bedrock, which is not

expansive (Miller Pacific Engineering Group, 2018). Geotechnical recommendations for placement of

fill also indicate that the fill should be non-expansive (Miller Pacific Engineering Group, 2018),

Therefore, potential impacts associated with expansive soil would be less than significant.

e) Woutd the project haye soi/s incapable of adequately supporting the use of sepflc tanks or alternative waste

water disposa/ sysfems where sewers are not available for fhe dispos al of wastewater?

No lmpact

The project would not include the use of septic tanks or alternative wastewater disposal systems.

f) Would the project directly or indirectly destroy a unique paleontological resource or site or unique geologic

feature?

Less Than Significant with Mitigation lncorporated

Paleontological resources include fossilized remains or traces of organisms including plants,

vertebrates (animals with backbones), invertebrates (e.9., starfish, clams, ammonites, and marine

coral), and microscopic plants and animals (microfossils), including their imprints, from a previous

geological period. Collecting localities and the geologic formations containing those localities are also

considered paleontological resources as they represent a limited, non-renewable resource and, once

destroyed, cannot be replaced. The Society of Verlebrate Paleontology (SVP) has established

guidelines for the identification, assessment, and mitigation of adverse impacts on non-renewable

paleontological resources (SVP, 2010), The SVP has helped define the value of paleontological

resources and, in particular, states that significant paleontological resources are fossils and

fossiliferous deposits consisting of identifiable vertebrate fossils, large or small; uncommon

invertebrate, plant, and trace fossils; and other data that provide taxonomic, phylogenetic,

paleoecologic, stratigraphic, and/or biochronologic information. Paleontological resources are

considered to be older than recorded human history and/or older than middle Holocene (i.e,, older than

about 5,000 years) (SVP, 2010),

The project site is underlain by shale and sandstone bedrock of Cretaceous age (Miller Pacific

Engineering Group, 2018). The results of a search of paleontological localities in the fossil collections

database maintained by the University of California Museum of Paleontology identified no vertebrate,

plant, or micro fossil localities and four invertebrate fossil localities in Cretaceous period geologic

formations within Marin County (University of California Museum of Paleontology,2019). lnformation

regarding the types of invertebrate fossil specimens found is not available on the database, and

therefore it is not known whether the inverlebrate fossils could be uncommon. Therefore, the project

site is considered to have a potentially high paleontologicalsensitivity.
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lmpact GE0LOGY-4: Paleontol ogical resources on the project site could be encountered and

damaged during construction-related excavation and grading, (PS)

Adverse impacts on paleontological resources could occur during excavation into the native soil and

bedrock where fossils may be buried and physical destruction of fossils could occur.

Mitiqation Measure GEOLOGY-4: Should paleontologicalresources be encountered during

project subsurface construction activities, all ground-disturbing activities within 25 feet of the find

shall be sfopped and a qualified paleontologrsf sha// be contacted fo assess the situation, consult

with agencies as appropriate, and make recommendations for the treatment of the discovery, lf
the discovery is found to be significant and project activities cannot avoid the paleontological

resources, adverse erïecfs on paleontological resources sha// be mitigated. Mitigation may
include monitoring, recording of the fossil locality, data recovery and analysis, preparation of a

technical repor[ and provision of fhe fossi/ material and technical report to a paleontological

repository, such as the University of California Museum of Paleontology. Public educational

outreach may also be appropriate, Upon completion of fhe assessment, a report documenting

methods, findings, and recommendations shall be prepared and submitted to the North Marin

Water District (NMWD)for review.

NMWD shall inform its contracto(s) of the sensitivity of the project area for paleontological

resources and shall include the following directive in the appropriate contract documents:

"The subsurface of the construction site may be sensiflve for paleontological resources. lf
paleontological resources are encountered during project subsurface construction, all

ground-disturbing activities within 25 feet of the find shall be sfopped or redirected and a

qualified paleontologist contacted fo assess the situation, consult with agencies as

appropriate, and make recommendations for the treatment of the discovery. Project

personnel shall not collect or move any paleontological materials, Paleontological resources

include foss/ p/anfs and animals, and such frace fossi/ evidence of past life as animal

tracks."

lmplementation of Mitigation Measure GEOLOGY-4 would reduce potential impacts on

paleontological resources to a less-than-significant level, (LTS)

REFERENCES

Association of Bay Area Governments (ABAG),2019. Bay Area Hazards, Shacking Scenarios,

Available at: http://gis.abag.ca.gov/website/Hazards/?hlyr=northSanAndreas&co=6041,

accessed on August 21,2019.

California Geologic Survey (CGS), 2010, Fault Activity Map of California. Available at:

http ://maps,con seruation,ca. gov/cg s/fam/, accessed on Au g u st 20, 2019 .

California Geologic Survey (CGS), 20'19. lnformation Warehouse: Regulatory Maps. Available at:

https://maps.conservation.ca.gov/cgs/informationwarehouse/, accessed on August 21 ,2019
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Vlll. GREENHOUSE GAS E[/lSSl0NS, Would the project:

a) Generate greenhouse gas emissions, either directly or indirectÌy

that may have a significant impact on lhe environment?

b) Conflict with an applicable plan, policy, or regulation adopted for

the purpose of reducing the emissions of greenhouse gases?

Climate change refers to change in the Earth's weather patterns, including the rise in temperature due

to an increase in heat-trapping greenhouse gases (GHGs) in the atmosphere. An increase of GHGs in

the atmosphere affects the energy balance of the Earlh and results in a global warming trend.

lncreases in global average temperatures have been observed since the mid-2Oth century and have

been linked to observed increases in GHG emissions from anthropogenic sources. The primary GHG

em¡ssions of concern are carbon dioxide (COz), methane (CHa), and nitrous oxide (NzO). Other GHGs

of c0ncern include hydrofluorocarbons (HFCs), perfluorocarbons (PFCs), and sulfur hexafluoride (SFo),

but their contribution to climate change is less than 1 percent of the total GHGs that are well-mixed

(i.e., that have atmospheric lifetimes long enough to be homogeneously mixed in the troposphere)

(lntergovernmental Panel on Climate Change IPCC], 2013), Each GHG has a different globalwarming

potential (GWP). For instance, CH+ traps about 2'1 times more heat per molecule than COz. As a result,

emissions of GHGs are reporled in metric tons of carbon dioxide equivalents (COze), wherein each

GHG is weighted by its GWP relative to COz.

According to the lntergovernmental Panel on Climate Change (IPCC), the atmospheric concentrations

of COz, CHq, and NzO have increased to levels unprecedented in at least the last 800,000 years due to

anthropogenic sources (lPCC, 2013), Some of the potentialeffects of increased GHG emissions and

the associated climate change may include loss in snow pack (affecting water supply), sea level rise,

more frequent extreme weather evenis, more large forest fires, and more drought years. ln addition,

climate change may increase electricity demand for cooling, decrease the availability of hydroelectric

power, and affect regional air quality and public health (Bay Area Air Quality Management District

IBAAQMDI, 2017a).
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ln October201B, the IPCC published a specialreporton potentiallong-term climate change impacts

based on the projected increases in temperature due to global climate change, The IPCC reporl found

that the Earth is already seeing the consequences of global warming due to a 1 degree Celsius ('C)

increase in pre-industrial levels, such as extreme weather, rising sea levels, and diminishing Arctic sea

ice. Globalwarming is likely to reach 1.5'C above pre-industrial levels between 2030 and 2052:f iI

continues to increase at the cunent rate. Some of the impacts due to ongoing global warming could be

avoided by limiting future global warming to 1.5'C compared to 2"C. For example, by limiting global

warming to 1,5"C or lower, the likelihood of an Arctic Ocean free of sea ice in summer would be ten

times lower compared to the likelihood under the scenario of a2'C increase, Beyond the 1 ,5'C

threshold, there would be significant increases in the risk associated with long-lasting or irreversible

changes, such as the loss of ecosystems. The IPCC states that in order to limit the global warming to

1.5"C, rapid transitions are needed in land, energy, industry, building, transport, and urban sectors to

reach the goal of carbon neutrality by 2050, which means that the Earth's production of GHG emissions

each year would be removed completely through carbon offsetting, sequestration, or other means

(rPCC, 2018).

ln 2006, the California State Legislature passed the California Global Warming Solutions Act

(Assembly Bill [ABl 32), which requires the California Air Resources Board (CARB) to develop and

implement regulatory and market mechanisms that will reduce GHG emissions to 1990 levels by 2020.

ln 2016, the State Legislature adopted Senate Bill(SB)32, which requires further reduction of GHG

emissions to 40 percent below the 1990 level by 2030. ln addition, Executive Order 5-3-05 set a GHG

reduction goal of B0 percent below 1990 levels by 2050. ln November 20'15, Marin County adopted the

2015 Climate Action Plan (CAP)(Marin County, 2015), The CAP outlines a course of action to reduce

community-wide GHG emissions to 30 percent below 1990levels by 2020, and municipal GHG

emissions to'15 percent below 1990levels by2020. Adopting these targets put Marin County on track

to meet the Executive Order 5-03-5 statewide target for 2050. The CAP includes '15 local community

actions and B local municipal actions grouped into the following strategy areas: energy efficiency and

renewable energy; land use, transportation, and off-road equipment; vehicle fleet and employee

commute; water conservation and wastewater treatment; waste reduction, reuse, and recycling; and

agriculture.

The proposed project is located in the San Francisco Bay Area Air Basin (SFBAAB), which is underthe
jurisdiction of the Bay Area Air Quality Management District (BAAOMD). ln 2010, the BAAQMD

developed and adopted GHG thresholds of signifìcance that were incorporated into the BAAQMD's

20'17 CEQA Air Quality Guidelines (BAAQMD, 2017b). The GHG thresholds are designed to help lead

agencies in the SFBAAB evaluate potential environmental impacts from GHG emissions for new

projects and meet GHG emission reduction goals, such as those contained in AB 32, Therefore, the

BAAQMD's thresholds of significance were used in this CEQA analysis.
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IMPACT EVALUATION

a) Would the project generate greenhouse gas e/n/ssions, either directly or indirectly, that may have a

signíficant impact on the environment?

Less Than Significant lmpact

The proposed project would generate temporary GHG emissions through construction activities, such

as operation of on-site heavy construction equipment and off-site construction vehicle trips, and would

generate long{erm GHG emissions through project operations related to the direct and indirect use of
fossil fuels such as electricity, diesel, and gasoline.

The BAAQMD does not recommend a threshold of significance for GHG emissions during construction

because there is not sufficient evidence to determine a level at which temporary construction emissions

are significant (BAAQMD, 2009). A construction contractor has no incentive to waste fuel during

construction and, therefore, it is generally assumed that GHG emissions during construction would be

minimized to the maximum extent feasible. Furthermore, the idling times for off-road construction

equipment would be limited to a maximum idling time of 5 minutes, as required by the CARB's Airborne

Toxic Control Measure to reduce emissions from diesel{ueled vehicles (Title 13, Section 2485 of
California Code of Regulations). Therefore, GHG emissions during project construction would have a

lesslhan-significant impact on the environment.

Operation of the proposed project would generate direct GHG emissions from vehicles traveling to and

from the site for inspection and cleaning, and indirect GHG emissions from the electrical tools that may

be used for tank maintenance. Because of the infrequent nature of tank inspection and cleaning

(Baseline Environmental Consulting,2019), it is unlikely that operation of the proposed project would

generate any substantial amount of GHGs. Furthermore, the proposed water tank is to replace the

existing tank that would likely be decommissioned and removed after the construction of the proposed

project, Emission-generating activities associated with project operation would be similar in nature and

frequency compared to the emission-generated activities associated with the existing water tank.

Therefore, the proposed project would result in minimal change, if any, in GHG emissions compared to

the existlng conditions, and would have a less-than-significant impact on the environment.

b) Would the project conflict with an applicable plan, policy, or regulation adopted for the purpose of reducrng

fhe emissions of greenhouse gases2

Less Than Significant lmpact

The BAAQMD's thresholds of significance were designed to ensure compliance with the state's AB 32

GHG reductton goals, as set forth in the CARB's Climate Change Scoping Plan (California Air
Resources Board, 2017). Since the GHG emissions from the proposed project would have a less{han-

significant impact (see ltem (a) above), it can be assumed that the project would be consistent, and not

in fundamental conflict, with AB 32 GHG reduction goals and the Climate Change Scoping Plan.
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The proposed project is an infrastructure improvement project. Therefore, goals, measures, and

actions from the Marin County CAP are not applicable to the project. However, the increased tank size
under the proposed project was driven by fire flow goals of the Novato Fire District. This is consistent
with the climate adaptation option forwildfires in the CAP, which calls forthe provision of water
resources to put out fires (Marin County, 2015). Therefore, the proposed project would be consistent
with the Marin County CAP.

ln summary, the project would have a less-than-significant impact related to conflict with applicable
plans, policies, and regulations adopted for the purpose of reducing GHG emissions.

REFERENCES

Baseline Environmental Consulting ,2019. Email conespondence re: NMWD Tank Request for
lnformation to lvy Tao from Carmela Chandrasekera, August 19.

Bay Area Air Quality Management District (BAAQMD), 2009. Revised Draft 0ptions and Justification
Report, California Environmental Act Thresholds of Significance, October.

Bay Area Air Quality Management District (BAAOMD), 2017a.Fina|2017 Clean Air Plan, April 19.

Bay Area Air Quality Management District (BAAQMD), 2017b, California Environmental Quality Act Air
Quality Guidelines, May.

California Air Resources Board, 2017. California's2017 Climate Change Scoping Plan, November.

lntergovernmental Panelon Climate Change (IPCC),2013. Climate Change 2013;the Physical
Science Basis; Working Group I Contribution to the Fifth Assessment Reporl of the

lntergovernmental Panel on Climate Change.

lntergovernmental Panelon Climate Change (IPCC), 2018. IPCC Press Release, Summary for
Policymakers of IPCC Special Report on Global Warning of '1.5'C Approved by Governments,
October B.

Marin County,2015. Climate Action Plan (2015 Update), July
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lX. HAZARDS AND HAZARDOUS IVATERIALS. Would the project:

a) Create a significant hazard to the public or the environment through

the routine transport, use, or disposal of hazardous materials?

N¡,4W0 CEQAchecklist FINAL (10/23/19) 49

u Í u



lrurlnr Sruoy/MtlcATED NEGATtvE Decrnnnloru ron rHE

NonrH l\4nRr¡r W¡re R DrsrRrcr Oro RnrucH Ro¡o T¡¡rx No. 2 Pno¡ecr

Potentially
Significant
lmpact

fI

Less Than

Significant
with
Mitigation
lncorporated

T

Less Than

Significant
lmpact

3

No
lmpact

ûb) Create a significant hazard to the public or the environment through
reasonably foreseeable upset and accident conditions involving the
release 0f hazardous mater¡als into the environment?

c) Emit hazardous emissions or handle hazardous or acutely

hazardous malerials, subslances, or waste withìn one-quarter mile

of an existing or proposed school?

d) Be located on a site whlch is included on a list of hazardous

materials siles compiled pursuant to Government Code Section

65962.5 and, as a result, would it create a significant hazard to the
pubìic or the environment?

e) For a project located within an airport land use plan or, where such

a plan has not been adopted, within two mìles of a public airport or
public use airport, result in a safety hazard or excessive noise for
people residìng or working in the projecl area?

f) lmpair implementation of or physically ìnterfere with an adopted

emergency response plan or emergency evacuation plan?

S) Expose people or structures, either directly or ind¡rectly, to a
significant risk of loss, injury or death involving wildland fires?
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IMPACT EVALUATION

g) Would the project create a significant hazard to the public or the environment through the routine
transport, use, or dlsposa/ of hazardous materials?

Less Than Significant lmpact

Hazardous materials (e,9., fuel, oils, and paints)would be rout¡nelytransported, stored, and used atthe
project site used during construction activities. Operation of the project would not involve the routine
transport, use, or disposal of hazardous materials. The routine transpodation, use, and disposal of
hazardous materials during construction may pose health and safety hazards to construction workers if
the hazardous materials are improperly handled, or to nearby residents and the environment if the
hazardous materials are accidentally released into the environment, Potential impacts associated with

accidental releases of hazardous materials into the environment are discussed under ltem (b) below.

The routrne handling and use of hazardous materials by construction workers would be pefformed in
accordance with Occupational Safety and Health Administration (0SHA) regulations, which include
training requirements for construction workers and a requirement that hazardous materials are

accompanied by manufacturer's Safety Data Sheeis (SDSs), California OSHA (Cal/0SHA) regulations

include requirements for protective clothing, training, and limits on exposure to hazardous materials.

Compliance with these existing regulations would ensure that construction workers are protected from

exposure to hazardous materials that may be used on the project s¡te,
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Compliance with the existing regulations described above would ensure that potential impacts from the

routine transport, use, or disposal of hazardous mater¡als during construction of the proposed project

would be less than significant.

b) Would the project create a significant hazard to the public or the environment through reasonably

foreseeable upset and accident conditions involving the release of hazardous materials into the

environment?

Less Than Significant with Mitigation lncorporated

An accidental release of hazardous materials (e,9,, oils, fuels, solvents, paints) during project

construction could result in exposure of construction workers, the public, and/or the environment to

hazardous materials.

lmpact HAZARDS-1: An accidental release of hazardous materials could occur durin g project

construction. (PS)

As described in detail in Section X, Hydrology and Water Quality, the proposed project would be

required to implement Mitigation Measure HYDR0LOGY-'1, which requires preparation and

implementation of an Erosion and Stormwater Control Plan (ESCP), which would reduce the risk of

spills or leaks occurring or reaching the environment. The ESCP must include hazardous materials

storage requirements, For example, chemicals must be stored in watertight containers (with

appropriate secondary containment to prevent any spillage or leakage) or in a storage shed

(completely enclosed). The ESCP must also include procedures to address minor spills of hazardous

materials. Measures to control spills, leakage, and dumping must be addressed through structural as

well as non-structural BMPs. For example, equipment and materials for cleanup of spills must be

available on-site, and spills and leaks must be cleaned up immediately and disposed of properly. BMPs

also include treatment requirements, operating procedures, and practices to control site runoff, spillage

or leaks, sludge or waste disposal, or drainage from raw material storage.

The transportation of hazardous materials must be performed by a licensed hazardous waste hauler

and is subject to regulations of the United States Department of Transportation (DOT), federal

Resource Conservation and Recovery Act (RCRA), and the State of California. lf a discharge or spill of

hazardous materials occurs during transportation, the transporter is required to take appropriate

immediate action to protect human health and the environment (e.9,, notify local authorities and contain

the spill), and is responsible for the discharge cleanup,

Mitiqation Measure HAZARDS-I : Mitigation Measure HYDROLOGY-1 shall be implemented,

Combined with compliance with applicable existing regulations, implementation of Mitigation

Measure HYDR)LOGY-1 would ensure that potential impacts related to accidentalreleases of
hazardous materials would beiess fhan significant. (LTS)
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c) Woutd the project emit hazardous e/xisslons or handle hazardous or acutely hazardous mater¡als,

subs¿ances, or waste within one-quafter mile of an existing or proposed school?

No lmpact

The project site is located in a rural area and land uses within a quarter mile of the project site include

only a few residential properties; therefore, the project would have no impacts related to hazardous

emisslons or handling hazardous materials within a quarter mile of an existing or proposed school.

d) Woutd the project be located on a site which is included on a |ist of hazardous materials sites compiled

pursuant to Governmenf Code Secflo n 65962.5 and, as a result, would it create a significant hazard to the

public or the environment?

No lmpact

The project site is located on rural undeveloped land and is not included on a list of hazardous

materials sites compiled pursuant to Government Code Section 65962.5, also known as the "Cortese

List" (CalEPA, 2019).

e) For a project located within an airport land use plan or, where such a plan has not been adopted, within two

miles of a public airporl or public use airport, would the project result in a safety hazard or excessive nolse

for people residing or working in the proiect area?

No lmpact

The nearest airporls to the project site are the Marin County Airport at Gnoss Field in Novato,

approximately 4 miles northeast of the project site, and the San Rafael Airport, approximately 6 miles

southeast of the project site. San RafaelAirportis a private use airport (AirNav, 2019) and does not

have a land use plan, The project site is not located within the land use plan area forthe Marin County

Airporl at Gnoss Field (Marin County Planning Depaftment, 1991). There are no airports located within

2 miles of the project site, Therefore, the proposed projectwould have no impacts related to aviation

hazards,

f1 Would the project impair tmplementation of or physically interfere with an adopted emergency response

plan or emergency evacuation plan?

Less Than Significant lmpact

The project would not alter existing roadways in the vicinity of the project site. During construction, no

access disruptions would occur on Old Ranch Road and any evacuations along this route would be

unencumbered. Therefore, the project would have a less-than-significant impact related to impeding or

interfering with emergency response or evacuation plans. The increase in water storage capacity that

would result from the project would have a positive impact on emergency response by providing

additional water supply for fire suppression.
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g) Would the project expose people or structures, either directly or indirectly, to a significant risk of loss, iniury

or death involving wildland fires?

Less Than Significant with Mitigation lncorporated

The project site is located in a State Responsibility Area and is identified as a moderate Fire Hazard

Severity Zone as mapped by the California Department of Forestry and Fire Protection (CAL FIRE,

2007).The project site and adjacent areas include steep terrain that is covered in vegetation and trees

and therefore could be susceptible to wildland fires.

Construction of the project would entail use of construction equipment that could generate sparks (e.9.,

vehicles, saws, mowers, acetylene torches, and welding equipment) and would involve storage and

use of flammable materials (e.g., fueland compressed gasses), which would temporarily increase fire

risks. Operation of the project would also involve the use of vegetation management equipment (e,9.,

mowers, weed whackers, and chainsaws) that could generate sparks and increase fire risks. lf

vegetation on the project site is not appropriately managed, the project could increase the risk of fire

occurring on the project site and spreading from the project site to surrounding areas.

lmpact HAZARDS-2: The proposed project could increase the risk of wildfire during

construction and operation due to equipment use that could generate sparks. (PS)

ion Measure HAZA Construction contractors shall ensure the following measures

are implemented to minimize the potentialfor accidental ignition of construction materials and

vegetation: 1) ftammabte/combustible materials shall be sfored away from vegetated areas; 2)

spark arrestors sha// be fitted on all construction vehicles and equipment; 3) work that generates

sparks, such metal cutting, torching, and welding, shall only be performed in areas where

vegetation has been sufficiently cleared and the ground surface has been wetted; and 4) an

adequate water source and fire extinguishers shall be available at all times for fire suppression.

Mitiqation Meas HAZARDS-2\: The North Marin Water District (NMWD) shalldevelop a

Vegetation Management and Fire Prevention Plan, and shall implement the plan during

construction and operation of the project, The Vegetation Management and Fire Prevention Plan

shall include, at a minimum, the following /??easuresj
. lJsing spark arrestors on all vehicles and equipment used for vegetation management;
. lJsing fire-resistant plants when planting areas for erosion control;
. Pruning the lower branches of talltrees;
. Clearing out groundJevel brush and debris; and
. Storing combustible materials away from vegetated areas,

lmplementation of Mitigation Measures HAZARDS-2a and HAZARDS-2ï would ensure that the

proposed project would result in less-than-significant impacts related to wildfires. (LTS)
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HYDROLOGY AND WATER QUALITY. Would the project:

a) Violate any water quality standards or waste discharge

requirements or otherwise substantially degrade surface or

groundwater quality?

b) Substantìally decrease groundwater supplies or inteíere
substantially with groundwater recharge such that the project may

impede sustaìnable groundwater management of the basin?

c) Substantially alter the existing drainage pattern of the site or area,

including through the alteration of the course of a stream or river

or through the addition of impervious surfaces, in a manner which

would:

(i) result in substantial erosion or siltation on- or off-site;

(ii) substantially increase the rate or amount of surface runoff in a

manner which would result in flooding on- or off-site;

(iii) create or contribute runoff water which would exceed the

capac¡ty of existing or planned stormwater drainage systems or

provide substantial additional sources of polluted runoff; or

(iv) impede or redirect flood flows?

d) In flood hazard, tsunami, or seiches zones, risk release of

pollutants due to project inundation?

e) Conflict with or obstruct implementation of a water quality control

plan or sustainable groundwater management plan?

tr I

The southern portion of the project site (south of the proposed access road) is located in a watershed

that drains to Arroyo Avichi Creek, which is a tributary to Novato Creek. The northern portion of the

project site (north of the proposed access road) is located in a watershed that drains to Warner Creek,
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which is also a tributary to Novato Creek (RWQCB,2017), There is no stormwater drainage

infrastructure within the project site or its vicinity; therefore, stormwater runoff from the project site flows

overland and either flows through drainage courses into the receiving waters described above, or

infiltrates the ground surface.

IMPACT EVALUATION

a) Woutd the project violate any water quality standards or waste discharge requirements or otherwise

substantially degrade surface or groundwater quality?

Less Than Significant with Mitigation lncorporated

Construction activities related to the proposed project would involve grading of soil, including

excavation and placement of fill, which could result in erosion and movement of sediments into creeks,

particularly during precipitation events. The potential for chemical releases is present at most

construction sites due to the use of paints, fuels, lubricants, and other hazardous materials associated

with construction activities. Once released, these hazardous materials could be transported to nearby

surface watenrvays in stormwater runoff, wash water, and dust control water, potentially reducing the

quality of the receiving waters. The release of sediments and other pollutants during construction could

adversely affect water quality in receiving waters.

lmpact HYDROLOGY-1 : Project construction activities could result erosion and movement of

sediments into creeks and the release of hazardous materials, which can degrade water quality.

(PS)

Mitiqation Measure HYDROLOGY-I: An Erosion and Stormwater Control Plan (ESCP) shall be

prepared for the proposed project The ESCP sha// address potential pollutants and their

sources, inctuding erosion and exposure of construction materials to runoff , and must include a

/isf of Besf Management Practices (BMPs) to reduce the discharge of construction-related

stormwater pollutants. Ihe ESCP shall include a detailed description of controls to reduce

pollutants and outline periodic maintenance and inspection procedures during construction and

operation of the project. Sediment and erosion BMPs shall include, but not be limited to

perimeter controls (e.g., straw wattles and silt fences) to prevent sediment from being

transporled off-site in surface runoff, and establishing and maintaining construction exits to avoid

tracking sediment off-site onto adjacent roadways. The ESCP shalldefine proper building

material staging and storage areas, paint and concrete washout areas, proper equipment/vehicle

fueling and maintenance practices, and measures to control equipment/vehicle washing and

allowabte non-stormwater discharges; and shall include a spill prevention and response plan,

The ESCP shall require that chemicals be sfored in waterfight containers (with appropriate

secondary containment to prevent any spillage or leakage) or in a storage shed (completely

enclosed), The ESCP shall include procedures fo address minor spills of hazardous materials,

Measures to control spills, leakage, and dumping shall be addressed through structural as well

as non-structural BMPs. For example, equipment and materials for cleanup of spi//s shall be

available on-site, and spills and leaks shall be cleaned up immediately and drsposed of properly.
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BMPs shatt also include treatment requirements, operat¡ng procedures, and practices to control

site runoff , spitlage or leaks, sludge or waste drsposal or drainage from raw material storage.

(,Lrs)

The discharge of potable water would be required during construction for testing and flushing of new

water pipelines that would connect to the proposed tank, and the discharge of potable water from the

proposed tank may also be required for maintenance purposes during operation of the project.

Discharges of potable water can result in water quality impacts as the discharged water may contain

elevated levels of chlorine, and the discharge of potable water could result in erosion and

sedimentation in receiving waters if the discharge is not appropriately controlled, Any discharge of

potable water would be performed in accordance with the State Water Resources Control Board (State

Water Board) Statewide National Pollutant Discharge Elimination System (NPDES) Permit for Drinking

Water System Discharges to Waters of the United States (State Water Board, 2014). This NPDES

permit requires implementation of BMPs to treat or control pollutants from potable water discharges,

including the following:

r Prevent aquatic toxicity by using dechlorination chemical additions, implementing equivalent

proven dechlorination methods, and/or assuring that the chlorine in the discharge dissipates

naturally, such that the level of chlorine in the discharge is less than 0.019 milligrams per liter

(mg/L) prior to entering a receiving water;

r Prevent riparian erosion and hydromodification by implementing flow dissipation, erosion control,

and hydromodification-prevention measures; and

r Minimize sediment discharge, turbidity, and color impacts by implementing sediment, turbidity,

erosion, and color control measures.

This NPDES permit requires that the discharger maintain a documented log of all BMPs implemented

for its different types of discharges that enter receiving waters, and make it available to State Water

Board and RWQCB staff upon request

The project would create slopes of exposed soil and bedrock as a result of excavation and placement

of fìll, and would also create an unpaved staging area. Post-construction stormwater runoff from the

project site could therefore result in erosion and transport of sediments into creeks if appropriate post-

construction erosion controls and stormwater control systems are not incorporated into the project

design. The project would also result in new impervious surfaces (e.9., the water tank and paved

acceis road), areas of reduced permeability (e.g., areas of exposed bedrock), and subsurface drainage

from fill slopes, whìch would increase the amount of stormwater runoff from the project site compared

to existing conditions.

NMWD proposes to control post-construction erosion through hydroseeding of exposed soil slopes,

and by installing a storm drain with multiple discharge outlets for energy dissipation. The majority of the

access road would be cross-sloped to direct runoff to the adjacent hillsides as sheet flow, which would

minimize erosion and allow infiltration of stormwater runoff from new impervious surfaces into

surrounding pervious areas, ln addition, implementation of Mitigation Measure HYDROLOGY-1 would
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ensure that erosion and sediment control BMPS are periodically inspected and maintained throughout

the project operation period.

lmplementation of Mitigation Measure HYDR0LOGY-'l and compliance with the requirements of the

National Pollutant Discharge Elimination System (NPDES) Permit for Drinking Water System

Discharges to Waters of the United States would ensure that the proposed project would result in less-

than-significant impacts on water quality.

b) Wo¡d the project substantiatly decrease groundwater supplies or interfere substantially with groundwater

recharge such that the project may impede sustainable groundwater management of the basin?

Less Than Significant lmpact

The project site is not located within a designated groundwater basin (RWQCB,2017). The project site

is located to the south and east of the Novato Valley Groundwater Basin, which is designated as a

"very low priority" groundwater basin under the Sustainable Groundwater Management Act and does

not have a sustainable groundwater management plan (California Department of Water Resources,

2019). The project is not anticipated to require dewatering during construction and would not increase

the use of groundwater during operation. While the project would increase impervious surface area,

which can reduce infiltration and groundwater recharge, stormwater runoff from the project site would

be directed to surrounding pervious areas and therefore would still have the opportunity to infiltrate the

ground surface and recharge groundwater, Therefore, the project would result in less-than-significant

impacts related to decreasing groundwater supplies, interfering with groundwater recharge, or

impeding sustainable groundwater management of the basin.

c) Woutd the project substantialty alter the existing drainage pattern of the sÌte or area, including through the

alteration of the course of a stream or river or through the addition of impervious sudaces, in a manner

which would: (i) result in substantial erosion or siltation on- or off-site; (ii) substantially increase the rate or

amount of surface runoff in a manner which would result in flooding on- or off-site; (iii) create or contribute

runoff water which would exceed the capacity of existing or planned stormwater drainage syslems or

provide substantial additionatsources of polluted runoff; or (iv) impede or redirect flood flows?

Less Than Significant with Mitigation lncorporated

The project would not alter the course of a river or stream. The project would create new impervious

area and increase runoff as described under ltem (a) above.

Erosion or Siltation

lmplementation of Mitigation Measure HYDROLOGY-1, which requires implementing an ESCP during

project construction and operation, would ensure that the proposed project would result in less{han-

significant impacts related to erosion and sedimentation.
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lncreased Runoff Resulting in Flooding or Exceeding the Capacity of Stormwater Drainage Systems

Stormwater runoff from the project site would be directed to and infiltrate adjacent hillsides.

lmplementation of Mitigation Measure HYDROLOGY-1, which requires implementing an ESCP during

project construction and operation would ensure that stormwater control systems and erosions control

BMPS are periodically inspected and monitored to ensure that they are properly functioning and not

resulting in erosion from concentrated flows due to increased runoff, therefore, the project would result

in less-than-significant impacts related to increased runoff,

Additional Sources of Polluted Runoff

lmplementation of Mitigation Measure HYDR0LOGY-1, which requires implementing an ESCP during

project construction and operation, would ensure that the proposed project would not result in

additional sources of polluted runoff.

lmpeding or Redirecting Flood Flows

The project site is located in an area of minimalflood hazard (i.e., not within 1O0-yearor 500-yearflood

hazard zones) as mapped by the Federal Emergency Management Agency (FEMA, 2019), and the

project site does not include any drainage courses or low-lying areas that could be susceptible to

flooding, Therefore, potential impacts related to impeding or redirecting flood flows would not occur.

d) tn ftood hazard, tsunami, or selches zones, would the project risk release of pollutants due to proiect

inundatton?

No lmpact

The project site is located inland and at an elevation that would ensure it would not be inundated by

tsunamis or other coastal flooding hazards (e.9., sea level rise and extreme high tides),

A seiche is the oscillation of a body of water. Seiches occur most frequently in enclosed or semi-

enclosed basins such as lakes, bays, or harbors, They can be triggered in an othenruise still body of

water by strong winds, changes in atmospheric pressure, earthquakes, tsunamis, or tides. There are no

bodies of water near the project site that could result in inundation of the project site due to a seiche.

As discussed under ltem (c) above, the project site is located in an area of minimal flood hazard (i,e,,

not within 10O-yearor 500-yearflood hazard zones)as mapped by FEMA (FEMA, 2019), The project

site does not include any drainage courses or low-lying areas that could be susceptible to flooding.

Therefore, potential impacts related to the release of pollutants during flooding inundation would not

0ccur.
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e) Woutd the project conft¡ct with or obstruct implementation of a water quality control plan or sustainable

groundwater management Plan?

Less Than Significant with Mitigation lncorporated

As discussed under ltem (b) above, the project site is not located within a designated groundwater

basin (RWQ C8,2017). The project site is located to the south and east of the Novato Valley

Groundwater Basin, which is designated as a "very low priority" groundwater basin under the

Sustainable Groundwater Management Act and does not have a sustainable groundwater

management plan (Californ¡a Department of Water Resources, 2019). Therefore, the project would not

conflict with or obstruct a sustainable groundwater management plan.

The applicable water quality control plan for the project site is the RWQCB's San Francisco Bay Basin

Water Quality Control Plan (Basin Plan) (RWQCB,2017), As discussed above, stormwater runoff from

the project site drains to Novato Creek through Anoyo Avichi Creek (runoff south of the proposed

access road) and Warner Creek (runoff north of the proposed access road). The Basin Plan identifies

Arroyo Avichi Creek, Warner Creek, and Novato Creek as water bodies with beneficial uses of cold and

warm water habitat, rare and endangered species habitat, wildlife habitat, and water contact and non-

contact recreation. Novato Creek also has beneficial uses of municipal and domestic water supply,

commercial fishing, and fish migration and spawning, and Warner Creek also has beneficial use fish

migration (RWQCB, 2017). Compliance with existing regulations and implementation of Mitigation

Measures HYDROLOGY-1, as described under ltem (a)above, would ensure that the project would not

result in significant impacts on water quality that could conflict with the water quality goals and

beneficial uses of water bodies established in the Basin Plan. Therefore, the proposed projeci would

result in less-than-significant impacts related to conflicting with or obstructing implementation of a water

quality control plan,

REFERENCES

California Department of Water Resources, 2019. SGMA Data Viewer, Available at:

https://sgma.water.ca.gov/webgis/?appid=SGMADataViewer, accessed on August 22,2019,

Federal Emergency Management Agency (FEMA), 2019, National Flood Hazard Layer Viewer, Map

Number 06041C0278D, effective May 4, 2009, Available at: https://www.fema.gov/national-

flood-h azard-laye r-nfh l, accessed on Au g u st 22, 2019.

Miller Pacific Engineerìng Group,201B, Geotechnical lnvestigation, North Marin WaterDistrict, Old

Ranch Road Tank, Novato, California, May 18,

San Francisco RegionalWater Quality Control Board (RWQCB),2017. San Francisco Bay Basin

(Region 2) Water Quality Control Plan (Basin Plan). lncorporating all amendments as of May 4.

State Water Resources Control Board (State Water Board),2014. Order WQ 2014-0194-DWQ General

Order No. CAG140001 Statewide National Pollutant Discharge Elimination System (NPDES)

Permit for Drinking Water System Discharges to Waters of the United States.
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Xl. LAND USE AND PLANNING. Would the project:

a) Physically divide an established commun¡ly?

b) Cause a significant environmental impact due to a conflict with any

lantl use plan, policy, or regulation adopted for the purpose of

avoiding or mitigating an environmental effect?

IMPACT EVALUATION

a) Would the project phystcally divide an established commun¡ty?

No lmpact

The project would be constructed in an undeveloped area outside the western boundary of the City of

Novato in lands that are within the jurisdiction of Marin County. The site is heavily vegetated with

sloping hills nearby. Very low density residentialdevelopment is located on lots nearthe site. The

project would not divide an established community.

b) Woutd the project cause a significant envtronmental impact due to a confl¡ct with any land use plan, policy,

or regutat¡on adopted for the purpose of avoiding or mitigating an environmental effect?

No lmpact

The General Plan designations are Agriculture (AG2)and Conservation (CON)forAssessor's Parcel

Number (APN) 146-3'10-05, and Planned Residential (PR) and Very Low Density Residential(RVL)for

APN 146-310-44. The General Plan designation for the existing NMWD parcel (APN '146-310-23) is

Open Space/RVL, The zoning is Agriculture and Conservation (A10)forAPN 146-310-05 and

Residential, Multiple Planned (RMP-0.5) for APN 146-310-44. The zoning designation for the NMWD

parcel is Open Area, The RVL designation generally requires lot sizes of 5 to 60 acres, and the PR

designation requ¡res lot sizes of 20,000 square feet to 10 acres (Marin County, 2007). Water tanks

would be allowed within these General Plan designations. As a water district, NMWD is exempt from

local land use controls of Marin County per Government Code Section 53091,

The Marin Countywide P/an addresses the need for services and facilities such as that proposed by the

project. The following ls a relevant implementing program from the Marin Countywide Plan (l'liarin

County, 2007)

lmplementing Program PFS-1 .b: Plan for Service Expansion. Work with LAFCO, cities and towns,

and specialdisfricfs to ensure that necessary public facilities and adequate water supply are in

place prior to occupancy of new development and funded at levels that reflect their true short- and

long-terms costs,
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The project would have no impact related to conflict with a land use plan, pol¡cy, or regulation

REFERENCES

Marin County,2007. Marin Countywide Plan, adopted November 6.
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lmpact
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with
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lncorporated

Less Than
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lmpact

No

lmpact

xrl MINERAL RESOURCES Would the project:

a) Result in the loss of availability of a known mineral resource that

would be of value to the region and the residents of the State?

b) Result in the loss of availabilily of a locally-important mineral

resource recovery site delineated on a local general plan, specific
plan, or other land use plan?

IMPACT EVALUATION

4 Would the project result in fhe /oss of availability of a known mineral resource that would be of value to the

region and the residents of the State?

No lmpact

No known mineral resources have been identified at the project site; therefore, no loss of such

resources would occur (Marin County Community Development Agency, 2005).

b) Would the project result ¡n fhe /oss of availability of a locally-important mineral resource recovery s¡te

delineated on a local general plan, spec¡f¡c plan, or other land use plan?

No lmpact

Refer to ltem (a) above

REFERENCES

Marin County Community Development Agency, 2005. Geology, MineralResources and Hazardous

MaterialTechnical Background Report.0riginally published in2002 and updated in November

2005

D

Í

D

u
u
tr

NN/WD_CEQAChecklist f-INAL (1 0/23/19) bt



lumnr Sruov/l\4¡lcATED NEGATtvE DecLnR¡rto¡l roR tHE

NoRru lMnRr¡r W¡reR Drsrnrcl OLD RANcH Roeo Tnnr No, 2 Pno¡ecr

Potentially
Significant
lmpact

Less Than
Significant
with
Mitigation
lncorporated

Less Than
Significant
lmpact lmpact

n D

No

Xlll. NOISE. Would the project result in:

a) Generation of a substantial temporary or permanent increase in

ambient no¡se levels in the vicinity of the project ìn excess of

standards eslablished in the local general plan or noise

ordinance, or applicable standards of other agencies?

b) Generation of excessive ground borne vìbration or ground borne

noise levels?

c) For a project located within lhe vicinity of a prìvate airstrìp 0r an

airport land use plan or, where such a plan has not been adopted,

within 2 miles of a publ¡c aìrport or public use airport, exposure of
people residing or working in the project area to excessive noise

levels?
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Noise Concepts and Terminology

Noise is commonly defined as unwanted sound that annoys or disturbs people and can have an

adverse psychological or physiological effect on human health. Sound is measured in decibels (dB),

which is a logarithmic scale. Decibels describe the purely physical intensity of sound based on changes

in air pressure, but they cannot accurately describe sound as perceived by the human ear since the

human ear is only capable of hearing sound within a limited frequency range. For this reason, a

frequency-dependent weighting system is used and monitoring results are repoded in A-weighted

decibels (dBA), Technical terms used to describe noise are defined in Table 6,

It should be noted that because decibels are based on a logarithmic scale, they cannot be added or

subtracted in the usual arithmeticalway. For instance, if one noise source emits a sound levelof 90

dBA, and a second source is placed beside the first and also emits a sound level of 90 dBA, the

combined sound level is 93 dBA, not 180 dBA. When the difference between two co-located sources of

noise is 10 dBA or more, the higher no¡se source dominates and the lower noise source makes no

perceptible difference in what people can hear or measure. For example, if the noise level is 95 dBA,

and another noise source is added that produces B0 dBA no¡se, the noise levelwill still be 95 dBA.

ln an unconfined space, such as outdoors, noise attenuates with distance according to the inverse

square law, Noise levels at a known distance from point sources are reduced by 6 dBA for every

doubling of that distance for hard surfaces such as cement or asphalt surfaces, and 7.5 dBA for every

doubling of dìstance for soft surfaces such as undeveloped or vegetative surfaces (Caltrans, 1998).

Noise levels at a known distance from line sources (e,9., roads, highways, and railroads) are reduced

by 3 dBA for every doubling of the distance for hard surfaces and 4.5 dBA for every doubling of

distance for soft sudaces (Caltrans, 1998), A greater decrease in noise levels can result from the

presence of intervening structures or buffers.
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TneLe 6 Derrrurlo¡¡ oF AcouslcAL TERMS

Term Definition
A unit describing the amplitude of sound on a logarithmic scale. Sound described in decibels is

Decibel (dB) usually refened to as sound or noise "level."This unit is not used in this analysis because it

includes frequencies that the human ear cannot detect.

Vibration Decibel (VdB) A unit describing the amplitude of vibration on a logarithmic scale.

A-Weìghted Sound Level (dBA)

The sound pressure level in decibels as measured on a sound level meter using the A-

weighting filter network. The A-weighting filter de-emphasizes the very low and very high

frequency components of the sound in a manner similar to lhe frequency response of the

human ear and correlates wellwith subjective reactions to noise. AII sound levels noted in this

analysis are A-weighted

The average A-weighted noise ìevel during the measurement period. For this CEQA evaluation,
Equivalent Noise Level (L"q)

Leq refers to a 1-hour period unless othenruise stated.

The average A-weighted noise level during a 24-hour day, obtained after addition of 10 decibels
Day/Night Noìse Level (Lan)

to levels measured during the niqht between 10:00 PM and 7:00 AM.

Maximum Sound Level (L**) The maximum A-weighted sound level measured by the sound level meter over a given period

of tìme.

Ambient Noise Level
The composile of noise from all sources near and far. The normal or existing level of

environmental noise at a given location.

Peak Particle Velocity (PPV) The maximum instantaneous peak of a vibration signal

Rool Mean Square (RMS) Velocity The average of the squared amplitude of a vibration signal.

Source: Charles M. SálìéiÀisoCiãtés iñó, i998. Federal TransitAdmìnistration, 2018.

A typical method for determining a person's subjectlve reaction to a new noise is by comparing it to

existlng conditions, The following describes the general effects of noise on people (Charles M. Salter

Associates lnc.,'l 998):

r A change of 1 dBA cannot typically be perceived, except in carefully controlled laboratory

exper¡ments;

I A 3-dBA change is considered a just-perceivable difference;

I A minimum of a 5-dBA change is required before any noticeable change in community response is

expected; and

r A 10-dBA change is subjectively perceived as approximately a doubling (or halving) in loudness.

Groundborne Vibration Concepts and Terminology

Vibration is an oscillatory motion through a solid medium in which the motion's amplitude can be

described in terms of displacement, velocity, or acceleration. Several different methods are used to

quantify vibration. Typically, groundborne vibration generated by man-made activities attenuates

rapidly with distance from the source of the vibration. Sensitive receptors to vibration include structures

(especially older masonry structures), people (especially residents, the elderly, and the sick), and

vibration-sensitive equipment, As defined in Table 6, vibration amplitudes are usually expressed as

either peak particle velociiy (PPV) or the root mean square (RMS) velocity, The PPV is defined as the

maximum instantaneous peak of the vibration signal. PPV is appropriate for evaluating potential
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damage to buildings, but it is not suitable for evaluating human response to vibration because it takes

the human body time to respond to vibration signals. The response of the human body to vibration is

dependent on the average amplitude of a vibration. The RMS of a signal is the average of the squared

amplitude of the signal and is more appropriate for evaluating human response to vibration. PPV and

RMS are normally described in units of inches per second (in/sec), and RMS is also often described in

vibration decibels (VdB).

IMPACT EVALUATION

a) Would the project result in generation of a substantialtemporary or permanent increase in ambient noise

levels in the vicinity of the project in excess of standards esfab/lshed in the local general plan or noise

ordinance, or applicable standards of other agencies?

Less Than Significant with Mitigation lncorporated

During operation, the proposed project would involve inspection once a week and tank cleaning every

five years, Because operation of the proposed project would not involve many noise-generating

activities and because of the infrequency of these operational activities, operation of the proposed

project would not result in generation of a substantial permanent increase in ambient noise levels.

During construction, the proposed project would involve the use of heavy construction equipment for

clearing, grubbing, site/road preparation, foundation, and tank construction, which would temporarily

increase noise levels in the vicinity of the project site. Noise impacts related to temporary noise

generated by the operation of heavy construction equipment are discussed below.

Exposure of Construction Workers to Noise

Construction workers could be exposed to excessive noise from the heavy equipment used during

construction of the proposed project, Noise exposure of construction workers is regulated by the

California Occupationalsafety and Health Administration (Cal/OSHA). Title 8, SubchapterT, Group'15,

Article '105 of the California Code of Regulations (Control of Noise Exposure) sets noise exposure limits

for workers and requires employers that have workers who may be exposed to noise levels above

these limits to establish a hearing conservation program, make hearing protectors available, and keep

records of employee noise exposure measurements, The Cal/OSHA also requires backup warning

alarms that activate immediately upon reverse movement on all vehicles that have a haulage capacity

of 2,5 cubic yards or more (Title B, California Code of Regulations). The backup alarms must be

audible above the surrounding ambient noise level at a distance of 200 feet, ln order to meet thls

requirement, backup alarms are often designed to emit a sound as loud as B2 to 107 dBA Lmax at 4

feet (NCHRP, 1999). The construction contractor for the proposed project would be subject to these

regulations, and compliance with Cal/OSHA regulations would ensure that the potential for construction

workers to be exposed to excessive noise would be less than significant.
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Exposure of Noise-sensitive Receptors to Construction Noise

Noise-sensitive receptors are defined as land uses where noise-sensitive people may be present or

where noise-sensitive activities may occur, As specified in the Marin Countywide P/an (Marin County,

2007), noise-sensitive receptors include residential land uses, Single-family homes are located near

the project site. The nearest noise-sensitive receptors to the project site include 1) a single-family home

located 160 feet southwest of the project site, 2) a single-family home located 180 feet southeast of the

project site, and 3) a single-family home located 300 feet east of the project site.

The project site is located on undeveloped lands that include little to no noise-generating activities, and

therefore the existing ambient noise levels are low. The primary noise source in the vicinity of the

project site is traffic noise on Old Ranch Road. The Marin Countywide Plan includes noise

measurements results from 2005. Ambient noise level at the nearest measurement location to the

project site (Novato Boulevard near Stafford Lake, approximately 3 miles from the project site) was 65

dBA Lon in 2005. Because this location has a similar land use as the project site (recreational and

residential)and because land use in the vicinity of the project site has not changed much since 2005,

the 2005 noise measurement at this location is considered representative of the ambient noise level at

the project site.

Table 7 shows typical noise levels associated with various types of construction equipment that may be

used at the project site, To evaluate potential construction noise impacts associated with the proposed

project, this analysis quantified the noise levels that would result from the simultaneous operation of the

two noisiest pieces of equipment expected to be used during each construction phase (this is a

standard analytical approach used in acoustical analysis to estimate construction noise associated with

proposed projects) (Federal Transit Administration, 2018). The addition of the two noisiest pieces of

equipment is presented in Table I to characterize the noise impactfrom the proposed project at the

nearest noise-sensitive receptors in the vicinity of the project site.

Based on the construction noise estimates presented in Table 8, the nearest noise'sensitive receptors

could be subject to noise levels of up to 75 dBA,74 dBA, and 69 dBA, depending on distance from the

project site. At the closest noise-sensitive receptor location, construction noise could be '10 dBA higher

than the ambient noise levels (approximately 65 dBA Lon), which is subjectively perceived as

approximately a doubling in loudness.

According to Marin County Code Section 6.70.030, Enumerated Noises, loud noise-generating

construction-related equipment (e,g., backhoes, generators, jackhammers) can be maintained,

operated, or serviced at a construction site for permits administered by the Marin County Community

Development Agency from B:00 AM to 5:00 PM. Monday through Friday only. The Marin County Code

does not specify any quantitative standards for construction noise. The potential temporary noise

impacts of construction activities would be mitigated in parl by the project's compliance with the

limitations on construction hours specified in the Marin County Code.
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TnaLr 7 Tvprc¡l Nolse LevEI-s FRoM CoNsTRUcrtoN EouteNrrur (oBA)

Phase Equipment Amount
Noise Level
at 50 Feet

Aerial Lifts 3 85

Crawler Tractors B4

Dumpers/Tenders 2 84

Clearing Excavators 2 B5

Rubber Tired Loaders 80

Skid Steer Loaders BO

Tractors/Loaders/Backhoe BO

Crawler Tractors B4

Dumpers/Tenders 2 B4

Excavators 2 B5

Grubbing
Rubber Tired Loaders BO

Skid Steer Loaders BO

Tractors/Loaderq/Backhoe BO

Crawler Tractors B4

Dumpers/Tenders 2 B4

Excavators B5

Graders B5

Site/Road

Preparation
Pavers B5

Rollers 2 B5

Scrapers B5

Skid Steer Loaders BO

Tractors/Loaders/Backhoe BO

Air Compressor BO

Cement and l\/ortar Mixers B5

Dumpers/Tenders B4

Foundation Excavators B5

Forklift NA

Tractors/Loaders/Backhoe B4

Trenchers
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TnaLe 7 Tvprc¡l Notse LEvels FRoM CoNSTRUcrloN EouteNrrur (oBA)

Phase Equipment Amount
Noise Level
at 50 Feet

Aerial Lifts 2 B5

Cranes 85

Dumpers/Tenders B4

Forklift NA

Tank

Conslruclion

Generator Sets

Pressure Washers

82

B5

Rollers B5

Rough Terrain Forklifts B5

Tractors/Loaders/Backhoe B4

Welders 4 13

Notes: NA = Not available,

Forklifts are not considered heavy construction equipment and therefore their noise levels are not availabìe

Sources: U.S, Department of Transporlation (DOT) 2006 The types of construction equipment are based

on the California Emissions Estimator Model (CalEEfVod) equipment list,

Tnele 8 Cnlcumreo Notse Levrls AT NEAREST NolsE-Srruslrlvc REcEPToRS FoR

Two Norsrest PrecEs oF EeUIPMENT FRoM EAcH PRo.lect CorusrRucrloH PHnse (oBA)

Phase

At 160 Feet from
Proiect Site

At 180 Feet from
Proiect Site

At 300 Feet from
Proiect Site

Clearrng 74 69

Grubbing 75 74 69

Site/Road Preparation 75 74 69

Foundalion 75 t4 69

Tank Construction 75 74 69

Notes: According to Table 7, the two noisiest pieces of equipment during each construction phase are 1) two of the following:

three aerial lifts and two excavators (clearing); 2) two excavators (grubbing); 3) two of the following: one excavator, one grader,

one paver, two rollers, or one scraper (site/road preparation); 4) one cement and morlar mixer and one excavator (found

and 5) two of the following: two aerìal lifts, one crane, one pressure washer, one roller, or one rough tenain forklift (tank

construction).

ation);
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ln addition, lhe Marin Countywide P/an includes the following goal, policy, and implementing program

that are applicable to the proposed project:

Goal NO-l: Protection from Excessive Nor,se. Ensure that new /and uses, transportation

activities, and construction do not create norse /eve/s that impair human health or quality of life.

Policy NO-1.3: Regulate Noise Generating Activities. Require rneasures to minimize noise

exposure to neighboring properfies, open space, and wildlife habitat from construction-related

activities, yard maintenance equipment, and other noise sources, such as amplified music.

Program NO-1,i: Regulate rVoise Sources. Secfions 6.70.030(5) and 6.70,040 of the Marin

County Code esfab/rs h allowable hours of operation for construction-related activities. As a

condition of permit approval for projects generating significant construction noise impacts during

the construction phase, construction management for any project shall develop a construction

noise reduction plan and designate a disturbance coordinator at the construction site to

implement the provisions of the plan,

As a water distrlct, NMWD is exempt from local land use controls of Marin County per Government

Code Section 53091 , However, NMWD typically strives to comply with the intent of these local land use

controls.

lmpact NOlSE.l: Project construction could result in significant increases in ambient noise

levels. (PS)

Mitiqation NO/SE-l a, Construction equipment operation shall be limited to the hours of

Monday through Frictay from 8.00 AM to 5:00 PM. No exception to the above limitations shall be

allowed.

Mitiqation /VO/SE-7b, The North Marin Water District (NMWD) shallimplement

measures to reduce noise impacts due fo construction, Noise reduction measures sha// include,

but not be limited to, the following:

a) Equipment and trucks used for project construction shalluse fhe best available norse control

techniques (e.g,, tmproved mufflers, equipment redesign, use of intake si/encers, ducfs,

engine enclosures and acoustically attenuating shields or shrouds), wherever feasible.

b) Noisy operations shall be combined to occur in the same time period, if possible. The total

noise level produced shatl not be significantly greater than the level produced if the

operations were performed separately.

c) Stationary noise sources sha// be located as far from adjacent properties as possib/e.

Mitictation ure rVO/SE-l c: NMWD shallde velop a set of procedures for responding to and

tracking complaints received pertaining to construction noise, and shall implement the

procedures during construction. At a minimum, the procedures sha// include:

a) Designation of an on-site construction complaint and enforcement manager for the proiect;
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b) Protocols specific to receptors for receiving, respond¡ng to, and tracking received compla¡nts;

and

c) Maintenance of a complaint log that records rece¡ved complaints and how complaints were

addressed,

Compliance with Mitigation Measures NO/SE-la through IVO/SE-lc would reduce the adverse

impacts associafed with construction noise to a less-than-significant level. (LTS)

b) Woutd the project result in generation of excessive ground borne vibration or ground borne noise levels?

Less Than Significant lmpact

fhe Marin Countywide Pian does not provide a definition for vibration-sensitive receptors. According to

the Federal Transit Administration (Federal Transit Administration, 2018), the nearby single-family

homes are classified as "Category 2, Residential," which includes all residential land uses and buildings

where people normally sleep. Therefore, the nearby homes are considered vibration-sensitive.

ln addition, in some cases extreme vibration can cause minor cosmetic or substantial building damage.

Potential vibration effects related to cosmetic or substantial building damage could also occur at the

nearby homes.

Consistent with guidance from the Federal Transit Administration (FTA), vibration impacts from the

proposed project would be considered potentially significant if they would exceed the FTA's

recommended vibration thresholds to prevent disturbance to people from "Occasional Events" (see

Table 9)ordamage to buildings (see Table 10). Specifically, in this analysis, vibration would be

considered a potentially significant impact if it would exceed the following thresholds: 75 VdB at nearby

homes where people normally sleep, or 0.3 in/sec PPV for potential cosmetic damage at nearby

homes.

T¡eLe 9 V¡eRnlo¡l CRlrenln To PnevE¡¡r DlsluRe¡Hcr - RMS (VoB)

Land Use

Frequent
Events.

Occasional
Eventsb

lnfrequent
Events.

Buildings where vibration would interfere with interior operations 65 b5 65

Residences and buildings where people normally sleep

lnstitutional land uses with primarily daytime use

72 75 BO

75 7B B3

Notes: RIVS = root mean square; VdB - vlbration decibels

" l\,4ore than 70 vibration events of the same kind per day or vibration generated by a long freight kain.

b Between 30 and 70 vibration events of the same kind per day.

" Fewer than 30 vibration events of the same k¡nd per day.

Source: Federal Transit Administration, 2018.
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TnaLe 10 VtanlloN CnlrrRln To Pneverur D¡unce To SrnucruRES - PPV (|ru/Src)

Building Peak Particle Velocitv

Reinforced-concrete, steel or timber (no plaster) 05

Engineered concrete and masonry (no plaster) 0.3

Non-engineered timber and masonry buildings 0.2

Buildings extremely susceptible to vibration damage 0.12

*o,.. ppy = peak particle velocity; in/sec = inches per second

Source: Federal Transit Administration, 2018

Construction activities associated with the proposed project would result in varying degrees of

groundborne vibration, depending on the equipment type, activity, and soil conditions. Published

reference vibration levels for construction equipment that could be used at the project site are

presented in Table 1 I . Table 1 1 also presents the buffer distance that would be required to reduce

vibration levels to below the 75-VdB threshold for single-family homes and the 0.3-in/sec PPV

threshold for potential cosmetic damage to occur at the nearby homes, The impacts associated with

vibration disturbance and vibration damage are discussed in detail below.

TneLe 11 Rerene¡Ice VIBRRTIoN LeveIs AND BUFFER DIST¡HCCS FOR CONSTRUCTION EQUIPMENT

Buffer Distances
for Vibration
Disturbance

(Feet)

Buffer Distances
for Vibration

Damage
(Feet)

Equipment

RMS at 25 Feet
(VdB).

PPV at 25 Feet

Single-Family
Homes

(75 VdB Threshold)

Single-Family
Homes

(0.3 in/sec PPV

Threshold)n/Sec)b(r

Vibratory Roller 94 0 210 107 1B

Large Bulldozer 87 0.089 63 B3

Loaded Trucks B6 0 076 5B 7.2

Small Bulldozer 5B 0 003 047

Notes: Receptors within the buffer distance could be affected by construction-generated vibratìon

Buffer dìstances are calculated based on the following equations:

PPV2 = PPV1 x (D1/D2)^1.1

Where:

PPVl is the reference vibration level at the reference distance (25 feet), and PPV2 is the calculated vibration level (in this case 0.3 in/sec).

D'1 is the reference distance (in this case 25 feet), and D2 is the distance from the equipment to the receiver (in this case the buffer distance)

Rl\4S2 = RIVSl - 30 Log10 (D2lD1)

Where.

RMSl is the relerence vibration level at the reference distance (25 feet), and RMS2 is the calculated vibration level (in this case 75 VdB)

D1 is the reference distance (in thrs case 25 feet), and D2 is the distance from the equipment to the receiver (in this case the buffer d¡stance)

" RMS = root mean square, VdB = vibration decìbel.
b PPV = peak particle velocity, in/sec = inches per second.

Source of Equation: Federal Transit Administration, 2018; California Department of Transportation (Caltrans), 2013.

NN/WD CEQAChecklist FlNAl.. i10/2311S) 70



lullnr Sruov/lVncnreo NecnlvE DEcLARATtoN FOR THE

NonrH lV¡Rrr'r WAÌER DrsrRrcT Oro Rn¡lcn Ro¡o T¡rur No. 2 Pno¡rcr

The closest single-family home is located '160 feet southwest of the project site. Based on the buffer

distances presented in Table 11, the closest single-family home is located outside of the buffer

distance of 107 feet and therefore would not be exposed to vibration levels that exceed the 75-VdB

disturbance threshold. The closest single-family home is also located outside of the buffer distance of
'18 feet and therefore would not be exposed to vibration levels that exceed the 0.3-in/sec damage

threshold. Therefore, the potential for the proposed project to result in generation of excessive ground

borne vibration would be less than significant.

c) For a project located within the vicinity of a private airstrip or an airpoft land use plan or, where such a plan

has not been adopted, within 2 miles of a public airport or public use airpoft, would the project expose

people residing or working in the proiect area to excessive noise levels?

No lmpact

The proposed project would not introduce new residents 0r users to the project site. Therefore, the

proposed project would not expose people in the project area to excessive noise from any public use

airporl or private airstrip.

REFERENCES

California Code of Regulations, Title 8, Subchapter 7, Group 15, Article 105.

California Deparlment of Transporlation (Caltrans), '1998. Technical Noise Supplement-A Technical

Supplement to the Traffic Noise Analysis Protocol.

California Department of Transportation (Caltrans), 2013. Transportation and Construction Vibration

Guidance Manual. September.

Charles M. Salter Associates lnc,, 1998. Acousfics - Architecture, Engineering, the Environment.

Federal Transit Administration,20lB. Transit Noise and Vibration lmpact Assessment Manual, FTA

Report No.0'1 23, September.

Marin County,2007. Marin Countywide Plan. Adopted November 6.

Marin County Code, Section 6,70.030.

National Cooperative Highway Research Program (NCHRP), '1999. Mitigation of Nighttime

Construction Noise, Vibrations, and Other Nuisances. NCHRP Synthesis 218.

U.S, Department of Transportation (DOT), 2006, FHWA Highway Construction Noise Handbook.
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Potentially
Significant
lmpact

Less Than
Significant
with
Mitigation
lncorporated

Less Than

Significant
lmpact

No

XlV. POPULATION AND HOUSING. Would the projectr

a) lnduce substantial unplanned population growth in an area, either

directly (for example, by proposing new homes and busìnesses) or

indirectly (for example, through extension of roads or other

infrastructu re)?

b) Displace substantial numbers of existing people or housing,

necessitating the construction of replacemenl housing elsewhere?

EÍ

t]

lmpact

n

u úl

IMPACT EVALUATION

a) Would the project induce substantial unplanned population growth in an area, either directly (for example,

by proposing new homes and businesses) or indirectly (for example, through extens¡on of roads or other

infrastructure)?

No lmpact

The new replacement water tank would not result in substantial unplanned population growth. While

the capacity of the new tank would be greater than the existing redwood tank that would likely be

decommissioned, the increased capacity would primarily cover firefighting needs. No growth would

occur from the new access road as this would only serve the tank site.

b) Would the project displace substantial numbers of existing people or housing, necessitat¡ng the

construction of replacement housing elsewhere?

No lmpact

No people or housing would be displaced by the project.

REFERENCES

Project description information.

N¡/WD-CEQAChecklisl. FlNAl.. {10/23i19) t/



lnllnr Sruov/Mllcnreo Necnrvr DEcLARATt0N F0R THE

Nonru M¡nlu WATER DrsrRrcT Oro RRUcH Rono Tnxx No. 2 Pno¡ecr

Potentially
Significant
lmpact

Less Than
Significant
with
Mitigation
lncorporated

Less Than

Significant
lmpact

No

lmpact

XV. PUBLIC SERVICES. Would the project:

a) Result in subslantial adverse physìcal impacts associated with the

provision of new or physically allered governmental facilities, need

for new or physìcally altered governmental facilities, the

construction of which could cause significant environmental

impacts, in order lo maintain acceptable service ratios, response

times, or other performance objectives for any of the public

services:

Fire protection?

Police protection?

Schools?

Parks?

Other public facilities?

IMPACT EVALUATION

a) Would the project result in substantial adverse physical impacts assoclafed with the prov¡sion of new or

physically altered governmental facilities, need for new or physically altered governmentalfacilities, the

construct¡on of which could cause significant envìronmental impacts, in order to mainta¡n acceptable serv¡ce

rat¡os, response firnes, or other performance objectives for any of the public servicesj Fire protection, police

protect¡on, schoo/s, parks, other public facilities?

No lmpact

The new replacement water tank would not affect fire protection, police, schools, parks, or other public

facilities, The project w0uld improve firefighting capability for this area of Novato and Marin County,

given the increased capacity provided by the new replacement tank,

REFERENCES

Project description information
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XVI. RECREATION.

a) Would the project increase the use of exisling neighborhood and

regional parks or other recreational facilities such that subslantial
physical deterioratìon of the facility would occur or be accelerated?

b) Does the project include recreational facilities or require the

conslruction or expansion of recreational facilìties which might have

an adverse physical effect on the environment?

XVll TRANSPORTATION Wou|d the project

a) Conflict with a program plan, ordinance, or polrcy addresstng the

circulation system, including transit, roadway, bicycle, and

pedestrian facilities?

b) Conflict or be rnconsistent with CEQA Guidelines Section 15064 3,

Subdivìsion (b)?

No

ttI

ú I ú

Potentially
Significant
lmpact

Potentially
Significant
lmpact

Less Than

Significant
with
Mitigation
lncorporated

Less Than

Signifìcant
lmpact lmpact

a)

B o

IMPACT EVALUATION

Would the project increase fhe use of existing ne¡ghborhood and reg¡onal parks or other recreational

facilities such that substantial phystcal deterioration of the facility would occur or be accelerated?

No lmpact

No increased recreational or park use would occur in association with the project,

b) Does fhe project include recreat¡onalfacilities or requ¡re the construction or expansion of recreat¡onal

facilities which might have an adverse physical effect on the environment?

No lmpact

The project does not include recreat¡onal facilities or have associated requirements for recreational

facilities,

REFERENCES

Project description information.

Less Than
Significant
with
Mitigation
lncorporated

Less Than

Significant
lmpact

No
lmpact

D

Í

D

D u
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Potentially
Significant
lmpact

fl

ú

Less Than
Significant
with
Mitigation
lncorporated

Í

Less Than
Significant
lmpact

u
lmpact
No

c) Substantially increase hazards due to a geomelric design feature

(e.9,, sharp curves or dangerous intersections) or incompat¡ble uses

(e.9., farm equipment)?

d) Result in inadequate emergency access? ú t
IMPACT EVALUATION

a) Would the project confl¡ct with a program, plan, ordinance, or polìcy addressing the circulation sysfe/??,

including transit, roadway, b¡cycle, and pedestrian facilities?

No lmpact

The proposed project would have no impact on transpodation related to increased transit, roadway,

bicycle, or pedestrian use.

b) Woutd the project confl¡ct or be ¡nconsistent with CEQA Guidelines Secflon 15064,3, Subdivision (b)?

No lmpact

Section 15063.3, Subdivision (b) of the CEQA Guidelines addresses evaluation of a project's

transportation impacts. The proposed project, a replacement water tank, would have no transportation

impacts other than during construction when construction vehicles would be using local roads for

access to the site and for construction of the new access road and new tank. During project operation,

a minor number of vehicle trips would occur to and from the site for maintenance of the water tank.

Addressing potential vehicle miles traveled would not be relevant for the proposed project,

c) Woutd the project substantially increase hazards due to a geometr¡c design feature (e.9., sharp curues or

dangerous rntersections) or inconpatible uses (e.9,, farm equipment)?

No lmpact

The new access road to the project site has been designed to minimize any hazards for vehicles

entering and exiting the project site. A locked gate would limit access to the site to NMWD employees

Sight distance would be maintained so that veh¡cles entering and exiting the site on the access road

would have adequate visibility 0f cars using Old Ranch Road, A turnaround area would also be

included near the existing redwood water tank (see Figure 2).
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d) Would the project result ¡n inadequate emergency access?

No lmpact

The new access road to the new replacement tank would allow adequate emergency access for fìre

personnel.

REFERENCES

Project description information.

Potentially
Significant
lmpact

Less Than
Significant
with
Mitigation
lncorporated

Less Than
Sign ificant
lmpact

No

lmpact

XVlll TRIBAL CULTURAL RESOURCES Would the project:

a) Would the project cause a substantial adverse change in

the significance of a tribal cultural resource, defined in

Public Resources Code Section 2'1074 as either a site,

feature, place, cultural landscape that ìs geographically

defined in terms of the size and scope of the landscape,

sacred place, or object with cultural value to a California

Native American trìbe, and that is:

ì) Listed or eligible for listing in the California Regìster of

Hìstorical Resources, or in a local register of hìstorical

resources as defined in Public Resources Code Section

5020 1(k); or,

ii) A resource determined by the lead agency, in its

discretion and supporled by substantial evìdence, to be

significant pursuant to criteria set forth in subdivision (c)

of Public Resources Code Section 5024 1 ln applying

the criteria set forth in subdivision (c) of Public

Resource Code Section 5024.1, the lead agency shall

consider the significance of the resource to a California

Native American tribe,

úÚ D

il D D

IMPACT EVALUATION

a) Would the project cause a subsfanfia/ adverse change in the significance of a tribal cultural resoL)rce,

defined in Public Resources Code Secfion 21074 as either a site, feature, place, cultural landscape that is

geographically definecl in terms of the size and scope of the landscape, sacred place, or obiect with cultural

value to a California Native American tribe, and that is: (i) Listed or el¡g¡ble for listing in the California

Reglsfer of HtstoricalResources or tn a local reg¡ster of historical resources as defined in Public Resources

Code Section 5020.1(k); or ii) A resource determined by the lead agency, in its discretion and supported by
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substantial ev¡dence, to be significant pursuant to criteria set forth in subdivision (c) of Public Resources

Code Section 5024.1?

Less Than Significant lmpact

Background

Assembly Bill(AB)52, which became lawon January 1,2015, provides forconsultation with California

Native American tribes during the CEQA environmental review process and equates significant impacts

on "tribal cultural resources" with significant environmental impacts.

The consultation provisions of the law require that a public agency consult with local Native American

tribes that have requested placement on that agency's notification list for CEQA projects. Within 14

days of determining that a project application is complete, or a decision by a public agency to

underlake a project, the lead agency must notify tribes of the opportunity to consult on the project,

should a tribe have previously requested to be on the agency's notification list. California Native

American tribes must be recognized by the Native American Heritage Commission (NAHC) as

traditionally and culturally affiliated with the project site and must have previously requested that the

lead agency notify them of projects. Tribes have 30 days following notification of a project to request

consultation with the lead agency.

The purpose of consultation is to inform the lead agency in its identification and determination of the

significance of tribalcultural resources. lf a project is determined to result in a significant impact on an

identified tribal cultural resource, the consultation process must occur and conclude prior to adoption of

a Negative Declaration or Mitigated Negative Declaration, or cerlification of an Environmental lmpact

Report (Public Resources Code Sections 21080.3.'l ,21080.3.2, and 21082.3).

Tribal Outreach

NAHC in West Sacramento was contacted to review its Sacred Lands File to identify registered, Native

American sacred sites in or near the project site, Andrew Green, NAHC Staff Services Analyst, stated

in a letter as follows: "A record search of the Native American Heritage Commission Sacred Lands File

was completed for the information you have submitted for the above referenced project. The results

were positive. Please contact the Federated Indians of Graton Rancheria on the attached list for more

information,"

The Federated lndians of Graton Rancheria (FIGR) has not requested, in writing, that NMWD inform

them of lts projects that are subject to CEQA, consistent with California Public Resources Code Section

2'1080.3.1. As a result, NMWD is notrequired to consultwith FIGR forthis project.

No pre-contact archaeological deposits or Native American human remains have been identified at or

near the project site, Furthermore, although the NAHC Sacred Lands File search was "positive," the

NAHC database is not necessarily site-specific. ln other words, while the Sacred Lands File search

rndicates that a FIGR sacred site is reported in the vicinity, that sacred site is not necessarily at the
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project site. Several Native American sites and human remains are reported in lndian Valley, and it is

possible that the "positive" result refers to these more distant resources,

For the reasons stated above, NMWD has determined that the project site is of low sensitivity for tribal

cultural resources. The project would have a less-than-significant impact on reported tribal cultural

resources that are in the vicinity.

REFERENCES

Native American Heritage Commission ,2019. North Marin Water District New Tank Proiect, Marin

County, August 14.

Potentially
Sígn ificant
lmpact

Í

Less Than
Significant
with
Mitigation
lncorporated

Less Than
Significant
lmpact

No

lmpact

D tr
XVlll. UTILITIES AND SERVICE SYSTEMS Would the project:

a) Require or result in the relocation or construction of new or

expanded water, wastewater lreatment, or stormwater drainage,

electric power, naluraì gas, or telecommunications facililies, the

construction or relocation of which could cause significant

envi ron menta I effects ?

b) Have sufficient water suppl¡es available to serve the project and

reasonably foreseeable future development during normal, dry, and

multiple dry years?

c) Result in a determination by the wastewater treatment provider

which serves or may serve the project that it has adequate capacity

to serve the project's projected demand in addition to the provide/s

existing commitments?

d) Generate solid waste in excess of State or local standards, or in

excess of the capacìty of Iocal inírastructure, or otherwise impair

the attainment of solid waste reduction goals?

e) Comply with federal, State, and local management and reduction

statutes and regulations related to solid waste?

I

I

Í

ú

Ú

D

u

ú

Í

Í

D

Í

ú n

IMPACT EVALUATION

4 Would the project requtre or result in the relocation or construction of new or expanded water, wastewater

treatment, or stormwater drainage, electric power, natural gas, or telecommunications facilities, the

construction or relocat¡on of which could cause significant env¡ronmental effects?

Less Than Significant with Mitigation lncorporated

The project itself is a replacement of a nearby water tank that was constructed in '1963 and is reaching

the end of its life. This lnitial Study addresses potential impacts for a variety of topics, and mitigation
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measures have been identifìed for potentially significant impacts. Refer to other sections of this lnitial

Study (e.9., cultural resources, hazards, etc.).

b) Woutd the project have sufficient water supplies available to serve the project and reasonably foreseeable

future development during normal, dry, and multiple dry years?

Less Than Significant lmpact

The project itself is a water supply and storage project and adequate water is available to serve the

community served by this new water tank.

c) Would the project result in a determination by the wastewater treatment provider which seves or may sen/e

the project that it has adequate capacity fo serve the project's projected demand in addition to the

providef s existing commitments?

No lmpact

No wastewater impacts are associated with the new replacement water tank.

d) Wouldtheprojectgeneratesolidwaste lnexcessofSfafe orlocalstandards, orlnexcess of thecapacityof
local infrastructure, or otherwise impair the attainment of solid waste reduction goals?

No lmpact

No major solid waste generation would be associated with the replacement water tank other than

general construciion debris, which would be minor, Every five years, the tank cleaning may generate a

small amount of solid waste,

e) Would the project comply with federal, State, and local management and reduction sfafufes and regulations

related to solid waste?

No lmpact

NMWD would comply with any regulations related to solid waste as associated with construction debris

and tank cleaning.

REFERENCES

Project description information
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Potentially
Significant
lmpact

Less Than

Significant
with
Mitigation
lncorporated

Less Than

Significant
lmpact

No
lmpact

XX WILDFIRE. lf located in or near state responsibility areas or lands

classified as very high fire hazard severity zones, would the project:

a) Substantially impair an adopted emergency response plan or

emergency evacuation plan?

b) Due to slope, prevailing winds, and other factors, exacerbate

wildfire risks, and thereby expose project occupants to pollutant

concentrat¡ons from a wildfire or the uncontrolled spread of a

wildfire?

c) Require the installalion or maintenance of associaled infrastructure

(such as roads, fuel breaks, emergency water sources, power

lines, or other utilities) that may exacerbate fire risk or that may

result in temporary or ongoing impacls to the environment?

d) Expose people or structures to significant risks, incìuding

downslope or downstream flooding or landslides, as a result of

runoff, post-fire slope ìnstability, or drainage changes?

ú n

D

IMPACT EVALUATION

a) Woutd the project substantially impair an adopted emergency response plan or emergency evacuat¡on

plan?

Less Than Significant lmpact

The project would be constructed on an undeveloped site with a new access r0ad connecting to Old

Ranch Road, During construction, no access disruptions would occur on Old Ranch Road and any

evacuations along this route would be unencumbered,

Due to slope, preva¡l¡ng winds, ancl other factors, would the proiect exacerbate wildfire risks, and thereby

expose project occupants to pollutant concentrat¡ons from a wildfire orthe uncontrolled spread of a wildfire?

Less Than Significant with Mitigation lncorporated

As addressed in the Section lX, Hazards and Hazardous Materials, of this lnitial Study, the projectsite

is located in a State Responsibility Area and is identified as a moderate Fire Hazard Severity Zone as

mapped by the California Department of Forestry and Fire Protection. The project site and adjacent

areas include steep terrain that is covered in vegetation and trees and therefore could be susceptible to

wildland fires,

Construction of the project would entail use of construction equipment that could generate sparks

(e.g,, vehicles, saws, mowers, acetylene torches, and welding equipment)and would involve storage

and use of flammable materials (e.g,, fueland compressed gasses), which would temporarily increase

n
trD

ú

Í

I

D

t

t

t

b)
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fire risks. Operation of the project would also involve the use of vegetation management equipment

(e.g., mowers, weed whackers, and chainsaws) that could generate sparks and increase fire risks, lf

vegetation on the project site is not appropriately managed, the project could increase the risk of fire

occurring on the project site and spreading from the project site to surrounding areas.

lmpact WILDFIRE-1: The proposed project could increase the risk of wildfire, (PS)

Mitiqation WILDFIRE-1 Mitigation Measures HAZARDS-Za and HAZARDS-Zî shallbe
implemented, ILIS)

c) Would the project require the tnstallation or maintenance of associate d inf rastructure (such as roads, fuel

breaks, emergency water sources, power lines, or other utilities) that may exacerbate fire risk or that may

result in temporary or ongoing impacts to the environment?

No lmpact

The project would require the installation of an access road connecting to Old Ranch Road. However,

construction of this road would not exacerbate fire risk. Conversely, the new access road would provide

new access for fire trucks in an emergency, No new overhead electrical lines or other utilities that could

exacerbate fire risk would be constructed,

d) Would the project expose people or structures to significant risks, including downslope or downstream

flooding or landslides, as a result of runoff, poslfire slope instability, or drainage changes?

No lmpact

The project would not expose people or structures to significant post-wildfire risks, The new tank would

be constructed of welded steeland would be located on a levelportion of the hillside, Post-fire impacts

such as slope instability or landslides would noi result from the project.

REFERENCES

Project description information

Potentia lly
Significant
lmpact

0

Less Than

Sign ificant
with
Mitigation
lnco rporated

Less Than

Sign ificant
lmpact

No

lmpact

ú ú
XXI. MANDATORY FINDINGS OF SIGNIFICANCE

a) Does the project have the potential to substantially degrade the

quality of the environment, substantially reduce the habitat of a fish

or wildlife species, cause a fish or wildlife population to drop below

self-sustaining levels, threaten to eliminate a plant or animal

commun¡ty, substantially reduce the number or restrict the range of

a rare or endangered plant or animal, or eliminate important

examples of the major periods of California history or prehistory?
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Potentially
Significant
lmpact

ft

Less Than

Significant
with
Mitigation
lncorporated

ú

Less Than

Significant
lmpact

I

No
lmpact

D

a)

b) Does the project have impacts that are individually limited, but

cumulatively considerable? ("Cumulatively considerable" means

that the incremental effects of a proiect are considerable when

viewed in connection with the effects of past projects, the effects of

other current projects, and the effects of probable future projects,)

c) Does lhe project have environmental effects which will cause

substantial adverse effects on human beings, either directly or

indirectly?

D t n n

IMPACT EVALUATION

Does the project have the potent¡alto substantially degrade the quality of the environment, substantially

reduce the habitat of a fish or wildlife species, cause a fish or wildlife populat¡on to drop below self-

susfalnlng levels, threaten to eliminate a plant or an¡mal commun¡ty, substantially reduce the number or

restr¡ct the range of a rare or endangered plant or an¡mal, or el¡m¡nate important examples of the maior

per¡ods of California history or prehistory?

Less Than Significant with Mitigation lncorporated

No significant impacts would occur with implementation of the mitigation measures identifìed in this

lnitial Study, Potentially significant impacts on plants and wildlife would be limited to possible

inadvertent loss of bird nests, which would be mitigated through measures identified in Section lV,

Biological Resources, above. Potentially significant impacts on archaeological and historical resources

(i,e,, as-yet unidentified archaeol0gical deposits)would be mitigated through measures identified in

Section V, Cultural Resources, above.

Does fhe project have impacts that are individually timited, but cumulatìvely considerable? ("Cumulatively

cons¡derable" means that the incremental effects of a project are considerable when viewed in connection

with the effecfs of past projects, the effects of other current projects, and the effects of probable future

projects.)

Less Than Significant lmpact

The only other project in the vicinity of the project is a proposed Marin County Design Review approval

of a residentialaddition/accessory structure located at 1650 lndian Valley Road, about0.B mile

northeast of the project site (Marin County, 2019). This project entails a S02-square{oot addition to the

rear of an existing structure. Given the distance of this other project from the water tank site, and the

type of impacts identified for the project, n0 cumulatively significant cumulative effects are expected.

b)
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c) Does the project have environmental effects which willcause subsfa ntial adverse effects on human beings,

either directly or indirectly?

Less Than Significant with Mitigation lncorporated

Any potential impacts of the project are able to be mitigated to less than significant and would not

cause substantial adverse effects on human beings, either directly or indirectly. Refer to Appendix A for

a listof allidentified mitigation measures, which would be adopted as partof the lnitialStudy/Mitigated

Negative Declaration,

REFERENCES

Marin County,2019. Community Development Agency. Available at: https://www.marincounty.org/

depts/cd/divisions/planning/projects/novato/claves_trust-dr-up-p2309-no;accessed on

August 19, 2019.
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APPENDIX A
MITIGATION MONITORING AND REPORTING PROGRAM

Party
Responsible
for Ensuring

Imolementation

Party
Responsible

for Monitorinq
Monitoring

ïiminq

Com pliance Verif ication

Project/
lnitial Date CommentsMitiqation Measure

Arn Queurv

AIR-1: During project construction, the contractor shall implement a dust control program thai

includes the following measures recommended by the Bay Area Air Quality Management

District (BAAQIVD):

¡ All exposed surfaces (e.9., parking areas, staging areas, soil piles, graded areas, and

unpaved access roads) shall be watered two times per day.

¡ All haui trucks transporting soil, sand, or other loose material off-site shall be covered.

r Track-out control mats shall be used to contain and minimize mud and dirl track-out onto

adjacent public roads. Any remaining visible mud or dirt track-out onio adjacent public

roads shall be removed using wet power vacuum street sweepers, if necessary. The use

of dry power sweeping is prohibited,

I All vehìcle speeds on unpaved roads shall be limited to 15 miles per hour.

r All roadways, driveways, and sidewalks to be paved shall be completed as soon as

possible, Building pads shall be laid as soon as possible after grading unless seedìng or

soìl binders are used.

! A publicly vìsible sìgn shaìl be posted with the telephone number and person to contact at

the lead agency regarding dust complaints. This person shall respond and take corrective

action wìthin 48 hours. The BAAQIVD phone number shalì also be visible to ensure

compliance with applicable regulations.

ìn addition, North lVarin Water District (N[/WD) staff or an independent construction monitor

shall conduct periodic site inspections, but in no event fewer than four total inspections, during

the course of construction to ensure these mìtigation measures are ìmplemented and shall

issue a letter report documenting the ìnspection results. Reports indicating non-compliance

with construction mitigation measures shall be cause to issue a stop-work order until such

tìme as comoiiance is achieved.

Contractor District During construction
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Party
Responsible
for Ensuring

lmolementation

Party
Responsible

for Monitorinq
Monitoring

Timinq

Compliance Verification

ProjecU

lnitial Date CommentsMitiqation Measure

Brolocrcal Resounces

Bl0L0GY-1: Adequate measures shall be taken to avoid inadvedent take ofraptor nests and

other nesting birds protected underthe lVigratory Bird TreatyActwhen in active use This

shall be accomplished by taking the followìng sieps:

¡ lf construction is proposed during the nesting season (February through August), a

focused survey for nesting raptors and other migratory birds shall be conducted by a

qualified biologist within 14 days prior to the onset of tree removal or construction, in

order to identify any actÌve nests on the prolect site and in the vìcinity of proposed

construction.

r lf no active nests are identifìed durrng the survey period, or if development is inÌtiated

during the non-breeding season (September through February), construction may

proceed with no restrictions.

r lf bird nests are found, an adequate setback shall be established around the nest location

and constructÌon actìvities restricted within this no-disturbance zone until the qualified

biologist has confirmed that any young birds have fledged and are able to function

outside the nest locatìon, Required seiback distances for the no-disturbance zone shall

be based on input received from the California Deparlment of Fish and Wildlife (CDFW),

and may vary depending on species and sensitivity to disturbance. As necessary, the no-

disturbance zone shall be fenced with temporary orange construction fencing if

construclion is to be initiated on the remainder ofthe construction area.

r A repori of findings shall be prepared by the qualifed biologist and submitted to the North

i\4arin Water District (NMWD) for review and approval prior to initìatìon of construction

wìthin the no-disturbance zone during the nestìng season (February through August). The

report eìther shall confirm absence of any active nests or shall confirm that any young

within a designaled no-dìsturbance zone have fledged and construction can proceed.

lmplementation of l\4itigation lVeasure BIOLOGY-1 would reduce potentìalìy significant
imnâ^te octi nn birds to a less-than-sionificant level.0nn

Currun¡l REsouRcES

CULTURAL-1: Should an archaeological deposit be encountered during project subsulace
constructìon activilies, all ground-disturbing activities within 25 feet shaÌl be redirected and a

qualifìed archaeologist meeting the Secretary of the Interio/s Professional Qualif cations

Standards for Archeology contacted to assess the siiuation, determine if the deposit qualifìes

as a historicaì resource, consullwith agencies as appropriate, and make recommendatìonsfor

the treatment of the discovery. lf the deposìt is found to be significant (i.e., eligible for listing in

the California Rc¡ictor of HistorÍcal Resources

District

Contractor

District Before and during

construction

District During constructìon

NN/WD_CEQAChecklist_Fl NAL (1 0123/1 9)
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Party
Responsible
for Ensuring

lmplementation

Party
Responsible

for Monitorinq
Monitoring

Timinq

Durìng constructlon

During fìnal design and

constructìon

During final design and

constructìon

Compliance Verif ication

ProjecU

lnitial Date CommentsMitiqation Measure
(NIVWD) shall be responsrble for funding and implementing appropriate mttìgation rneasures.

1\4itìgation measuTes may include recording of the archaeological deposit, data recovery and

analysis, and public outreach regarding the scientific and cultural importance of the discovery.

Upon completion of the selected mitìgations. a report documenting methods, fìndings, and

recommendations shall be prepared and submitted to NN/WD for review, and the final report

shall be submitted to the Northwest lnformation Center (NWIC) at Sonoma State University.

Signifìcant archaeological materiais shall be submitted to an appropriate local curation facility

and used for future research and publrc interpretive displays, as appropriate.

NIVWD shall ìnform its contracto(s) of the sensitivity of the project area for archaeological

deposits and shall verify that the following directive has been included ìn the appropriate

contract documents:

"The subsurface of the construction site may be sensitive for Native American

archaeoìogical deposits and assoctated human remains. lf archaeological deposìts are

encountered during project subsuriace construction, all ground-disturbing activities within

25 feet shall stop and a qualified archaeologist contacted to assess the situation and make

recommendations for the treatment of the dÍscovery. Project personnel shall not collect or

move any archaeological materials. Archaeological deposits can incìude shellfish remains;

bones: flakes of, and tools madefrom, obsidian, chert, and basalt; and mortars and

pestles. Contractor acknowledges and understands that excavation or removal of

archaeological maieriaì is prohibited by faw and constìtutes a misdemeanor under

California Public Resources Code, Seclion 5097,5."

With implementation of this mitigation measure, the potential impact on historical and

archaeol o0 ical resources would be reduced to a lesslhan-siqnificant ìevel.

CULTURAL-2: [,4itigation lileasure CULTURAL-1 shall be implemented.

GEorocv ¡no SorLs

GE0L0GY-1: The proposed improvements shall be designed and conslructed in accordance

with the provisions of the most recent versìon of the California Building Code and approprìate

American Water Works Associatìon (AWWA) standards or subsequent codes in effeci when

final design occurs,

lmplementation of lVitigation Measure GE0LOGY-1 would ensure that project impacts related

wouldlo

District

District

District and

Geolechnical
Enoìneer

Distrìct

District

sirônÕ sersmrc round shaki nci be Iess than sionificant.

GEOLOGY-2: The updated project pf ans shalì be submitted to the Geotechnical Engineer for

review to determine whether additional geotechnicaì investigation and/or modifcation of
qeotechnical recommendations would be

NN¡WD_CEQAChecklist_Fl NAL (1 0/23/1 9)
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Party
Responsible
for Ensuring

lmplementation

Party
Responsible

for Monitorinq
Monitoring

Timino

Com pliance Verification

ProjecU

lnitial Date CommentsMitiqation Measure
and risk of landslides. The detaìled project plans shall be designed ìn accordance with all

geotechnical recommendations. As project plans near completion, the plans and

specifications shall be provìded to the Geotechnical Engineer for review to conflrm thai
geotechnical recommendations have been incorporaled. During construction, the

Geotechnical Engineer shall perform observation and testing of geotechnical-related work

(e.g , excavation, gradìng, subsulace draln lnstallations, and fill placement) to confirm that

conditions are as anticlpated, adjust geotechnical recommendatìons and design criteria if

needed, and confirm that construction is perlormed in accordance with the project pians and

specifications

lmplementation of lVìtigation l'4easure GEOLOGY-2 would ensure that the prolect impacts

related to slooe stabilitv and landslides would be less than siqnificanl.

GEOLOGY-3: See Mitigation lVeasures HYDROLOGY-1. As described ìn Sectlon X,

Hydrology and Water Quality, implementation of lVitigation Measure HYDROLOGY-1, which

requires preparation of and implementation of an Erosion and Stormwater Control Plan

(ESCP) during construction; and periodic inspection and maintenance of erosion and

sediment controi B[¡1Ps during projecl operation, would reduce the potentìal impacts related lo

erosìon or the loss of toosoil to a lesslhan-siqnificant level,

GE0L0GY-4: Should paleontologìcal resources be encountered during project subsudace

construction activilies, all ground-disturbing activitìes within 25 feet ofthe find shall be stopped

and a qualified paieontologist shaìl be contacted to assess the situation, consult with agencies

as appropriate, and make recommendations for the treatment of the discovery. lf the

discovery is found to be significant and project activities cannot avoìd ihe paleontological

resources, adverse effects on paleontoìogical resources shall be mitigated. lVitigation may

include monitoring, recording of the fossil locality, data recovery and analysis, preparation of a

technical repoÍ, and provision of the fossil material and technical report to a paìeontological

repository, such as the Universiiy of California lVuseum of Paleontology. Public educationaì

outreach may also be appropriate. Upon completion of ihe assessment, a report documenting

methods, fìndings, and recommendations shall be prepared and submltted to the North lMarin

Water District (NMWD)for review.

NIMWD shall inform ìts contracto(s) of the sensitìviiy of the project area for paleontological

resources and shall include the following directÌve in the appropriate contract documents:

"The subsurface of the construction site may be sensitive for paleontological resources. If

paleontological resources are encountered during project subsurface construction, all

ground-disturbing activitìes withrn 25 feet of the fnd shall be stopped or redirected and a
qualifìed paleontologist contacted io assess the situation, consuìt with agencies as

aoorooriate. and make recommendations for the treatment of the discovery. Proiect

Contractor

District, working

with Paleontologist

Distrìct Durìng construction and

operation

District During constructìon

NNIWD_CEQAChecklist_FINAL (1 0/2311 9) A-4
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Party
Responsible
for Ensuring

lmolementation

Party
Responsible

for Monitorino
Monitoring

Timinq

Compliance Verif ication

ProjecU

lnitial Date CommentsMitioation Measure
personnel shall not collect or move any paleontological materials. Paleontological

resources ìnclude fossil plants and anìmals, and such trace fossil evidence of past life as

anìmal tracks."

lmplementation of l\4itigatron lVeasure GEOLOGY-4 would reduce potential rmpacts on

oaleontolooical resources to a lesslhan-sìqnificant level.

H¡z¡nos ¡¡ro H¡zanoous M¡reRr¡r-s

HAZARDS-1: lVitigation l\4easure HYDR0L0GY-1 shall be implemented. Combìned wilh

compliance with applicable existing regulations, implementation of lViligalion lüeasure

HYDROLOGY-1 would ensure that potential impacts related to accidental releases of

hazardous materiaìs would be less than siqnifìcant,

HAZARDS-2a: Construction contractors shall ensure the following measures are lmplemented

to minimize the potential for accidental ignition of conslructìon materials and vegetation: 1)

flammable/combustible materials shall be stored away from vegetated areas; 2) spark

anestors shall be fitted on all construction vehicìes and equipment: 3) work that generates

sparks, such metal cutting, torching, and welding, shall only be performed in areas where

vegetation has been sufficiently cleared and the ground su¡Jace has been wetted; and 4) an

adequate water source and fire extinguishers shall be available at all times for fire

suooression.

HAZARDS-2b: The Nofth Marin Water District (NIVWD) shall develop a Vegetation

Management and Fire Prevention Plan, and shall implement the plan during construction and

operation of the project. The Vegetation [Managementand Fire Prevention Plan shall include,

at a minimum, the foìlowing measures:
r Using spark arrestors on all vehicìes and equipment used for vegetation management;
. UsÍng fire-resìstant plants when planting areas for erosìon control;
¡ Pruning the lower branches of tall trees;
I Clearing out ground-level brush and debris; and
r Storìng combustible materiaìs away from vegetated areas,

Implementation of Mitigation lVeasures HAZARDS-2a and HAZARDS-2b would ensure that
the orooosed oroiect would result in less-than-sionificant imoacts related to wildfires.

Hvonoloev ¡ru0 Wnren Qu¡Llrv

HYDROLOGY-1:An Erosion and Stormwater Control Plan (ESCP) shall be prepared for the

proposed project The ESCP shall address poteniial pollutants and iheir sources, including

erosion and exposure of construction materials to runofF, and must include a list of Best

lManagement Practices (B|\lPs) to reduce the dìscharge of construction-related stormwater
pollutants. The ESCP shall include a detailed descrìption of controls to reduce pollutants and

District

District and

Contracior

District

Distrìct

District Durìng construction and

operation

Dístrict During construction

District During consiruction and

operation

District During construction and

operation

NN¡WD_CEQAChecklist_FINAL (1 0/2311 9)
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District

District

District

Party
Responsible

for Monitorinq
Monitoring

Timinq

Compliance Verif ication

Project/
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outline periodic maintenance and inspection procedures during construction and operation of

lhe project. Sediment and erosion BIVPs shall include, but not be limited to perimeter controls

(e.9., straw wattles and silt fences) to prevent sediment from being transported off-site in

surface runoff, and establishing and maintaining construction exits to avoid trackìng sediment

off-site onto adjacent roadways. The ESCP shall define proper building material staging and

storage areas, paint and concrete washout areas, proper equipmenVvehicle fueling and

maintenance practìces, and measures to control equipment/vehìcle washing and allowable

non-stormwater discharges; and shall rnclude a spill prevention and response pìan. The ESCP

shall requÌre that chemicais be stored in watertight containers (with appropriate secondary

containment to prevent any spillage or leakage) or in a storage shed (completely enclosed).

The ESCP shall ìnclude procedures to address minor spills of hazardous materials lVeasures

to control spìlls, leakage, and dumping shall be addressed through structural as well as non-

structural BlMPs. For example, equipment and materials for cleanup of spills shall be available

on-site, and spills and leaks shall be cleaned up immedlately and dìsposed of properly. BIVPs

shall also ìnclude lreatment requirements, operating procedures, and practices to control site

runoff, spillaoe or leaks, sludqe or waste disposal, or drainaqe from raw material storaqe.

Norse

N0ìSE-1a: Construction equìpment operation shall be limited to the hours of lVonday through

Fridav from 8:00 AM to 5:00 PiV. No exception to lhe above limìtations shall be allowed.

N0ISE-1b: The North l\'1arin Water Disirict (NMWD) shall ìmplement rneasures to reduce

noise impacts due to construction. Noise reduction measures shaìl include, but not be Iimited

to, the following:

a) Equipment and trucks used for project construction shall use the best available noise

control techniques (e.9., ìmproved mufflers, equipment redesign, use of ìntake silencers,

ducts, engine encìosures and acoustically altenuating shields or shrouds), wherever

feasible.

b) Noisy operatíons shall be combined to occur in the same time perìod, ìf possible, The total

noise level produced shall not be significantly greaterthan the level produced ìfthe
operations were performed separately.

c) Stationarv noìse sources shall be located as far from adiacent orooerties as oossible.

N0ìSE-1c: NIVWD shall develop a set of procedures for responding to and tracking

complaints received peftaining to construction noise, and shall implement the procedures

during construction, At a mìnimum, the procedures shall include:

a) DesignatÍonofanon-siteconstructioncomplaintandenforcementmanagerforthe
project;

b) Protocols specific to receptors for receiving, responding to, and tracking received

comolaints: and

Disirict During construction

District During construction

District During construction

Nl\,4WD_CEQAChecklist_FINAL (1 0/23/1 9) A-b
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c) l\,4aintenance of a complaint log that records received complaints and how complaints

were addressed.

Complìance with ll4itigation l\,4easures N0ISE-1a through N0ISE-1c would reduce the adverse

impacts associated with constructìon noise to a lesslhan-siqnificant level.

WrLorne

WILDFIRE-1 : lt/itigation l\4easures HAZARDS-2a and HAZARDS-2b shall be implemented Dìstrict District

N[/WD_CEOAChecklist_FINAL (1 0/23/1 9) A-7
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CalEEMod Version: CalEEMod 2016 3.2

1.0 Project Character¡st¡cs

1.'tr Land Usage

Page 1 of 29

North Marin Water District Tank.v.l - Marin County, Annual

North Marin Water District Tank.vl
Marin County, Annual

Dare: 9/.1112019 11:'11 AM

SÍze

User Defined Industrial 1.00 User Defined Unit 0.63 0.00 0

Land Uses

1.2 Other Project Characteristics

Urbanization

Climate Zone

CO2 lntens¡ty
(lb/MWhr)

Urban Wind Speed (m/s)

CH4 lntens¡ty
(lb/MWhr)

2.2 Precipitation Freq (Days)

Operational Year

N20 lntensity
(lb/MWhr)

5 2020

Utitity Company Pacific Gas & Electric Company

641.35 0.029 0.006

1.3 User Entered Comments & Non-Default Data



CalEEMod Version: CalEEMod.2016.3.2 Pagezof 29 Date: 9/.111201911:11 AM

North Marìn Water District Tank.vl - Marin County, Annual

Pro..¡ect Character¡stÌcs - Construction would begin in Spring 2O2O and be completedby 2021. Selection of utility company does not affect construction
emissions.

Land Use - Select user defined land use which would not affect the construction emissions

Constructìon Phase - Construction phases established based on the information provided by the project applicant.

Off-road Equipment - Construction equipment based on the list provided by project applicant

Off-road Equrpment - Construction equipment based on the list provided by project applicant

Off-road Equipment - Construction equipment based on the list provided by project applicant

Off-road Equipment - Construction equipment based on the list provided by project applicant

Off-road Equipment - Constructìon equipment based on the list provided by project applicant

Trips and VMT - Number of workers on site modified according to information provided by the project applicant.

Grading - Approximateìy 800 CY would be off-hauled and 330 CY of materials would be imported.

Vehicle Emission Factors -

Vehicle Emission Factors -

Vehicìe Emission Factors -

Energy Use -

Fleet Mix -

tblCon struction Pha se NumDays . 1.00 s.00

tblConstruction Phase NumDays 1.00 20.00

tblConstruct¡on Phase NumDays :
-----+-----

NumDays :

y:':::i::::l I------

100.00 1s.00

tblConstructìon Phase 100.00 40.00

tblGrading 0.00 800.00

tblGrading Materia llmported 0.00 300.00

tbl LandUse LotAcreaoe 0.00 I 0.63

tblOffRoad Equipment Off Road EquipmentUnitAmount 1.00 0.00

tblOff Road Equipment Off Road EquipmentU nitAmount 1.00 0.00

1.00tblOff Road Equipment Off Road EquipmentUn¡tAmount 2.O0

Default ValueColumn NâmeTäble Name



tblOff Road Equipment
-::_-,:_---:_--:
tblollRoad tqutpment

- 

tti5rin.. o rqììp".å"t-
-::i_:i--:_":
tblollRoad tqurprnent

Off Road EquipmentUnitAmount 2.00 1.00

Off Road EquipmentUniLAmount 1.00 0.00

OffRoadEquìpmentUnitAmount :
- - - +--------

OffRoadEquipmentUniLAmount :

2.00 1.00

2.00 1.00

tblOff Road Equipment ¡ Off Road EquipmentunitAmount :
- ::- -- --: -----+ ------:---------
tbloffRoadEquipment . OffRoadEquipmentunitAmount :'ùiórin..ieq,;p';r- 

r----¿ti¡;;;rqìlpÀå"tL"irq;;;;i- î- ------

2.00 1.00

0.00 3.00

0.00 1.00

tblOff Road Equipment Off Road EquipmentUniLAmount 0.00 2.00

tblOff Road Equipment Off Road EquipmentUnitAmount 0.00 2.00

tblOffRoad Equipment
- - : :_-,-- - - -: - -:

tblOllRoad tqurpment
- - 

ú-r¡rin"rieqr;p;;r-

OffRoad EquipmentUnitAmount 0.00 1.00

1 - Clearing

1 - Clearing

tblOtfRoad Equipment 1 - Clearing

tblOff Road Equipment 1 - Clearing

tblOff Road Equipment 1 - Clearing

tblOff Road Equipment 1 - Clearing

tblTripsAndVlVT WorkerTripNumber 28,00 10.00

tblTrìpsAndVlVlT WorkerTripNumber 20,00 10.00

tblTripsAndVIVlT WorkerTrio N umber 28.00 i 4.00

tbìTripsAndVMT WorkerTripNumber :
- - - +--------

WorkerTripNumber :

0.00 12.00

tblTripsAndVlVlT 0.00 12.00

CalEEMod Version: CalEEMod.201 6.3.2

2.0 Emissions Summary

Page 3 of 29

North Marin Water District Tank.v'l - Marin County, Annual

Dare: 9/1 112019 11:11 AM



CalEEMod Version: CalEEMod.20l6 3 2

2.1 Overall Construction

Unmitioated Construction

M¡tigated Construct¡on

Page 4 of 29

North fVarin Water District Tank.vi - Marin County, Annual

Dare: 9/1112019 11:'l1 AM

0.0000' 149.5958' 149.5958' 0.0352 0.0000 50. 4tõl

150.4762

l¡:11,f{!Q.1::,,;

,.ì :.::' tl ";:

0.0000

,1,;1;ÇH,N,,;i:,t

| ': .. a::tt: .a.:: :

0.0352

'iró]¿,!:çO1

: :'. a: 
l',,t :'::' 

: 
t : ::'

1 49.5958

NB¡:,C-Ø

1 49.5958

r,Bio.:.cO2:.

',. aiirr:'l.-ìri ::r'r'

0.0000

2024 0.1 283 '1.1370 0.9760 7500e- 0.0299 0.0567 0.0866' 4.9400e-, 0.0537
ioo¡i

0.0586
003

0.05860.05374.9400e-
003

,. .PM10.r,,
Toul, -

0.0866

. Eihàust

0.05670.0299

so2

1.7500e-
003

:, ,0o

0.9760

NOx

1.1 370

ROG

0.1283

Year

Maximum

0.0000' 149.5957' 149.5957, 0.0352 0.0000 ,150.4761

1 50.4761

N20

0.0000

cu4

0.0352

Toral co2

1 49.5957

NBiõ- COz

1 49.5957

urô- LUz

o.o000

PM2.5

tons/yr

2020 0.1 283 1.1370 0.9760 00e- , 0.0299 0.0567' 0.0866' 4.9400e-' 0.0537
::oo3:

0.0586
003

0.0586

Exhaust
PM2.5

0.0537

F0gÌtive
PM2,5

4.9400e-
003

P[/10
Total

0.0866

Exhaust
PN,{10

0.0567

Fug¡t¡ve
PMlO

0.0299

so2

1.7500e-
003

0.9760

NOx

1 .1 370

ROG

0.1 283

Year

lvlaximum

0.000.000.000.000.000-000.000.000.o00.000.000.000.000.000.000.00Percent
Reduction



CalEEMod Version: CalEEMod 2016 3.2

2.2 Ov er all Operationa I

Unmitigated Operational

Page 5 of 29

North Marin Water District Tank.vl - Marin County, Annual

Dare: 9/1 112019 1i:.1.1 AM

.,,, 
Mg"irr¡t wliticated,Rgc,ì,1:ifax. Í¡lfnr.t1t,ì,l.'...

0.9264

0.3312

o.9264

Maximr.¡m Ulmitigared ROG + NOX (to¡s/gUarte.f.f

0.9264

0.331 2

0.9264

End Date

5-31-2020

8-31-2020

H¡ghest

Start Date

3-1-2020

6-1-2020

Quarter

1

2

005
2.0000e-0.0000

I 'o*

0.00002.0000e-
005005

2.0000e-0.00000.00000.00000.00000.0000

Exhaust
PMlO

0.00000.00000.00001.0000e-
005

coNOx

0.00000.0000

0.0000

0.0000

0.0000

0.0000

0.0000

0.00000.0000

0.0000

0.0000

0.0000

0.0000

0.0000

0.0000

lv4obile

005

0.0000

0.0000

0.0000

0.0000

0.0000

Area

Waste

Water

E nerqy

' 0.0000 , 0.0000

--------------t0.0000 ' 0.0000 ir¡

0.0000 ' 0.0000

0.0000 ' 2.0000e-

0.0000'0.0000'0.0000

0.0000,0.0000,0.0000

0.0000 , 0.0000

0.0000 ' 0.0000

0.0000,0.0000'0.0000

0.0000 ' 0.00000.0000 ' 0.0000

0.0000 ' 0.0000

0.0000 , 0.0000

0.0000' 2.0000e'' 2.0000e-, 0.0000
ioosioosi0.0000' 1.0000e-' 0.0000

ioos:

- 
ò ôód,t 

- i -o-.0-ooo - ï -o-¡oãõ

0.0000,0.0000'0.0000

0.0000'0.0000'0,0000

' 0,0000

Total



Cal E EN/lod Version: Cal EEMod. 201 6.3.2

2.2 Ov er all Operational

M¡t¡oated Ooerational

3.0 Construct¡on Detail

Construction Phase

Page 6 of 29

North Marin Water District Tank.vl - Marin County, Annual

Dare: 9/1 112019 1 1 :1 i AM

2.0000e-
005

0.00000.0000
005

2.0000e-
005

2.0000e-0.00000.00000.00000.00000.00000.0000

.Exþáq9t

,..'P-M:lo'...ìr.,'

0.00000.00001.0000e
005

0.00000.0000Total

Categóry

0.0000

0.0000

0.0000

0.0000

005
0000e-

0.0000

005

0.0000

2.0000e-
005

0000e-

0.0000

0.0000

?.0.0000

0.0000

0.0000

0.0000

0.0000Area

Water

Energy

N,4obile

Waste

0.0000'0.0000'0.0000

0,0000 ' 0.0000

0.0000 , 0.00000.0000 ' 0.0000

0.0000 ' 0.0000

0.0000 ' 0.0000

0.0000 ' 0.0000

0.0000'0.0000'0.0000

0.0000 , 0.0000

0.0000 ' 0.0000

0.00000.0000

0,0000

., 0.0000 ' 0.0000 , 1.0000e- ' 0.0000

' UU5

.' 0,0000 , 0.0000 ' 0.0000 ' 0.0000

0 0000 , 0.0000 i 0.0000

0.0000 ' 0.00000.0000 ' 0.0000

, 0.0000 ' ' 0.0000 ' 0.00000.0000 ' 0.0000

0.0000 ' 0.0000
I

., 0.0000

COze

0-00

, ìNzp .,

0.00

. cH1

0.00

Total CO2

0.000.000.000.00

Exhâust
PM2.5

0.000.00

PMlO
Total

0.00

Exhaust
PMlO

0.00

Fugitive
PMlO

0.00

so2

0.00

co

0.00

NOx

0.00

ROG

0.00Percent
Reduct¡on



CalEEMod Version: CalEEMod 2016.3 2 PageT of 29

North Marin Water District Tank.vl - Marin County, Annual

Num Days I Rtrase Description

II

'31?112020 i4117 12020

1 :1 - Clearing 'Demolìtion ,31112020 i311312020 i 5 i
-] - - - - - - i--------- ---t------------..1------------l---------l

2 :2 - Grubbing 'Site Preparation i3114120?O i3l20l2o21 I 5i

1ôl
I

q¡
"l

I

20i
--------+

15i

I

.3 - S¡te and Road Preparation 'Site Preparation tr

5l4 i4 - Foundatìon Construction ; Building Construction | 411 812020 l5l8l2020

5 :5-Tank Construction ¡Building Construct¡on '51912020 't 1312020

I

I

40'

End DateStart DatePhase TypePhase NamePhase
Number

Acres of Grading (Site Preparation Phase): 0

Acres of Grading (Grading Phase): 0

Acres of Paving: 0

Residential lndoor: 0; Residential Outdoor: 0; Non-Residential lndoor: 0; Non-Residential Outdoor; 0; Striped Parking Area: 0 (Architectural
Coating - sqft)

OffRoad Eouioment

Dare; 9/-1112019 11:11 AM

TypeOffroadPhase Name

' D umpers/Tenders

'Excavators

. Graders

'Rubber Tired Dozers

.Skid Steer Loaders

. Tractors/Loaders/Backhoes

I

I

t-
I

I

t-
I

I

t--
I

I

F.
I

I

F
¡
¡

F
¡
I

t--
I
I

þ-
¡
I

8.00'
I

8.00'

8.00'

. Concrete/l ndustrial Saws

.Crawler Tractors

'Aeriaì Lifts

Clearing

Clearing

Clearìng

1 - Clearing

1 - Clearing

2 - Grubbing

2 - Grubbino

3

0 81i

212,

0

1 - Clearing

2

2

0.38'Dumpers/Tenders

03816:

0.381 58'

0.41187'

0.40241,

0.3765'

0.37

0.43

1 - Clearing

'I - Clearing

i. ðr.äi¡"õ

0.31

0.73
-0.;ã

¡----------- ----l-------.Crawler Tractors r 'l
rl

16,8.00'2,

8.00'

8.00'

1.00,

8.00,

07r6.00'
I

21218.00'
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North Marin Water District Tank.vl - Marin County, Annual

Dare: 9/1112019 11:11 AM

2 - Grubbing . Excavators 2, 8.00, 158' 0.38

----T
2 - Grubbing

2 - Grubbing

. Graders 0 8.00, 187' 0.41

- - - - -:------ ----------l-
.Rubber Tired Dozers t .'l

!l
1.00' 241 | 0.40

65' 0.372 - Grubbing .Skid Steer Loaders r'l
I

-------F---¡1
I

-------¡-----r1
I

-------r---

8.00,

2 - Grubbing . Tractors/Loaders/Backhoes 8.00'
I

07r 0.37

3 - Site and Road Preparation 'Crawler Tractors
----:-------

3 - Site and Road Preparation 'Dumpers/Tenders

8,00,
I

2121 0.43

I
I

t-
I

I

t-
I
¡

t-
¡
I

t-
I
I

t-
¡
I

t-
I

I

2 8.00,
I

16' 0.38

3 - Site and Road Preparation . Excavators 8.00' 158 r 0.38

3 - Site and Road Preparation . Graders 8.00 ' 181 i 0.41

Site and Road Preparatìon 'Pavers
- - :- - - - - - - - -

Site and Road Preparation 'Rollers

8.00
.1 30' 0.

2 8.00, 80 0.38

0.48
-b 

ã;

0.37

'b;d

0.56

'b.i';

0.38
-b 

ãd

4.20

Site and Road Preparat¡on

iri" åÃi h.ão p'åpiåiiò"

. Scrapers 8.00' 367,

.Skid Steer Loaders 8.00, 65

3 - Site and Road Preparatìon 8.00' 9l

Foundation Construction

Foundatìon Construcl¡on

L00'
I

78

8,00' 9

4 - Foundation Construction . Cranes 4,00'
I

231,

4 - Foundation Construction 8.00' 16'

4 - Foundation Constructìon 8.00,
I

158'

4 - Foundation Construction 6 00,
I

89'

4 - Foundation Construction ' Tractors/Loa ders/Backhoes t
I

F
I
¡

t-
¡
¡

F
I
I

Þ
I
¡

8.00, 91 0.37

4 - Foundation Construclion 'Trenchers 8.00,
I

18, 0. s0

5 - Tank Construct¡on 'Air Compressors 2 8.00'
I

78, 0,48

5 - Tank Construction . Cranes
¡-----------
'Dumpers/Tenders

4.00'
I

231i 0.29

5 - Tank Construction 8.00'
¡

16, 0.38

5 'Tank Construction 'Forklifts 6.00,
I

89' o.20

5 - Tank Construction 'Generator Sets 8.00' 84, o.14



CalEEMod Version: CaIEEN/Ìod.201 6.3 2

Trips and VMT

3.1 Mitigation Measures Construction

Page 9 of 29

North Marin Water District Tank.vl - Marin County, Annual

Date: 9/1112019 11:11 AM

5 - Tank Construction 'Rough Terrain Forklifts ¡ 1

- - - - :- - - - - - - - - - - - - - -l---
5 - Tank Construct¡on 'Tractors/Loaders/Backhoes ¡ 1

0.30

0.38

0.37

'Welders

5 - Tank Construction

0.

0.454

5 - Tank Construction

8,00Pressure Washers

07r

46,5 - Tank Construction

'Rollers

.Number..
ling Trip

HHDT

HHDT

'10.80

0.0014.00

14'

HDTH

I
I

0.00

HHDT

t-
11

0.00 |

I

' HDT Mix
t-20.00' LD Mix¡-7.301Jt

I

1 - Clearing

5 - Tank Construction '

DT MixrH
¡

Mix7.30i 20.00¡LD

1 2.00 ,

12.00

0.00

- Foundation

HDT_lVlix

0.00'

0.00

10.00111
I

10.800.00

2 - Grubbing

3 - Sìte and Road

'HDT Mix 'HHDT7.30' 20.00,1D lvix

' 0.00

138.00' 10.80 |
¡l

- -- - - - -i-----------l
0.00' 10.80 t

:---------------T----------. I r 10.00¡l

I ----------t--------------l
7.30 i 20.00' LD_M¡x 

i1 0.80 |
I



CalEEMod Version: CaIEEN/]od.201 6.3.2

3.21- Clearing -2020

Unmitioated Construct¡on On-Site

Unrn¡tigated Construction Off-S¡te

Page 10 of 29

North Marin Water Distr¡ct Tank,v.l - Marin County, Annual

Date: 9/1 112019 11:i 1 AM

Off-Road 300e- 0.0960 0.0822 1 .5000e-
004

4.0400e-
003

4.0400e- 7 300e- 3.7300e- i 0.0000
oo3 !

¡

520 1 3.1 520 4,1300e- ' 0,0000 13.2554
003 003 003 003

13.2554

.:,::lN/P';',1,

'11;l';;;,:':it,

0.0000

:iiit;gfr!,:.:!,,.

,: i:i;1;,;:;;,:,i:,;

4.1 300e-
003

:þþ,coz,

1 3.1 5201 3.1 520

iBiò-iCOZ:.

"::-'!t¡,

0.0000

r.i'PM?isr,:i':

,,1 ,,;1.',á'l.,.;,

3.7300e-
003

3.7300e-
003

4.0400e-
003

Eih'aust,'i

4.0400e-
003

1.5000e-
004

o.oa220-o960

ROG

8.5300e-
003

Category

Total

0.35150.00001.0000e-
005

0.35130.35130.0000

PM2.5 r

Total

1 .1 000e-
004

0.0000

Exhäust
pM2.5

1.0000e-
004

PM1 O

Total

004
4.0000e-

Exhaust
PMlO

0.0000

Fugìtive
PM'IO

004
3.9000e-

so2

0.00001 .1 800e-
003

CONOx

1.2000e.
004

ROG

1.7000e-
004

.' 0.0000

,, 0 0000

0.0000

0.0000' 4.0000e- r 1.0000e- ,

ioo+ioo+i

0.0000

', 1.7000e' ' 1.2000e- ' 1.1800e
li oo¿ I oo¿ i oos

Vendor

Hauling

0.0000

0.0000

Worker

0.0000 , 0.0000

0.0000 ' 0.0000

0.0000 , 0.351 5

0.0000' 0.0000' 0.0000, 0.0000

0.0000 ' 0.351 3

0.0000 , 0.0000

0.0000,0.0000'0.0000

0.0000' 3.9000e-, 0.0000
004 :

0.0000 ' 0.0000

0.0000'0.0000'0.0000

0.3513 ,1.0000e-
i oos

1 .1 000e-
004

0.0000,0.0000,0.0000

Total

Category



CalEEMod Version: CalEEMod.201 6.3 2

3.21- Clearing -2020

M¡t¡qated Construction On-Site

M¡t¡qated Construction Off-Site

Page 11 ol 29

North Marin Water District Tank.vl - Marin County, Annual

Dare: 9/1 112019 1 1 :1 1 AM

0.0000 1 3.1 520 13.1520, 4.1300e-' 0.0000
ioosl
lr

1 3.2554

13.25540.0000

i':,rçHt.,..,

4.1 300e-
o03

13.1520

NBrio¡rCQ2

1 3.1 520

rBiô-r:COz:

0.0000

: PM2;5::,.'
''' 'f:qtalr":i.'

Off-Road .' 8.5300e- ,

li oo: :

0.0960 0.0822 ' 1.5000e- 'ioo¿:
4.0400e- ' 4.0400e- ¡

oo3 I oo¡ I

300e- 3.7300e-
003003

3.7300e-
003

3.7300e-
003

4.0400e-
003

4.0400e-
003

1.5000e-
o04

o.oa22

NÕx

0.0960

ROG

8.5300e-
003

Category

Total

0,351 50.00001.0000e-
005

0.351 30.351 30.00001.1 000e-
004

0.0000

fugit¡ve
PM2,5

1.0000e-
004

Pt\410
Totâl

004
4.0000e-

Exhaust
PMlO

0.0000

Fugitive
PIVlO

004
3.9000e-

so2

0.0000

CO

1 .1 800e-
003

NOx

1.2000e-
004

1.7000e-
004

0.0000

0.35130.351 3

0.0000

0.00000.0000

0.0000

0.0000

005

0.0000

0.0000

Vendor

Worker 1.0000e-' 0.0000 , 0.35"15

0.0000 ' 0.0000

0.0000'0.0000,0.0000

0.0000'0.0000'0.0000

0.0000'0.0000,0.0000

0.0000 ' 0.0000

0.0000 ' 0 0000

0.0000 , 0.0000

Hauling .' 0.0000

1 .1 000e-
004

, 4.0000e- , 1.0000e- , 0.0000
ioo+ioo¿:

0.0000' 3.9000e-' 0.0000ioo¿:
1.2000e-'1.1800e- 'oo4 i oo¡ ;

0.0000'0.0000,0.0000

0.0000'0.0000,0.0000

., L7000e.
ll oo¿

' 0.0000

Total



CalEEMod Version; CalEEMod 2016 3.2

3.32- Grubbing -2020

Unmitioated Construction On-Site

Unmitioated Construction Off-Site

Page12of29

North Marin Water District Tank.v'l - Marin County, Annual

Dare: 9/1112019 11:11 AM

5.6442o.00001.7600e-
003

5.64015.64010.0000
003

3.0200e-1.8400e-
003

1 .1 800e-
003

5.2'100e-
003003

2.0000e-

. Exhaust

' :PM.IO

3.21 00e-
003

6.0000e-
005

0.03430.04454.1000e-
003

.' 4.1000e- 'Off- Road

Fugitive Dust 0.00000.0000

003
.8400e-

0.0000

0.0445

, 0.0000 ' 0.0000
rl0.0000 ' 0.0000

0.0000 ' 5.6401 5.6401' 1,7600e-' 0.0000, 5.6842
ioo¡ll

i .1 800e-
003

1.8400e-
003

, 2.0000e- ' 2.0000e- 'ioo:ioo¡i0.0343 , 6.0000e- 'ioos:

' 3.2100e- , 0.0000 , 3.2100e- , 1.1800e-
ioo¡::oo3ioo¡

Total

o.17570.00000.00000.1 7560.1 7560.00005.0000e-
005

0.0000

Fugitìve
PM2,5

5.0000e-
005004

2.0000e-

PM.] O

Totäì
Exhaust

PM']O

0.0000

Fugìt
PM

ive
10

2.0000e-
004

0.0000

CO

5.9000e-
004

6.0000e-
005

NOxROG

9.0000e-
005

tons/yrCategory

.' 0.0000 ' 0.0000 ' 0.0000 ,

., 9.0000e-, ô.0000e-' 5.9000e-'
ii oos i oos i oo+ i

0.11510.00000.1 756

0.00000.00000.00000.0000Haulìng

0.0000

0.00000.00000.0000

0.0000

Vendor

Worker

0.0000,0.0000,0.0000

0.0000 ' 0.0000

0.0000 ' 0.0000

0.0000 , 0.0000

0.0000 ' 0.1 756

0.0000, 0.0000' 0.0000' 0.0000

0.0000, 0.0000, 0.0000' 0.0000

0.0000 ' 0.0000

0.0000 ' 0.0000

5.0000e-
005

0.0000' 2.0000e-, 5,0000e-' 0.0000
loo¿ioosi

0.0000 , 2.0000e-
I oo+

Total



CalEEMod Version: CalEEMod.20i 6.3.2

3.32- Grubbing -2O2O

Mitioated Construction On-Site

Mit¡qated Construction Off-Site

Pagei3of29

North Marin Water Distrìct Tank.vl - Marin County, Annual

Dare: 9/.1 112019 -l 
1 :1 1 AM

5-68420.00001.7600e-
003

5.64015.64010.0000

Exhaust I PM2.5 lBic
PMz.s I rorar 

I

003
3.0200e-1.8400e-

003
1 .1 800e-

003

PMIO .

To!?r, 
i

5.2 1 00e-
003

Exhaust
Pl\41q

003
2.0000e-3.21 00e-

003
6.0000e-

005
0.0343

NOxr. ROG

0.04454.1 000e-
o03

:,:...,,.. 
.

..:
tons/yr

'' 4.'1000e''
li oo¡ I

Fugitive Dust

Olr-Road

0.0000'0.0000,0.0000

0.0000 , 5.6401 ' 5.6401 ' 1.7600e- '::ioo¡i

1.1800e-,
003 :

3,21 00e-
003

' 2.0000e- , 2.0000e-
i oos i oo¡

, 3.2100e- , 0.0000
ioo¡i

0.0445 , 0.0343 , 6.0000e- 'i:oo5l

0.0000'0.0000'0.0000

1 .8400e-
003

,1.8400e-
i oo:

0.0000 ' 5.6842

0.0000 , 1.'1800e-
i oo¡

Total

0.1 757

'co?e,

0.0000

..:t::NZOì :, .::.. :. ..Bioi C02.

| 
""n,to'1, ,"*'

0.00000.1 7500.1 7560.0000

Pt\42,5
Total

005
5.0000e-0.0000

Exhaust
PM2.5

Fugit¡ve
PM2.5

005
5.0000e-

PM1 O

Total

004
2.0000e-

ExhausL
PMl O

0_0000

Fugitive
PM1 O

2.0000e-
004

SO2

0.00005.9000e-
004

coNOx

6.0000e-
005

9.0000e-
005

ROG

tons/yr

Total

Category

.'0.0000'0.0000'0.0000,0.0000,0.0000'0.0000'0.0000'0.0000'0.0000'0.0000

.,0.0000'0.0000'0.0000,0.0000 ' 0.0000'0.0000 ¡ 0.0000,0.0000'0.0000'0.0000

0.0000

Vendor

Hauling

0.0000
005

5.0000e-Worker

i

0.0000 ' 0.0000

0.0000' 0.0000' 0.0000, 0.0000

0.0000 ' 0.1 756 , 0.1 756' 2.0000e- ' 5.0000e- ' 0.0000
ioo+ioosi

., 9.0000e- , 6.0000e- ' 5.9000e- ' 0.0000 , 2.0000e- ' 0.0000
lioosioosioo¿iloo4:

0.0000 ' 0.0000

' 0.1751



CalEEMod Version: CalEEMod 2016.3 2

3.4 3 - Site and Road Preparation - 2020

Unmitiqated Construction On-Site

Unm¡t¡gated Construct¡on Off-Site

Page14of29

North Marin Water District Tank.vl - fVlarin County, Annual

Dare: 9/1 112019'l'1 :.1.1 AM

'.:'COze

45.321 I0.00000.014344.964344.96430.00000.01770.0154
003

2.3000e-0.0380

PM:IO
Exhaust

0.01680.02135.1 000e-
004

0.2590

NOx

0.3901

ROG

0.0341

, 0.01 68 ' 0.0168 0.0154 ' 0.01 54 lE a)1 0

0.0000

0.00000.0143

0.021 30.00000.0213Fugitive Dust

Off-Road

0.00000.00000.0000
003003

2.3000e- 0.0000 ' 2-3000e-

0.0341 , 0.3901 , 0.2590 ' 5.1000e- 'liioo+l

0.0000 ' 0.0000

0.0000' 44.9643' 44.9643

Total

6.26390.0000
004

3.3000e-6.25576.25570.0000
004

6.8000e-

Exhaust
Ptvl2,5.

7.0000e-
005

Fugìtive
PM2.5

6.'1000e-
004

PMlO
Totâl

2.3400e-
003005

8.0000e-

Exhaust
PM,1O

Fugitive
PT,41O

003
2.26OOe-

so2

005
6.0000e-9.1 500e-

003

NOx

0.0205

ROG

1.0800e-
003

-*
' 0.9842

5.2798

0.0000, 2.0000e-I oos
0.9836

0.0201

.'4.9000e-'3.3000e-,3.3100e",1.0000e- ' 1.1000e-,1.0000e-,1.1100e-,2.9000e-
li oo+ i oo¿ i oo: i oos i oo¡ I oos i oo¡ i oo+

., 5.9000e- ,

ll oo+ i

0.0000

0.9836

0.00000.0000

0.0000

Hauling

Vendor

Worker

0.0000 , 0.00000.0000 ' 0.0000., 0.0000 ' 0.0000 0.0000

5.840Oe-' 5.00O0e-, 1.1600e-' 7.0000e-' 1.2300e.' 3.2000e', 6.0000e-'

0.0000

3.8000e-
004

1.0000e- ' 3.0000e-
005 i oo+

3.1000e- ' 0.0000
oo4 I

0.0000 ' 0.0000

oosloo¡ioo¿ioosoo3ioosioo¡
0.0000'0.0000,0.0000

Total



Cal EEIVlod Version: Cal EEMod.201 6.3.2

3.4 3 - Site and Road Preparation - 2O2O

Mitioated Construction On-Site

M¡t¡gated Construction Off-Site

Page15of29

North Marin Water Distrìcl Tank.vl - Marin County, Annual

Dare: 9/1 112019 1 
-l 

:1'1 AM

45.32180.00000.014344.964244.96420.0000

0.0000, 0.0000, 0.0000' 0.0000 0.0000 , 0.0000

0.0000' 44.9642 | 44.9642 | O.O143 0.0000 ' 45.3218

0.01770.01 542.3000e-
003

, PM10
lotat

0.0380

Exh¿ust
.,: PM10

0.01 680.02'135.1 000e-
004

0.25900.39010.034 1

0.02i 3

0.01 680.01 68

0.0213

0.25900.39010.0341

Fugitive Dust

Off-Road

003
0.0000

000e-
004

0,0154 , 0.0154

2.3000e- ' 0.0000 2.3000e-
003

Total

Category

6.26390.0000
004

3.3000e-6.25576.25570.0000
004

6.8000e-

Exhaust
. PMz.5

7.0000e-
005

Fugitive
PM2.5.

6.1 000e-
004

P[/110
TÔÌâI

2.34O0e-
003005

8.0000e-

Exhaust
PMlO

Fugit¡ve
PMlO

2.2600e-
003005

6.0000e-

so2co

9.1 500e-
003

NOx

0.0205

ROG

1.0800e-
003

0.9842

5.2198

0.0000

'' 4.9000e-, 3.3000e-, 3.3100e-' 1.0000e-' 1.1000e-''1.0000e
li oo+ i oo+ i oo¡ I oos i oo¡ I oos

',5.9000e-'li oo¡ I

Hauling

Vendor

Worker

0.0201 , 5.8400e- , 5.0000e- ' 1.1600e- , 7.0000e- 'ioo:ioosioo:ioos:
0.0000'0.0000,0.0000

0.0000,5.2721

0.0000 , 0.0000

0.0000 ' 0.9836

1.2300e- ' 3.2000e- ' 6.0000e- 'oo3 i oo¿ i oos :

0.0000 ' 0.0000 ' 0.0000 '0.0000,0.0000'0.00000.0000 , 0.0000

5.27?1' 3.1000e-' 0.0000
ioo+i

0.9836, 2.0000e-, 0.0000ioosi3.0000e-
004

, 1.1100e- , 2.9000e- , 1.0000e- 'ioo¡ioo+ioosi

3.8000e"
004

0 0000 , 0.0000

Total



CaIEE[/lod Version: CalEEMod.201 6.3.2

3.5 4 - Foundation Construction - 2O2O

Unmitioated Construction On-Site

Unmitiqated Construction Off-Site

Page 16 of 29

North Marin Water District Tank,vl - Marin County, Annual

Dare: 9/1 112019',I 1 :1 1 AM

.ìi . ;

rr::.:

0,0000'11.7397 11.7391 3.0000e- 0_0000 1 1 .8148
003

11.8148

.-,:r:N2O ì .

0.0000

::.,:.Ç-H4,,.,

,..: 
:ta) :4... : ;j :t :.:t :

3.0000e-
003

Totá!:CQ?
. : ' . , i ; 

i ì 
rì l ì . : ,.l l: . . 'rl:. ,,:::,'. :iì],:

1 1.7397

llBj,ó,:,_cg?.

11.7397

,|Bia:co?.,
:, ,:: ;' ::: :). .:::

0.0000

Off-Road 0.0108 0.0927 0.0905 1.4000e-
004

5.9000e- .9000e- 400e- 5.5400e-
003003 003 003

5.5400e-
003

Eihaust.
-Prr¡Z.S :.

5.5400e-
003

.. P[¡10
.,ïorâ1.,

5.9000e-
003

5.9000e-
003

. Fugitive
.. PM10 ì

s02

1.4000e-
004

.co

0.0905

NOx

0.0927

ROG

0.0108

Category

Total

Q.63270.00001.0000e-
005

0.63230.63230.00001.9000e-
004

PM2.5

, | ,"er 
toa,ExhauSt

PM2.5

0.0000

Fugitive
PM2.5

1.9000e-
004

7.1 000e-
004

PMlO
Tôtal

EÌhaust
PM'IO

0_0000

Fug¡t¡ve
PM1 O

7.1 000e-
004

1.0000e-
005

so2co

2.1 300e-
003

2.2OOOg-
004

NOxROG

3.1 000e-
004

tons/yrCatêgory

' 0.0000

, 0.6323 o.6321

0.00000.00000.00000.00000.0000

.,3.1000e- ' 2.2000e-
ii ooq I oo¿

0.0000

¡

Vendor

Worker

Hauling 0.0000'0.0000'0.0000

0.0000' 0.0000, 0.0000' 0.00000.0000 ' 0.00000.0000'0.0000'0.0000

0.0000 , 0.0000

0.0000 ' 0.0000 '

0.ô323, 1.0000e-' 0.0000
ioosi

,1.9000e-
i oo¿

0.0000' 7.1000e-, 1.9000e-' 0.0000
ioo+ioo¿i2.1300e- , 1.0000e- ' 7.1000e- ,

oo3 i oos I oo+ :

0.0000 ' 0.0000

0 0000 ' 0.0000 ' 0.0000

0.0000'0.0000'0.0000

-óõóoï

0.0000

Total



CalEEMod Version: CalEEMod.201 6 3.2

3.5 4 - Foundation Construction - 2020

Mitioated Construct¡on On-Site

M¡t¡oated construct¡on off-Site

Page 11 of 29

North Marìn Water District Tank.vl - Marin County, Annual

Date: 9/1 112019 1 1 :1 1 AM

CO2e

Off-Road 0.0 108 0.0927 0.0905 4000e- 9000e- 5.9000e- .5400e- 5.5400e- 0.0000 ,11.7397 ¡ 11.7397 3.0000e- ' 0.0000 11 .81 48

004 003 003 003 003 003

1 1.81480.0000

:..ì .CH4 ì'.t

.::ì .ì..,:-. ì

3.0000e-
003

.TotalCOz
"l ':. .,.ì ì' i

1 1.7397

NBioi COz
: l:.,i::.... ..:

ì: :, rì ì.ì . l.

11.73970.00005.5400e-
003

Exhaust. .

PM2-5:
r. t... '

5.5400e-
003

Fugitive
FMZ.5,

PMlO
Total

5.9000e-
003

Exhaust

r PM10

5.9000e-
003

so2

1.4000e-
004

0.09050.0927

ROG

0.0108

Category

Total

o.63270.00001.0000e-
005

0.63230.6323

!r,4T./y.r.:.,

0.0000

PM2,5
Total

1.9000e-
004

Exhaust
PM2.5

0.00001.9000e-
004

Fugitive
PM2.5

7.1000e-
004

Pt\¡10
Total

Exhaust
PMlO

0.00007.1 000e-
004

Fug¡t¡ve
PM.1O

so2

1.0000e-
005

2.1 300e-
003

co

004
2.2000e-

NOxROG

3.1 000e-
004

tons/yrCôtegory

i

I

0.00000.0000

005

0.00000.0000

0.0000,0.0000'0.0000

1.0000e-' 0.0000 ' 0.6327

0.0000'0.0000'0.0000

0.0000'0.0000'0.0000

0.0000'0.6323,0,6323

0.0000,0.0000,0.0000

0.0000'0.0000,0.0000

0.0000 , 0.0000

0.0000,0.0000'0.0000Vendor 0.0000

Hauling

Worker , 1.9000e-
I oo¿

0.0000' 7.1000e-' 1.9000e-' 0.0000
ioo+loo¿l

0.0000'0.0000,0.0000

0.0000,0.0000'0.0000

.' 0.0000 ,

.' 3.1000e-' 2.2000e-, 2.1300e.' 1.0000e-, 7.1000e-'
li oo¿ i oo¿ i oo: i oos i oo¿ :

Total
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3.6 5 - Tank Construction - 2020

Unmitioated Construction On-Site

Unmitioated Construction Off-Site

PagelBof29

North lVlarin Water District Tank.vl - Marin County, Annual

Dare: 9/1 112019 1 1 :1 1 AM

0.0000 64,9987 ' 64.9987 0.01 16 0.0000 65.2890

65-28900.00000.01 16

loial COz¡

.,; 
;::.: ; ,,::,::,,,:

64.9987

Nqia:co2

64.9987

,B¡oj.CO2.

0.0000

Off.Road 0.0683 4.4923 0.491 3 ,7.8000e-
ioo¿::

0.0279 0.0279 0.0210 0.0210

o.o?700.0270

P¡,,110
.Total

0.0279

Exhaust
PMlO

0.0279

Fug¡tive
Ptú10

so2

7.8000e-
004

0.4913

NOX

0.4923

ROG

0.0683

Category

Total

0.0000 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000 ' 0.0000

0.0000, 0.0000' 0.0000, 0.0000 0.0000 , 0.0000

0.0000 , 1.6861 1.6861 ,4.0000e-
i oos

0.0000 ' 1.6871

1.68710.0000

:t:

4.0000e-
005

.Iotal C02
. .,. . ..: 1..: 

'

:. .:. .-

1.68611.68610.0000

, PM2:5
Tota-l

tons/yr

Hauling 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000 ' 0.0000 ,

lr
0.0000'0.0000'0.0000 0.0000 0.0000 ' 0.0000

0.0000' 0.0000' 0.0000, 0.0000Vendor 0.0000 ' 0.0000 , 0.0000 ' 0.0000'0.0000'0.0000

Worker .' 8.4000e- ' 5.7000e-,5.6700e-'2.0000e-' 1.8900e-'1.0000e- ' 1.9000e-,5.0000e- ' 1.0000e
ll ooq i oo¿ I oo: I oos i oos I oos I oo¡ i oo¿ i oos

5.1 000e.
004

5.'1000e-
004

1.0000e
005

5.0000e-
004

PM1 O

Totâì

1.9000e-
003

Exhaust
. PMl O

'1.0000e-

005

Fugìtìve
PM1 O

1.8900e-
003

502

2.0000e-
005

co

5.6700e-
003

NOx

5.7000e-
004

ROG

8.4000e-
004

Ca[egory

Total
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3.6 5 - Tank Construction - 2020

Mitigated Construct¡on On-Site

Mitigated Construction Off-Site

Page19of29

North Marin Water District Tank.vl - Marin County, Annual

Date: 9/1112019 11:i i AM

0.0000 64.9986 64.998ô 0.01 16 0.0000 65.2889

65.28890.0000

: :CH4r .,''- ì..._.ì..'..:.

0.01 16

I Co?

64.998664.9986

.Bio" COz,.

0.0000

Off-Road 0.0683 0.4923 0.4913 7 .8000e- 0.0279
I

0.0279 0.0270 o.o270
004

0.0270o.o270

D t\¡1

0.0279

Exhäust
PM tq

0.0279

so2

7.8000e-
004

CO

0.4913o.4923

ROG

0.0683

Category

Total

1.68710.0000
005

4.0000e-1.68611.6861

0.0000' 1.6861, 1.686i' 4.0000e-' 0.0000 1.6871

0.0000

0.0000

005

0.0000,0.0000'0.0000

0.0000'0.0000'0.0000

0.0000 ' 0.0000

0.0000 ' 0.0000

0.00005.1 000e-
004

1.0000e-
005

5.0000e-
004

PM]O .

Total.

1 -9000e-
003

1.0000e-
005

Fugitive
PMlO

1.8900e-
003

2.0000e-
005

5.6700e-
003

5.7000e-
004

8.4000e-
004

.' 0.0000 ,

.' 0.0000 '

0.0000HauI ng

Vendor

0.0000

0.0000

Worker

0.0000 ' 0.0000

0.0000 ' 0.0000

0.0000'0.0000'0.0000

0.0000'0.0000'0.00000.0000'0.0000'0.0000

., 8.4000e- ' 5.7000e- ' 5.6700e- ' 2.0000e' ' 1.8900e.
li oo¿ | oo¿ i oo¡ i oos i oo¡

0.0000 ' 0.0000

5.1 000e-
004

, 1.9000e- , 5.0000e- , 1.0000e- 'loo¡loo¿ioosl
1.0000e

005

Total

4.0 Operational Detail - Mobile
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4.1 Mitigation Measures Mobile

4.2 Trip Summary lnformatÍon

4.3 Trip Type lnformation

4.4 Fleet Mix

?age 20 of 29

North Marin Water District Tank,vl - Marin County, Annual

Dare: 9/1112019 
.1-l:'1'1 

AM

ì. r,PMZ.5
.:.l:.TôÌ¿i

l\4itigated

u".l¡g"äi

0.0000 0,0000 , 0.0000

0.0000 ' 0.0000

0.0000'0.0000'0.0000

0.0000'0.0000'0.00000.0000,0.0000.0.0000

0.0000 , 0.0000

0.0000' 0.0000' 0.0000, 0.0000

0.0000 ' 0.0000

0.0000 , 0.0000

0.0000 ' 0.0000

0.0000 , 0.0000

Mitiqated

.:.,:,.1,1.:1,,1,Annuàl.VMTì,,,,ì,::I,. Iì .'

User Defined Industrial 0.00 0.00 0.00

" Unmitiqaled',, .' ,,. ,:I"
'AnnualIVMT.Ìì : ì f :.::rr'..r:

Averaqe Daily Trip Rate

Sunday

0,00

Saturday

0.00

Weekday

0.00

Land Use

Total

User Defined lndustrial 9.50 7.30 7.30 0.00 0.00 0.00 0 0 0

Primary'

ïrip o/o

H-O or C-NWH-S or C-CH-W or C-W

Miles

H'O or C-NWH-S or C"CH-W or C-WLand Use

, :.Mcv, ,,'; ll,;,,sBús ,lr ,ì ,,:MHr.'r,MHD .. ìLHD2LHD.i.MDVLDT2tDTlLDALand Use

User Defined Industrìal 0.586103' 0.042791 0.0180s4' 0.00s119, 0.010148, 0.010539' 0,002013' 0.003657, 0.005892, 0.000682 0.0007770.1 1 33840.200835
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5.0 Energy Detail

Historical Energy Use; N

5.1 Mitigation Measures Energy

?age 21 of 29

North lVarin Water District Tank.vl - Marin County, Annual

Dare: 9/1112019 11:11 AM

0.0000

0.00000.0000

0.0000

0.0000NaturalGas
Unmitigated

NâturâlGâs

0.0000

0.00000.00000.00000.0000

0.00000.0000

0.0000

0.0000

0.00000.0000

0.0000

0.0000

M¡r¡gared

0.0000'0.0000'0.0000

0.0000 , 0.0000

0.0000 , 0.0000

0.0000 ,

0.0000 , 0.0000

' 0.0000

0.0000 ' 0.0000

Electricity
i\4irigated

Electricjty
Unmitigated

0.0000 ' 0.0000

0.0000,0.0000,0.00000.0000,0.0000,0.0000

0.0000' 0.0000' 0.0000' 0.0000, 0.0000, 0.0000

0.0000 , 0.0000' 0.0000 ,
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5.2 Energy by Land Use - NaturalGas

un¡'n¡t¡gated

Mir¡gated

Page 22 of 29

North Marìn Water District Tank.vl - Marìn County, Annual

Dare: 9/1112019 i 1:11 AM

co?e:

0.0000 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000 , 0.0000 0.0000

0.00000.00000.0000

TÒral coz
:. -:.,.1

0.0000

NB¡or CO2., ì..: ,

0.00000.0000

PM2.5 ,,
,,. ïotal . ì

User Deflned
I ndustrial

0 ¡,

I¡
0.0000 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000

0.0000

Exhaugt
PM2.5

0.0000

Fugitive
PM2,5

PMlO
Total

0.0000

Exhaust
PMlO

0.0000

Fugitive
PM'] O

s02

0.00000.0000

NOx

0.0000

ROG

0.0000

NaturalGa
s LJge.

kBTU/yrLand Use

Total

0.0000 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000

0.00000.00000.0000

tl"l'l'.L'P-;

0.0000

N.BjçriC,Oz

::::,,,.: :',,,

0.00000.0000

User Defined
ìndustria I ¡,

0.0000 0.0000 0 0000 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000

0.0000

Exhausi'
PM2:5

0.0000

f ugitive
. PM2:5

0.0000

Exhausl
PM10.

0.0000

s02

0.00000.0000

NOx

0.0000

ROG

0.0000

NaluralGa
s Use

kBTU/yr¡-ând Use

Total
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5.3 Energy by Land Use - ElectricÍty

unm¡t¡gated

Mitioated

6.0 Area Detail

Page 23 of 29

North Marin Water District Tank.vl - Marin County, Annual

Date: 9/'1112019 11:11 AM

MT/yr

User Defined
lndustrial

0 ¡'

¡.

0.0000 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000

0.0000

N20

0.0000

CH4

0.0000

Total c02

0.0000

E lectricity
Use

kWh/yrLand Use

Total

CA2e

lvlT/yr

User Defined
lndustria I

0 0.0000 0.0000 o.0000 0.o000

0.0000

N20

0.0000

cH4

0.0000

Totål co2

0.0000

Electr¡city
Uso

kWh/yLãnd Use

Total

6.1 Mitigation Measures Area
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6.2 Area by SubCategory

Unmitioated

Page 24 of 29

North l\4arin Water District Tank.vl - Marin County, Annual

Dare: 9/1 112019.1.t :1 1 AM

CiOZe
'':

N20Tôràr c02.

I

,PM2.5

Tot¿i
Exhaust
PM2.5

Fugitive
PM2.5

PMl O

Total
Exhaust

PIVl O

Fugitive
PMlO

so2coNOxROG

Category

0.0000

0.0000

0.00000.0000

0.0000unmitigated

005
0.00000.0000

0.0000

Mirigared 0.0000' 0.0000' 2.0000e-, 2.0000e- , 2.0000e- ,

loosloos:
0.0000,0.0000.0.0000

0.0000 ' 0.0000

0.0000 ' 2.0000e-
i oos

2.0000e-, 2.0000e-, 0.0000
oo5 i oos :

0.0000 ' 1.0000e-
i oos

0.0000' I 0000e-' 0.0000
ioos:

005
2.0000e-

Bio- COz lNBio- Coz I Totar CO2 | CH+ | N2O I co2ellrrrttttt

0.00000.0000
005

2.0000e-2.0000e-
005

0.0000

0.0000, 0.0000' 0.0000' 0.0000, 0.0000' 0.0000
t¡

0.0000' 0.0000' 0.0000' 0.0000, 0.0000' 0.0000

0.0000' 2.0000e-' 2.0000e-, 0.0000' 0.0000' 2.0000e.
ioosioos::ioos

0.o0000.0000

Fugitive I Exhäust
PM2.s I PMz.s

0.0000

ExhâLrst
PMlO

0.0000

so2

0.00001.0000e-
005

NOx

0.00000.0000

tons/yrSubCategory

.' 0.0000

.' 0.0000Landscaping

0.0000 ' 0.0000

0.0000 , 0.0000

0.0000 , 0.0000

0.0000 , 0.0000

0.0000 ' 0.0000

0.0000 ' 0.0000

0.0000

0.00000.0000 , 1.0000e- 'loosi

Architectura I

Coatrng

Consumer
Products

Total
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6.2 Area by SubCategory

M¡r¡gated

7.0 Water Detail

7.1 MitigatÍon Measures Water

Page 25 of 29

North Marin Water District Tank,vl - Marin County, Annual

Date: 9/1 112015 1 1 :1 1 AM

.CO2e

0.0000'0.0000,0.0000 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000

rl- 
o.óoö 

- 
i--o-¡-ooo 

*l-ì. 
ooiõ 0.0000 0.0000 ' 0.0000

0.0000 2.0000e- ' 2.0000e- 'oos i oos i

0.0000 0.0000 , 2.0000e-
i oos

2.0000e-
005

N20

0.00000.00002.0000e-
005

2.0000e-
005

Bio-rCO2

0.0000

PM2,5

Arch¡teclural
Coating

0.0000 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000

Consumer ., 0.0000
ProductS

0.0000 0.0000 0.0000 ' 0.0000

Landscaping ', 0.0000 0.0000 , 1.0000e- 'ioos: 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000 ' 0.0000

0.0000

Exhôust
PMZ.5

0.0000

Fug¡live
PM2.5

PN,r'10

ïotal

0.0000

Exhaust
Ptvtl0

0.0000

Fugitive
PMlO

so2

0.0000

CO

1.0000e-
005

NOx

0.0000

ROG

0.0000

SúbCategory

Total
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CO2e

MTiyr

Mirigared .' 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000

u nmirigated .' 0.0000 ' 0.0000 ' 0.0000 ' 0.0000

N20CH4Tolal COz

Category

Page 26 of 29

North Marìn Water District Tank.vl - Marìn County, Annual

Date: 9/1 112019',i 1 :1 1 AM

7.2 Water by Land Use

unmit¡gated

' , co2e

MT/yr

User Delined
lndustrial

0/0
¡,

0.0000 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000

0.00000.0000

CH4

0.0000

'Total COZ

0.0000

lndóor/Out
.door lJse

L¿nd ljse

Total
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7.2 Water by Land Use

M¡t¡oated

8.0 Waste Detail

8.'1 Mitígation Measures Waste

Cateoorv/Year

Page 27 of 29

North Marin Water District Tank.v'l - Marin County, Annual

Dare: 9/1 112019 1 1 :1 1 AM

COZe

MT/yr

l\4irigared

-rj*iitig.bd

., 0.0000 , 0.0000 0.0000 , 0.0000

., 0.0000 ' 0.0000 0.0000 , 0.0000

N20CH4
-foÞl COz

C02e

MT/yr

User Defìned
I ndustrial

0/0 0.0000 0.0000 ' 0.0000 0.0000

0.0000

N20

0.0000

CH4

0.0000

Toral cO2

0.0000

lndoôr/Out
door Use

MgalLand Use

Toral
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8.2 Waste by Land Use

Unmitiqated

Mirigated

Page 28 of 29

North [Varin Water District Tank.vl - Marin County, Annual

Date: 9/1112019 11:1',l AM

C02e

MT/yr

User Defìned
lndustrial

¡,

0.0000 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000

0.0000

N20

0.0000

CH4

0.0000

Toral co2

0.0000

Wâste
D¡sposed

tonSLând USo

Total

CO2e

MT/yr

User Defrned
I ndustrral

0.0000 0.0000 0.0000 0.0000

0.0000

N20

0.0000

cH4

0.0000

Total coz

0.0000

Waste
Disposêd

L¿nd Use :

Total

9.0 Operational Offroad

'..rHorse Power .. ...,,,Hours/DayNumberEquipment Type
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10.0 Stationary Equ¡pment

Fire Pumps and Emergency Generators

Page 29 of 29

North Marin Water District Tank.vl - Marin County, Annual

Dare: 9/1112019 i 1:11 AM

Load Factor ,TypeHorse PowerHours/YearHours/DayNumberEquìpment Type flET"__-
Boilers

Heat lnpuUYearHeat ìnput/DayNumberEquipment Type

User Defined Eouioment

NumberEquipment Type

11.0 Vegetation
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ISCST3 Model Parameters and Assumptions
Source Tvpe

j ..ì. :..:.,.Units,, .:,:,: '. .:. Valúe
Volume Source: Off-Road Equipment Exhaust for Construction
Hours/Work Dav hours/dav 9 Mon - Fri 8AM-5PM
DPM Emission Rate gram/second o.or764 Exhaust PMro f rom off-road equipment
Number of Sources cou nt 13 SMAQMD, 2015

Emission Rate/Source gram/second 0.001357
Release HeiRht meters 5.0 SMAQMD, 2015

Leneth of Side meters 10.0 SMAQMD, 2015

lnitial Lateral Dimension meters 2.3 ISCST3 Calculator
lnitial Vertical Dìmension meters 1.0 SMAQMD, 2015

ISCST3 Model Results

Location Tvoê

.. AnÌlual
. Average
Concentration

Residential Receptor
Umitigated

Construction

DPM (¡.rglm3) 0.05 Offsite MEIR (Ground level residential receptor)

PMr, (¡.rg/m3) 0.05 Offs¡te MEIR (Ground level residential receptor)

Summary of ISCST3 Model Parameters, Assumptions, and Results for DPM and PMr., Emissions dur¡ng Construction

Notes:

DPM = diesel part¡culate matter
PMro= particulate matter with aerodynamic resìstance diameters equal to or less than L0 microns

PM2.s = particulate matter w¡th aerodynamic resistance diameters equal to or less than 2.5 microns

¡rg/m3 = micrograms per cubic meter
Sacramento Metropolitan A¡r Quality Management District (SMAQMD), 2015. Guide to Air Quolity Assessment in Socramento County . Jur.e.

NMWD AQ Construction Emission Summary.v3.xlsx Page 1, of 2



Age Grouplnhalation Cancer Risk Assessment
for DPM 3rd Trimester 0-2 Yéars ' Notés

DPM Concentration (C) uslm3 0.053 0.053 ISCST3 Annual Average

Daily Breathing Rate (DBR) L/kg-day 361 1090 95th percentile (OEHHA, 2015)

lnhalation absorption factor (A) u n¡tless 1.0 L.0 OEH HA, 2015

Exposure Frequency (EF) u nitl ess 0.96 0.96 350 days/365 days in a year (OEHHA, 201.5)

Dose Conversion Factor (CFo) me-m3/ue-L 0.000001" 0.000001 Conversion of ue to mg and L to m3

Dose (D) mF,/kp,/dav 0.000018 0.000055 c+DBRtA+EF*CFD (OEHHA, 2015)

Cancer Potency Factor (CPF) (me/ke/dav)-1 1.L 1..L OEHHA, 2015

Age Sens¡tiv¡tv Factor (ASF) u n itl ess 10 10 OEHHA, 2O].5

Annual Exposure Duration (ED) years 0.2s 0.83 From spring 2020 to end of 2O2O

Averaging Time (AT) years 70 70 70 years for residents (OEHHA, 2015)

Fraction of time at home (FAH) u nitl ess 0.8s 0.85 OEHHA, 2015

Cancer Risk Conversion Factor (CF) u nitl ess 1000000 1000000 Chances per million (OEHHA, 2015)

Cancer Risk per million 0.61 6.L4 D*CPF+ASF+EDIAT+FAH+CF (OEHHA, 2015)

Total Cancer Risk per million o.ò At Offs¡te MEIR location

Health Risk Assessment for DPM Emissions Construct¡on

Notes:

DPM = diesel particulate matter

REL = reference exposure level

Fg/mt = micrograms per cubic meter

L/kg-day = liters per kilogram-day

m3/L = cubic meters per l¡ter

(me/kglday)-l = l/milligrams per kilograms per day

MEIR = maximum exposed individual resident
Office of Environmental Health Hazard Assessment (OEHHA), 2OI5. Air Toxics Hot Spots Progrøm Guidonce Manuol for Preporot¡on of
H eo lth Ri sk Assessm e nts. Fe bru o ry.

Hazard lndex fór DPM Units Value Notes

Chronic REL uglm3 5.0 OEHHA,2015

Chronìc Hazard lndex u n itless 0.011. At Offsite MËlR location

NMWD AQ Construction Emission Summary.v3.xlsx Page 7 of 2



NOTICE OF INTENT TO ADOPT A MITIGATED NEGATIVE DECLARATION
Draft lnitial Study/Mitigated Negative Declaration for

North Marin Water District Old Ranch Road Tank No. 2 Project

To: Public Agencies and lnterested Citizens/Parties From: North Marin Water District
999 Rush Creek Place

Novato, CA 94945

Notice: Pursuant to CEQA Guidelines Section 15072, notice is hereby given that the North Marin Water
District (NMWD), acting as Lead Agency under the California Environmental Quality Act (CEQA), intends to
adopt a Mitigated Negative Declaration (MND) for the proposed project.

Project Location and Description: The project includes constructing a new water tank (referred to as
"Tank No. 2") withín an approximately 20,000-square-foot parcel that would be created by grant within the
southern corner of Assessor's Parcel Number (APN) 146-310-05 (about 44 acres currently). The parcels
involved in the project are APN 146-310-23 (owned by NMWD), APN 146-310-05 (Maiero Grant Deed and
Easement), APN 146-310-44 (Wright Easement). The project site is within Marin County just outside the
western boundary of the City of Novato.

The new tank would replace an existing tank also located off Old Ranch Road. The planned improvements
also include constructing a new road to provide access to Tank No. 2 from Old Ranch Road. New pavement,
surface drainage improvements, underground utilities, and other ancillary improvements are included as part
of the project. A locked gate would be placed at the access road where it would connect to Old Ranch Road.
The gate would be about 15 to 20 feet from the intersection of Old Ranch Road and the tank access road.

The new tank would be 28 feet in diameter and 26 feet tall (22 feet to overflow) and made of welded steel. lt
would have a storage capacity of approximately 100,000 gallons.

The proposed site for the replacement water tank and the access road would require grading. The disturbed
area would encompass 0.62 acre, including 0.17 acre of the Maiero Grant Deed, 0.28 acre of the Maiero
Easement, 0.16 acre of the Wright Easement, and 0.01 acre of the NMWD parcel. Site grading for the
building pad would consist primarily of excavation. The tank pad would be constructed at elevation 516 feet,
and cuts of up to 12 feef are anticipated to achieve finished grades at the tank site. The total estimated cut
volume would be 1 ,91 1 cubic yards (CY), and the total estimated fill volume would be 1 ,281 CY, resulting in
off-haul of about 630 CY of soil. Accounting for the "swell factor" of 1.25, the off-haul would be about 7BB
CY. The cut slopes would be no steeper than 1.5:1 and fill slopes would be 2:1.

To construct the new tank and access road, existing vegetation including trees would have to be cleared. lt
is estimated that the project would require removal of 71 trees (62 oaks, 4 madrones, and 5 California bay
trees).

Potential Environmental lmpacts: The proposed MND did not find any potential environmental impacts
that could not be mitigated to a less-than-significant level.

Public Review Period: The public review period for the MND commences on November 15, 2019 and ends
on December 16, 2019 (5:00 PM). Please address all comments in writing to Mr. Rocky Vogler, Chief
Engineer, by email to rvoqler@nmwd.com or by mail to 999 Rush Creek Place, Novato, CA, 94945. NMWD
will only accept written comments during the comment period lf sendino email. olease use "Tank No. 2 lS
Comments" in the subiect line.

Location Where Documents Can Be Reviewed: The MND and all documents referenced therein are
available for review at the NMWD offices located at 999 Rush Creek Place, Novato, CA, from the hours of
B:00 AM to 5:00 PM, Monday through Friday, excluding holidays, by contacting NMWD Engineering
Secretary Eileen Mulliner at (415) 897-4133. The MND is also available for review at www.nmwd.com

Public Hearing: NMWD will hold a public hearing to solicit public comments on the MND and the proposed
project atthe regular NMWD Board of Trustees Meeting of January 7,2020, at 6PM atthe NMWD offices
located at 999 Rush Creek Place, Novato, CA. Additional information about the proposed project, including
project plans, are available on the NMWD's website at the address listed above.

ATTACHMENT 2



ATTACHMENT 3

OLD RANCH ROAD TANK NO. 2 PROJECT

CEQA REVIEW PROCESS TIMELINE

Description Date
Current Status /

Gomments
Administrative Draft Submitted to District October 24,2019 Complete
Board Meetinq - Request Approval to lnitiate CEQA Public Review November 5,2019
30-dav Public Review Period Beqins November 15,2019
30-day Public Review Period Ends December 16,2019
Board Meetins - Public Hearins/Cedify CEQA Januarv 7.2020

Updated: November 1, 2019

R:\Folders by Job No\6000 jobs\6207.20 Old Ranch Rd Tank Rspl\BOD Memos\ATTACHMENT 3 to BOD Memo doc
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Item #11

To:

From:

Subject:

MEMORANDUM

Board of Directors

Robert Clark, Operations / Maintenance Superintendent l/ilÍ/
November 1,2019

PG&E October 26-30, 2019 Public Safety Power Shutdown Response (PSPS) Update
X:\MAINT SUP\2020\BOD\BOD Mêmo Oct 26 PSPS Rêviaw.doc

RECOMMENDED ACTION: lnformation

FINANCIAL IMPACT: Unknown at this time

On Wednesday October 23'd the Marin County Office of Emergency Services (OES) began to

communicate to local area partners that PG&E had posted a potential Public Safety Power Outage

Alert that could impact pañs of Marin County. On Thursday October 24th, the District received

notification that approximately 50% of our PG&E services were going to be affected by the planned

power outage and to begin to plan for the event. The initialevent was to begin midday Saturday and

continue through Monday, until all affected areas had been inspected.

On Friday, October 25th, District staff revised the original NMWD PSPS Outage Response Plan

from 12 hourto I hourshifts and informed the atfected staff of the plan changes and anticipated

actions for the next few days. The response plan called for NMWD staff to fill the water storage tanks

and begin to set up generators on Friday, October 25th and to show up on Saturday October 26th for

the planned outage. 2417 stalling was accomplished by three shifts (1) 7:00 a,m. to 3:30 p.m., (2) 3:00

p.m. to 1 1:30 p.m. and (3) 1 1:00 p.m, to 7:30 a.m. with 30 District staff assigned to various roles along

with all Department heads on hand for support, The District's Emergency Operation Center (EOC)

was activated on Sunday, October 27th and was open through the morning of Wednesday, October

3oth.

District staff set up temporary generators to keep the water storage facilities filled, provide

uninterrupted water and sewer service, maintain at least 5 psi of water pressure in the Distribution

system and communicate with our customers, Generators for the Main Office and Yard Operations

desk were started at 8:30 p.m. and all power in Novato, West Marin and Oceana Marin went out

beginning around 9:00 p.m. on Saturday October 26th. These ongoing response efforts continued

through 7:00 a.m. on October 30th. During the power shutdown event the District lost all internet

service from Comcast and had limited cellular service from Verizon.

With the return of PG&E power late Tuesday, October 29th, all normal operations were restored

for Novato and West Marin water systems including internet communications and cell phone service.

Staff began to recover the equipment in the field and clean up equipment used during the event.

Stafford Treatment Plant operators and the Electrical Mechanical crews restarted the Stafford



RC BOD Memo Re PG&E October 26-30, 2019 PSPS
November 1,2019
Page 2

Treatment Plant early Wednesday and the Plant was up to full operation by 2:00 p.m. The power at

Oceana Marin remained off until Thursday October 31't at 6:00 p.m. During this entire event there

was no interruption of potable water or sewer service to our customers.

Staff will perform post event reviews and develop a lessons learned document that will be used

to improve our response for the next significant power outage or emergency event. Overall this was a

great exercise for NMWD staff to work together to meet the District's mission to provide reliable water

and sewer services to our customers.

ln closing I want to thank all District Staff for their outstanding response to an unprecedented

event in the history of the District. I also want to thank the Board for supporting additional funding of

over $200,000 to purchase/rent generators and temporary fuel storage tanks in advance of the PSPS

events in October.





Item #12

DISBURSEMEruTS . DATED OCTOBER 17, 2019

Date Prepared 10/15/19

The following demands made against the District are listed for approval and authorization for payment in accordance
with Section 31302 of the California Water Code, beinq a part of the California Water District Law:

Seq Pavable To For Amount

2

3

4

1 ACWA Annual Dues (Mclntyre) (1/20-12120) (Budget

$21,600)

Allquip Universal

Alpha Analytical Labs

Amazon/Gen ui ne-Hardware

Pressure Regulators (3)

Lab Testing

Misc lT Equipment ($3eZ¡, Communication
Cables & Media Connectors ($280) (STP), Brief
Relief Urine Bags ($80) (80), Tool Grinder, Drill
Bit Set ($1SO¡, Gas Siphon Hose ($ZS¡, Comm
Cables ($aZ¡, Stickers for Equipment ($14),
Resistivity Light ($102) (Lab), Bluetooth Radio &
Battery Charger ($2aZ¡

A.S.T.I Annual Fire Service Testing (27)

Buck's Saw Service Gas Cans (4)

Cilia, Joseph

Clipper Direct

Retiree Exp Reimb (Oct Health lns)

November Commuter Benefit Program

9 Energy Systems New Standby Generator for STP (Balance
Remaining on Contract $70,880)

Environmental Express

Environmental Science Assoc

Tubes for lC Analysis (Lab)

Jurisdictional Delineation Report for San Mateo
Tank Permitting Assistance (Balance Remaining
on Contract $36,244)

Evoqua Water Technologies

Ferguson Waterworks

Fisher Scientific

Fremouw Environmental

Service on Lab Deionization System

2" Compound Meter for Avesta Job

Chlorine Test Kits (2) (Lab)

Oily Debris Disposal

Friedman's Home lmprovement Lag Bolts for OM Ponds Flow Meter Transmitter
Enclosure (4) & ïubing for Tank Level
Transmitters ($26)

$23,010.00

437.59

755.00

1307.29

2,760.00

173.56

333.79

412.00

90,923.00

289.06

4,417.54

363.25

2,284.03

74.01

376.96

34 75

5

6

7

B

10

11

12

13

14

15

16

*Prepaid Page 1 of4 Disbursements - Dated October 17,2019



Seq Pavable To For Amount

17

1B

19

20 GHD

21 Grainger

ldexx Laboratories

Jackson, David

JW Mobile

Kozik, Francis

KP Promotions

Latanyszyn, Roman

Lemos, Kerry

Marin Landscape Materials

Mayfield, Christina

McMickin, Abram

Micro Technology

Miller Pacific Engineering

34 Mountain Cascade

Garcia, Lori

Garcia, David

Government Finance Officers
Association

Novato "Toilet Rebate" Program

Novato "Washer Rebate" Program

GFOA Certificate of Achievement for Excellence
in Financial Reporting Application Fee FY 18119

General Services Agreement: Lynwood PS
(Balance Remaining on Contract $32,792)

Hard Hat (Watkins), Digging Bars (2) ($Ot¡,
Trailer Lock ($109), Couplings (5) ($1SZ¡,
Safety Signs (2), Filter (STP), Sealant Tape
(STP), Disposable Gloves (2,000) (STP) ($3ZZ¡,
Alarm for Chlorine Gas Storage Room ($3ZS¡,
Recycling Container, Front Office HVAC Filters
(30) ($477) & Chlorine Alarm Buzzer ($3zS¡

Quanti-Tray (100) ($261)& Colilert Media (200)
($815) (Lab)

Retiree Exp Reimb (Oct Health lns)

Hydraulic Hose for Vac Truck ('16 Ditch Witch)

Novato "Pool Cover Rebate" Program

Sweatshirts (2), T-Shirts (3), Polo Shirts (2),
Jackets (2) & Shirts (4) ($62)

Retiree Exp Reimb (Oct Health lns)

Retiree Exp Reimb (Oct Health lns)

Crushed Rock (1yd) & Concrete (3 yds) ($429)

Novato "Toilet Rebate" Program

Novato "Smart lrrigation Controller" Program

Certification of Fume Hood (Lab)

Prog Pymt #9: Geotechnical Services- Misc
Backfill Testing ($6ZS¡ & Prog Pymt #10:
Geotechnical Services-PRE Tank 1 ($5,049)
(Balance Remaining on Contract $40,551)

Refund Overpayment on Closed Account

100.00

50.00

560.00

698.50

1,822.84

1,076.30

986.81

174.38

50.00

266.39

333.79

986.81

597.85

200.00

220.48

480.21

5,724.20

923.73

22

23

24

25

26

27

28

29

30

31

32

33

*Prepaid Page 2 ol 4 Disbursements - Dated October 17,2019



Seo Pava ble To For Amount

37

3B

39

40

41

35 North Marin Auto Parls

36 North Bay Gas

Nodhbay Nissan

Office Depot

Pace Supply

Pape Machinery

PES Environmental

42 Peterson Trucks

43 Pini Hardware

47 TPx Communications

Purge Valve ($5+¡, Socket, Hood Fan Belt
(STP), Battery ('13 Vac Excavator) ($238),
Service Parts ('18 Dodge Ram) ($65), Shop
Towels (6 lbs) ($127), Lighting Plugs & Sockets

Dip Tubes (2) ($74) & September Cylinder
Rental ($1St¡

Bumper ('16 Nissan Frontier)

Copy Paper (80 reams) ($2AO¡, Toner ($66) &
Misc Office Supplies ($54)

Tees (2) ($181), Bolts (50) & Fire Hydrant
Extensions (2) ($141)

Back-up Alarm ('09 JD Backhoe)

Consulting Services: Project Communications,
Correspondence and Coordinate
Arrangements/Agreements for Subcontractor,
Drilling & Pump Services (Balance Remaining
on Contract $57 ,872)

Window Hinge ('02 lnt'l 5 yd Dump Truck) &
Seat ('15 lnt'l 5 Yd Dump Truck) ($7OS¡

Misc Maint Supplies ($1SZ¡, Materials to Repair
Maint Office Ceiling, Hardware for P/S
Maintenance ($43), Trash Bags (30), Outlets (2)
($48) (STP), Paint Supplies for Bear Valley P/S,
Bleach (Lab), Caps for Hose Bibs Used for
Sampling (5) & Latch/Hardware for Pacheco
Tank Pump House

294.39

224 78

705.52

406.40

404.17

242.39

1,315.38

788.86

384.77

365.00

333.79

13,740.48

531.59

115.84

44 R & S Erection of Santa Rosa Chain Repair on Roll-Up Door @ STP

45 Stafford, Vernon Retiree Exp Reimb (Oct Health lns)

Ferric Chloride (18 tons) (STP)

October ïelephone Charges

Green Waste Disposal

46 Thatcher of California

48 Waste Management

*Prepaid Page 3 of 4 Disbursements - Dated October 17,2019



Seq Pavable To For Amount

49 Watkins, Jeff Exp Reimb: Hotelfor DieselTraining Class on
10t14-10t16
TOTAL DISBURSEMENTS

262.28
-$16r,3T9.7T'

The foregoing payroll and accounts payable vouchers totaling $262.28 are hereby approved and authorized
for payment.

r-Controller Date

n I Manager

*Prepaid Page 4 of 4 Disbursements - Dated October 17,2019



DISBURSEMENTS - DATED OCTOBER 24, 2019

Date Prepared 10122119

The following demands made against the District are listed for approval and authorization for payment in accordance
with Section 31302 of the California Water Code, being a part of the California Water District Law:

Seq Payable To For Amount

P/R* Employees

EFT* lnternal Revenue Service

EFT* State of California

EFT* CaIPERS

I Amazon.com

Net Payroll PPE 10115119

Federal & FICA ïaxes PPE 10115119

State Taxes & SDI PPE 10115119

Pension Contribution PPE 9/15, 9/30/19 &
10t15t19

Stethoscope Kits for FSR ($Za¡, Cordless Tool
Batteries (2) ($280), Hose Fittings ('13 Vac
Excavator & Trailer ($223), USB Adaptor for
Laptop ($15) (STP), Pipe Expanding Tool
($162¡, Cordless Grease Gun ($143), Grease
Coupler ($SO¡, Circuit Breaker ($30+¡, Patch
Cables ($73) (STP), Cordless lmpact Wrench
($218), New Breaker for Maint Bldg ($a7a) &
Tool Box ($1,049) ('14 F150)

October AFLAC Employee Paid Benefit

Oil Filter Disposal (2)

Annual Fire Service Testing (41)

lndemnity Review Fee

Leased Lines

Bank of Marin Loan Principal & lnterest
(Payment 96 of 240) Aqueduct Energy
Efficiency Project

Annual Fee FY 19120 (Clark) (Budget $850)

October I nternet Connection

Consulting Services: September lT Support
($6,000¡, West Marin lT ($t25), Misc SCADA
($6ZS¡, CORE Billing Maintenance ($100),
Nexgen Maintenance ($1,350) & Rate Study
Support ($0SO¡

2

3

4

5

6

7

American Family Life lnsurance

Asbury Environmental Services

A.S.T.t.

Athens Administrators

AT&T

Bank of Marin

Baywork

Comcast

Core Utilities

$149,461.96

62,125.15

13,489.78

77,167.41

3061.28

3170.83

150.00

4,395.00

2,355.00

66.06

46,066.67

1,500.00

143.29

9,200.00

8

I

10

.Prepaid Page '1 of 3 Disbursements - Dated October 24,2019



Seq Payable To For Amount

14

16

17

11 Diesel Direct West

12 Eurofins Eaton Analytical

13 Frontier Commun ications

Grainger

15

Diesel (398 gals) ($1,538) & Gasoline (300 gals)
($1,2+s¡

Lab Services for UCMR4 Monitoring (Balance
Remaining on Contract $6,319)

Leased Lines

Lights for Front Office (6), Rubber Stripping
($52) (STP), Emergency Lights for Maintenance
Office, Outdoor Data Cable for Communications
(1,000') ($3OS¡, Filters for Front Office HVAC (6)
($2aO¡, Canvas Tarps (3) ($161), Tubing
Cutters (2) ($122), Phosphate Buffer (STP)
($82) & Sulfuric Acid (STP)

Novato "Toilet Rebate" Program

40" Tubing (500') (STP)

Fuel Tank Generator Rental (3) ($4,¿Zg) & Fuel
Tank Rental ($1,352)

Standards (Lab)

Prog Pymt #4: Water Rate Study (Balance
Remaining on Contract $25,485)

Vision Reimbursement

Control Solenoid for Palmer Tank Valve

Deferred Compensation PPE 10115119

Deferred Compensation PPE 1011 51 19

Membership Dues (11119 - 10120) (J. Blue)
(Budget $1,000)

Garlock Gaskets (80) ($489) & Couplings (8)

Equipment Key Sets for Foremen (3)

Petty Cash Reimbursement: Safety Snacks
($90¡, Safety Bucks (2), Tablecloths for Patio
Picnic ($4) & Ziplocks for Lab (913)

Power: Blgd/Yard ($5,218), Rect/Controls
($SOe¡, Pumping ($46,775), Treatment ($148) &
Other ($1Sz¡

Legal Notice. Salinity lntrusion lnto Pt Reyes
Well Supply - October 3, 2019

2,781.92

610.00

1 ,431.41

1,129.15

100.00

289.59

9,775.02

293.42

9,870.00

184.00

127.79

10,303.64

1,995.00

920.00

767.44

196.50

115.74

52,836.17

87.00

18

19

20

21

22

23

24

28 PG&E

29 Point Reyes Light

Grande, Leo Del

Harrington lndustrial Plastics

HERC Rentals

High-Purity Standards

Hildebrand Consulting

Leighton Stone

Lincoln Life

Nationwide Retirement Solution

Novato Chamber of Commerce

Pace Supply

Pape Machinery

NMWD Petty Cash

25

26

27

*Prepaid Page 2 of 3 Disbursements - Dated October 24,2019



Seq Payable To For Amount

30

31

32

33

34

Point Reyes Prop Mgmt Assn

PumpMan Norcal

R&B

Roy's Sewer Service

Skewes-Cox, Amy

Soiland

Sonoma County Water Agency

SRT Consultants

Stompe, Brad

Telstar lnstruments

Thatcher Chemical

Thomas Scientific

Township Building Services

United Parcel Service

VWR lnternational

White & Prescott

October HOA Dues (25 Giacomini Rd)

Replacement Pumps & Motors for Olema PS

Traffic Blow Off Lids (2)

Vac/Clean Out OM & North Lift Station

Prog Pymt #2: Provide lnitial Study/Mitigated
Neg Dec for Old Ranch Rd Tank (Balance
Remainino on Contract $26.136)

Asphalt Recycle (13 tons)

Septem ber Contract Water

Prog Pymt#5: Consulting Services to Complete
Stafford Lake Sanitary Survey (Balance
Remaining on Contracl $24,307)

Exp Reimb: Power Supply for RWF Computer

Annual Flow Meter Calibrations @ Dillon's
Beach OM Lift Station and Ponds

Chlorine (4,000 lbs) (STP)

Phosphate Buffers (2) (Lab)

September Janitorial Services

Delivery Services: Sent UCMR Samples for
Testing ($117) & Repair on Programmable
Logic Controller (STP)

pH Probe Storage Solution, Culture Controls (3)
($188) & Membrane Filters (1,000) ($212) (Lab)

Prog Pymt#13: Plum Tank Lot Line Adjustment
(Balance Remaining on Contract $19,635)

75.05

7,270.07

245.21

3,100.00

24,590.21

106.48

476,082.10

375.00

45.42

1,270.00

1,705.20

89.86

2,035.48

131 .53

454.66

405.00
s964,146.39

35

óo

37

38

39

40

41

42

43

44

45

TOTAL DISBURSEMENTS

The foregoing payroll and accounts payable vouchers totaling $984,146.39 are hereby approved and
authorized for payment.

lola
roller Date

o
General r

*Prepaid

Date

Page 3 of 3 Disbursements - Dated October 24,2019



DISBURSEMEA/TS . DATED OCTOBER 31, 2019

Date Prepared 10129119

The following demands made against the District are listed for approval and authorization for payment in accordance
with Section 31302 of the California Water Code, being a part of the California Water District Law:

Seq Pavable To For Amount

*90223 CalPERs

10 CWEA

11 Daly, Mary Colleen

12 Diesel Direct West

13 Doran, Emily

E&M

Allied Heating & Air Conditioning

Allquip Universal

Alpha Analytical Labs

Arrow Benefits Group

Arrow Benefits Group

AT&T

Baker, Jack

Becker, Jennifer & Brendon

Bold & Polisner

November Health lnsurance Premium
(Employees $47,264, Retirees $11,798 &
Employee Contribution $9,536)

Quarterly Maintenance on HVAC System

Exhaust Pipe (Vac Trailer)

Lab Testing

Oct DentalAdmin Fee

July-September Dental Expense

October I nternet Connection

Novato "Toilet Rebate" Program

Refund Overpayment on Open Account

Sept Legal Fees (General $2,730, Potter Valley
FERC $777 & California Voting Rights Act $21)

Certification Renewal Fees (Reischmann)
(Budget $1 00) (1 t20-12t20)

Novato "Cash for Grass" ($400) & Water Smart
Landscape Efficiency Rebate Program
Residential ($81)

1

$68,598.11

417.00

239.55

120,00

288.1 5

9,444.35

96.30

100.00

371.38

3,528.00

94.00

481.40

2

J

4

5

6

7

B

I

14 Wonderware 1 Year Support & Maintenance
Agreement (STP)

15 Engineering News Record Subscription Renewal (Vogler) (3120-3121)

Gasoline (353 gals) 1,441.02

Refund Alternative Compliance Reg 15 Deposit 630.00

226.00

87.00

.Prepaid Page 1 of4 Disbursements - October 31 , 2019



Seq Pavable To For Amount

19

'16 Enterprise Fleet Management
Trust

17 Evoqua Water Technologies

18 Gilardi, Fred

Grainger

Madruga lron Works

Medina, Gloria

Mutual of Omaha

Neopost

Novato Fireman's Fund Property

Novato Sanitary District

30 Office Depot

31 open Spatial

Oct Monthly Lease Charges for Nissan Rogues
(2), Frontier (1) & F150 Vehicles (2)

Deionization System Rental (1011119 - 3131120)
(Lab)

West Marin "Toilet" Rebate Program

lndustrial Penlight for Front Counter, Hard Hat
(Sjoblom), Hose Clamps & Fittings ($629), Hip
Boots ($83) (Davenport), Tubing Cutter (2)
($eO¡, Drill & Driver Bit Set, Toaster ($6t¡,
Bucket/Tool Organizers (2) ($77), Headlamps
(2), Replacement Flags (2) ($87), Reducing
Coupling, BallValve, Nipple & Cordless
Reciprocating Saw ($1 O+¡

Exp Reimb: 6-201b Bags of lce for Crew Until
Replacement Machine Has Arrived

Vault Lids (4)

Refund of Deposit/New Development/WC
Restriction-Novato

November Group Life lnsurance Premium

Postal Meter Rental (1111119 - 11130119)

Refund Overpayment on Closed Account

July ($27,793) & August 2019 RW Operating
Expenses ($34,285) & Semi-Annual Billing for
Yard/Office Sewer Charges (201 9-2020)
(fi2,zat¡

lnk Cartridges ($¿t), Binder Clips (12) & Rubber
bands

Open Spatial Suite-Standard Edition Annual
Lease ($10,074) & Support Hours for Facility
Map GIS/Auto Cad ($4,ZSO¡

2,642.97

340.26

200.00

1,343.21

73.07

447.00

230.00

38.99

8,466.16

1,000.00

973.66

143.09

19,794.79

64,345.10

56.06

14,324.00

20

21

22

23

24

25

26

27

28

29

Green Point Nursery

lntellaprint Systems

Manzanita Plants for Front Office (3)

Quarterly Equipment Maintenance on
Engineering Scanner/Copier

Kaiser Foundation Health Plan DMV/DOT Physicals (C. Kehoe & Reed)

LeBrun, Kent

*Prepaid Page 2 ol 4 Disbursements - October 31 ,2019



Seo Pavable To For Amount

33 Pacific Surfacing

32 pace Supply

PumpMan Norcal

R&B

Scarbrough, Jane

Scott Technology Group

Solenis

SPG Solar

SRT Consultants

Telstar lnstruments

Thatcher of California

Toepfer, Laureen

Township Building Services

Univar

USA BlueBook

Nipples (33) ($168), Copper Pipe (2,400')
($8,551), Bell Restrainer ($138), Double Check
Valves (4) ($634), Couplings (26) ($378), Fire
Hydrant Buries (4) ($944), Hydrant Extensions
(11) ($1 ,213), Adaptors (3) ($289), Weld-on
Cement, Weld-On Primer, BallValve ($12+¡,
Elbows (4), Soc Wye, Plug, Rapid Set Concrete,
Mortar Mix, Bushings (10), Reducers (10),
Adaptors (40) ($915) & Epoxy Saddle Straps (3)
($10+¡ (Less Credit of $171 Received for Misc
Supplies)

Refund Security Deposit on Hydrant Meter Less
Final Bill

Replacement Pump for Norlh Street Lift Station
P1

Couplings (4)

Novato "Toilet" Rebate Program

Quarterly Maintenance on Engineering Copier
(7 t16t1e-10l15/19)

Polymar (2,000 lbs) (STP)

September Energy Delivered Under Solar
Services Agreement

Prog Pymt#6: Consulting Services to Complete
Stafford Lake Sanitary Survey (Balance
Remaining on Contract $23,477)

Rebuild Kit for STP Lab Titrator

Ferric Chloride (10 tons) (STP)

Novato "Smart lrrigation Controller" ($240) &
"Water Smart Landscape Efficiency" Rebate
Program Residential ($69)

Janitorial Supplies

Sodium Hypochlorite (200 gals) (PRTP)

Fire Hose (50') (STP)

13,621,83

850.00

1,500.00

1,592.27

1,497.30

200.00

668.72

3,640.00

13,603.16

830.00

246.62

7,181.87

309.1 6

465.1 5

492.65

488.04

34

35

36

37

3B

39

40

41

42

43

44

45

46

47

Parkinson Accounting Systems Accounting Software Support (1011119-

12t31t19)

*Prepaid Page 3 of 4 Disbursements - October 31 ,2019



Seo Pavable To For Amount

48

49

US Bank

Van Bebber Bros

Sept Safekeeping Treasury Securities

Steelfor Tool Box Mounts ('14 F150)

142.00

91.28

50 Williamson, Nancy Exp Reimb: Food & Drink for Crews Working
During Public Safety Power Shutoff 151.3g
TOTAL DISBURSEMENTS -5TÆTYã.OT

The foregoing payroll and accounts payable vouchers totaling $248,152.05 are hereby approved and
authorized for payment.

I'c/go \
ntroller Date

Ge ral ager Date

*Prepaid Page 4 of 4 Disbursements - October 31,2019
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415-897-4133
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www.nmwd,com

October 23,2A19

EMAIT

Jeanine Townsend, Clerk to the Board
State Water Resources Control Board
P.O. Box 100
Sacramento, CA 9581 2-200

via email: commentletters@waterboards,ca.gov

Subject: Comments on the Development of Water Loss Performance
Standards

Dear Mr. Esquivel (Chair):

On behalf of Noñh Marin Water Þistrict (NMWD), we thank you for the
opportunity to comment on the proposed framework for water loss performance
standards as presented by State Water Resources Control Board (State Board) staff
at the September 23, 2019 stakeholder workshop. We recognize the etfort State
Board staff have made over the past 18 months to develop a framework for water
loss performance standards, but have concerns abCIut the limited data available to
set utility-specific targets. NMWÐ believes the information and assumptions included
in the economic model as presented could lead to inequitable targets that require
costly, ineffective actions to avoid enforcement.

Specifically, NMWD has the following concerns:

Assumption of inaccurate data for lower levelÞ of loss. The level of loss
from a limited number of utilities nationwide should not be considered
representative of California utilities. There are significant differences in water
loss data for California when compared to the rest cif the nation. lf enough
data has not been collected from California utilities to set a California-specific
range of reasonable water loss, additional time and data is required before
issuing information orders questioning the validity of real loss levels for nearly
100 suppliers.

a Pressure redu.ction is unlikelv to be feasible. NMWD mânages pressure
to meet public health and safety standards. As a result, we are required to
meet minimum pressures at critical nodes for firefighting, public health, and
safety. A simple opt-out option for pressure management should be included
for suppliers concerned about not meeting the basic requiremènts of their
community.

DIRECTORS: JACK BAKEß ' RICK FRAITES . JAMES GROSSI .MICHAEL JOLY . STEPHEN PETTERTE

OFFICERS: DRÊW McINTYRE, General Manager . TERRIE KEHOE, Dlstrict Secretary 'JULIE BLU¡, Audltor4ontroller , ROCKY \¡OGLER, Chlef Engineer



Ms. Jeanine Townsend
October 23,2019
Page 2 of 3

o

ø

ÇqnqernS êþqut qqstqmer rates and affordat¡ilitV. There has not been
conlprehensive analysis tying water loss reduction actions to an actual
reduction in real water losses as reported in the mandatory annual water loss

audit, Taking costly act¡ons for uncertain results could increase the cost of
water in our service äreã. The potential of raising rates without known
benefits is a concern for NMWD. Additional time and resources are required
to evaluate costs and benefits before agency specific targets are set.

Prloritizins watq¿loss rqduqtio¡tq\/et rnglti-þqnefit projects-" The use of
the economic model with limited inputs could require investments in water
los$ over investments in other projects with rnulti-benefits. Water resource
planning evaluates mult¡ple benefits to prioritize projects. Requiring water
loss investments could prevent other projects with water quality, health, and
environment or reliability benefits from moving forward.

ô Ljsjnq thg retai!*çoqlg of water infåates the benefi.tg qf rqal water ãqss.

Our cost of water includes fixed costs that would not be reduced with water
loss, Furthermere, this per-formance standard conflicts with the IWA/AVWA
water audit methodology, which uses variable production cost for real losses
and retail unit cost only for apparent losses.

o Usinq E defaUljleg"k t¡rofile, NMWD does not have a leak survey to include
in the economic model. There are many variables that will impact a leak
profile. Defaulting to an assigned leak profile could inflate the benefits of
water loss actions. Additional study is required before it can be determined
that the three leak profiles provided are representative of all utilities across
the state. lnaccurately assuming a leak profile could lead to an infeasik¡le
target for NMWD and require actions that are not cost effective.

o Consideraticln of nreemotive nioe nenlacement and renair. Water loss is
rarely the sole economic factor when determining the feasibility of pipe

replacement. Many factors determine the need to replace pipes and we
prioritize the contents of our capital improvement plan based on the unique
needs and abilities within our service area. The full resources needed for pipe

replacement compared to the benefits of reduced wâter loss show pipe

replacement to not be cost effective. Pipe replacement should not be

regulâted as part of a water loss standard.

Wrte.r lops.js pfle nfiorlty Fr:eq amqnq*manV. Meeting overly onerous and

ineffective water loss requirements may entail redirecting funding from other
priority areas like water quafity, infrastructure efficiency upgrades, water
resiliency projects, etc. Addressing climate chânge requires a poñfolio

approach in which suppliers apply the appropriate level of funding and

actions for each solution to reach ihe most cost effective and beneficial result.

The exact ratio of actions for each agency is different.



Ms. Jeanine Towneend
Õctober 23, 2019
Page 3 of 3

Thank you for considering our concerns, We believ,e additional data and
analysis is required before individual water loss standarda can be calculated. ln the
interim, we look forward to working with $tate Board staff to develop a reasonable
standard for water loss.

Si

elntyre
General Manager

Brian Sanders, Reg ional Affairs Representative
Association of Galifornia Water Agencles

DM:adm
t:!m\2019 nitôlrorporu. to ¡trvrcb rð wåt€a lo€! porT rtandardg.dog(
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MEMORANDUM

To: Board of Directors

From: Nancy Williamson, Senior Accountant

November 1,2019

Subj: lnformation - FY20 1st Quarter Labor Cost Report
t:\ac\word\memo\20\1 st qtr labor cost rpt.doc

RECOMMENDEDACTION: lnformationOnly

FINANC¡AL IMPACT: None

Total labor cost increased $32,75 3 1 .60/o from the prior fiscal year. Attached in graphical format is

a five-year comparative summary of total labor cost (Attachment A), overtime cost (Attachment B) and

temporary employee cost (Attachment C) expended during each fiscal year. Also attached is a summary

of total labor cost vs. budget (Attachment D), which shows that labor was 6.6% under budget through the

end of the first quarter of the fiscal year.

Administration
Engineering
Operations/Maint
Construction/Maint

($2,580)
( $26,334)

$26,903
$34,864

(0.5%)
(7.9o/o)

3.60/o

8.9%
Net lncrease/(Decrease) $32,753 1.6%

Comment on Chanqe from Prior Year

Administration: Labor Cost decreased g2,Sg0, or 0.b%. The Accounting/Human Resource Supervisor

resigned on July 24,2018 and that position remains vacant. The decrease was offset by five 5% step

increases, the 3.8% cost of living adjustment effective October 1, of 2018 and a one-time equity

adjustment of 0.5% effective July 1 ,2019.
Engineering; Labor Cost decreased $26,334, or 7 .9o/o. The decrease is primarily due to the retirement of

an Associate Civil Ëngineer on October 31,2018 and that position being filled on December 3,2018 at a

lower salary and to less temporary hours worked. The decrease was offset by one 5% step increase, the

aforesaid 3.8% labor cost increase and the one{ime 0.5% equity adjustment.

Operations/Maintenance: Labor Cost increased $26,803, or 3.6%. The increase was primariiy due

to seven 5% step increases, the 3.8% labor cost increase and equity adjustments ranging from 0.5% to

10.5o/o.

Construction/Maintenance:Labor Cost increased $34,864, or 8.9o/o. The increase was due to four 5%

step-increases, the 3.8% labor cost increase and equity adjustments ranging from 0.5% to 6.b%.

Department
lncrease / (Decrease) in
Labor Cost vs prior FY % Ghanqe



FTE 53.0

s2,027,491

Jul 19 - Sept 19

5781,4t0

5428,u3

S510,769

s307,139

52,027,49!

FTE 52.0

5t,994,738

Jul 18 - Sept 18

$7s4,607

s393,309

s513,349

s333,473

S!,994,738

FTE 55.0

s1,950,265

Jul L7 - Sept 17

s709,to7

s378,495

5522,964

S339,700

S1,950,265

Ops/Maint
Const/Maint
Admin
Engineering

Total

7.1%

s.s%
o.7%
-o.s%
L.6%

5 Year Avg
Growth Rate

FTE 52.7

S!,942,291

Jul 16 - Sept 16

5725,263

s358,043

S530,975

s328,010

5r,942,29!

FTE57.7

S1,903,021

Jul 15 - Sept 15

s746,8!0

s345,852

S497,358

s313,001

S1,903,021

I Ops/Maint

¡ Const/Maint

I Admin

I Eng

I Total

11t1t19
Total Labor Cost 

:$nancevìrsrpt\ry201stqtrlaboræstreport\allhrs $chaftxrs

NMWD Fiscal Year through September
S-Year Comparison

s2,s00,000

s2,000,000

S1,5oo,ooo

Sl,ooo,ooo

55oo,ooo

so

r Ops/Ma¡nt r Const/Maint I Admin I Eng I Total

ATTACHMENT A



S79,599

Jul 19 - Sept 19

S4o,s40

s24,394

$].4,666

so

s79,599

584,290

Jul 18 - Sept 18

536,544

526,Bzs

s20,918

So

s84,290

S57,188

Jul t7 - Sept 17

s36,708

5r7,296

s3,184

So

S57,188

551,613

Jul L6 - Sept 16

s26,867

5!9,!72

55,574

so

s51,613

s68,026

Jul 15 - Sept 15

S30,231

s3o,4o8

57,3o4

Ss¿

s68,026

r Ops/Maint

r Const/Maint

r Admin

: Eng

I Total

11t1t19 t\finance\hrsrpt\¡20 1 st qtr labor æst report\ot $ chart

Overtime Cost

NMWD Fiscal Year through September

sgo,ooo
S-Year Com rison

s8o,ooo

STo,ooo

s6o,ooo

s5o,ooo

s40,000

s3o,ooo

s2o,ooo

Slo,ooo

So

r Ops/Maint r Const/Maint r Admin r Eng t Total

ATTACHMENT B



522,436

Jul 19 - Sept 19

Ss,oro

So

s8,087

Sg,:¡g

s22,436

S55,954

t
Jul 18 - Sept 18

s6,702

Srs,zor

523,495

Si.1,996

S55,954

54L,944

I
-r
Jul 17 - Sept 17

s5,060

S11,s26

St4,7so

s10,308

54t,944

531,794

I
Jul 16 - Sept 16

s10,538

59,234

s4,434

s7,588

s31,794

I'l

561,149

I
I

Jul 15 - Sept 15

s22,O88

s19,1-18

s5,240

5].4,704

56t,r49

r Ops/Maint

r Const/Maint

r Admin

r Eng

r Total

11t1t19 t\finance\hrsrpt\FY2o I stqtrlabor cost report\temp g chart.xls

s7o,oo0

Tempora ry Employee Cost
NMWD Fiscal Year through September

S-Year Comparison

s6o,ooo

S5o,ooo

s40,000

s3o,ooo

s20,000

Slo,ooo

So

r Ops/Maint r Const/Maint ¡ Admin r Eng I Total

ATTACHMENT C



11t1t'tg

Total Labor Cost vs. Budget 
t:\finance\hrsrpt\raborcostcomparedtobudsetfv2.\salarychartxls

NMWD Fiscal Year through September

s2,5oo,ooo

S2,ooo,ooo

S1,5oo,ooo

Si-,ooo,ooo

s5oo,ooo

5o

Administration

S2,r7o,ooo

52,027,49r

s78L,4\0
s814,ooo

S5l-0,769
5565,000

5428,t13 - S433,ooo
S358,ooo

S307,139

Constr/Maint Engineering Ops/Maint Total

ATTACHMENT D



California finds widespread water contamination of 'forever
chem ica ls'

By Anna M. Phillips, Anthony Pesce, LA Tirnes L1l4/19

WASHINGTON - Nearly 300 drinking water wells and other water sources in California have traces of

toxic chemicals linked to cancer, new state testing has found.

Testing conducted this year of more than 600 wells across the state revealed pockets of
contamination, where chemicals widely used for decades in manufacturing and household goods

have seeped into the public's water supply. An analysis hy fhe L,os Angeles Times found that

within this class of chemicals, oalled perfluoroalkyl and polyfluoroalkyl substances' the two most

common compounds were detected in 86 water systems that serve up to 9 million Californians.

State officials released the water quality results on Monday, the first step in what's likely to be a

years-long effort to track the scale of the contamination and pinpoint its sources. Only a small

fraction of California's thousands of drinking water wells were tested in this initial study.

Officials said they planned to examine many more, but have not committed to future statewide

testing.

The results offered the clearest picture yet of California's exposure to a public health crisis that is

playing out nationally.

"This has the potential of being an enormously costly issue both on the health side as well as on

the mitigation and regulatory side," said Kurt Schwabe, an environmental policy professor at UC

Riverside. oolt's going to be one of the defining issues in California, environmentally, for
decades."

About half of the wells sampled did not have the chemicals at detectable levels - a result that

state officials said was a hopeful sign the contaminants may not have spread as widely as they

have in other states. Yet testing found contaminated drinking watt in communities across

California, from densely-populated cities with large and complex water systems to mobile home

parks that depend on a single private well.

Clusters of contaminated wells were found in Southern California, in Los Angeles, Orange,

Riverside and San Bernardino counties, In some cases, the results had an immediate effect - the

city of Anaheim has shut down three of its drinking water wells so far this year in response to

elevated levels of the chemicals.

Exposure to the chemicals, commonly known as PFAS, has been traced to kidney and testicular

eaÍrcer, as well as high cholesterol and thyroid disease. Mothers and young children are thought

to be the most vulnerable to the chemicals, which can affect reproductive and developmental

health.



Scientists have called them "forever chemicals" because they persist indefinitely and accumulate
in the human body.

The chemicals were developed in the 1940s and used in countless household products, from
Teflon cookware and Scotchgard to waterproof clothing and food packaging. They were also a

key ingredient in firefighting foam used on military bases and, as a result, have become a major
source of groundwater pollution.

A Times analysis found that Caliltrrnia has 21 contarninatecl bases, more than any other state,

including six where the chemicals have leached into off-base drinking water supplies.

There is no agreed-upon safe level of PFAS. The Environmental Protection Agency has

classif,red the chemicals as an "emerging contaminant" and has delayed setting a national
standard for limiting the levels in drinking water. In2016, the agency issued a nonbinding health
advisory for two of the most common types, PFOS and PFOA, recommending that water utilities
notify the public if levels of the chemicals reached a combined 70 parts per trillion.

California health officials are developing their own safety standards for the contaminants.

A state law that takes effect in January will require utilities to inform customers if PFAS are

found at any level. It will also force water systems to either shut down wells that test over the

federal health advisory level or notify their customers of the contamination - steps that, at
present, are only voluntary.

For the first round of testing, California's State Water Resources Control Board focused on
hundreds of wells located within one or two miles of commercial airports, municipal landfills,
and water supplies already known to have elevated levels of the chemicals. Each of these wells
was tested for about a dozen different compounds within the broader PFAS family, which
includes thousands of unique chemicals.

Officials plan to widen their search in the coming months to include drinking water systems near

military bases, manufacturing hubs and wastewater treatment plants.

California has about 3,000 water providers, most of which have not been ordered to test for
PFAS. Those that have been forced to confront the problem have looked for solutions based on
what they can afford and whether they have other sources of clean water readily available.

An example of this can be found in the cities of Oroville and Chico. Both have detected PFAS in
their drinking water wells, but because Oroville gets the majority of its water from Lake
Oroville, in the foothills of the Sierra Nevada, local water suppliers there can reduce their
reliance on groundwater without feeling pinched. Chico, on the other hand, is dependent on
groundwater wells.

"Every water system is different, and thaf changes the options that you have," said Loni Lind,
water quality manager for California Water Service, which supplies both towns.



In interviews with The Times, water district managers emphasized that having contaminated
groundwater wells does not necessarily mean that residents are being exposed to dangerous

levels of PFAS. Some utilities have treated the water to remove most of the chemicals, while
others have started blending contaminated water with other sources to lower their concentration.
Still others have closed wells or put them on emergency-use-only status.

In Orange County, where testing ordered by the state found PFAS chemicals in 10 different
water systems, four groundwater wells with elevated levels of the chemicals have been shut

down.

Jason Dadakis, Orange County Water District's executive director of water quality, said that
based on water testing, the district concluded that the chemicals were coming from wastewater
treatment plants in Riverside and San Bernardino. Those facilities discharge water into the Santa

Ana River, he said, which feeds the county's groundwater basin.

Sewage treatment plants aren't designed to remove a compound like PFAS, Dadakis said. "It just
passes through their system."

If the chemicals spread and the district is forced to treat the water, Orange County residents

could see their water bills rise by as much as I5%o, Dadakis said.

Local water suppliers in other parts of the state said they had no idea where the chemicals could
be coming from, but they expected answering that question would take years of investigation.

"It's really difficult to say what's happening and where it's being generated," said Tom Moody,
who oversees the city of Corona's water system, where eight wells tested above the EPA's health
advisory level. Rather than close them all down, the city now sends water from these wells
through an existing treatment plant.

"In my generation, we probably absorbed this chemical in everything from tennis shoes to
popcorn and pizza and all that stuff," Moody said. "Now everybody is trying to point the finger
at everybody else."

Linktofullarticle: https://www.latirnes.com/politicslstorv/2Oj9-10-1O/californi
wi cles pread -oo ntam in at ion-ofìoll em i oal s
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Point Reyes wastewater feasibility study handed off
By Braden Cartrvright
tolog/zorg

The last of three meetings where Point Reyes Station residents discussed water-reiated issues ended with a punt. The

county will not pursue funding for a wastewater feasibility study in favol of letting working groups convened by

Supervisor Dennis Rodoni explore options for wastewater management and visitor bathrooms-two issues that rose to

the top during the water meetings this year.

The series was funded by a state grant for water-resource planning and decision-making in rural communities. As part

of the effort, the county created. a suruey after the first meeting to gauge feelings on various water-related issues. \¡Vhile

some raised concerns around water supply and floodingr sulvey results showed the top-priority projects were a

feasibility study for a community wastewater system and additional restrooms for visitors.

The restroom issue appears to have a solution: on Monday, a working group hosted by Supervisor Dennis Rodoni met

to discuss building a new facility on a county-owned property doivn the street from the existing restrooms. The debate

over whether the county should pursue funding for a feasibility study has been the biggest point of contention.

Residents expressed concerll at last week's meeting and at a Point Reyes Station Village Association meeting on Sept. B

that a wastewater system would solve a problem that doesn't exist. County staff revealed last week that they have

recorded zr septic repairs in the past four years in Point Reyes Station, though there may be unknown failures. "Just

because you may not be having a problem with perfonnance that you're aware of, lyour system] may be leaking into the
groundwater," said Lorene Jackson, the project manager for the meeting series.

She laid out what a feasibitity study entails: at no cost or commitment from the town, a consultant would describe

existing conditions by reviewing county septic Lecolds, doing voluntary septic inspections and taking water samples.

The study would identify alternatives-such as a wastewater management district, alternative sustainable technologies,

and. no project-and select a preferred one. Then the community could decide whether to move forward with an

environmental review of a specific project.

Ms. Jackson invited Marshall resident George Clyde to speak about the wastewater system in his community, where

septic failures were linked to bacterial contamination in Tomales Bay. The ploject, which serves about 5o properties

along Highway 1, was completed in zo16 at a cost of $3.2 million. Each homeowner paid $zo,ooo to connect to the new

system.

"[A feasibility study] was kind of a no-brainer for us," Mr. Clyde said. "Because it wasn't going to cost us an¡hing, it
wasn't going to commit us to anything, and we were going to learn a lot about, through the study itseif, what the

situation was with our homes and the systems."

But residents were quick to point out the differences between Marshall and Point Reyes Station.

"That's an ideal, Iow-cost piece of topography," said Bob Johnston, who has been skeptical of a wastewater system

because of its potential to bring nore development. Adding sewers to a place with hills would cost tnore because the

https://www.ptreyeslight.com/article/point-reyes-wastewater-feasibility-handed 1t2
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system would require many pumps, he said'

"I know more information is good, but it's not grabbing me as the thing to clo," added Laura Arndt, the village

association's treasurer.

"My sense is that we are...going to punt the whole feasibility study to this wastewater group and they're going to discuss

it rnore," Ms. Jackson respondãd, '?,nd if at some point they feel like...they want to proceed with a feasibility study, then

we can revisit it at that tinte."

A wastewater working group that is part of a larger group convened by Supervisor Rodoni early this year will attempt to

gather rnore information about the town's wastewater situation through grants for water testing in the creek and the

Ëay, Supervisor Rodoni said. A sewer system is not the only option, he added: Small systems using high technologies or

a septic system oversight clistrict also are possible'

A sticking point at the water meetings was that different areas of town have different needs and a wastewater system

could nof serve all of them. Downtown sees more visitors but has an underground gravel layer that percolates affluent

effectively, while the mesa has a clay layer, making more modern systems necessary. A mixture of people on the

wolking group ensures that atl interests are represented, Supervisor Rodoni said.

He convened a group of about 10 community stakeholders representing various town interests following the passage of
Measure W, which rãised taxes on overnight rentals in West Marin so the county could enhance emergency services and

long-term housing. The measure d.oes not fully address the impacts of tourism, he said, so the group identified about 3o

other issues facing the town as a result of the influx of visitors.

That list was narrowed down to four issues, and the working group divided into subgroups to address each: solid waste,

community services, wastewater and bathrooms.

The solid. waste group will look at starting a "pack it out" campaign, among other efforts around garbage disposal, while

the community services group will explore recreational opportunities, such as a community kitchen or swimming pool.

The bathroom group was the first to meet, discussing building more public restlooms on an undeveloped, county-

owned property on the corner of Mesa and Giacomini Roads, just a couple hundred feet from the existing bathrooms.

Those bathrooms were not built to handle the current volume of visitors, so the county spends $z4o,16o annually to

pump out the portable toilets adjacent to the stalls'

Supervisor Rodoni said that the county is open to using alternative technologies, such as composting, and including an

educational component.

The Trust for public Land will be brought on to help facilitate the discussion about what the bathrooms might look like.

"I wanted to make sure that this process included someone who was skilled with planning and skilled with facilitation,"
Supervisor Rodoni said. The trust currently owns the San Geronimo Golf Course property and last worked with the

county to re-open Rocl¡y Graham Park in Marin City'

A new bathroom facility would aim to meet current demand with rz to 14 stalls, and parking and other amenities could

be foldecl into the r.78-acre property,

Meanwhile, the county parks department is looking into ways to improve septic capacity at the existing facility, and is

moving forward with adding a ramp.

https://www.ptreyeslight.com/article/point-reyes-wastewater-feasibility-handed 212



Annexing muddle prompts apology

Apology

NOVATO

Draft review alarms unincorporated areas

By Will Houston

w h o tt sJen Gì,m u r i nii . c r¡ nt @Wriil _$ Hous t o n o n

Twitter

Five unincorporated communities near Novato
will not be annexed by the city as a recent
planning document seemed to imply, officials said
Monday.

The documeît, a draft municipal service revlew
by the Marin Local Agency Formation
Commission, contained "misleading" language,
said county supervisor and commission member
Judy Arnold, which prompted concern among
residents of Black Point, Green Point, Bel Marin
Keys, Indian Valley and Loma Verde that the city
would annex them.

"It should have been noted here that the City of
Novato has an Urban Growth Boundary that
would not allow these unincorporated
neighborhoods to be annexed into the city limits,"
Arnold wrote in a prepared statement on Monday,
"andthat Marin LAFCo would not move forward
with any annexation without support of the
people who live in these communities."

The urban growth boundary, approved by Novato
voters in 1997 and renewed for another 20 years

in2017 ,limits urban sprawl outside of city limits.

Susanna Mahoney, president of the Black Point
Improvement Club, said she had heard from
another group on Friday that annexation was
being proposed and contacted Marin LAFCo to
get more information.

"LAFCo states that these (municipal servlce re-

APOLOGY)PAGE 4

Annexing muddle prompts apology

Apology

FROM PAGE 1

views) are frequently used by the state and other
authorities for policy making so any ambiguity in
that report puts us at risk," Mahoney said. "So
I'm very relieved to hear that the erroÍs in the
repoft will be corrected and the review will now
reflect the intent of those who voted for the urban
growth boundary. And it sounds like annexation
will be off the table, at least for now."

The Marin Local Agency Formation Commission,
also known as Marin LAFCo, is a state-created

by that," Fried said Monday, adding that they plan
to update the document to make the urban growth
boundary restrictions more clear.

Mahoney said the strong response to the rumors
of annexation is because residents in Black Point
and Green Point value their unincorporated status

"Our motto is, 'We're fiercely unincorporated'
and we intend to stay that way," Mahoney said.

Responding to residents' concerns about lack of
notification, Marin LAFCo has extended the
public comment period for the draft municipal
service review through Oct. 31. The commission
is set to review the final draft at its Dec. 12

meeting. The commission is then likely to vote on



body tasked with managing local governmental
boundaries, evaluating municipal services and

protecting prime agriculture lands. LAFCo's
municipal service review for Novato and other
communities is required by state legislation and

analyzes services provided by the city and special

districts to determine if they could be improved.

Jason Fried, Marin LAFCo's executive officer,
said the document works to inf luence decisions
about changes to spheres of influence, which are

areas just outside a local government agency's
boundaries, such as a city limit, that the agency

could potentially expand service to in the future.
This latest review for Novato proposes no
changes to the existing spheres of influence, Fried
said, except to dissolve a now-defunct county
service agency run by the Marin County Parks

Department.

The source of the annexation fears came from
page 14
of the draft review under a section titled
o'Unincorporated Islands," referring to
unincorporated areas that are largely surrounded
by incorporated city boundaries. The document
states these islands "create governance and

service delivery inefficiencies and deficiencies"
and that Marin LAFCo's policy on these islands is
to encourage the cities to annex them.

The document then goes on to list the five
communities, which gave the impression that
annexation was on the table.

Craig Knowlton, a board member of the Indian
Valley Associates community organization,
attended the commission's Oct. 10 meeting in
Novato to voice his disagreement of their
community being an "unincorporated island."

"We strongly oppose any additional influence by
the city up to and including annexation,"
Knowlton told the commission.

Upon reading the draft review again, Fried said

he could see how residents could infer their
neighborhoods were up for annexation.

"I deeply apologize to anyone who got confused

any proposed changes to spheres ofinfluence at

its first regularly scheduled meeting in2020,
Fried said.

Public comments can be submitted by email to
staff@marinlafco.ore.

More information about the draft review can be

found at bit.lv/2MdxEBH.

The Black Point neighborhood was ono of five
communities in unincorporated Novato at the
center of confusion over an annexation document.

ALAN DEP - MARIN INDEPENDENT
JOURNAL



Marin's big rainfall year fails to reduce fÏre risk

\Ma ter

WINTER, SPRING STORMS

Wet weather filled reservoirs, but created more
fuel to burn

B y ril il I Hou ston

w hous to,n@ mar inii. c om @Will _$ _Hous ton on
Twitter

The ample rainfall in Marin County this past
water year has acted as a double- edged sword.

While the storms that touched down in the winter
and spring filled reservoirs and moistened
vegetation, they also created more fire fuel that is
now beginning to fully dry out during what
firefighters are calling a critical period in the fire
season.

"Late heavy rains can end up pushing the fire
season off" Novato fire Chief Bill Tyler said
Tuesday. "In that regard, it can be helpful early on
in the fire season. The problem is that it's going to
increase the volume of your native and non-native
grasses."

At this time last year, moisture levels in live
plants were at about 60Yo compared to aboWT2Vo
this year, according to Marin County fire Chief
Jason Weber. At30% moisture or below, a plant is
considered dead. The fires in Marin so far this
year haven't been behaving the same as last
year's, which is a good sign, Weber said.

However, a wetter-thanaverage year does not
ensure a lighter fire season, as the 1995 Mount
Vision fire in West Marin demonstrated, Weber
said. While the moisture levels are higher this
year, the multiple years of drough from years
past have left behind a significant amount of dead
and downed vegetation. And regardless of the
moisture levels, it's the winds that have
firefighters worried, \Meber said.

was about 33 inches.

ooso it was well above average last year," said

National Weather Service meteorologist Spencer
Tan-

\ilATER >> PAGE 4

Railroad tracks hang over the breached levee

along the flooded Highway 37 in Novato in
February. The heavy Marin rains this year have
provided little comfort to firefighters.

JAMES CACCIATORE - MARIN
INDEPENDENT JOURNAL

Awoman fishes at the Nicasio reservoir in July.

Marin Municipal Water District's water supply is
at\2Yo of total capacity.

JEREMY PORTJE - MARIN INDEPENDENT
JOURNAL
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"We still have to get back to a healthy landscape
Not every year will be wet and it \ ¡on't be wet
late," Weber said. "It takes just a couple windy
days to really change our perspective. ... It can
offset any benefit of moist conditions in a late
season."

One gauge near San Rafael listed on the
Community Collaborative Rain, Hail and Snow
Network recorded nearly 52 inches of rain. The
30-year avetage annual rainfall for the area

Marin's big rainfall year fails to reduce fire
risk

\ila ter
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to keep our reservoirs full," district
communications manager Jeanne Mariani-
Belding wrote in an email. "Even as we move
into the fall and winter, it's always important to
conserve."

Sonoma Water, which provides about 75o/o of
North Marin Water District's supply and about
20%o of Marin Municipal Water District's supply,
also reporled higherthan- average reservoir levels,
Mclntyre said.

Statewide, reservoir storage was at l28o/o of
average at about 29.7 million acre-feet through
the end of September, according to the California
Department of V/ater Resources.

"The significant rainfall and snowpack made for a
great water year in 2019, so we start the new year
in a good place," department director Karla
Nemeth said in a statement earlier this month.
"However, we all know too well that California's
weather and precipitation are highly variable.
What we have today could be gone tomorrow.
Conserve, recycle, recharge - people and the
environment depend on it." Drought conditions
have been nonexistent in Marin since March, with
only a small portion in the southeast of the state

showing any dry conditions as of Oct. 10,

according to the U.S. Drought Monitor.

In anticipation of the coming winter, the National
Oceanic and Atmospheric Administration's
Climate Prediction Center plans to present its
rainwlook during a press conference Thursday.

In the 2017 -2018 water year, only about 17 inches
of rain fell at the Civic Center, which was the
lowest amount since the recent drought years.

This year's rains also gave Marin and the state

water reservoirs a boost for the summer months.

At Stafford Lake, the North Marin Water District
recorded 38 inches of rain between July 1,2018
and June 30,2019, well above the average2T
inches, according to district general manager
Drew Mclntyre. At Stafford Lake, the district's
main local reservoir near Novato, the supply was
at 50o/o capacity with 2,150 acre-feet of water at
the start of the week.

"Normally at this time of year we are around
1,800 acre-feet," Mclntyre said Tuesday. "So we
have more storage in the lake than a normal year
because of how wet this last year was and how
late in the season the rains fell."

Several reservoirs operated by Marin's largest
water supplier, the Marin Municipal Water
District, were filled to or were near capacity for a
several months of the year. The latest storage
report showed the district's supply was at 65,216



acrefeet or 82o/o oftotal capacity as ofTuesday.
The average supply for this time of year is about
670/o of capacity, according to the district.

"'W'e're appreciative of our customers'
conservation effolts, which helps

Wednesday, 1Q11612019 Page .A0l Copyright 'l'erms and 'I'elms of Usc. Please leview new arbitlation language here



Housing for staff foiled by blooper

Housing

COLLEGE OF MARIN

Easements revealed on Indian Valley lots

By Keri Brenner

kh r e nn e r (g)nt ur i.n ü. c o nt @ Ke r i Wo r ks o n Tw i t t e r

A plan by College of Marin to buy 2
I taxdefaulted lots in unincorporated Novato fiom
Marin County is in limbo following a last-minute
discovery of a series of open space easements.

College officials, who had been working on the
purchase for more than two years as a potential

location to build affordable teacher and staff
housing, said late Monday they will not be

moving ahead as planned.

"'We're going to take a pause," Greg Nelson,
COM vice president for administrative services,

said Monday afternoon. That was just after he

was informed of the existence of the easements,

which he said had not turned up in prior research

and due diligence.

Sandra Kacharos, tax division chief for Marin
County, said Monday that the easements, at the

21 parcels at the end of Fairway Drive adjacent to

an open space area outside of Novato city limits,
were recorded in 2010 in a settlement of earlier
litigation between property owners MCCE LLC
and Marin County Parks and Open Space.

Max Korten, Marin County parks and open space

director, said the litigation and settlement
occurred before he began working for the county,

and that he was just inforrned of the situation
himself on Monday. He said he would

HOUSING >> PAGB 2

Housing for staff foiled by blooper

Housing

FROM PAGE 1

be meeting with the college to help provide them
with more information on the situation.

"l'm not sure why it didn't come up before,"
Korten said. "I want to make sure we'te helpful to

the college and good partners with them. I feel

bad that they didn't know about it before."

It was not clear what triggered the revelation of
the easements on Monday. Korten said the land in
question is near a popular hiking trail that leads to
a waterfäll.

The 21-lot purchase was to have been parl of an

effort by the college to offer affordable housing in
Marin so that more faculty and staff could live
closer to where they work. After a suruey showed

that fewer than half of College of Marin's 600-

person staff and faculty were able to afford to live
in the county, the college began scouting for
properties to develop their own options.



Kacharos said the college had notified the county

two years ago that college officials were
interested in the lots. No offrcial action was taken,

however, until this past Sept. 17, when the

college's board of trustees voted in favor of
moving forward with the land purchase.

After the trustees vote in September, the county

submitted the college's documentation to the state

controller's offlrce, which currerfly has them

under review, she said.

The lots were listed for sale at$'167,289,
Kacharos said. That amount was to cover all back

taxes and the cost of the parcels, which were all
in tax default for more than five years. The five-
year tax default made them eligible for a special

purchase option by a nonprofit or government

entity, according to state tax law. If the sale had

gone forward, it would have been likely
completed by late January or early February,
Kacharos said.

In mid-2018, the college purchased the former
Kentfield Fitness Center building on Sir Francis

Drake Boulevard at the southeast corner of the

intersection with College Avenue, along with two
other properties on Sir Francis Drake just east

from the fitness center.

Nelson said Monday thafrenovations at the
fitness center space will be completed in
December, allowing the college's print shop and

marketing offices to move into that space

downstairs, while the two apartments above it
will ultimately be offered for staff housing. The

other two properties east of the fitness center

building will be demolished and rebuilt as a 10-

to-12-unit aparlment complex, he said.
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V/inter weather outlook:
'The probabilities tilt slightly toward
warmer and drier than normal'
By Amy Graff, SFGATE
Updated 8:11 am PDT, Tuesday, Octobe¡ 22,2019
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As the San Francisco Bay Area faces another bout of balmy days in the middle of

October, many are wondering what's around the corner.

Will winter be wet or dry this year?

While forecasting the weather farther than a week out with definitive accuracy is futile,

the National Oceanic and Atmospheric Administration has released a prediction for the

winter outlook in the United States and the prediction for parts of Northern California,

including the San Francisco Bay Area, isn't going to be good for your gard.en.



"The probabilities tilt slightly towarrl a warmer and clrier than normal Novetnber,

December, January," says NOAA meteorologist David Miskus.

Miskus says several dynamic mocìels, like the North American Multi-Model Ensembie,

generate the long-term outlook, ernd these are predicting a 42 percent pr:obability clf

belou'-average precipitation ancì. a 49 percent chance of above-average tempelatures for

November, December ancl.Ianuary for the San l'.r'ancisco Bay Area.

"It's important to remember this is just the probability," says Miskus. "'Ihere's still a z5

percent chance for above normal precipitation, a 24 percent chance of below normal

temperatures and a 39 tr)ercent chance for normal precipitation and temperatutes."

To better unclerstand these numbers, keep in mind NOAA's seasonal forecasts "start

with the assumption that for any ranclom slrmmer or winter, there are three possible

climate outcomes--temperatnre or precipitation that is well above normal, near normal,

or below normal--and they are each equally likeiy," according to NOAA. The goai of the

f'orecast is to estimate the probability of each outcome based on impacts of certain

factors, like the presence of El Niño or La Niña.

This year, Brian Garcia with the National Weather Serwice office in Monterey, explains

neither El Niño or La Niña look to be dominating forces with surface n'ater

temperatures in the tr:opical Pacilic near normal.

El Niño and La Niña are "essentially like the thousand pound gorilla in clriving the

seasonal weather patterns," Garcia explains. "We have all these other oscillations that

have smaller footprints of dominance, but when the thousancl pouncl gorilla is out of the

picture, these other primates control forces. In cclming months, it looks like the Arctic

Osciliation is lining up in a way that it couìd resttlt in more dry weather."

Garcia adds that tTre winter weather pattern can also easily mix up halfway through the

season, and the impact of the Arctic Osciilation could lessen r,vhile another factor

strengthens.



Jan Null, who runs the private forecasting sewice ñìq)ìÐ$qiså {Å'¿z'r"*: \V*¿xllR**s" Su*s"q'Èdra:r,,

puts little stake in the long-term predictions. Nulì points out that last winter models

predicted near-normal precipitation for most of California. Essenlially the exact

opposite unfolded and the Golden State was soaked by winter storms.

"That's just looking at it at a really basic level," says Null. "To miss things that broaclly

rnakes you wonder if this is a valuable product."

Null has followed the winter outlooks for the United States over the past 10 years, and

says while they often get parts of forecast correct, he has yet to fincl at least some part of

it that is not grossly missed every year.

"It's not somethirrg I would reach on my wallet and pay good cash money for," he says.

No matter the outcome, Miskus points otit that California is well-equipped with r,r'ater

after last year's wet winter.

"California reservoirs are in good shape," he says. "We had a good winter last ycar and

cold spring so the snow melt was slow. Things are good hydrologically going into

winter."

Arnt1 Graff is a digital edítor.for SITGAT'E.Ihtwil her ot açlreff@sÍUate.cotn.



Discounts considered for water fee

MARIN MUNICIPAL

Customers with large meter sizes could be

charged based on use

By Will Houston

w h o u,g I o n (t!)m u r i n i.i . c: r t nt @Wl I _$ _Hous t o n o n

Twiuer

At least 97 Marin Municipal Water District
customers paying the new capital maintenance fee
could be paying far less, district ofhcials
acknowledged Thursday.

The district is proposing allowing ceftam
customers with larger meter sizes to pay a
reduced fee based on water consumption. At the
same time, consideration is being given to
waiving the fee for customers who qualiff for its
low income and medical disability programs.

up to $3 1,063 per year for 10-inch meters, of
which the district currently serves none.

Marin Municipal Water District directors Larry
Bragman (second from left), Jack Gibson and
Cynthia Koehler listen to a speaker.

WILL HOUSTON - INDEPENDENT
JOURNAL, FILE

'oThe important thing here is to be equitable and
fair," MMWD board director Cynthia Koehler
said at the district's board meeting in Corte
Madera Thursday.

The controversial fee, which took effect in July, is
a hxed fee based on customers'water meter size,
with larger meter sizes generating larger fees. The
fee amounts range from $163 to $408 per year for
nearly 90olo of customers, but range

The district plans to use the estimated $16 million
to $20 million in annual revenue from the fee to
repair and replace its aging tanks, pipes, pumps
and treatment facilities as well as for fire
prevention.

But some ratepayers are required to have larger
meters to comply with fire sprinkler standards or
to address low pressure issues. Their actual water
use, however, could be served by smaller meter
sizes. The district has allowed this ratepayer
group to reduce their fee by one meter-size tier,

to installing fire suppression equipment such as

sprinklers in homes.

The Coalition of Sensible Taxpayers (COST)
president Mimi Willard said the organization has

been saying "from Day 1" that the district is
overcharging customers using this meterbased fee
formula.

"In effect, today's meeting shows that they are

now admitting that, but they're only tinkering
around the edges," Willard said.



such as from $245 for a3l4-inch meter to $163
for a 5/8-inch meter.

The proposal introduced Thursday would allow
these customers to reduce their fee by rnore than
one tier based on the amouff of water they
consume. In addition, the reduction would also
apply to other meterbased fees charged by the

district, including the bimonthly watershed and
service charge fees. Ifapproved, the discount
would take effect at the time the customer turned
in their full application.

Charles Duggan, the district's administrative
services manager and treasurer, told the board the
change is being proposed based on data the
district collected since customers began applying
for the discount. Of the 300 applications
submitted so fan, 246 were approved. Ninetyseven
of the approved customets could have had a

larger fee reduction based on their water use,

Duggan said.

"Vy'e believe it would be a worthy adjustment if
the board saw fit," Duggan told the board.

Marin resident Roger Roberts urged the district to
inform the various planning agencies and cities
throughout the county about the reduction, if
approved.

"V/ith this new initiative for wildland f,tre control,
we're going to have some zealous response to that
risk," Roberts said, "and there may be, in the
future, a number of people who are going to be

asked to increase the size of their water supply in
order to meet (wildland urban interface) fire risk."

District General Manager Ben Horenstein said the
fee issue became notable to staff after inquiries
about a fee reduction came on a townhome
project located on the fire-prone, wildland urban
interface, or WUI. The fire marshal is requiring a

1.5-inch meter, but the customers' water
consumption could be easily served by a 5/8-inch
meter. The fee cost difference between the two
meter sizes is nearly $650 per year. Earlier this
year, the Marin County Fire Chiefs Association
sent a letter to the water district expressing

The watchdog group has called for the district to
base the fee on water consumption for all
customers. COST filed a lawsuit in Marin County
Superior Court challenging the legality of the fee.

"Until they do something more substantive to
address the underlying issue that the meter-based
charges are inequitable and overcharge a lot of
people, the lawsuit continues," Willard said.

Some of the customers who did not qualify for
the discount were found to have larger meter sizes

than needed, Duggan said, and could consider
reducing their meter size. This prompted board
director Larry Russell to question whether the
district should look into refunding the connection
fee those customers paid for the larger meters if
they choose to switch to the smaller size.

"It could be $10,000, $20,000 or $30,000,"
Russell said, phoning in for the meeting. "It could
be a lot different."

Koehler said this could be more complicated
because the person using the larger meter
currently might not have paid for it, but rather
inherited it. Horenstein also added there are

complexities to Russell's proposal that would
need to be reviewed.

In response, V/illard said it would be dangerous
for the district to encourage people to reduce their
meter size during a time when fire agencies are

calling for greater fire suppression efforts, such as

sprinkler installations. Instead, the district should
fix its "capricious fee structure," Vy'illard said.

In addition, the board is proposing to halve or
waive the capital maintenance fee for customers
that qualify for low inoome discount and medical
disability rates. The district has 800 customers
under its low income program and 300 people on

the medical disability program, Duggan said.

Both programs already waive the district's
bimonthly watelshed maintenance and service
charge fees.

The proposals are set to go back to the board at a
future meeting.



concern about the fee structure, saying it could
serve as a disincentive
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Interim director hired to oversee finance division

Director

NOVATO

By Will Houston

w hous t on@ mar inii . c om @tlrill _$ -fl ouston on
Twitter

The latest addition to Novato's reshuffled
administration is another familiar face who will
take the role as interim finance director.

Acting city manager Adam McGill appointed
Novato resident and longtime financier David
Bentley to run the city's new finance department.
He began his position on Friday.

Bentley has a long career in the Novato area,

having served as auditor-controller for the North
Marin Water District for 31 years before retiring
in 2018. Bentley has been serving on the Novato
Citizens Finance Advisory and Oversight
Committee, from which he stepped down after
starting his position on Friday. He also previously
held positions on the Novato Chamber of
Commerce board and its governmental affairs
committee.

In addition, Bentley is a former certified public
accountant and served as finance director for the
city of Fortuna in Humboldt County from 1983 to
1987.

"'We are grateful to have someone of David's
integrity and experience as we work to fillthis
critical role," McGill said. "I look forward to the

contributions he will bring to our team and our
community."

"I have known David Bentley for close to 10

years and he is a respected and experienced
finance professional," Mayor Eric Lucan said.
oo'We are fortunate to have someone of his
integrity stepping into the interim role."

"I want to help them get through the year-end
audit for last fiscal year and then working on the

budget for the upcoming yôffi," Bentley said.

Bentley said he isn't looking to stay in the
position for a long term, but will assist in finding
a good candidate to fill the role. He said he

expects a hire in early 2020.

Being recruited as a retired annuitant, Bentley
will be paid $84.13 per hour and receive no health
or retirement benefits, according to the city
manager's offtce.

North Marin Water District general manager
Drew Mc-Intyre has worked with Bentley for
close to 20 years.

ooHe's been a pleasure to work with, he's detail
oriented and he also cares about the Novato
communit¡" Mclntyre said. "I think it's a wise
move on the city's part to tap somebody locally
with the knowledge that he has and to help them
bridge the gap until they have a permanent
replacement."

DIRECTOR ) PAGE 4
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Bentley



Bentley said he was offered the position by
McGill after the last Citizens Finance Advisory
and Oversight Committee hearing. On his first
day Friday, Bentley said he was meeting with
staff to figure out their priorities.

Interim director hired to oversee finance
division

Director

FROM PAGE 3

Bentley will be in charge of running the city's
new finance department, which is responsible for
budget preparation, financial reporting,
purchases, payroll, debt administration, managing
invested funds and revenue sources. The finance
manager position was under the city manager's
off,rce.

Novato has long been without a finance chief.
The last finance manager was Tony Clark, who
was hired in2}Il and left the position in 2018.

Under former city manager Regan Candelario's
tenure, Clark's vacancy was filled on an interim
basis by financial consultants. Consultants Mark
Moses and Rickey Manbahal were listed in city
staff reports as interim finance manager this year.

Both were fired by Candelario in July after
information about past employment controversies
resurfaced in the community.

In August, the City Council ousted Candelario
and appointed Mc-Gill as acting city manager.

McGill has overhauled the administration during
his short tenure.

The continued failure to attract suitable
candidates for the city's finance manager position
prompted the council to reclassify the position as

finance director in September. The change
included a sizable pay raise, from $139,596 per
year under the former manager position to
5114,996. The director position also heads a

discrete department while the manager position
was paft of the city manager's office.

City accounting supervisor Brooke Kerrigan
served briefly in the interim finance director role
for about two weeks before Bentley's
appointment, according to Assistant City Manager
Jessica Deakyne.
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FCC finds broad failure of cellular sites in Marin County

Cellular

Report:

By Lisa M. Krieger

Bay Area News Group

Even as California burns, the cell phones of many
residents have gone mute, preventing them from
giving or getting emergency inf'orrnation.

A report prepared by the Federal Communications
Commission reveals that at least 874 of the state's

cell sites were out on Monday, up from 630 on

Sunday, when fires broke out all around the Bay
Area.

Because these cell sites lack battery ol generator
backup, they're useless when PG& E cuts power.

In Marin County, more than half - 57.1 percent

- of sites weren't working.

Fire-ravaged Sonoma County, where the Kincaid
fire is 66,000

CELLULAR >> PAGE 4

FCC fTnds broad failure of cellular sites in
Marin County

Cellular
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acres and growing, lost 17 percent of its sites.

Santa Cruz, San Mateo, Napa, Contra Costa, San

Mateo and Santa Clara counties lost22.5 percent,

I 1.4 percent, 19.2percent, 1 1.4 percent and2.7
percent of sites, respectively. Data was not
reported for Alameda County.

In addition, more than 454,722 subscribers with
landline phones, cable television or Internet also

lost service due to power shutoffs, according to
the FCC repoft.

This jeopardizes the safety of California residents

who have cut the landline cord and rely solely on
cell phones, said Johnson.

Wireless networks deliver federal and state

emergency alerts, transmits 911 calls and helps
police and other "first responders" make

decisions about when and where to deploy
resources.

"It is unacceptable for cell sites to not have

backup power, when over 80 percent of our 91 1

calls are from wireless phones," said Johnson.

Comcast customers lose service where the power
is out at their home, because the services need

energy to operate, according to Comcast's Joan

Hammel. Comcast service also stops if power is
disrupted elsewhere in the network, she said.

"lt has been extremely isolating and worrisome,"
said Santa Cruz Mountains resident Sherry



McNamara. "'We are cut off and thus put in
danger."

Residents said even their once-reliable landlines
and Internet, such as those operated by Frontier
Communications, weren' t working.
Comcast/Xfinity also was down. Four FM radio
stations - K23
8AF, KKLJ, KNOB, KSXY - reported being out

of service. Also silent were two AM radio
stations, KIHH and KYAA.

Of the outages, most were due to loss of powel to
the cell tower. Only about 60 were caused by
wind or fire damage.

And that's only part of the problem. The new
report contains only data submitted by providers
in the Disaster Information Reporting System, a

voluntary network used to report communications
infrastructure status during times of crisis. Of
California's 58 counties,32 are included. That
represents about 26,000 cell sites.

Cell towers, for instance, use antennas and base

stations to connect calls from one tower to
another and to other cellular and landline
providers. And these systems need electricity to
operate.

But there is no requirement to have backup
electrical power at cell towers. The only
requirement is that they deliver backup power to
certain sites and at certain locations - such as an

evacuation center - after an emergency,

according to Ana Maria Johnson of the Public
Advocate's Office of the state Public Utilities
Commission..

During an emergency, they are not required to

disclose which towers are down or which carriers
have lost service, according to the CPUC. Nor do

they need to tell authorities how close their
backup power is to downed cell site. Is help an

hour away, or two days away? No one knows
except the company.

"Like all PG& E customers, we are also affected
by this power shutdown, said Vince Bitong of
AT& T. "'We are aware that service for some

customers may be affected and we continue to
move quickly to keep our customers, FirstNet
subscribers and public safety agencies
connected."

Landlines used to be more reliable, because their
power was sent to the phones through copper
wires, which are more heatresistant. And phone

company offices had extensive battery systems, as

well as backup generators.

But companies'transition to Voice over Internet
Protocol (VOIP) - with phone calls over the

Internet - requires power. VOIP calls fail when
either the company's facility or the resident's
home lacks backup power.

In 2008, the Federal Communications
Commission ordered camiers to install eight hours

of backup power at all cell sites and 24 hours of
backup power at all central switching facilities.

But when the wireless industry challenged the

order in court and won on procedural grounds, the

FCC dropped the effort.

In2007, California also consideled stronger
reliability standards but declined to impose them.

Fearing blackouts in future natural disasters,

CPUC's advocates filed a legal motion urging the

Commission to immediately require carriers
provide backup battery or generator power and

network redundancy in designated high fire risk
zones to ensure that emergency alerts are received
and that 911 calls are answered. They are hopeful
that new CPUC president Marybel Batjer will
demand accountability.

"The companies need to provide safe and reliable
service," said Johnson.
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PG&E restores power to approximately 99o/o of customers

County

County:

By Adrian Rodriguez and Matthew Pera
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Pacific Gas and Electric Co. has restored power
to approximately 99Vo of the Marin customers
whose power was shut offin recent days, the
county said Wednesday night.

As of 6 p.-., the remaining deenergized meters
included 434 in Dillon Beach, 234 ínTomales,
122 in Marshall, 76 in Fallon,46 in Fairfax, 12 in
Mill Valley and two in Stinson Beach, said Laine
Hendricks, a spokeswoman for the county.

"Full restoration has been achieved in Kentfield,
Lagunitas, Muir Beach,

Nicasio, Novato, SanAnselmo, San Geronimo,
Sausalito, and'Woodacre," Hendricks said.

The utility cut power to nearly 1 million homes
and businesses throughout 38 California counties
over the weekend, including about 118,000 in
Marin. The power shutoffwas aimed at
preventing PG& E's electric equipment from
sparking more wildfires as fierce winds ravaged
portions of the state, the utility said.

According to PG& E spokeswoman Deanna
Contreras, inspection crews found 83 equipment
problems throughout the 38 counties that were hit
by the shutoffs this week. It was unknown how
many problems were found in Marin.
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online V/ednesda¡ some said their phones lit up
with delayed messages that warned of a second
power shutofffor Marin.

Marin County Office of Emergency Services had
sent out that message on Saturday, when it still
believed that PG& E would roll out another round
ofoutages on Tuesday.

Hendricks, the county spokeswoman, said the
Marin OES used what's called a "wireless
emergency alert," the same type of system that
sends out Amber Alerts to mobile devices.

Another round of blackouts swept the state

Tuesday, cutting power to 516,000 homes and
businesses in 26 counties. That shutoffwas
initially expected to cut power for thousands in
Marin, but PG& E announced Tuesday afternoon
that it had removed Marin from the list of
counties that would be affected.

"This is a critical communication tool,"
"We were able to reconfigure the scope of the Hendricks said, noting that the messaging system
(shutdown) and isolate portions of the grid," casts a wide net, sending messages to hundreds of
Contreras said. No new shutoffs are expected this thousands of devices at once.
week for Marin, she said.

Hendricks apologized for any confusion and said
Lingering blackouts emergency officials will be working with cell



Late Wednesday morning, PG& E still hadn't companies to stop errant messages. She said
restored power to a large swath of Fairfax. ofhcials weren't aware of issues with the system
Downtown businesses south of Sir Francis Drake that they observed during the shutdown.
Boulevard were lit up and bustling, while shops
across the street had no electricity. Back in service

G Liquor Wine and Grocery was on the dark side
of town.

"It's frustrating," said shop owner Kamaljeet
Singh, who spent the morning scooping a puddle
of liquified ice cream out of a freezer.

Ray Martin, meanwhile, had fired up his rce

cream maker and was mixing a batch of mocha
chip at his shop, Fairfax Scoop. The electricity
had kicked back on Tuesday night and Martin was
busy restocking flavors that were running low.

Despite the blackouts, it had been a busy few
days at Fairfax Scoop, in part because several
local schools had canceled classes, Marlin said.
To keep his shop open during the shutoffs, Martin
made daily trips to San Francisco, where he

bought 150 pounds ofdry ice each day to keep his
inventory cold. "A couple really nice people
brought lanterns for us," Martin said. "People
were super nice and helpful."

A few doors down, Rachel Humphrey sat eating
breakfast at atable outside Taste Kitchen & Table.
Humphrey had come fiom her home in Woodacre,
which was cold and powerless, hoping to find
someplace where she could connect to the
internet for a morning business call. Though there
was electricity inside the cafe, she struggled to
connect to its Wi-Fi. It was clear that not
everything had returned to normal just yet, she

said.

"I was driving back from work in Oakland last
night, and it was really interesting just seeing the
little patches of life coming back," she said.

Charles Fonseca raced home in a fit of glee
Tuesday evening, thinking he'd be returning, at
long last, to life on the grid.

Riding his bike around Fairfax, Fonseca had seen
lights come on inside several downtown

With temperatures expected to drop drastically
overnight, the National Weather Service issued a

frost advisory for 2 to 9 a.m. Thursday.
Temperatures were expected to dip between 26
and 35 degrees.

All Marin County public schools were closed
Wednesday, with a rnajority of schools planning
to re-open Thursday, according to the Marin
County Office of Education.

"Following site inspections to ensure that our
students and staff are safe, we are confident that
all schools with power can resume normal
operations on Thursday," said Marin County
Superintendent of Schools Mary Jane Burke. "We
know that this unprecedented situation has been
challenging for families and we are grateful for
their flexibility and patience.

"For the few schools currently without power,
families can expect to receive direct messages

with school specific information from their school
district leaders," Burke said.

College of Marin and Dominican University were
also scheduled to resume classes Thursday.

The outage created atrafftc mess in Central
Marin during the Wednesday morning commute.
Signal lights on Sir Francis Drake Boulevard at
the Highway 101 interchange between Greenbrae
and Larkspur Landing were out, clogging the
freeway and city traf'fic.



businesses. But his excitement quickly faded
when he arrived at his house, only a few blocks
from downtown, and learned that his power was
still out.

He found himself back at Fairfax Town Hall on
Wednesday, where a handful of residents who
were still waiting for their electricity to return at
home crowded around power outlets, charging up
their devices.

Parts of Mill Valley were also in the dark on
Wednesday.

oo'We're hoping to get some kind of a resolution
today," said Mayor Jim V/ickham.

Jim Welte, director of membership for the city's
Chamber of Commerce, said he called around to
Mill Valley businesses on Wednesday to find out
which were up and running. Most said they were
open, but others were still struggling, he said.

'olt's a little hard to decipher between those that
are closed because they have no power and those
thatarc closed for whatever other litany of
circumstances that might have prevented them
from being open toda¡" 'Welte said.

Cell towers down

As cell towers came back

Charles Fonseca makes use of electrical outlets in
the lobby of the town hall in Fairfax on
Wednesday.

ALAN DEP - MARIN INDEPENDENT
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Cell towers need to work during outages

Editorial

A Federal Communications Commission report
on the state's cellular sites losing power during
recent wildland f,rres is reason for deep concern

- especially in Marin.

Across our county, more than half of the local cell
sites stopped working because they lacked battery
or generator backup. 'When Pacific Gas and

Electric Co. turned off power to large swaths of
Northern California, the cell sites stopped
operating and cell phones went silent.

This dilemma should be of primary concern to
local and state lawmakers.

A reflection of the severity of Marin's cell outage

is that, during the same period, while the Kincade
fire raged, only I7o/o of the sites in Sonoma
County went dead.

It is time that Marin and other jurisdictions that
approve permits for cell sites start requiring
longer or permanent backup sources during
outages.

During public hearings on these proposals,
cellular firm representatives have routinely
stressed the need for new sites and towers,
emphasizing the critical role cell phones might
play in making "911" calls.

That promised public service was lost for six in
10 Marin users because of the lack of backup
power. Not only that, some of the emergency alert
texts meant to inform residents before Saturday's
outage began didn't send until after cell towers
came back on line Monday or Tuesday - sending
incorrect information about an upcoming outage
that already happened.

That cannot be tolerated.

Across the Bay Area, the percentages were Wireless services are relied on to deliver federal,

similarly low compared to Marin. state and local emergency alerts.

not impose any requirements.

Twelve years later we learned the folly of that
decision.

Over the past week, Marin residents have had to
deal with unreliability of a service that routinely
boasts of its reliability. Many local residents
relied on their cellphones to stay in touch with
family members or work during this trying time.
Or they relied on their phones to keep abreast of
emergency alerts.

But some couldn't rely on their cell service
because the cell sites lacked backup power.

They may be private companies, but they are

relied on to provide vital, if not potentially life-
saving, public service.

That more than half of the sites serving Marin
went offline because they lacked modern
emergency power backup is an emergency in
itself.

It is 2019, not 2001 . Public reliance on cell
service is far greater today. Federal, state and
local officials need to make sure these companies
for governmental agencies have provided
approvals for cell service and sites for towers and

antennae are equipped and maintained so they can

be relied on.

Public oversight holding service providers
accountable has been lacking.

That nearly 60Yo of cell sites in Marin became

useless and phones went mute when customers
needed them the most is good reason for tougher
rules.



State lawmakers and the FCC should establish Local and state officials need to address it as an

standards fol protecting the service, especially in emergency, immediately'
the face of a power outage. Local officials need to
put heat on the communications companies to
shore up the dependability of their service.

Power outages are going to happen again.If not a
manmade strategy to prevent fires, there will be

storms, hres and earthquakes that create lalge and
long-term outages.

Califomia officials in 2007 consideled
establishing strong reliability standards for cell
sites, but did
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